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Cautionary statement
Certain statemests contained in this docurment constitute or may constitute "forward-looking statements’

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology. including the terms "believes’. ‘estimates’.
‘projects’ ‘aims’, ‘plans. 'predicts| ‘prepares’ ‘anticipates’ ‘expects’, ‘intends,, ‘may’, "will’ or ‘should' or, in each case, their negative or othar variations or
comparable terminalogy, or by discussions of strategy. plans. objectives, goals, future events or intentions. Such forward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking
staternents are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Group’s present and future business strategies and the envirornment in which the Group
will operate in the future. These forward-looking staternents speak only as at the date of this dogurment. Except as required by applicable law, rule or
regulation, the Group expressly disdaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements
contained i this document to reflect any change in its expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which
any such statement is based. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
drcumstances that may or may not occur in the future or are beyond the Group's control. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance. Mitie's actuat results of operations, financial condition and the development of the business sector in which the Group operates may differ
materially from the expectations disclosed or implied by the forward-fooking statements contained in this document. In addition, even if the Group's
actual results of operations, financial condition and the development of the business sector in which the Group operates are consistent with the forward-
looking statements contained in this document, those resulis or developments may not be indicative of results or developrnents in subsequent periods.
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The Exceptional, Every Day | - o

We are one of the UK's leading facilities
management companies. Our expertise, care,
. technology, insight and focus on sustainability
create amazing work environments, helping
our customers to be exceptional every day.
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Financial statements

A strong performance

Thanks to the hard work of our 72,000 colleagues, Mitie has recovered strongly from

the pandemic, delivering a record £4bn of revenue in FY22, operating profit of £167m

and free cash flow of £133m. The Interserve Facilities Management (Interserve} business
is perfarming strongly under our stewardship and our ability to rapidly mobilise flexible
contracts led to strong COVID-related business. Our underlying business performed well

in the year, growing 14%.

We delivered a strong financial performance in FY22, with good underlying growth.
The Group is now able to leverage its capital base to focus on long-term value creation,
accelerating investment in growth and delivering enhanced shareholder returns.

Financial

Revenue including share of joint
ventures and associates'

£3,99/m

+58%
FY21: £2.529m

Group revenue'

£3,903m

+56%

FY2I: £2,499m

Operating profit before other items'?

£16/m

>1007%

FYZl: £59m

Cperating profit'?

£/2m

>100%

FY2l: £4m

Average daily net debt

£25m

-£22m
FY2I: £47m

€ Find out more on page {6

Employee engagement .

50%

-Sppt
FY21: 55%

Free cash flow

£133m

+£158m
FY21: £025)m

MNon-Financial

Net Promater Score*

+39

+i5
FY21: +24

Females in senior leadership team

24%
+3ppt
FY21: 21%

@ Find out more on page |18

{. From continuing operations.

Carbon emissions (tonnes CO,e)

20,596

+7%
FY21; 19.205

2. Other items are as described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
3. Operating profit mdudes share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates,
4. Customer NPS includes legacy interserve contracts and & calculated as a weighted average. Mitie standalone NPS increased

to +51.

Mitie Group plc 0}
Annual Report and Accounes 2022
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At a glance

Qur vision OQur purpose What we do
: Our expertise, care, technology, Mitie is one of the UK's leading facilities
The Exce PU o) nal! insight and focus on sustainability management companies. Mitie offers
create amazing work environments, a range of services to the public and
EVerY DaY helping our customers 10 be private sectors including engineering
exceptional, every day. : services, energy, security, cleaning

and specialist services including
custody, landscaping and waste
management services.

Qur customers
Ranging from banks and retailers, to hospitals, schools and government entities.

#1 in Rerail, Logistics and Shopping Centres #1 in Critical Security Environments

amazon BURBERRY: gg FedEx. 2 e or ncnsvo
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Total order book

Customer type FY22 Toral forward order book £€m
Revenue from continuing operations Revenue for continling operations £9 5 b n
Pipeline
% £m
& Government 59 @ year 2702
& Non-government 4 @ (-2years L64l
@ >2years 5,138

02 Mitie Group plc
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Financial statements

We deliver the exceptional every day through a range of business divisions and services

Business Services

We keep some of the UK's biggest companies
across a diverse range of sectors (including
financial & professional services, manufacturing,
telecoms, retail and transport) clean, safe

and secure.

© Cleaning

© Security

© Office services

Revenue FY22

£1,522m
38%

O

Central Government & Defence
A market leader in the provision of fadilities
management services to central government
departments in the United Kingdom and
Europe, and the Ministry of Defence in the
United Kingdom and deployments overseas.
© Cleaning

© Security

© Office services

© Engineering services

© Decarbonisation

Revenue FY22

£669m
17%

O

Communities

A leading provider of mostly integrated
faciltties management services to devolved
public sector customers, with a focus on
community environments in healthcare,
schools and universities, emergency services
and local authorities.

© Cleaning © Engineering services
© Security © Decarbonisation
© Catering @ Portering

Revenue FY22

£460m
12%

Technical Services

Provides the full range of key technology backed
engineering, maintenance, repair and mechanical
and electrical systerns project aclivities, energy.,
carbon and water management services,
air-conditioning/disinfection solutions and

digital workplace services.

© Engineering services

© Projects

© Decarbonisation

Revenue FY22

£973m
24%

S 1R
Fo

© Find out mare on page 58

>
=

Specialist Services

Care & Custody

Provides high-quality, critical public
services in immigration, criminal justice
and secure healthcare.

Landscapes
Atop five UK provider of landscaping, focused
on both horticultural and winter services.

VWWaste management

A leading national waste management business
providing innovative waste reduction and
treatment solutions.

Spain

Provides a full range of services to customers
throughout Spain from cleaning, catering

and security.

Revenue FY22
t .

£373m
9%

Mitie Group plc 03
Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Chairman’s statement
Moving from strength to strength

Thanks to the hard work of our 72,000
colleagues, Mitie has recovered strongly from
the pandemic, delivering a record £4bn of
revenue in FY22, operating profit of £167m
and free cash fiow of £133m.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

04 Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Dear Mitie Shareholder,

When | wrote to you last year we were still in
the grip of the pandemic, with many restrictions
in place and the mass roli-out, of vacdnations
just mobilising. A year later it is heartening to
see that we have weathered the storm and that
the worst is behind us. And it is & huge tribute
1o all the Mitie colleagues who played their part
during COVID, ensuring essential services at
testing centres, red list hotels, hospitals, schools,
supermarkets, transport hubs and <ritical
national infrastructure were maintained.

Cn your behalf | thank them all. Mary of these
services are now ne knger required, but | am
proud that we have been able 10 redeploy many
of our caolleagues into other roles across Mitie.

1t was our ability to respond quickly to the
Government's needs and 1o rapidly train and
deploy some 10,000 colleagues, providing
logistical support and operational refiability, that
has led to a year of significant progress across
Mitie with record revenue and profits, in part,
as well, due to the success of integrating the
Interserve business which we have now owned
for a year and a half.

Managing through such significant change is
never easy but | was encouraged that over
30.000 colleagues completed our recent
‘Upload' survey, telling us what it was really like,
waorking for Mitie. With the rising cost of
household bills, pay is aiways an issue and we
have worked hard with our custormers to agree
better terms, as well as providing additional
benefits including 24/7 access to medical support
and free Mitie Shares for all our people.

Meanwhile your company has gone from
strength to strength.

We have 1 strong platform for growth; as well
as strengthening our position as a supplier 1o
the Government. we have cortinued to invest
in our technology and our decarbonisation
offering and we have been rewarded with
new contract wins.

Looking forward, we have set out our new
strategic priorities and have completed several
strategic acquisitions, which will support us to
deliver long-term, sustainable value.
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Having a strong purpose is essential to the
running of our business; it is what drives us
forward and guides the decisions we make.
Qur expertise, care, technology and insight
areate amazing work environments, helping
our customers to be exceptional every day.

But "how” we do things is just as impartant as
the ‘what.

Environmental, Social and
Governance

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
initiatives form a key part of cur philosophy of
the way we do business at Mitie. Our ambition
i5to be Net Zero carbon by 2025 we are
committed 1o science-based targets to
decarbonise our supply chain by 2035, as well as
generate increased social value both internally
with our colleagues and arocund the country.

We are evolving our approach to equality,
diversity and inclusion (ED&) throughout the
business, leading from the top. This year we
weltomed a new Head of ED& to support our
drive to nurture, support and develop our trufy
diverse and inclusive workforee, ensuring our
colleagues broadly represent our customers,
suppliers and the communities in which

we operate.

And good governance requires that not only
do we review our performance, we also seek
feedback from all our stakeholders including
customers, investers, third-party suppliers and
-Government Agencies.

Reflecting the growing importance of ESG,

| am encouraged that we now indude targets
relating to E5G in the senior management’s
long-term incentive plan.

Interserve Facilities Management

Our acquisition of Interserve on 30 November
2020 created one of the LK largest facilities
management companies. We are delighted with
its strong contribution in FY22. The renewal and
retention rate of former Interserve contracts is
90% as we deploy Mitie's technology. customer
service, efficiency and innovation to these
custorners; and their customer NPS has
improved from -18 1o +13.

Strategy

In June 2021, we introduced our new strategy.
focused on accelerating growth, enhancing
margin and improving cash generation.
underpinned by ‘capability enablers’ of the
‘Science of Service' (see page 10), creating 2
‘Great place ta work” and leading in ESG &
decarbonisation.

Financial statements

| am pleased to report that we have made
progress on all fronts.

To accelerate growth, we have acquired seven
fast-growing, high-margin companies. Three
of those acquisitions enable us to create a
market-leading mobile telecoms support
services business, providing our customers
with end-to-end services. We also focused

on expanding our decarbonisation strategy.
with the acquisition of a high voltage and
electric vehide charging points installer, a solar
canopy installer, and a designer of green (living)
walls. We have also enhanced our Intelligent
Security offering, acquiring a specialist
provider of counter espionage and spedalist
surveiflance services. ’

Margin enhancement is coming from & variety
of initiatives to drive cperational efficiency and
automate processes, And | was encouraged
that we won a number of awards induding
Top Employer’ for the fourth year running.

Financial performance

Revenue including joint ventures and associates
was £3,997m, an inarease of 58% in the year.

Operating profit before other itemns was £167m,
up 184% versus last year.

Earnings per share was 9.2p compared with 3.(p
in the previous year.

Board composition

In April 2022, we appointed Chet Patel and
Salma Shah as our new Non-Exeautive
Directors. replacing Nivedita Krishnamurthy
Bhagat. We feel passionately that a diverse
balance of skills and experience on the Board is
vital for our strong governance. Chet and Salma
have both joined the Remuneration Committee,
with Chet also joining the Audit Committee and
Salma the Sodial Value & Responsible Business
Committee, Chet's commercial expertise in the
B28B service environment, promoting sales and
growth strategies, will strengthen the Board's
diverse mix of skills and experience; while
Salma brings additional public sector expertise,
reflecting Mitie's increased public sector focus.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board values every opportunity to engage
with our stakeholders. Each year. | meet

our major shareholders 1o discuss Mitie’s
performance and strategy and | was delighted
that we have once more resumed this in person.
Over the past year. Jennifer Duvalier has also
held numerous ‘engaging with cur Frontiine
Heroes' meetings across the country at different
client locations.

Annual General Meeting

Mitie intends to hold its Annual General
Meeting (AGM) on 26 July 2022 at 11.30am
at Level 12, The Shard, 32 London Bridge
Street, London SEI 95G. This is an
impaortant event in our corporate calendar,
providing an appertunity for our Board

to engage with shareholders. Cur AGM
will be a combined physical and electronic
meeting {a hybrid meeting), enabling
shareholders to attend the AGM remotely
and to vote and ask questions virtually.

Capital aliocation &
shareholder returns

As the business has recovered well from the
COVID pandernic, generating significant free
cashflows in FY22, and is making good progress
towards the delivery of its margin-accretive
growth strategy, the Board has set out a revised
medium term capital allocation policy. The policy
15 focused on investing in bolt-on acquisitions 10
drive future growth, and increased shareholder
returns, whilst maintaining leverage (average net
debt/EBITDA) below Ix.

The Board intends to progress steadily towards
a dividend pay-out of 30-40% and thereafter
deliver long-term dividend growth in line with
earnings growth, provided it is supported by
cash flow and underlying earnings, and is justified
in the context of our capital allocation strategy
when taking into account M&A opportunities,
and market outiook.

The Board is therefore recommending a final
dividend of 1.4 pence per share which, when
added to the dividend paid in respect of the first
six moniths of the year, takes the total dividend
for FY22 10 1.8 pence per share. The final
dividend will be paid an 5 August 2022

Cansistent with the Group’s capital allocation
strategy and reflecting our good cash flow
generation, robust balance sheet and the
positive outlook for the business, the Board
announced the launch of an initial £50m share
buyback programme.

In clesing, this is my fifth year as Chairman

of your company and it has been our most
successful yet. | am proud of the Company's
progress during this time. None of this could
have been achieved without the professionalism,
enthusiasm and care of all our 72,000 colleagues
who embody The Exceptiona, Every Day’. and
1o whom we are immensely grateful.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

DocuSigned by:

Denk Magp

CHEFZISBEBFCA8H...

Mitie Group plc 05
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Chief Executive’s strategic review
Strong performance in FY22 with good
underlying growth

Margin-accretive growth strategy

We announced a new strategy last June which
focuses on accelerating growth, enhancing
margins, and improving cash generation. QOur
strategy targets mid-single digit revenue growth,
margins of 4.5-5.5%, sustainable free cash flow,
and a return on invested capital (ROIC) in
excess of 20%. over the medium term.

Mitie's strategy is to be the market leader in
its core businesses of Cleaning, Security and
Technical Services. deploying industry-leading
technology and skills ("Science of Service’) in
post-COVID workspaces, as the strategic
partner of both the public and private sectors,
and be recognised as a ‘Great Place to Work.

Accelerated growth

Qur priority is 10 retain and grow existing
contracts alongside a focus on winning new
contracts. In FY22, we won, renewed. or

Through our investment-led strategy, Mitie extended contracts incuding projects with a
. . . . total contract value (TCV) of up to £3.8bn.
has reached an inflection point earlier than comract vae (TE¥) o vpto
' L. R . We have invested in sales during the year, and
anticipated. We delivered a strong financial FY22 represented cur most successful year of
. . ’ . contract wins (induding projects) with up to
performance in FY22, with good underlying £2.1bn TCV, including BAE Systems, the Defence
. Infrastructure Organisation (DIQ) (Future
growth. The Group is now able to leverage Defence nfrastrusture Services contract (FOIS)
i H _ (Scotland & Northem Ireland)), Home Office,
its capital base to focus on long-term value Legal & General, ISP G, Westhild
1 H i H shopping centres, City of Edinburgh Council
creation, ac'celeratlng investment in growth shol b Agrvinlcse sl
and delivering enhanced shareholder returns. <£100m TCV in FY23 including Hammerson.
Netflix, Poundland and Primark which in total
Phil Bentley adds £56m of annualised new contract revenue
Chief Executive Officer for FY23.

Atotal of £1.7bn TCV of contracts were
renewed or extended in the year, including
Co-op, Gibraltar, Heathrow Airport, Marks &
Spencer and Department for Transport.

Our renewal rate is 90%, which is slightly lower
than historical rates due to a small rumber of
contract kisses and our dedision not to seek the
renewal of a number of kow margin contracts.

Prior to the acquisition, Interserve’s contract
renewal rates were significantly lower than
Mitie’s. t is therefore pleasing that we have
renewed or extended 90% of Interserve
contracts that have come up for renewal.
These renewals are driven by Mitie's technology
and innovative sofutions, and our improved
customer service — reflected in a 31 point
improvemnert in our lrterserve customer net
promoter score to +13 pomts (trom -18 points).

06 Mitie Group pk
Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Since the year end, we have successfully
extended the contract for the overseas military
bases in Cyprus, Ascension Islands. and the
Falklands, continuing our solid track record of
renewing former Interserve customer contracts.

As part of the Interserve acquisition, we
highlighted the opportunity to insource work
contracted to third parties by Interserve, For
the full year we have insourced £36.5m of
contracts, largely acrass the waste, landscapes
and security service fines.

Our total order book {secured fixed terrn
contract work, variable (including estimated
unsecured work} and project work) has
increased to £9.5bn (FY2I: £9.3bn) driven by
new wins across the Central Government &
Defence and Technical Services divisions, and
renewals in Business Services. The book to bill
ratio (the relationship between orders received
and revenue recognised) is 105%. The pipeline is

buoyant and includes opportunities from the
latest Government framework RiM6232, which
offers significant opportunities for growth.

Complementing our organic growth initiatives,
our strategy also includes expanding our
portfolio through infill acquisitions in high
growth sectors. In total, £27m was invested

in telecoms site acquisition and maintenance,
dacarbonisation and intelligent security
businesses. DAEL Ventures LK was acquired
on 5 August 2021, Rack Power Connections on
| Novernber 2021, Esoteric on |7 Novernber
2020 and Biotecture on | February 2022.

Since the year end, we have added two further
telecoms site acquisition and maintenance
companies to the telecams division, P2ML and
8point8 and we have entered into 2 Sale &
Purchase Agreement (SPA) for Custom Solar, a
solar power solutions company. During the year
we sold the Document Management business

platform

Harness technology efficiencies

. Grow Margin Generate Capability
Mitie enhancement cash. enablers
Wir_\ning new customers, Delivering Interserve synergies  Reinvest cash for higher returns Science of Service
retaning inuftf;: :’r':g existing Turnaround loss-making for stakeholders Create a ‘Great place to work’
interserve contracts Reward shareholders - _—
Investing in higher growth Leading in ESG /decarbonisation
: gher e ) Drive operational exceflence
higher margin M8.A P
opportunities Create a new digital supplier

| Uixdarpfiued By e el veflns Gouiewerts

our people strategy and initiatives to a low carbon economy.

People Environment Community Respaonsible
We're creating a great place to We're protecting the Read about how we are enriching supply chain
waork and fostering a truly indlusive  environment, improving our own the community by providing o .
- . L . By building a responsible supply
culture at Mitie, Read more about  energy efficiency and transitioning ~ employment opportunities to ):::hain WE can support soaPaT

underrepresented groups and

2

£y

enterprise and local delivery,

on pages 37 to 40, A detailed overview of our support through volurteering on and adof a direular econorry
approach is on page 4. page 50. Find out more on page 51.
Mitie Group plc 07
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Chief Executive’s strategic review
continued

for £40m. Acquisitions will be funded out of free
cash flow or from existing debt facilities. whilst
maintaining leverage below Ix average net debt
to EBITDA before other items.

Margin enhancement

Margin enhancemnent is a key focus of our
strategy. Our goal is to deliver margins of
between 4.5% and 5.5% over the medium term.
This will be achieved from the Interserve cost
synergies, improving the performance of the
handful of Interserve toss-making contracts,

a focus on operational excellence to improve
contract profitability, savings from autornating
waorkflow management and better procurement
processes.

In FY22, we delivered £30m of Interserve cost
synergies, ahead of our target of £25m due

to an earlier than expected reduction in
headcount. Overall, 459 roles have been
removed, of which 275 were in this period,
and three further properties were exited taking
the totalto |l properties. The increased scale
of the Group has generated a further £5m of
procurement savings in the year. With an exit
run rate of £40m in FY22, we are on course to
achieve our newly revised higher cost synergy
target of £45m by the end of FY23,

£2.1bn TCV new contract wins’

[ broadly across other parts of the Group in

Further margin enhancement will come from
improving the performance of the small
number of loss-making contracts acquired with
Interserve in our Communities division. A new
management team was put in place on | April
2021 and, unilising expertise from around the
Group and externally. good progress has been
made improving operational KPis. This has
helped 1o reduce financial penalties and improve
customer NPS. While we have made good
progress in FY22,there is stil further work to

be done to bring these loss-making contracts
up 1o and beyond the ‘break-even’ point.

Following the success of our operational
excellence initiative in the Communities division,
we have now extended this initiative more

order to eliminate process waste, reduce the
Cost of Poor Quality, and minimise workflow
variation. Deep dive diagnostics into key
contracts have already identified up to £10m
of savings over the next two years.

The digital supplier platform went live in several
Mitie divisions in the final quarter of FY22,
providing the Group with real visibility of where
we spend our custorners, and our own, money
with our supply chain. Through this system we
control our purchases using a digital catalogue

£1.7bn TCV contract retentionsf/extensions

2300
2000
1800
1,600
1400

5 1,200
1.000
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100%

90%

Renewal rate

g

600
400
200
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and ensure complete transparency over our
£1.4bn of third-party spend, We are targeting
£10m of savings over FY23 and FY24. The
transparency over our third-party spend also
highlights insourcing opportunities in those areas
where Mitie delivers equivalent services, such

as Landscaping, Waste, Cleaning and Projects.

Workflow automation, which incorporates
Workplace Plus and Forté, is expected to
release £15m from overhead savings by FY24.
Qur Workplace Plus scheduling and attendance
solution and InTeuch mabile app have been
rolled out to all of our frontline Cleaning and
Security workforce. This brings efficiency in
workforce management at scale, allows our
employees 1o access their pay details and shift
plans directly from their mobile phones, and
enables supervisors to support frontline
colleagues working on customer sites with
any queries, 24/7.

By successiully consolidating all aur finance
operations including those from Interserve
into Mitie’s SAP platform, we are driving
further efficiencies in the ‘back office’ process.
A fifth (19%) of our customers’ bills are now
generated and issued automatically with Forté
enabling further automation across billing and
financial processing

Key acquisitions in FY22

Through our industry-leading IBM computer
aided FM (CAFM) solutions we now actively
manage over one million assets for our
customers, allowing us to dynamically schedule
our engineers, ensuring they are always in the
location where the work needs to be done,
with the tools and information they need for
the job and, using Forté, linking into the billing
and finandal processing.

Through our ‘big data’ solutions we can produce
real-time reparting on how buildings and their
equipment are performing This gives us the
insights required to drive operational excellence
for our customers, as well as providing access to
Ml via Mitie’s award-winning Mozaic software,
which has now been rolled out to around

150 customers. Our award winning, Al-driven
Aria app and chatbot Esme, which enable
customers and their employees to manage

their spaces and raise any issues that need
resolving through a simple app without a need
to contact call centres, are also being rolled out
to Mitie customers,

Lastly, additional cost savings are expected to
mitigate any inflationary costs which we are not
able to pass through to our customers. This is
focused particularly on a reduction in spans
and layers, and further operational automation
related to process efficiency of core functions
and outsourcing.

Financial statements

DAEL Ventures

@ DAEL Ventures focuses
on acquisition. design and
construction of mabile
telecoms infrastructure

© Mitie Telecoms now provides
end-to-end actve/passive
rmaintenance

@ Telecoms infrastructure sector
forecast to grow 5.1% CAGR
over next five years

© Annualised revenue expecled
to double

Rock Power Connections

® Rock focuses on design and
instaiation of new high voltage
electricity supplies

Esoteric

© Leading Technical Surveillance
Counter Measures specialist
® Expands Mitie's intelligence-led

Cash generation

Mitie generated £133m of free cashin FY22
from increased profitability and further
improvements in working capital management.
During the year £27m was invested in four
bolt-on acquisitions in the high growth sectors
of telecoms site acquisition and maintenance,
decarbenisation and intelligent security, and
£5.7m was returned to shareholders through
the interim dividend.

Ensuring that we continue to generate good
operating cash flows is a key strategic priority,
and we have improved waorking capital efficiency
in FY22 by reducing overdue debt and speeding
up billing cycies. Robotic process automation
sohutions for customer billing have helped us

to deliver a two-day reduction in our OSO,

and autornation in our payment process has
delivered enhanced accuracy and transparency
over supplier payments, ensuring that our
suppliers are paid on time.

In addition, we are focused on reducing our
non-trading cash cutflows. Cur priorities are
to return capex and other ftems to more
normalised levels, following the integration of
Interserve and completion of Project Forté,
and to reduce our finance costs following the
renegotiation of our finanding arrangements,
induding more recently the planned termination
of our invoice discounting fadility, and to reduce
our cashtax through the utilisation of tax losses
acquired with Interserve.

Biotecture

© A leading specialist in designing,
building and maintaining 'living
walls' for interior and exierior

© Mitie now offers end-to-end security offer urban landscapes
solutions 1o meet customers' © The only UK eompany to be © Transforms indoor and
Net Zero goals aceredited by the National outdoor urban spaces by
Q Investment to create core Security Inspectorate for improving air quality and
public £V charging providing electronic sweeping biodiversity
infrastructure will be £30bn and covert investigations
by 2030

© Annualised revenue expecled
to double

Mitie Group ple Q9
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Chief Executive’s strategic review

continued

Capability enablers

Qur growth and margin enhancement,
strategy is underpinned by three capability
enablers: the Science of Service, creating a
great place to work, and leading the industry
in ESG & decarbonisation.

The Science of Service

In the past few years, we have made substantial
investments to develop doud-based platforms
which allow us to put technology and data at
the centre of all our services to customers.

In a post-COVID world, our customers are
looking for innovation to promote reassurance
and wellbeing in the return to work, to drive
productivity, and to prioritise sustainability.
OQur technology provides this reassurance

and innovation, enabling us to win and

retain customers.

Chur new approach. which is called the "Science
of Service', is powered by technology, driven by
data and made exceptional by our people. Itis
already providing organisations with real-time
visibility using remote monitering of critical
assets and building management systems, as well
as sensor technology and intelligence gathering.

Qwr Technical Service Operations Centre
{TSCC) which opened in Manchester in
December, uses autting-edge workplace
technology to monitor thousands of pieces of
equipment remately, from boilers to lighting
systems. t enables teams of specialist engineers

to run diagnostics, adjust settings, and to predict
when maintenance is needed. 65% of fautts on
remotely monitored assets have been fixed
directly from the TSOC rather than sending
out a technician. Customers are handing over
access to their building managemertt systerns
allowang Mitie to manage their environment.
One customer alone has reduced energy
consumption by 16% since Mitie began
monitoring their sites.

As part of this new approach, in the second

half of F¥22, we launched ‘Mitie Intelligence
Services', which is a risk assurance solution that
intagrates inteligence, technoltogy and people.
Qur Intelligence Services will support customers
10 build robust, risk-based security strategies to
protect their businesses, bath today and into the
future. This follows the opening of the Cleaning
& Hygiene Centre of Excellence in February
2022, which showcases our demand-led deaning
and chemical free approach, using Meriin
sensors, robotics, and other new technologies.
lLaboratary resufts from our "Citrox Protect’
anti-COVID product, provide cleaning and
hygiene reassurance for our customers,

Creating a 'Great place to work’

With 72,000 colleagues at Mitie, 2 key enabler to
our strategy is creating a ‘Great place to work’,
and improving the skills and performance of

our workforce, to deliver improved customer
service, and empower our people 1o strive to
continually improve performance.

Science of Service — targets growth and higher margins

Innovation e Intelligence e Impact

Finding new ways to identify,
prevent and solve problems using
the latest technology advances
and ingenuity

@ Cleaning & Hygiene Centre of
Excellence: demand-led cieaning,
using sensors & robotics

& TSOC: monitors | million customer
assels remotely

@150C: intelligence Security
Operations

From reactive (o proactive guided

by real-time insights enabling

services 1o be delivered with new

levels of precision and predictability

© "Click: Matching right person, skills
and respurces service

© Real time incident management

© 8 million data points processed every
day across 525 sites (TSOC)

© 5 million data poinis collected per
month from retail customers (I50C)

INTERNET-OF
THINGS

10 Mitie Group plc
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Mitie's ambition is to be the destination
employer of choice in the facilities management
industry. During FY22, we brought together the
HR functions of Mitie and Interserve to create

a team focused on employee experience,
integrating 20,000 former Interserve employees
into our systerns and ways of working.

We continue to be a market leader in the
provision of benefits to cur frontline colleagues.
We launched new and enhanced benefits in
FY22, induding a salary advance offering,
enabling our colleagues to draw down on the
pay that they have earned in advance of payday.
and enhanced maternity pay, adding to life
assurance and Virtual GP benefits that we
introduced in FY2I. We have also intreduced an
improved share incentive plan (SIP). our Mitie
Matching Share Plan, through which our peaple
receive a free share for every two that they buy.
and will award up to 100 free shares to all our
UK colleagues for the second year running.

Finally. listening and responding to colleagues’
feedback is a crucial part of our commitment
to becoming a ‘Great place to work” and our
annual Upload Survey showed an increase in
participation rates to 479 with an engagement
scare of 50%. This was a Sppt decrease
compared to last year's survey (which was
undertaken during COVID when engagement
fevels across large organisations saw a positive
increase) but ahead of the 46% reported

for FY20.

Delivering better, more measurable
ouccomes and experiences in tune
with changing demands

© Empowering customers with visibility
over operations

© Measuring performance to drive
continuous improverment

© Reduction in alarm call outs

© Shrinkage reduction

© Reduction in energy consumption
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ESG & decarbonisation

Mitie’s ESG strategy has evolved from managing
risk 10 become a driver of growth opportunities.
Our decarbonisation offering is focused an
reducing carbon emissions across buildings,
corporate estates, and fleet, enabling usto
focus our skills on a high growth, high margin
sector, whilst protecting the planet for future
generations. Through engineering design,
delivery, and maintenance, underpinned by
consuiting and advisory support, we are
supporting our customers to deliver their

Net Zero carbon ambitions.

As part of our strategy to grow our
decarbonisation offering we acquired Rock
Power Connections, a specialist in the design and
installation of new high voltage electric supplies.
induding EV charging installation. and we have
entered into a Sale & Purchase Agreement
(SPA) for Custom Solar, a solar power solutions
company, specialising in development, design,
installation and maintenance of solar systems

for corporations and publfic institutions,

Through our decarbonisation project work we
have supported customers 10 secure substantial
public funding, induding Essex County Council's
£7m gramt 1o install air source heat pumps, solar
panels and window upgrades. At the University
of Sussex, Southwark Coundil, University
College London Hospitals, Lloyds Bank Group,

Cur key decarbonisation offers

Vodafone, and Rolis Royce we delivered major
projects to install air source heat pumps.

solar panels, LED lighting and buitding fabric
improvements.

We have also won a number of awards,
including infrastructure project of the year'
through Landmarc joint venture, at the
Government Opportunities Public Procurement
Awards. This was for the Net-Zero Carbon
Accornmadation Programme {NetCAP), which
is transforming the lived experience for the
Armed Forces using the UK Defence Training
Estate to train whilst supporting the Ministry

of Defence with its Net Zero carbon goals.

Leveraging the Interserve
acquisition

The operational integration of Interserve is
complete. We have identified a further £3m
of cost synergies taking the new total to £45m
by the end of FY23 and we are making good
progress towards our revenue synergies target
of £100m.

Qur market-leading technology has been
instrumenta! in renewing 90% of Interserve
contracts and our ongoing investment in
customer service has helped to significantly
improve Interserve's NPS from -18 to +13,
although with more work to do to get towards
the +5} Mitie customer NPS,

Financial statements

We have prioritised the roll-out of Mitie's
customer facing technology to Interserve
customers, with the Mozaic M| dashboard now
up and running for 13 customers, and a further
seven in progress. Aria, the workplace app. is
now live or ‘in defivery’ with several Interserve
customers, with over 5,000 users able to place
service requests and manage their workspaces
through automated booking. The roll-out of
other Connected Workspace products such
as Digital WerkPlace, Digital Maintenance,
and UVC deaning are in progress for another
12 of our strategic customers.

All former Interserve employees are now
migrated to Mitie’s HR and payroll systems.

We have rolled out Learning Hub licences,

and access to our e-learning content, and have
made apprenticeships available to 20,000 former
{nterserve colleagues. kn addition, all former
Interserve cofleagues receive the enhanced
Mitie benefits package, including free shares,

life assurance and salary advances.

We now have a cohesive organisation and are
embedding the Mitie cutture and values across
the entire workforce to provide a market-
leading service to our customers.

&

®@ ® 0O

Decarbonisation Turnkey EV Commercial Consumption Building Zero
pathway charging hubs rooftop optimisation A whole building
An assessment of an End-to-end delivery solar PV Breadth of solutions decarbonisation
organisation’s required of EV charging Full turnkey delivery of and initiatives to service, prcwldmg_ an
interventions to achieve installations. from point  commercial rooftop implement projects end-to-end sohution

; Net Zero, through of connection at the <olar PV solutions, 10 deliver energy to I'u.llyl decarbonise
identification, scoping and gnd. to install and targeted and optimised efficiency across a 2 bu1.I d'“$ throu g
pricing of decarbonisation commissioning of to an organisation's portfolio of assets mul_tqute lnrtsa;avzsd an:lo

ojects chargers to ongoin . 10 drive down prajects, packaged inf

proj 4 EOINg estate portfolic and 2 single service

asset and site
maintenance

paid through a fixed
£Aéwh fee or capital
purchase

opex and support
erwironmental targets
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Chief Executive's strategic review

continued

Rapid response, flexible contracts
for Government

WWe have been at the forefront of the
Government's strategic response to COVID,
standing up almost 300 COVID testing centres
at short notice, rapidly mobilising 10.000 people
across the UK and supporting the testing of
12m people. We trained 4,000 people to
conduct 10,000 ‘Amber list” checks per day.

and recruited |1.500 employees to manage
security at 70 ‘Red list' hotels.

In addition, we mabilised 1,000 people to
provide support at B4 hotels for Afghan
refugees, and mobilised a significant contract
to provide security for UK ports post-Brexit.

Financial performance

Revenue

Revenue including share of joint ventures and
associates, from continuing operations, and
induding the contribution from Interserve, was
£3,997m, an increase of 58% comnpared with
the same period last year (FY2I: £2.529m).
This strong performance has been driven by
public sector wins in Business Services and
Central Government & Defence (CG&D),
including rapidly mobifising short-term contracts
as well as longer term (7+3 year) contracts,
such as the Future Defence Infrastructure
Services contract (FDIS) for Scotland and
Northern Ireland. Project works have increased
significantly in FY22, notably in CG&D., and
whilst Technical Services remains the division
most significantly impacted by COVID due to

a reduction in variable works, revenues from
higher margin variable and project warks

have improved in the second half of the year.
Excluding the revenue contribution from
Interserve of £1,359m (FY2I: £450m for four
months} and the £448m from short-term
COVID-related contracts (FY21: £155m),
revenue growth in the undertying business
inFY22 was 14%,

Operating profit

Operating profit before cther items, from
continuing operations, was £167min FY22,
184% ahead of the pricr year (FY21: £59m),
with margins of 4.2% (FY2I: 23%). Excluding
COVID-related contracts, the operating
profit margin before other items from
continuing operations for FY22 was 3.0%.
This improvernent reflects the strong revenue
performance, cost saving inftiatives, including
£30m of Interserve cost synergies, and £59.6m
of profit from the short-terrm COVID-related
contracts, where the rapid mobilisation and
flexibility requirements of the customer
attracted higher margins.

|12 Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022
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Cash flow and balance sheet

Mitie has delivered free cash flow of £133m in
FY22, as a resutt of the good operating profits
and another good working capital performance.
We invested £27m in acquisitions in FY22,
received £40m of proceeds from disposals.
bought 22.9m shares for the Employee Benefit
Trust and £5.7m was returned to shareholders
wvia the interim dividend.

Average daily net debt has improved to £25m
{FY2l: £47m). The FY2| average daily net debt
included £21m benefit of deferming payments
under HMRC's Time to Pay (TTFP) scheme,
which was repaid in H2 FY21. Closing net cash
was £27m (FY2I: £87m net debt).

Following the refinancing announced at the half
year and the cash flow generated during the
year, we now have a balance sheet which i
strong, stabfe and flexible, to support future

growth opportunities and increase returns
to shareholders,

Inflation

As discussed in Nlovernber 2021, 80%-30% of
our contracts contain change of law and/or
inflation clauses, enabling us to pass on the
majority of inflation cost increases through

1o our customers.

With labour cost inflation currently below
headline market inflation rates, and with good
contractual protection against inflation, 1o date,
we have seen iittle impact to the bottom line
from either labour or material cost inflation.
We have encountered cost inflation ‘hot spots’
across the business, where the cost of materials
or specific areas of the labour market have
increased at acceferated rates. We remain
confident with our previous guidance of an
inflationary impact to the business of no more
than £10-20m in FY23 which we will mitigate
with our programme of cost savings.

Qutlook

The current year has started well, with
significant contract wins from Poundland, Netflix
and Prirark as well as renewals/extensions
from our MOD contracts in Cyprus, Ascension
Istands, and the Falklands. This new business
momenturn, together with a full year's
contribution from significant contracts won last
year inciuding FOIS and BAE Systerns and the
uptick in projects and variable works (as our
customers see higher utilisation rates across
their buildings). gives us confidence in our
growth outiook.

The impact of inflation on our business continues
10 be well managed and we will see further
benefit this year from our margin enhancement
intiatives. As a result. in FY23, after exduding the
£448m COVID-related contract work that was
deliverad in FY22, we expect o deliver mid to
high single digit revenue growth, together with
good operating margin progress.
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Reasons to invest

Financial statements

Mitie is one of the UK's leading facilities management companies, differentiated by our cloud-based

‘Property Technology’ customer offering.

Our margin-accretive growth strategy is focused on delivering mid-single digit revenue growth —
outperforming the market; driving operating margins towards 4.5-5.5%: delivering sustainable
free cash flow: and delivering a Return on Invested Capital in excess of 20%.

Scale, diversification and market leadership

© One of the largest providers of faciiities management in
the UK

© Diversified across seciors and service {ines including UK

Government, retail, manufacturing, telecoms, transport
and logistics sectors

© Market leader in cleaning and hygiene services, security
and technical services

Differentiated technology offering

© Unique doud-based proprietary technology differentiates our
customer offering and drives adeption, loyalty and retention

© Custormers get real time visibility of works on their site.
automated service requests and asset performance

© Leading customer satisfaction scores (439 NPS)

Sustainable revenue growth

O Targeting mid-single digit revenue growth ahead of low-single
digit market growth

@ Winning new contracts to increase market share, retaining
and growing existing contracts

© Reshaping our portfolio towards higher growth. higher
margin businesses through bolt-on acquisitions across
Telecoms Services, Decarbonisation and Intelligent Security

Find out more
mitie.com/invesctors

Driving margin expansion to 4.5-5.5%
© Driving cost synergies from the integration of Interserve
© Focus on contract profitability by delivering
operational excellence
© Creation of a lean overhead structure
@ Transformation of our strategic supply chain management

Strong, flexible balance sheet

© Average daily net debt of £25m with zero covenant leverage,
free cash flow of £133m

O BB8 Investment grade credit rating

© Long-term funding with & balanced matwrity profife:
a 4 year £150m RCF and forward-starting £120m
LIS Private Placement notes maturing in 8, 10 and 12 years

Making a positive and lasting impact

on society

© Industry-leading, ambitious targets set across all areas
of sociat value

© We are creating a ‘Great place to work', prioritising
the wellbeing of our pecple

© Developing a skilled workforce to support a brighter
future for all

© Target set 1o be Net Zero carbon by 2025

Attractive shareholder returns

© Focus on delivering sustainable free cash flow and retumn
on invested capital in excess of 20%

© Progressive dividend policy and share buybacks

@ Investment in M&A to drive future earnings growih

Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope (D: 7CES319A-0C81-4123-96D7-486B04283488

rMY ESTd 1oy Tion

Digita
transiormation
in healthcare

biowawe relkeepingljohniRadclitfe]bicspital

[ herjohnTRadcliffElbiospitallin@x fordiwas cokingforganinnovativel
managemen[ pantnerthatcould mhgﬂi@

Ihm,mwammm&a provide
d@iﬂi& poru—:ring servicestandlcatering fogpatienistand statiy
The futere ofheahhcarer ap|d\y Wi Lh mwﬁ@ﬂ]

combinestaluan]
mmmemmm
efficicndsenyiced

@wdimmemﬂ
(ardlbosisioorToiavdalvitalolelinensuringithatinelhosptal stacute]
megicailandlsureical mmﬁleﬂa@
runmng AMdsUp ROt patientsland) lstat &1 helcontrac sy
Lo nt NI 9215 mlovenfive years) m@@m@mﬂm

@lﬁm

BidpvasToury technology ledfapproach§VWe re]

m allljohn]Rzdcliffe Hospu[al slsenvice sy

@mm tidvEEiRa-Glnedh scheduling®pricritisationtand]
ﬁ%&ﬂ locationmonitoring softwarelhon lobs

urgentcleaning $chnica|[teamsicaniAovwia e LUTNE ClOSEst avaw\able
itieicolcaguc T hishvilllRel pTeHICtently Manageqeinicalsta st ne
5 @G/ Fanic raskSNim proving the (overallpa e ntexperienc e atithelhospital]
©
AR TR EmE Glevergrobotlandsensorgrechnoiogy
ldolurgentcleansithanksiiolnew] \WVe retalsolinstallinglsensorgtechnology Lo mmig

technology thatithebusiestipantsiofiihelhospitallare priorivsed forcleaning?

upithe mmmmmm
@2 Sm @ touchpointareas¥Guncateringreampsinioducing

o fanlelectronic IR deringsystemiigensurelonlythelcorrectnumber
LVzlseto e Steentractumhy chny 5 mealstareYprepredleachlday JheipngloleuniCodLmas ey
Radciitelbiospital¥ovegivelyear]

Linklcosstracegy)

Capability enablers = 5cience ol Service

14 Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022



L ]
DocuSign Envelope ID: TCE5319A-0C81-4123-96D7-486B0428348B Financial statements

Mitie's collaborative approach to
working in partnership with its
customers is very much aligned with
how we deliver our fundamental
activities of patient care. teaching and
research. Together, we're working
effectively to deliver the Oxford
University Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust’s vision to be at the heart of a
sustainable and cutstanding, innovative,
academic health science system.

Mark Harrison,
P Programme Direcior, Oxiord University
Hespizals

Mitie Group ple 15
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Key performance indicators

Monitoring our progress

Mitie’s key performance indicators (KPIs) are reviewed by the Board and
Executive Comimittee to monitor performance against the Group's most
impaortant priorities. These indlude measures for evaluating finandal and
non-finandal performance, balancing the interests of all our stakeholders
including customers, shareholders, colleagues and our local community.

The FY22 results indude a fuk 12 months of Interserve Facilities Management
(Interserve) while the FY2I resufts indude the four morith periad from

| December 2020 to 31 March 2021, in addition, the COVID-19 pandemic
impacted our finandial performance in FY2I: however. the Rights lssue in
July 2020 and the acguisition of Interserve on 30 November 2020 have

improved all KPis inked to measuring our financial stability. A detailed

review of performance can be found within the Chief Executive’s strategic

review and the Finance review sections on pages 6 to 12 and 59 to 63.

@ Linked to remuneratian

Linked to our strategic pillars

® © © ©

Grow Margin Generate Capability
Mitie enhancement cash enablers

Financial

Revenue (£m) @ ®

From continuing operations
2 PR 3%: 58%

Fr2 2528  ‘wrease from
previous year

Fro I 2103.2

Frio I 20187

Fris N 1,830.2

Description

Revenue growth from continuing operations reflects the health of the order
beok, the ability to upsell and cross-sell, and our contract win and retention
rates, alongside Mitie's broader reputation in the sector. As the world recovers
from the global pandemic, Mitie’s goal is to achieve mid-single digit revenue
growth from its continving operations over the mediumn term.

Our achievement

Revenue of £3597m is 58% ahead of the prior yeur due to a full 12 mornths of
Interserve (prior year only induded four months) and COVID-related contract
revenues, Excluding these, revenue growth is 14%.

€3 Find out more on page 5%

Basic EPS before other items (p)

From continuing cperations

Fr2 I 2 197%

Frzo A 73
Friv I 76
Fris 62
Description

Basic earnings per share (EPS) before other items represents the profitability
of the Group. Impraving EPS reflects the improving profitablity of the Group.

The strategy focuses on creating value for shareholders and is expected to
improve £PS in the medium term.

A reconciliation of basic EP3 before other items to the equivalent statutory

measure for FY22 and FY2I is provided in Appendix — Alternative
Performance Measures on pages 220 to 223. EPS for FY20 and earfier
years has been restated for the bonus element of the 2020 Rights lssue.

Our achievement
Basic EPS before ather items has increased significantly as a resubt of the
significantly stranger operating profit and a kower effective tax rate.

) Find out more on page 61

16 Mitie Group plc
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Return on invested capital (%)
From continuing operations (ROIC)

OO o

o I 0 29.9%

Fro g2 Fraex
Frzo I 223

Frio IR 250

Fris I 222

Deseription

Return on invested capital (ROIC) is cakulated as operating profit before

other iterns and after tax from contirwing operations divided by invested capital
and is a measure of how effidently the Group wtifises its invested capital to
generate profits.

The cakulation of ROIC and a recondliation of the Group’s net assets to
invested capital for FY22 and FY2| are provided in Appendix — Alternative
Performance Measures on pages 22010 223.

Mote that the ROIC metinic used for the purposes of the Enhanced Delivery
Plan (EDP) requires further adjustments under the detailed rules agreed with
shareholders.

Our achievement

ROAIC has increased 10 299% for the Group due 1o 3 tombination of the
sigrificartly stronger operating profit before other items. the lower effective
tax rate and the lower irvested capital. The lower invested capital primarity
refates to the ongoing improvements 10 working capital and the reduction
in the receivable related 1o the Interserve completion accounts process.

@ Find out more on page 61



Financial statements

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7CE5319A-0C81-4123-96D7-4B6B04283488

Operating profit (£m) and margin @ @ ©

{%) before other items
From continuing operations

Fra2 (T s 4.2%
Fr2i 23%  FYa23%
Y20 37%
FYis 16%
FYIg 17%

Description

Operating profit and operating profit margin before other items reflect winning
qualkty contracts and delivering effident, exceptional service. Profitability on
contracts impeoves as the Group enhances the efficiency of operations
throughout the life of the contract. Operating margins are expected to

move towards 4.5%-5.5% in the medium term.

A recondilistion of operating profit before other items from continuing
operations to the equivalent statutory measure for FY22 and FY2I is provided
in Appendix - Alternative Performance [Measures on pages 220 to 223.

Qur achievernent

Qperating profit of £167m is 184% ahead of the prior year due to the full

12 months of Interserve (prior year only included four months) and the
contribution fram COVID-related contracts. Margins increased to 4.2%
reflecting the mobilisation of rapid-response, flexible COVID-related contracts.

€ Find out more on page 60

Free cash flow (fm)

Frz DI ¢ £|57.3m

rra {24.5)  improvement from
previous year

Fra0 [ ] 305

FY19 [ 309

Fris 1N (31.6)

Description

Free cash flow represents how much cash we generate to re-invest in our
business for future grawth or to deploy in other ways such as acquisitions
and rewarding shareholders. The strategy focuses on delivering sustainable
free cash flow.

A recondliation of free cash flow to the equivalent statutory measure for
FY22 and ¥Y21 is provided in Appendix = Alternative Performance Measures
on pages 220to 223,

Our achievement
Free cash flow of £133m is significantly ahead of last year due to increased
profitability and further improvements. in working capital.

@ Find out more on page 62

Total order book (£m)

Including retentions and new wins

i)

2%
increase from
previous year

Frz: I
Fr2

948

9285

Description

Total order book includes secured fixed term contract work, variable (including
estimated unsecured work) and project work, The total order book reflects
Mitie's succass at winning new customers and additional services, retaining
customers and upselling, Improved customer service, increasing market share,
alongside qualifications on public sector frameworks, are expected to lead to
increases in the total order book in the medium term,

See Note 3 to the consolidated finandal statements for anatysis of the
secured order baok. The secured order book includes only secured fixed
term contracted work and exdudes variable and project work.

Qur achievement
The totat arder book increased by 2% to £9.5bn driven by new wins across
the Central Government & Defence and Technical Services divisions.

@ Find out more on page §

Average daily net debt (fm)and @
leverage ratio (x)

PostIFRS 16

Fr22 [ €24.7m ox £22.4m
improverment from

Fr2l I L47.0m 0.5% previous year

FY20 27x

Description

Average daity net debt (calculated on a post IFRS16 basis} reflects how much
we owe our debt providers, and how well we have managed our debt over
the course of the year. The leverage ratio is calculated as average daily net
debt divided by EBITDA before other items on continuing operations.

We aim to maintain average daily net debr at a leverape ratio of no greater
than |x, through generating cash, working capital discipline and appropriate
shareholders returns.

Data is not presented for FYI9 and FY18 as the financials for these years were
prepared on a pre-IFRS 16 basis.

QOur achieverment

Average daily net debt has improved to £24.7m (FY 2l £47.1m). The FY2|
average daily net debt included £9Im benefit of deferring payments under
HMRC's Time to Pay (TTP) scheme, which was repaid in H2 FY21.

€ Find out more on page 63
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Key performance indicators
continued

Non-Financial

Females in senior leadership team

(%)

v M+ 3ppt
improvement from

P up  pRoere

Fr20 I 15%

Description

Mitie measures the number of females in the senior leadership team against
the total headcount of the senior leadership team. The senior leadership
team indudes the MGX {Executive Committee) and those on the MLT
(Mitie Leadership Team).

Our achievement
In FY22 we have increased the number of females in the senior leadership team
to 24%.

@ Find out more on page 38

Employee engagement (%)

S

50%

rr2: I 50%

F R % oo
Fro I 46%

frre I 45%

ryis 3%

Des¢ription

The Group’s success is underpinned by the way Mitie leads and engages with

its people. The employee engagement (Upload) survey asks colleagues at Mitie how
they feel about working within the organisation. and what improvements could be
made. This is followed by the You $aid, We Did' campargn to demonstrate actions
undertaken in response to feedback. Beyond the annual survey, senior managemenit
meet employees throughout the year at roadshow conferences across the UK and
members of the senior leadership team engage with frontiine colleagues.

Qur achievement

The Upload survey taok place from April ta May 2022. This year the participation rate
rose positively by 79% to 47%, compared with last year, with over 30,000 colleagues
taking part. The employee engagement score was 50%, which was a 5% decrease
compared ta last year's survey. This aligns to globat trends where large organisations
saw a positive increase in engagement during the COVID- 19 pandemic, followed by a
fall this year in engagement levels post pandemic. Engagement levels have risen overall
since FY18, when the engagerment level was 33%.

€ Find out mare on page 37

Employee turnover

S

Fr1: 19% 7ppt
Fr2 D% o
Fro IR 16%

Friv I 20%

Fris T 17%

Description

Mitie measures the number of employees leaving us voluntarily over a
12-month period against our cverall headcount. Voluntary attrition has been
a fogus area for a number of years as we strive to become the ‘Employer of
Choice’ in the Fadilities Management industry.

The data for FY2| and earfier is for Mitie prior to the acquisition of Interserve,

Our achievement

During FY22 across the UK there was a greater trend towards employees
leaving than seen in previous years. Mitie saw this too with employee turnover
increasing to 19%, which was only a little higher than pre-COVID levels of 16%.
This was helped by our great benefits package inchading Virtual GP access for
all colteagues and those in their househald, life assurance for all colleagues and
salary advance (the ability for our people to access their pay before payday).

) Find out more on page 31

18 Mitie Group plc
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Lost time injury frequency rate

Per million hours worked %

Fr22 s 0.7
increase from

Frai I 285 et yer

Froo 354

Frio I 608

Frie N 613

Description

Mitie's efforts 1o keep its people safe are of great importance and Mitie
cortinues to focus on improving safety performance. Our overniding objective
is to make Mitie the safest place to work in the fadities management industry,
because we care, value and protect our people, the environment and society.

Our injury rate is just one measure to Monitor our progress towards zero
harm and includes all injury severities,

Qur achievement

Mitie’s commitment to ensuring near misses and hazardous conditions are
reported has helped lower the number of injuries. it means potential accidents
are caught tefore things escalate. enabling risks to be mitigated. As we returned
10 operations post-COVID we expected to see an increase in our injury
frequency rates however the FY22 score remains below that of the fast
pre-COWID score of 3.94in FY20.

€ Find out more on page 71
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Net Promoter Score (index) @
Rebased to incdude Interserve

r: I v 5Pt
Fr2i CagemPrOvement

Description

Customer Net Promoter Score (NPS) continues to be an impartant metric
for Mitie in understanding a customer’s overall satisfaction with the quality of
services provided and a willingness to recommend our products and services
to others.

This year, interserve customers were induded in the survey with the overall
score weighted by business revenue contribution. The survey captures
feedback from 116} customers.

Cwur achievernent

Mitie’s overall NP$ score for FY22 is +39, an improvement from the revenue
weighted +24 rebased score determined for FY2I. This score reflects an
increased NP5 from Mitie 'SAM' customers to +60 while the Interserve
customer NPS score has improved from -18 to +13.

€Y Find our more on page 10

Carbon emissions (Scope | & 2) @
(tonnes CO,e)

0O,
Fr22 I 0% 1%
Fro 9205 eresse from
. previous year

Fro I 27072
Friv [ 652

Description

In February 2020, Mitie set an ambitious, industry-leading pledge to reach Net
Zero operational carbon emissions by the end of the calendar year 2025 -

a fuit 25 years ahead of the UK Government’s 2050 target. Mitie will eliminate

carbon emissions from power and transport, eradicate non-sustainable waste

and enhance inefficent buildings to meet the highest environmental standards.

Qur achievement

Mitie's Scope | and 2 carbon emissions have increased 7% in FY22 a5 building
occupancy recovers towards pre-COVID levels and we incorporate the
Interserve estate (approximatety one third of our activities) into our portfolic.
When comparing to FY20, emissions have declined.

All Mitie bulldings, accounting for 50 sites, have been optimised, identifying an
annual carbon saving of (11 tonnes, with some newly acquired buitdings now
being surveyed to start this process. Mitie's electric Reet continues to develop,
with 2,217 electric vehicles (EVs) on the road as at 3| March 2022 and more
than 2,000 EV charge points installed, making Mitie the largest pure electric
fleet in the UK based on publicly available information, All electricity that Mitie
buys for its operated sites is 100% renewable.

€ Find out more on page 41

Mitie Group plc {9
Annual Report and Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope 1D: TCES319A-0C81-4123-96D7-4B6B04283488

Department
for Work &
Pensions

Suppoertn
Vital rol@ |
of nationa

asﬁﬂa@@m
m our iocal comr
(DWP) Was con?‘“ ued T Peeplng the UK
Lhe GEOVIBLG p;mdem twas detemnned
@@meamm ProCEsSInE
paymentsRrolsupponting vulnerablé people witl
ButlthelimpactohE@VIDImeantthalithe dema
i soared Randlidneedediratextend]its operung f
siechictmeedpubicldemand

addmonal full b
cleanmg (el
mﬁi@ﬁﬂﬁ&:ﬂm ¥

thatimeantthel VWP conld continue offermg i1 25107 C
i EienmE e, tag [ihelsaletyfandlhyz
@@EM’E ) .

) 00 OOO palc
02 bwldmgs wa
&mmmmgmmm,
[miasksTprovided]rolthel VYRS

Qg N @@ﬂngaiﬁ}ﬂa challengin cimes]
1o dealwithithelrisingichallengesloflGEYI DA fanditsllongentte rm
ﬁOCIE(Y th&iGovernmentldecided[io Open antadaitional
100ne WIRVVEE Testy thinfjusifiZimanthsliny 02| Bt ielwvastasked o)
9] providetzfiullfaciiwesimanagementprovisionlundegounRanid EStaie)
addmona' GeEtinelouIpeda] Expansioni oo e COVIDI S s Tons e e dedy
Ineovide gy Clinelntig 2] WENEICONTINUEHNO providelbol Rl oy i poinUcleanngland]bus nessyasd
usuallcieantnglseryicesy

(OWeselahereiiitie]
[NowIprovidesyiaciiitiesy
Imanagementsecyices)

NGO Strategy,

CGapability,enablerseaScience of Service

20 Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022




| il
DocuSign Envelope ID: 7CES310A-0C81-4123-96D74B6B04283488 Financial statements

pecial.thanks to Mitie for Thank you Mitie, for your fantastic
support during thesa extremely
unprecedented times. Your
urideriakinga vital role in keeping response, proactivity ang flexibilicy
Kplaces safe. protecting has been absolutely first class
and recognised and appreciated
throughout the Deparument.

Craig Butler,
Head of Service Delivery, DWP Estates
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Our market drivers

As we move into a world that learns to live with COVID-[9, we are seeing a shift in. demand for facilities
management services in the UK. There is an increasing focus on technology, service and user experience,
especially in the context of hybrid working patterns, together with elevated emphasis on decarbonisation and
sustainability, which provide plenty of opportunities for Mitie.

In 2021, the UK facilities managerment market
recovered after the 13% dedine recorded in
2020 when the COVID pandemic impacted
the UK. All sectors continued to suffer from
lockdown restrictions, with a particular
slowdown in construction and real estate,
manufacturing and retail. Other sectors such
as ICT and e-comrmerce, banking, financial
services and energy, fared better.

The UK unemployment rate was 4.2% in 2021,
with reduced spending on fadilities due to
continued working from home and the increase
in hybrid working. Ongoing supply chain
disruption, as suppliers struggled to meet
changes in demand and lockdowns impeded
supplies, also affected costs.

Adopting digital technology
for next generation service

The UK facilities management market is
predicted to fully rebound in 2022 with steady
growth of 3% and is forecast by Mintel to reach
£85bn by 2025. Growth drivers indude the
reopening of facilities, accelerating digitisation
and investment in critical infrastructure. The
nature of service requirements has evolved,
with sustainable workplaces and heatthy
buildings taking centre stage. We also continue
to see more emphasis on employee wellbeing
and sustainability.

The facifities management industry is undergoing
major structural change, as providers shift from
problem solving to offering positive outcomes

~ with an increasing focus on technology and
user experience. Facilities management
providers are evolving from a total cost of
gwnership {TCO) model, to customer-centric,
service-based business models, enabled by
digital techrology and the Internet of Things.

At Mitie, we are investing to create innovative
and intelligent cloud-based platforms tokeep
infrastructure running: to make spaces flex to
changing needs: 10 keep people safe; and to
make them more productive.

Profound changes in the
structure of work

The increase in working from home and hybrid
approach to working has reduced the need for
office occupancy. The UK's back-to-wark
initiatives have focused on safe transition within
a safe working environment. While Mitie's
exposure 10 traditional office workspaces isn't
significant. this new way of working has
increased the need for general cleaning and
hygiene services, and requirements for higher
deaning standards and sanitation will remain
critical, together with an increased foaus on
indoor air quality products and services. We
forecast an uplift in demand for higher-margin
deaning services, such as specialised deaning,
and technology-led solutions, induding robetics.

Opportunities for Mitie

Our strategy is focused on growing Mitie

by winning market share, evidencing our
differentiation through our technology and our
exceptional people and expanding our portfolio
through infill acquisitions in high-growth sectors
of telecoms, decarbonisation, intelligent security
and sustainability, where we can generate a
market-leading position to offer our customers
end-to-end services.

Our acquisition of Interserva in 2020 enhanced
our presence in the public sector — defence,
central government, healthcare and education
~ all resilient sectors where we believe we
have significant growth potential. We have

also strengthened our private sector focus in
retail, manufacturing telecoms and transport
& togistics,

Facilities managemenc in the
UK remains a sector that
never sleeps, as befics its scale,
and its leading role in keeping
Workspaces Working,
embracing the digical
wansformation of the sector.

Phil Bentiey, CEO

Delivering sustainable impact

Decarbonisation is becoming a priority for all sectors of the aconomy. Fadilities

rmanagement companies are diversifying when it comes to sustainability and
rmany have started 1o specialise; fram offering detign and technical solutions
related to Net Zero to developing sustainability consultancy services.
Environmentaf, Social and Gavernance {ESG) initiatives form a key part of the

philosophy of the way we do business. Our target is to be Net Zero carbon
by 2025 and to generate increased sodial value. We are also working with
our customers ta help thea meet their awn Net Zero targets through our

customer proposition of Do. Lead. Detiver.

Decarbonisation as 4 service ling is forecast to grow to 2 £5.9bn market in 2025,
driven by sustainability and decarbonisation mega-trends.

© The UK Government has legislated to cut total UK emissions by 78%
compared to 990 levels by 2035, and for the UK to be Net Zero by 2050.
The decarbonisation of the UK energy system will require ¢.£83bn of
investment by 2030. and OFGEM has announced aver £40pn investment into

energy infrastructure and the smart grid in the pericd 2021-2026. Energy
management and carbon reduction are now business critical for all businesses
© FPublic sector decarbenisation is being backed by significant government
investment, including the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme.
© We are meeting increased dient demand for decarbanisation expertise by
providing consulting and advisory services. sales and engineering design:
funding options. decarbonisation data and technology solutions, and

pan g g willosuslamalide suppliers
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Market leadership across service lines

Following the acquisition of Interserve in 2020, service lines of cleaning, security and technical Waste, Landscapes and Care & Custody with a
Mitie has continued to operate across its three services alongside additional services, including growing presence acrass key sectors such as
key service lines (cleaning, security and technical | portering and catering in hospitals. Central Government & Defence. Healthcare,
services) alongside the two former Interserve " . .. Education and lelecoms.

divisions of Central Government & Defence Mitie has market leadership positions across

and Communities (Healthcare, Education and S;f“‘"g S'?“::“; mfﬂ;;‘?;‘msfﬁz‘
Critical Services) which offer our three key il g spe

Cleaning & Hygiene Services

© Mitie is a leading deaning provider in the UK, with more than 15,000 colleagues

© We provide cleaning and hygiene services to hospitals, schools and leading retailers such
as Co-op, Sainsbury's and AS Watson

© Post COVID-19, there's an increased custorner emphasis on assurance, service quality
and flexibility, specialist deaning and sustainability

© We are focusing on reducing the environmental impact of deaning, and using advanced
technologies and products to meet increased standards in cleaning and hygiene

Security

© Mitie Security is the UK's leading intefligence and technology-led security business.
We are a market leader in retail, logistics and shopping centres; critical security
environments, induding critical national infrastructure, government and public sector:
transport and logistics; and corporate and iconic buildings

© We are working with existing and prospective customers on technological
developmerts and develaping our services to match their requirements, introducing
cutting edge technology such as Al CCTV and facial recognition

© In 2021, we introduced an industry-first Data-Sharing Agreement, allowing retailers
to share data on shoplifters, helping to tackle prolific offenders and organised crime
groups more effectively

Technical Services

@ This is the largest market within facilities managernent, cavering mechanical and
engineering services

© Mitie is a market leader in ‘hard services' and technology services enabled solutions

© Market drivers include the rapid growth of the telecoms sector and decarbonisation

© Remote monitoring of assets including environment (air-conditioning, temperature control)
and usage (desks, meeting rooms)

© We are expanding into sectors showing significart growth such as larger scale
energy projects and mobile telecoms, adding to our existing capabilites through
targeted acquisitions

[Digitalfeanstogmationfinjfacilitiesfmanagement

Digital transformation in facilities management, or ‘Prop Tech' is
accelerating as technology is being adopied as an enabler, supporting
the return to work and the digitisation of buildings and workflow.
Employee support. safety and productivity are emerging as the focus
of technology innovation. For critical building systerms we are adopting
the Interpet of Things and cloud-based remote seivices as part of our
core offering. In Cleaning, we are integrating technology and
intelligence to deliver enhanced service, while in Security we are using
advanced technology to deliver a more effective service.

© Find aut more an page 14
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Our market drivers
continued

Alongside our core services, we offer the following complementary services to our customers.

Waste

© Mitie Waste & Environmental Services pravides recyding and waste remaval services

Q The UK waste market is transitioning from simple waste collection t¢ waste reduction
and decarbonisation

O Key drivers are sustainable innovations to reduce, re-use and recyde waste streams,
increased outsourdng (including municipal counal contracts) and a focus on
enviranmental and social responsibilities

© 'We aim to become the leading waste management and consuttancy organisation,
providing our customers with a carbon neutral waste solution

Landscapes

© The UK outsourced landscaping market includes horticultural, external deansing
and winter services, and is worth an estimated £4.5bn, largely concentrated in the
public sector

© We are one of the largest providers of grounds maintenance and winter services ta
the commercial and public sectors in the UK. We have more than 800 staff working
on 1,500 sites across the country

© The market has consolidated significartly and is benefiting from the increased focus
on wellbeing ~ with dean, safe, green spaces increasingly sought by building owners
and occupiers

© With specific requirernents for biodiversity improvements as part of the global
sustainability drive and legistative changes, the opportunities for Mitie are strong

© Our strategy remains to scale the business with wide-ranging self-delivery capabilities
inthe public and private sectors. As with our recent acquisition of Biotecture, a leading
specialist in Living Walls, we will expand our niche services, especially where this
supports Mitie's wider Plan Zero and ESG programme

Care & Custody

© Care & Custody focuses on the three areas of immigration, justice and police

© Mitie provides just over 50% of the secure detention immigration estate and is the
leading provider and a strategic partrer to the UK Home Office

© We are the leading provider of forensic heatth and custodial support services aaross
14 police farces delivering 193,000 medical interventions per annum

© justice is a new area of focus for Mitie after our recent inclusion in the Prison Operator
Service Framework which includes a high value pipeline of opportunities

24 Mitie Group plc
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We have a strong position across public sector procurement following the acquisition of Interserve and have highlighted the
market opportunity across Central Government, Defence, Education and Healthcare below. Across the private sector, we
have strong positions across aviation, retail, transport and telecoms ~ our telecoms expertise is highlighted on page 33.

Central Government

@ The UK has ane of the strongest markets for publfic sector
outsourcing. with growth to 2025 expected at a slightly higher rate
than the private sector

O Mitie has 3,700 employees working across 30 gavernmert
departments and agencies at 3,000 locations across the UK
and overseas

© These environments are highly regulated and essential for the
Government to operate effectively, requiring outstanding
standards of security, cleaning and front of house 1o ensure
that they remain operational

© Public sector growth is focused on better management of energy
and environmental services, and physical assets through tachnclogy.
Within the public sector. government (including defence) accounts
for ¢.24% of the market, valuing it at c.£3.7bn

© Market trends include disaggregation and regicnalisation of large
facilities managemnent contracts to support SME growth, as a policy;
consolidation and standardisation across the estate and expansion for
governmerit departments whose budgets have been positively affected
by the pandemic

© We're well placed to maintain and expand our position due o our
scale and expertise, and our strong collaborations with industry bodies

© The Government has committed to a 50% carbon reduction by 2032,
and Net Zero by 2050, signifying that government departments will
need to consider innovative approaches to reducing their carbon
footprint. We will ensure a presence on all relevant frameworks to
aliow us to compete for decarbonisation-related works with existing
and new government customers

Defence

@ Mitie has 1,878 employees servicing 12 defence contracts, mostly with
the MQD in the UK and overseas

© Defence is undergoing a period of considerable change. This was
captured in the Government's Integrated Review in 2021, and has been
accelerated by the events in Ukraine. The implications of the latter
are yet to fully play out but an increase in defence spending is likely

@ Encompassing Government, Public Sector and Critical National
Infrastructure, we lead in Critical Security Environmenits, providing
services to the public sector induding Sellafield, the Home Office
and HMRC

@ We aim to expand our UK and international defence support activities,
supperting the armed forces with the Defence Qptimisation Estate
programme, and through our partnership with PAE (our joint venture
partner on the Landmarc contract) across the training estate. We also
want to grow our role supporting the wider defence market such as
with 8abcock and BAE Systems

@ We are also supporting the decarbonisation agenda, helping 1o tackle
Zero Carbon as an advisor and implementer

Healthcare

© The Heafthcare facilities management sector is valued at £4.5 billion
per anrum and indudes NHS acute trusts (85% of the total), mental
health trusts, community trusts and ambulance trusts

@ We work with over 40 NHS Trusts, providing services induding M&E,
catering. deaning and portering

© Market trends indude the geographical merging of trusts, creating
larger organisations and covering both acute and mental health;
increasing focus on sustainability and carbon reduction to achieve

Net Zero health services; and using technology to improve patient
outcomes and efficiency/productivity improvements

© There is significant opportunity for growth. Mitie Energy and Mitie
Communities are partnering to deliver Net Zero carbon projects for
custormers. We're also developing new routes to market to capitalise
on public sector sales growth, and developing strategic relationships
with funding partners — including PFl lenders and PFl intermediaries
and managers

Education

@ The education market remains stable as commitments from central
Government ensure the education and welfare of young and
disadvantaged students is a priority. The higher education sector
is a refatively immature market valued at approximately £2bn

© Opportunities are driven by the growing energy and decarbonisation
agenda, consolidation of devolved government responsibility and
services provided to Multi Academy Trusts which include more than
1,400 schools with a revenue potential of £1bn

© Universities are increasing their use of outsourcing, often starting with
a move into single service dleaning or hard facilities management with
trends increasing towards bundled/IFM services

Mitie Group plc 25
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Our resources and capabilities VVhat we do
Our pecple We,deliver exceptional service, every day. Ve provide our
We know that our people give their best when we show them customers with integrated facilities management, bundied or-
we care. Our success is underpinned by the way Mitie inspires, single service facilities management, backed by proprietary
motivates and engages with its people who in turn take intelligent technology to improve efficiencies across services
personal pride in our work and deliver exceptional service and sectors where we are a market leader.
te our customers,
See page 37 Cleaning & Hygiene Services

Cleaning & Hygiene Services delivers ‘assured’
deaning to provide a safe working environment
for our customers' employees. Qur focus is on
specialist cleaning (anti-virus), technical cleaning
{robotics, UV deaning) and general deaning across

Our technology

Qur proprietary market-leading intelligent cloud-based
technology platform brings data insight into the heart of aur
thinking to add value to our processes and interactions, creating

compelling and frictionless experiences for our colleagues and offices, buildings, transport and logistics hubs and
custamers that in turm drive adoption, loyalty and retention. high-security erwironments.
See page 10

Security

Security focuses on intelligent technology-led
maonitoring s¢hutions alongside manned
puarding together with fire and security
systems installations.

QOur expertise

We are a partner trusted for market leading service and

for putting our customers at the heart of ocur business.

We then apply our experience to improve efficiency, provide
innovative technology-ted solutions and make a valuable,
measurable difference, Technical Services

See page 10 Technical Services inchudes the fult range of !
technology-backed engineering, maintenance,

repair and M&E project activities, air-conditioning

We are a UK market leader across Cleaning, Security and and diginfection solutions, telecoms and

Technical Services with sector leadership across Central energy services. Our expertise indudes the

Government & Oefence, retail, manufacturing, transport provision of remate asset monitoring and digital

and logistics. The scale of our operations allows us to self- ’ warkplace solutions.

defiver most services, induding some specialist services.
Qur nationwide reach allows us 1o service large customers
with a presence all over the UK,

See page 22

Qur scale and reach

Decarbonisation

Plan Zero from Mitie is our unique end-to-end
decarbonisation solution supporting customers to
set and deliver their plans to reach Net Zero,
reducing carbon emissions and cost.

Our strategy

Qur strategy is now firmly focused on margin-accretive grawth.
We will continue to build our core business and maintain our
position as one of the UK's leading facilities managemer
companies but growth will be accelerated through "Science of
Service as we increasingly leverage our world class, intefligent
cloud-based platform and decarbonisation and ESG credentials
to deliver higher returns for all our stakeholders.

See page 7

Landscapes '

Landscapes provides horticuttural and winter
services to private and public sector organisations,
alongside solutions to enhance biodiversity and
provide sustainable, low carbon services as an
integral part of Mitie's Plan Zero programme,
induding consultancy. re-wilding and living walls.

QOur commitment to society

Our vision is to make a lasting impact on sodety by defivering
long-term benefits for the ervironment, developing a skilled
workforce to support a brighter future for all and leaving a
legacy for the communities in which we work,

See page 36

Waste

Mitie Waste & Enwironmental Services provides
sustainable waste solutions with an innavative focus
on waste elimination, reduction, recyding and
decarbonisation in support of the circular economy.

Care & Custody

Care & Custody provides high-quality. critical public
services in immigration. criminal justice and secure
healthcare.

Our financial position

We have a strong balance sheet and low leverage with an
investment grade credit rating. We are focused on defivering
sustainable free cash flow to invest in delivering higher returns
and improved outcomes for all our stakeholders.

See page 62
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How we do it

Recognising that every customer is different, our
approach is taitored to each customer’s unique needs
and is designed to deliver continual improvements
throughout the life of the contract,

Diligence, innovation

and design

We start by engaging with a new or
existing custorner to understand their
needs or any changes to requirements.
Using our strategic frameworks to help link
operational objectives to the bigger picture,
we design an innovative solution using our
expertise, knowledge and technology.

Mobilisation, transition
and transformation

We look to mobilise our contracts in the
most efficient way. Once in operation, we
are continually looking for opportunities to
remove cost, expand our offering where

it would be of benefit to customers and
become a valued strategic partner.

Insights to drive value and
continuous improvement

Using our proprietary technology, collating
and analysing data gathered from our data
lake, we continually collate information on
customers’ buildings and assets and the
wellbeing of their employees to drive
greater value and continuous improvement.

Financial statements

The value we create

)

Customers

We are a trusted partner for our customaers,
hetping them create e

Customer NPS
ceptional workplaces +3 9
See page 30

Enmployee
ment

Employees

We are creating 1 'Great place 1o work’, shawing en

our colleagues that we care. We inspire, maivate o
and engage with our people, providing ingustry- 5 O A)
leading benefits alongside enhanced training and

development to upskill them.

See page 31

»
-
»

Supplier NPS

+14

Suppliers

Ve are committed to ensuring a responsible
supply chain requiring our suppliers to comply
with our Procurement Policy and Supplier Scdial
Value Policy. Irturn. cur suppliers get access 10
more prestigious Customers.

5
See page 31

&5

Cemmunities and environment
Mitia's vision is to generate social value through
everyday cperations. leaving a legacy for the
communities in which we work 1o support a
brighter future for all.

See page 32

@ #

Equity shareholders

and debt holders

Creating value through our grovsih and
margin enhancement strategy while delivering
sustainable free cash flow will deliver higher
returns for sharehclders and debt hotders.
Sce page 30

MSCl rating

AA

ROIC

29.9%

Tax paio

£148m

Government

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to
the UK Exchequer including UK corporation
tax anc employer’s National insurance.

See pages 32 and 60
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Stakeholder engagement

Equity shareholders and debt holders in Mitie
Ourinvestors include equity shareholders, ranging frorm global
institutions, to small private investors including all our frontline
colleagues to whom we gifted shares. We alsc have debt holders
based all over the world.

Why we engage

Our shareholders are the owners of our business. Access to capital from
suppartive, long-term investors is wital to delivering Mitie’s long-term
strategy and performance. We also need access to a variety of sources
of liquidity and other banking services.

Shareholders, debt holders and investment analysts should have a sirong
understanding of Mitie’s strategy. performance and cufture.

How we engage

© Annyal Report and financial statements

® Annual General Meeting

O Corporate website including investor section

© Results presentations and post-results engagement (roadshows)
@ Capital market events and site visits

© Stock Exchange announcements and press releases

© Regular and ad hoc analyst and investor interactions

Key issues

© Financial performance; growth in revenue and profit

© M&A - integration of Interserve

© Cash flow and shareholder returns {e.g. dividends)

© Remuneration policy and executive remuneration

© Governance and transparency

® Sustainabilty (ESG) performance

© Qur approach to people and how ft defines our culture

" Action taken in FY22

=

Customers

Qur large. diverse, blue-chip customer base across private and
public sectors ranges from critical government infrastructure to
manufacturing, retailers, and transport and logistics organisations.

Why we engage

To grow profitably and sustainably. we need a strong customer base that
will remain loyal, spend more over time and recommend Mitie to other
organisatiors to facilitate our growth. Custormer engagement fs also an
important part of continuous improvemnent,

How we engage .

® Management of angoing major customer relationships by senior
leadership

® Customer experience programmes

@ Commerdal/performance reporting

@ Participation in industry forums and events

@ Regular communications including press releases, website and sodial
media

© Meetings and briefings

Key issues

© Performance and efficiency

© Technology and innovation

© Health, safety and sustainability

® Quality assurance and insights

@ Costivalue

© Regulatory compliance, governance and transparency
@ ESG considerations

Action taken in FY22

Annual customer NP5 programme (92% aggregate revenue covered) to
establish customer satisfaction, and identify risks and opportunities

80+ |:1 shareholder meetings, induding Chairman and NED meetings

Four formal presentations/conference calls between management,
analysts and shareholders to discuss financial performance

Conguttations with major sharehclders on proposed remuneration policy
(see more on page 130)

Extensive engagement to agree a new revohving credit facility and new
delayed funding USPP notes, securing Mitie’s main facilities for four years
(RCF) and between eight and 12 years (USPP)

Measurement (link to KPIs}

@ Revenue

O EPS

@ ROIC

© Operating profit and margin

@ Total Orderbook

© Free cash flow

@ Average daily net debt and leverage ratio
© Carbon emissions

© Emplovee engagement

30 Mitie Group plc
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Incorporated Cabinet Office bi-annual survey results into joint Cabinet
Office/Mitie commitrnents across strategic public sector accounts

VIP Strategic Conversation programme presenting insights from interviews
with 20 top customers

Cugtomer site visits to C&HCE, Intelligence Hub (formerty GSQC)
and TSOC

Measurement (link to KPls)

© Customer satisfaction score (customer NPS)
@ Diversity in the workforce

© Employee engagement

© Average daity net debit and leverage ratio

© Carbon emissions
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Suppliers

Mitie has a diverse and wide-ranging supply chain: from suppliers
who manage lifts, clean skyscrapers, or maintain complex solar PV
installations. We spend over £1.5bn a year with British suppliers and
actively promote SMEs, VCSE, and diverse-owned businesses,

Why we engage

Qur 12,000 suppliers make a vital contribution to Mitie's performance.
We encourage our suppliers to work collaboratively and responsibly, to
ensure continual improvement in our operations. We are committed to
ensuring a responsible supply chain.

How we engage

© Annual supplier NPS survey to top 250 suppliers

© Supplier Management Framework {SMF) oversees || supplier
engagement with around 200 strategic partners

@ Communications through various channels including email, letter and
platforms on change programmes such as Fortd, Digital Supplier
Platform and SAP implementations

@ Ensure all suppliers adhere to our Procurement Policy. indluding modern

slavery and human trafficking. safety and sustainability objectives, and our

Mitie vetting standards

Key issues

© Long-term engagement and mutually beneficial relationships

© M&A activity and subsequent standardisation of processes within
reqQuired entities

© High standards of product quality and service delivery

& Corinuous operational improvement and cost control

© Responsibility and integrity. including ESG matters, trust and ethics

Action caken in FY22 +

Imtroduced interactive transactional supplier portal with Coupa

Launched www.mitiesuppliers.com. a new platform with information
for suppliers

Imtroduced regular communications with all suppliers on MilNet, including
Supply Chain Insights

Financial statements

)
[oyge]
o)
=2
Colleagues

Our diverse team of 72,000 colleagues includes 1S5 nationalities,
working across the globe.

V¥hy we engage

Pecple are our greatest asset and we have a duty of care 10 ensure they
are equipped to make the best dedsions. Our core promise is to provide
cur people with a place of work where they can thrive and be their best
every day; to create a diverse and indusive workplace where every
colleague can reach their full potential; and to ensure we are delivering
1o our colleagues’ expectations.

How we engage

©® Regular employee engagement surveys, periodic pulse surveys and
feedback on actions taken

© Communications platforms induding MiNet. MitiePeople.com.
and social media

@ Board and management level engagerment including Townhall
meetings and local site visits, and Voice of the People sessions led
by a Non-Executive Director

© Global Company updates

© Annual individual performarxce reviews and training

© Confidential whistleblowing service

@ Direct access to the CEO

Key issues
© Cutture and values

® Reward and recognition

@ Took to do the job: systems, processes and technology
© Health, safety and wellbeing

© Diversity and inclusion

Q Learning and development

Action taken in FY22

Launched mitiepeople.comn, a new external colleague platform for our
colleagues on the frontline

Grill Phil email carresponcdence, 17,000 per annum

Joined Minority Supplier Development UK {(MSD UK) as
corporate member

Launched 'One Mitie’ Occupational Health and Wellbeing strategy and
digital wellbeing platform

Regular meetings with SMF strategic suppliers

Relaunched new whistleblowing service

Cortinued savings focused discussions to mitigate mflation increases

Company-wide Tearn Talk Live executive roadshows and recorded evenis

Measurement (link to KPls)

Q Average daily net debt and leverage ratio

© Carbon emissions

® Supplier satisfaction score (Supplier NPS)

© Diversity in the supply chain (eg. VCSE, SME, radial diversity, disabled,
women-pwned)

MNew People and Learning Hubs

New networks CHORD, Military and Carers

Measurement {link ta KPls)
© Females in senior leadership team

© Racial diversity in senior leadership team
©® Employee turnover

© Lost time injury frequency rate

© Number of apprentices

Mitie Group pk 31
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Stakeholder engagement
continued

Communities

Our communities comprise those who live and work locally to our
operations and those who represent the needs of the communities
we operate in. including charities, independent bodies and local
government.

Yhy we engage

Ve are an active part of the communities we operate in, helping deliver
social value commitrments not only for ourselves, but for our customers.
We are serious about the commitments we make to our communities; we
track the benefits and loak to improve wherever we can. We also cormmit
to helping create safer communities for our customers and neighbours.

Building positive refationships with local communities is important for

Mitie's performance and aids the recruitment of engaged and talented

people. We support our communities through a wide range of volunteer

and fundraising initiatives.

How we engage

© Employee velunteering

@ The Mitie Foundation programmes (e.g. employability sessians,
Ready?Work, Career Ready)

© Careers events hosted in the local communities where we work

© Local charity fundraising events

@ Local community events

@ ‘Giving Back’ volunteering days

© Meeting kocal politicians

Key issues

© Jobs and investment

© Local operational and environmental impact

© Environment Social Governance performance

Action taken in FY22

14,650 volunteering hours delivered in FY22, including delivery of food
parcels to thase shielding during COVID-19

536 employability sessions defivered to charity partners, including flagship
Ready2wWork programme

Careers fair for ex-military personnel

Community everits including volunteering

Measuremenc (link to KPls)
© Carbon emissions

© Volunteer hours

© Community investment
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Government

The UK Governmenc s a regulator and a customer for Mitie, so
engagement ensures Mitie can help in shaping new policies, regulations
and standards.

Why we engage

Government sets the regulatory framework within which we operate and
is also our customer. The decisions of government and regufators can have
a major impact on our business.

How we engage

© Responses to government consultations
@ Participation in industry bodies

© Conferences and speaking opportunities
© Annual Report and Accourits

© www.mitie.com

Key Issues

@ Financial performance

© Major business updates

© Environment Sodial Governance performance
© Governance and transparency

Acdon taken in FY22
25+ meetings and events with senior government stakeholders

Regular executive meetings with Cabinet Office (CO) and CO Director
for Markets and Suppliers

Presented at One Government Day attended by 70+ government
customers

Bi-annual Partnership Executive Meeting (PEM)

Roundtable with key government stakeholders to discuss decarbonising
the public sector estate .

Through our public afairs consuttancy we seek to foster senior stakeholder
relationships and lobby across the public sector

Measurement (link to KPIs)

& Custorner satisfaction score (customer NPS)
© Empioyee engagement

© Average daily net debt and leverage ratic

© Carbon emissions

@ Diversity in the workforce
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~ Adding value to
"~ the UK’s telecoms
infrastructure

In the past year we have increased cur focus on the growing UK
telecoms infrastructure market. making acquisiions and strengthening
our team to extend our services from maintenance to a full-service
offering. including site acquisition, design and construction.

Mitie Telecoms has 600 team members. including 300 field engineers.
one of the fargest capacity in the UK. We have contracts with
20 major UK customers, ranging from Vodalone, EE, O2. 3 and BT
to Celinex, Nokia. Ericsson. the Home Office and Networlk Rail.
We also provide secure network coverage for the MOD. police and
> - security services at events such as the G7 summit and COP26, as well
LN TD T ek as temporary coverage at evenis and festivals.
L HANRT 7 TR BN ;
4 = A} Qur ambiton is to become the largest and most respected provider
of telecoms infrastructure support services in the UK by 2025.
We're investing in every aspect of our organisaticn:
- Apprenticeship and graduate schemes, such as the Cellular Network
Apprentice
¥ New systems such as Site Tracker, Click, Maximo, Revit, MY,
BIM and SAP
= Digital design
+ Carbon reduction

Site
Acquisition

Site Build
- & Power
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We're looking forward te working
with Mitie over the next seven
years. Together, we will continue
ta innevate. exploiting emerging
technology and new ways of
working. and transform the
delivery of hard FM services to
support our Armed Forces.

Jon Hewlect.

FDIS Programme Manager.
Oeafence inirasiruciure Organisation
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Our environment and social value framework
Enhancing lives and assuring a better,

more sustainable future

Setting the ESG standard for the
facilities management industry

The increasingly urgent dimate emergency.
exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic and
heightened social issues, as well as supply chain
¢rises, have made it clear that sustainability is
pivotal to our future. Our diverse stakeholders
are driving demand for sustainability services
that contribute to achievernent of their own
transition plans and Net Zero targets.

Facilities managernent organisations have the
potential to make a significant difference in the
waorkplace, across communities and beyond.
Mitie's vision is to lead the facilities managerment
sector in creating soaal value through everyday
aperations, leaving a legacy for the communities
in which we work, 10 support a brighter future
for all. We are embedding ESG considerations
imo every aspect of Mitie’s business, from
strategy to supply chain management. to
delivering decarbonisation advice and energy
transition support to our customers.

Qur social value framework

Mitie’s social value framework is aligned with five
UN Sustainable Development Goals. This is our
platform for ESG, sustainability and social value

throughout our value ¢hain, from investors to
winning new business, delivering a sustainable
service and creating social value impact.

Secting ambitious targets

Mitie has set |3 industry-leading social value
and responsible business targets that relate
to its social value framework, and the focus
areas highlighted within the following pillars
of employment, responsible supply chain,
commurities, and environment, underpinned
by innovation.

Qur Plan Zero initiative commits us to reach

Net Zero Scope | and 2 emissions by 2025.

It's focused around three key pledges.

encompassing the key areas of environmental

impact for Mitie, with spedific targets 1o

© Eliminate carbon emissions from power
and transport

® Eradicate non-sustainable waste

© Enhance inefficient buildings to meet the
highest environmental standards

‘We've also committed to a science-based
target (SBT) of Net Zero supply chain (Scope 3)
emissions by 2035.

Mitie is advanced in its approach to
ESG with our approach and Group
stracegy influenced by our key
stakeholders. Our E5G strategy has
evolved from just managing risk to
driving growth opportunities with
¢limate action and qualicy job
creation at lts core.

Jason Roberts, Group Director for
Sustainability & Sodial Value

£5G gversight and governance are provided

by the Social Value & Responsible Business
Committee, chaired by Baroness Couttie. For
more information on the Committee’s activities
over FY22, please see pages 131 and 132.

Our social value frameworlc pillars

People Environment Community Responsible
We're a’eatén'g a ‘Great place WWe're protecting the Read about how we are enriching supply chain
to work’ and fostering a truly environment, improving our own the community by providing e -
inclusive culture at Mitie. Read energy effidency and transitioning ermplayment opportunities to By d‘b;':‘dlwns Zan supl ;i;ﬂes:gﬂy
mare about our people strategy to a low carbon economy. underrepresented groups and enterprise and local delive
and intiatives on page 37. A detailed overview of our support through volunteering and adopt a circular mozy
approach is on page 41. on page 30 Find out maore on page 51.
) undatiop ft
A MITIE INTIATIVE fo d.CltIOG ﬁiéa
Innovation g
Innovation pillar is embedded within the others to ensure %
Mitie rernains at the forefront of technology and processes. e
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People

Owr vision is to be the destination
employer in the facilities
management industry, creating

a ‘Great place to work’, and a
truly inclusive culture where our
people are supported to achieve
their potential.

Putting people at Mitie’s heart

We're a people business: we offer facilities
management services that are driven by cur
people — without them Mitie woukin't be here.
We are one of the largest facilities management
employers in the UK, with 72,000 colleagues,
and we care about all of them - because we
know that they give their best when we show
that we care.

Our expertise, care, technology insight and
focus an sustainability create amazing work
environments and help our customers be
exceptional every day. Key to our approach is
making sure Mitie is a ‘Great place to work’,
where our people can thrive and be their best
every day, so we can engage and retain the best
talent, and deploy that talent for our customers,
drive shareholder returns and build a sustainable

Our response to COVID-19

Over the past two years, we've had two
very different issues fading us during the
COMID-19 pandemic. Firstly, how we
support our 63,000 ‘Frontline Heroes, who
have been at the forefront of the response
to the pandemic, facing it every day as they
work to keep the country running, and
interact with the public; and also supporting
the health and wellbeing of our office-based
people. We are very proud of all their
commitrent and achtevernents - 10,000 of
our people worked in testing centres in the
nation's fight against COVID-19. During this
time, Mitie colleagues carried out 12000000
tests across 280 sites, maobilised to keep the
pubtic safe from COVID-19.

business. When we ask our people what

makes Mitie great, they all say: ‘the people’.
Everybody goes the extra mile, our customer's
business is our business and we have an inclusive,
supportive culture, where our diversity makes
us stronger, and we are built on integrity and
trust. Whether we are keeping things running
smoothly in a safe erwironment, looking for new
ways to do things better or fixing problems,

we go the extramile.

What makes us Mitie

To achieve our vision, we are committed to
providing an industry-leading Employee Value
Proposition, underpinned by a great employee
experience 5o cur people feel valued and are
encouraged to stay working at Mitie for longer,
as well as providing our customers with
excellent service.

We know our people have 2 great employee
experience —we know from their feedback that
they are inspired to work harder. In FY22, we've
integrated the HR functions of Interserve and
Mitie to create one that is much more focused
on employee experience — a huge exercise as
we integrated Interserve’s 20,000 people into
our systerns and ways of working, We aim

to optimise and strengthen our employee
experience, and improve the lives and wellbeing
of all our people. We show that in various ways,
from our industry-leading benefits, which we
have continued to improve over the past year,
to better access 1o career progression, and
building a truly inclusive culture.

As we evolved our pecple strategy throughout
FY22, we were delighted te welcome Sim Sian
as our new Head of Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion, and Yvonne O'Hara as Group Head
of Internal Communications and Engagement.
We are also benefiting from the extensive
experience of four new HR directors.

Employee engagement

Listening and responding to colleague feedback
and amplifying their voice is crucial to achieving
Mitie's vision of becoming the destination
employer in the facifities management industry.
Jennifer Duvalier s Mitie’s designated Non-

Executive Director responsible for oversight of
the Board's engagement with the workforce,

Real living wage

Mitie warks with the Living Wage
Foundation to promote the Real Living
Woage. Mitie believes in paying a decent
wage to all its colleagues, who carry out vital
work for many organisations, and we are
committed 10 paying all Group head cflice
colleagues the Real Living Wage, as well as
carnpaigning for its widespread uptake
within customer contracts. We incorporate
Real Living Wage costing when we submit
bids to prospective and current customers
so they can choose the Real Living Wage

at the point of tender and ensure that our
colleagues are paid a fair wage for the work
they do. In FY22, we've rolled out new
benefits induding safary advance, where our
people can draw down on earnings ahead
of payday. low-cast loans and a discount
retail stte,
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Qur environment and social value framework

continued

People

Jennifer participates directly in employee
engagement initiatives and carried out a full
prograrmme of activities during FY22, including
several Voice of the People listening sessions.

In Aprit 2022, we ran our annual Upload
colleague engagement survey for the fifth time,
with 47% of our people taking part in the
survey —an increase of 7% on last year. Miie's
employee engagement score was 50%, slightly
lower than last year in line with global trends
where there was a positive increase during
COMID. but with progress over FY20. We also
run local listening focus groups, our GrillPhil
ermad for the Chief Executive — of which
17.000 were received this year, and "You Said,
We Did’ - the actions and activities that are
taken as a resutt of feedback from these
communication channels.

We held these sessions virtually and face-to-face,

with resoundingly positive feedback from

our employee participants who value the
oppertunity to have their voices heard. Topics
ranged from pay and payroll, benefits and
rewards, and career progression, 1o technology
and accessibility of systerns, with positive
feedback and areas o improve. During FY22.
we have developed many initiatives to address
these key themes, which will be part of our
people focus in FY23.

Equality, diversity & inclusion

at Mitie .

Developing a diverse and inclusive workplace
To become the destination employer in our
industry we must proactively evolve and

adapt our approach to equality, diversity and
induston (ED&I), so we have an inclusive and
representative workforce, and offer all cur
colleagues clear opportunities to develop and
progress. With 155 different nationalities across
our workforce, we have a racially-diverse

Team Talk Live

In June 2021, we launched a leadership
visibility campaign Team Talk Live. Taking
place virtually via Teams, we aimed to raise
the visibility of Mitie's management team,
faciitate a two-way conversation with
colleagues across the business and provide
opportunities for two-way feedback. We
ran interactive virtual events, induding
“fireside chats” on topics such as equality.
diversity and inclusion and live Gril Phils,
where employees could ask Mitie's Chief
Executive Officer any question they
wanted. More than 25,000 Mitie people
took part and their feedback was
overwhelmingly positive — they really valued
the opportunity io hear from and speak
with Mitie's feaders about what matters
mogt 1o them,
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Women on senior leadership
team (SLT}

24%

FY21:21%

Racial diversity on senior
leadership ceam (SLT)

8%
FY2i: 8%

Health and wellbeing hours

5,503

FY21.2,338

Net Promoter Score

+39

FY2l: +24

Employee engagement

50%

FY2I: 55%
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culture; we also aim to achieve an inclusive
workplace, where colleagues can be their
true sebves.

Aligned to our people strategy, our ED&I
strategy will act as a key enabler to delivering
our business strategy, will contribute to

our focus on growth, and will deliver our
commitment to represent the diversity of our
communities and customers, from the frontline
to the Boardroom, by 2030. This will increase
ownership and accountability for ED&I across
the senior leadership team at Mitie.

‘We are committed to achieving the
following goals:

© Increase % of women on the 5LT to 35% by
2023, arvd 40% by 2025

® Increase % of racially diverse colleagues on
the SLT to (0% by 2023, and 20% by 2025

© 5% employees through an apprenticeship
scherme

We will review our diversity goals once census
data is available, to ensure that we are setting
challenging targets beyond 2025. Since | April
2022, 22% of our Board is racially diverse which
compares with 19% of our workforce.

We are building transparency and trust by
listening to and responding 1o the voices of

our colleagues. ang want to increase diverse
represertation across every career band.

We hope this will also improve our ED8J
bidding capability, and support the development
of inclusive technology solutions, building
sustainable profitable growth. Over the past’
year we have continued 10 launch award-winning
ED&! initiatsves, as well as ED& training for the
whole Group, built using our cwn people and
real experiences, induding filmed examples.

Employee networks

We have seven established employese networks,

available for any colleagues to join and influence

positive change across Mitie. They focus on:

women in the workplace; race and ethnicity;

disability; sexuality; age diversity; carers and

ex-military personnel,

In connection with the Group's wider

diversity initiatives and our ED&| Policy,

Mrtie is committed to:

© Giving fufl and fair consideration to
applications for employment by disabled
persons, having regard to their particular
aptitudes and abilities

© Continuing the employment of, and arranging
appropriate training for, employees who have
become disabled during their employment

© The traning of, career development and
promotion of disabled employeas.

© Mitie is a signatory of the Disabitity Confident
scherne with the Department for Work
and Pensions.
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Our award-winning diversity
and inclusion programmes

Qur conscious indusion programme
‘Count me in’ won Best Diversity, Equality
and indusion Initiative and Best Learning
Initiative for Busiress Cukture at the
Business Culture Awards 2021, it'sa
bespoke, conscious inchusion training
programme, created with our partner
t-three and developed based on feedback
from Mitie colleagues regarding their
inclusion experiences.

The Mitie Foundation also won an

Award for ‘Driving Social Indusion in the
Workplace' category at the Employers
Network for Equaiity and Inclusion (enei)
Awards, for its flagship ‘Ready2work'
programme. The scheme locks to break
barriers for those who may face difficulties
securing employment by offering a diverse
range of enthusiastic and capable individuals
the opportunity to gain work experience
across the Mitie business. To date, more
than 500 pecple have completed the
Ready2Work programme, with many
securing employment with Mitie after
their placement.

(-\ Mitie Foundation

Ready2Work

Busmiess
Atliure
Al
421
Winner

Gender breakdown

Financial statements

At 31 March 2022 Male Female Total % Male % Female
Board 4 3 7 57% 43%
Senior leadership team 65 20 85 T6% 24%
Employeeas 42,429 29,680 72,109 59% 41%
Gender pay We have launched new and enhanced benefits

We strongly believe that being transparent
about the diversity and pay of our workforce is
an important step towards creating meaningful
change. At 5 April 2021, Mitie’s median gender
pay gap was 54% (versus 64% at 5 April 2020},
which continues to compare favourably with
the UK national pay gap of 154%. Mitie’s mean
gender pay gap was B.6% (versus 77% at

S April 2020).

A key contributor to our gender pay gap is an
imbalance in the number of men and women at
various levels. Ve have fewer women than men
in our more senior positions and typically people
in more senior positions receive the highest pay.
This impacts both hourly pay and the bonus pay
figures, because bonuses tend to be paid to
those in the most senior positions to keep pace
with market practices and to ensure we can
attract and retain the best talent.

Efforts to achieve gender parity centre araund
four areas. These continue to form part of
our long-term, sustainable approach to
improve the representation of fernales, and all
under-represented groups, across all Mitie's
organisational levels:

I. Leadership: Enabling mare females to secure
leadership positions through targeted
development interventions for female talent

2. Resourcing: Ensuring the Group resourcing is
fully inchusive and Mitie is hiring from a diverse
talent pool

3. Career Development: Taking action that
supports the career progression of
underrepresented groups

4, Reward and recognition: Creating a poweriul
and engaging reward and recognition
proposition that rewards the right bebaviour
and celebrates indusion

Making a difference to

our people’s lives

Reward and recognition

We invest in cur people to make a difference
1o their lives, and offering benefits and
recognising colleagues for a job well done

is key 1o our success.

in FY22 to build on the life assurance and Virtual
GP access we introduced in FY21. We have
enhanced maternity pay for everybody. We also
recognise the changing needs of our people and
want to ensure their wellbeing and introduced

a new sabbatica! policy for our colleagues who
have worked at Mitie for one year.

In FY22, we introduced an improved share
incentive plan (SIP), where our people receive
an extra free share for every two they buy.

Last year we gifted free shares to alf our UK
colleagues and will do so again this year: The free
shares were well recefved by our colleagues

and help us all to share in Mitie’s success as a
listed business.

These benefits are all regularly promoted
through our different communications channels.
including Recap, Download and Minet.

Healch & Wellbelng

In FY22, we welcomed Rebecca Eaton as our
new Head of Wellbeing. She is looking at how
we make wellbeing an integral part of everything
that we do.

Safety is our number one priority. and our

goal is smple: zerc harm - to our pecple, our
customers, and members of the public passing
through the facilities Mitie takes care of. LiveSafe,
the Group’s QHSE culture change programme,
gives the Group's people ten rules to live by.
The rules are mandatory and are supported by
training delivered through Mitie's tearning Hub.

In FY22, Mitie signed the Mental Health at Work
Commitment as part of our pian to remove the
stigma associated with rmental heatth, provide
support and improve our colteagues’ mental
wellbeing. Ve will increase mental health
awareness through our colleagues’ sharing

of their personal stories of mental health;
introducing line manager training; and improve
early access to support. We are also growing
our mental health first aid network, providing
them with support and helping them to be
champions of mertal health across Mitie.

Our externally-run employee assistance
programme provides first line support on any
wellbeing topic through to in-depth counselling.
Through Optima {eur Occupational Health
provider), we provide our people with a range
of support to meet their needs.
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Qur environment and social value framework

continued

People

In FY22, we introduced a new hybrid working
policy and deployed it for our 7000 office-based
employees. From an office-based perspective.
it's been well received by people, who like being
in the office collaborating — but not having to
commute every day.

Over FY21. we've delivered 5,503 hours of
heatth and wellbeing training across the Group,
including 4,368 hours of Mental Heatth First
Aid training.

Whistleblowing: Our independent
whistleblowing service provides our colleagues
with easy to access reporting for any concerns.

Learning & developmenc

To support our vision to become the destination
employer in the facilities management industry,
we must ensure that we have a diverse
waorkforce equipped with the right skills for

the medium and long term. VWe aim to offer alf
our colleagues clear opportunities to develop
and progress.

In FY22, we launched our learning and
development SharePoint and Mitiepeople.com
site for all colleagues to access our full learning
offer — creating the go to place for all learning
and development informatian and resources.
We've also revamped our annual talent review
process, and our MiReviews will ensure a
strong focus on career development, as well as
signposts to apprenticeships and skills builds.

‘We want our peapie to be inspired by indusive,
collaborative and values-led leaders, who
understand our business and our customers,
and engage and empower their teams to deliver
results. We introduced our leader development
programme in FY2| and developed this further
in FY22 by adding externally-led psychometric
assessments to identify personal attributes,
motivations and values, and assess aptitude.
Results were mapped against our Mitie values
and leadership competencies, as well as external
benchmarks. Qur leaders also took partin a
340-degree feedback inclusivity Truth Teller
activity, which allowed them to seek feedback on
how inclusive they are as a leader and how they
are experienced by their people. This helped to
support their development planning and ability
to take proactive steps towards becoming

maore inclusive,

We encourage and enable all our people to
progress their careers in Mitie. Over the past
year, we have developed personal Career
Pathways to enable our people to navigate
their career in Mitie and drive their own
development. Due to launch in FY23, each
colleague will be able to identify the
competendies for their role, assess themselves
and access curated learning content to support
their development, as well as identifying other
reles within Mitie that suit their skillset.
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Apprenticeships

We support our people to gain valuable skills
and qualifications through apprenticeships, 10
improve their social mobility and to support
our business growth, We are also focused on
accessing 2 more diverse group of externat
candidates to meet our resourcing needs, while
supporting UK economic recovery. We offer
more than 55 sustainable apprenticeship
programmes and promcte these through Group
and local channels. Qur target is 3.0% of our
employees working over 30 hours and we
currently have 940 five apprenticeship courses
ensuring that we hit our target with a score

of 3.55%.

The Apprenticeship Levy is a charge introduced
by government, with the aim of increasing
apprenticeship numbers. We aim to continue
to grow our apprenticeship programmmes by
supporting the development of a future talent
pipeline and to increase the utilisation of our
Apprenticeship Levy utifisation from 35% to
50% over the next few years.

Together with our external networks,
induding the Business Services Assodiation
Apprenticeship and Skills Group, and the
All-Party Parliamentary Group on
Apprenticeships, we are lobbying to remove
unnecessary barriers to learning, enabling
businesses to repurpose and optimise Levy
funds and to offer more apprenticeship-based
programmes, that are broad and inclusive.

Leaving a desk job and getting into
a hands-on problem-solving role
has been great, and jusc what

| hoped it would be. The variecy is
my favourite part of the job, along
with getting 10 see what the client
does on cthe shop floor as chey
make the cars, and ultimately
making che customer happy!

Evie Maloy. Maintenance and
Operations Engineering Technician

Apprentice, Mtie

Priorities for FY23

Qur people agenda is always evolving:
magnified by external factors, incuding the
challenging labour market, inflation and
cost of living increases, and the escalating
situation in Ukraine. We have more to do
1o become a consistently 'Great place 1o
work, and the destination emplayer in the
facilities management industry. We entered
FY23 with a talented HR leadership team,
ready to take on these challenges.

QOur focus for FY23 centres around five
key elements beyond defivering our
overarching people strategy:

© Develop our employee value
proposition 1o engage and retain the
right people and attract new talent.
enhance the wark lives of our colleagues
and enhance our employer brand

© Develop a new, cne-off, bespoke, high
impact Line Manager development
programme to better equip them
with the capabilities and skilis to lead
our people

© Build a bespoke customer experience
development programme for ail
frontline colleagues

© Use PowerBl and HR data from different
sources to drill down into local data to
identify issues and target interventions

© Develop and roll out our new ED&I
strategy. which will cantribute
considerably to Mitie's culture

© Lobby for Apprenticeship Levy change
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Our Plan Zero

Our Plan Zero initiative gives us a dear structure
to fight dimate change and sets a defined
pathway on how we will decarbonise our
business. We are committed to reaching

Net Zero operational emissions by 2025.

In addition to this target. we have committed

to a science-based target (SBT) to achieve an
B0% reduction in our Scope 3 non-operational
emissions by 2030 and full Net Zero Scope 3
emissions reduction by 2035.

Plan Zero is focused on three key pledges: to
eliminate carbon emissions from power and
transport, eradicate non-sustainable waste, and
enhance inefficient buildings to meet the highest
environmentaf standards.

Naot only are we working hard to reduce our
own erwironmental impact, we also offer our
customners end-to-end sustainability solutions.

PLAN
ZEROQ

A MITIE INITIATIVE

@ (@ &

Eliminate carbon emissions from power

and transport

© Convert the Group's fleet to zero
emissions and power the Group's EV
charge points with green energy

© Decarbonise the Group's fossil fuelled
heating systems and use 100% renewable
energy for our built estate

©@Increase the Group's use of technology
1o reduce work travel to a minimum.
Where travel is necessary, Mitie will
choose low carbon methods

g S pheisnba

Qur in-house sustainability consuftancy supports
our customers’ journey in carbon reduction
through its expertise in advising on low carbon
technologies, workplace strategy, wellbeing and
environmental performance. In addition, our
landscapes business has dedicated resource

in biodiversity assessments and carbon
sequestration prajects, such as living walls and
green roof installations. We also support
decarbonisation finandng for cur customers.

In October 2021, Mitie and Sustainable
Development Capital LLF, an investment firm
specialising in energy efficiency and decentralised
energy generation. launched a new partnership
1o help both public and private sector
organisations plan their decarbonisation
roadmap and fund the low carben equipment
and technology they need to make their sites
Net Zero.

& © &3

Eradicate non-sustainable waste

© Efiminate single-use materials by embracing
the circular economy. such as through a
closed-loop paper recydling system

© Reduce the Group's use of natural
resources, with only termns which fit
the Group's cincular economy approach
allowed on site

© Use natural, non-toxic, and biodegradable
deaning praducts, and champion the use
of new innovations wherever possible,
such as microfibre and surface coatings

Financial statements

Environment

As aresponsible business, with
creating social value at our core,
we are committed to eliminating
our impacts on the envirenment
and mitigating the eflects of climate

Our environmental targets

To achieve Net Zero carbon emissions before
the Government's target of 2050, we have the
following carbon reduction targets:

© Net Zero carbon by 2025 (Scope | and 2)

© Net Zero carbon by 2035 (Scope 3)

© Eliminate all Scope | emissions (fossil fuels)
from our operations by 2025 and adopt
natural rengwable sources for Scope 2
electricity emissions

© Continually measure, report and influence
Scope 3 emissions throughout the value chain

Annual target under budget

23,661

tonnes of carbon were emitted (independently
verified by Optera) — 1,569 tonnes below our
25,230 target for FY22.

See page 45 for further information on verification

@O ®

Enhance inefficient buildings to meec

the highest environmental scandards

© Ahways choose new offices with at least an
"Excellent’ BREEAM rating and only re-sign
leases on offices with an A EPC rating

© Enharnce energy optimisation and use the
Group's smart building technology to
achieve maximum energy efficiency at
all Group sites

© Improve biodiversity at all Group sites
using inftiatives that help ecosystems
flourish, such as choosing plants which
attract wildlife or establishing bug hotels

Mitie Group plc 41
Annual Report and Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope tD: 7CES319A-0C81-4123-96D7-4B6804283488

Our environment and social value framework

continued

Environment

Eliminating carbon emissions
from power and transport

Pioneering in electric vehicle fleets

Our largest carbon emissions relate to our vehide
fleet (98% of our total Scope | and 2 footprint)
and our path to Net Zero target will largely be
achievad through transitioning our entire fleet
1o electric vehicles (EV) by 2025. We were one
of the first major UK faglities management
providers to launch an EV fleet and we have one
of the largest EV fleets in the UK. Asat 31 March
2022, 2,217 electric vehicles (33% of the fleet,
induding cornmercial vehicles) are in operation
(FY21: 22%} and our next challenge is to reach
45% by the end of FY23, and 100% by the end
of 2025. We are doing this by repladng our
vehicles with newer more efficient EVs, and
ensuring that all commercial vehides are instafled
with speed limiters and telematics to improve
driver behaviour. We've also installed more than
2,000 EV charge points across the Mitie estate,
employee homes and customer sites. Qur EV
charging salution —~ the Mina Platform — enables
direct payment for EVs across our estate,
colleagues’ homes and dient sites. This makes it
possible to pay for wark vehicles to be ¢harged
at home with a single bill. In FY23, we will
recornmend 100% renewable tariffs for Mitie
drivers, increasing the uptake to power not

only EVs, but homes too. Mitie is a signatory

o EVI0Q, The Climate Group's initiative to
commit organisations to transitioning to an

EV fleet by 2030,

100% renewable sources of energy

Mitie is committed to using renewable energy
in its offices and we purchase 100% of power
backed try Renewable Energy Guarantee of
Origin for Mitie-controlled offices. Mitie is a
mernber of REIQQ, the Climate Group’s global
corporate renewable energy initiative for
businesses to achieve 100% renewable
electricity, and have already achieved this.

WVe are committed to doubling our energy
productivity. through the Climate Group’s
EPI00 initiative. Mitie is one of anly a handful
of organisations to hold all three acareditations
(RE!00, EVI00, EPIO0). In FY22, Mitie Energy
recertified 1o 15050001 Energy Management
Standard and we will be rolling this out across
the Group in FY22.

Enhancing inefficient buildings to meet
the highest environmental standards

9 Net Zero sites

Decarbonising heating systems and increasing
energy efficiency within the Mitie built estate

is crucial to achieving Net Zero operational
emissions by 2025. In FY22, our building energy
usage increased compared to FY2I: however,
this was due to the previous year's lower figures
as a resuft of buildings being closed during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

47 Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Across our estate, we have implemented energy
optimisation measures, identifying an annual
carbon saving of 111 tonnes, including air-source
heat pumps, electric air-conditioning systems,
and timing schedules. Transitioning to low-
carbon alternatives will improve our energy
consumption and decarbonise our heating
systems. In FY22, we started larger capital
expenditure projects, including installing LED
lighting systems and boiler replacement
programmes. Through these initiatives, we

have seen a 73% carbon reduction (Scope 1)

in natural gas for heating, and a 34% carbon
reduction from electricity {Scope 2} in our built
estate through optimisation measures. However,
we are seeing increases in our landlord
controfled sites (Scope 3) as we transition to

low carbon heat pumnp technology. Like for like
analysis highlights that Mitie’s absolute emissions
have slightly increased by 7%, however emissions
intensity has significantly decreased by 41%,
which is attributed to the increase in company
size and higher revenue values.

Qwver the past year, we have continued to work
on decarbonising our entire built estate. During
FY22 we determined that seven buildings across
our estate were gas-free — operating on green
energy (c.12% of our built estate). In a further
two sites we removed gas-fired boilers to
reduce our Scope | carbon emissions, and
replaced them with law-carbon heat pump
technology powered by fully natural renewable
energy. We aim to continue at the same pace
and decarbonise a further eight buildings by the
end of FY23. New buildings have been added to
our portfolio with our recent acquisftions, and

we are completing energy surveys to optimise
consurnption and identify new potential energy
reduction projects. Locking forward, all new
buildings that Mitie occupies will aim to have an
Excellerntt BREEAM rating.

During the course of FY23, we will be working
with landlords (of sites for which they procure
energy). with the aim to ensure they procure
green energy, or transfer this procurement to
Mitie. We are helping our landiords to explore
carbon reduction projects, such as adding solar
panels, replacing gas-fired boilers with heat
pumps, and procuring other green energy
solutions. We are also implerenting further
measures 1o continue reducing our water
consumption, induding instafling tap attachments
to reduce water use by up to 98%.

Eradicating non-sustainable waste

Mitie has increased recyding rates and all other
waste is diverted from landfill to produce
energy. We aim to remove all single use items
from our operations and therefore reduce our
waste and associated carbon emissions.

Waste produced by Mitie has increased by
47 tonnes in FY¥22 and year-on-year figures
are up 15%. due to exceptionally low figures in
the previous year because of the COVID-19
lockdown. However, there is a significant
downward trend compared to pre-COVID
numbers. 58% of the waste from Mitie sites
was recyded during FY22, with fess than 6%
going to landfill. All waste controlled by Mitie
has been diverted from landfill and goes to
provide energy from waste.
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Qur Bin the Bag initiative (to reduce single-use
plastic bin iners) was deployed across 10 sites
in FY22 and should remove 600kg of plastic
and aut operational casts by £6,000 each year.
Bin the Bag uses new bins that don't require
plactic bin lincrs and are made in the UK from
100% recycled materials. They have separate
compartments for recyding, general waste
and food waste.

In 2021, Mitie won Sustainabie Company of the
Year at the Cleaning Excellence Awards; we
were awarded a three-star rating for our Bin
the Bag initiative at the Zerc Waste awards in
early 2022 and we were also shortlisted for
three 'edie’ Sustainability Leaders Awards in
March 2022

In FY22, we carried out a right sizing exercise for
bins across our estate to improve our recycling
rates; reviewing our bin sizes and quantity of
different bins and adapting them according to
the waste streams. We see the number of
recyding bins increasing as we recyde more
waste and we print less.

We are also deploying biotech deaning solutions
across our estate to remove chemicat deaning
agents from our operations, using microbes and
enzymes. As a concentrated product in recyded
packaging, this is also removing significant carbon
n production and transportation.

Reducing our carbon emissions

Mitie’s Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions have
ingreased 7% in FY22 as building ocoupancy
recovers to pre-COVID levels and we
incorporate the Interserve estate into our
portfolic. When comparing with FY20 emissions
have continued to steadily decline.

Our carbon emissions intensity has decreased
from 8.98 1o 5.28. Our FY22 carbon target was
25,2301C0O, and we achieved 23,661 1CO,.
This was independently verified by Optera in
accordance with (1) ISO 14064+ Spedfication
with guidance at the organisation level for
quaritification and reporting of greenhouse

gas emissions and removals, and (2) Global
Reporting Initiative’s (GRI), G4 Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines, with a certificate received
on 20 April 2022.

In FY22, there was a significant increase in
electricity emissions for our EV fleet, and
landlord elactricity is rising as we convert from
gas fired heating to electric sources. Business
travel and hotel stays are starting to move
towards pre-COVID levels; however, remote
working via Teams is reducing travel averall
This is the first year we have reported
commuting and working from home emissions,
adding 714 tonnes of carbon to our carbon
reporting. The increase in working from home
for our office-based colleagues has saved 147
tonnes of carbon.

Financial statements

Environmental dashboard

Carbon emissions for the year ended 3| March 2022

Annual Total
{tCO) *
@ Etectricity 104071 44
@ Gas 33542 14
@ Water 0.65 00
@ Transport 21.554.63 91t
@ Waste 16.26 ol
@ Commuting 713.66 30
Total 23,661.33
Mitie Scope | and 2 20,596
Mitie Scope 3 {exduding fleet upstream) 3,065
Total 23,661
Scope of emissions
Scope | — Direct emissions Scope 2 - Indirect emissions
On-site fuel combustion Purchased electricity
Gas directly purchased for heating or generation Electricity directly purchased across leased
across leased property managed by Mitie property and EVs managed by Mitie
Company vehicles
Fuel purchased for fleet vehides
Fugitive emissions'
Refrigerant leaks from air-conditioning (RAC)
equipment in leased assets and fleet vehicles
Scope 3 ~ Other indirect emissions
Business travel
Expensed air, road and raif travel (inc. hotel stays)
Waste
Waste generation across leased property
Water
Water usage across leased property
Fuet and energy related activities
Electricty transmission and distribution (T&D) (osses
Upstream emissions associated with the extraction of purchased fuels and gas
Upstream leased assets
Gas and electricity recharges across leased property managed by the landlard
Commuting
Commuting (all forms of transport)
Working from home
| Fugitive emissions are currently not reported as outlined in the exdusions statement.
Mitie Group plc 43
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Our environment and social value framework

continued

Environment

To date, we have nat reported our supply chain
carbon emissions, which form a sigruficant
proporiion of our total carbon emissions.

We are collating supply chain emissions data

to improve our measurement, reporting and
influence of these emissions as part of our
cammitment to a science based target (SBT).

In FY22, we created a Carbon Dashboard to
better understand our carbon emissions. This
incorporates our built estate, our fleet fuel, EV
charging, waste, water, rail, air, hotels, coramuting
and working from home and uftimately our
supply chain. Once we have collated the refevant
data, we will use it to form our SBT plan which

The dashboard uses algorithms o estirnate

missing data to provide a complete picture.

© Built estate data {gas, electricity. water) comes
from the Bureau (Utifyx)

© Fleet fuel from the Allstar fuel cards

©EV charging and expensed fuel comes from
TMC (fieet data system)

© Waste from Mitie Waste

© Rall, air and hotel comes from CTM (business
travel partner)

© Commuting and working from home comes
from an internal survey by our sustainability
consulting team

Estimations

Where leased building utility data is unavailable.
estimations are made using an anticipated
energy use per square metre. This is calculated
using a combination of half hourly meters and
actual billing data received across the estate.
For sites where invoice data is only available for
a partial period, the available data is apportioned
using an average kWh/day figure based on
known utility data from other sites. Waste data
is estimated using an average waste per desk
figure based on actual data we receive.

will be submitted for verification in June 2022.

Data sources:

Scope | and 2
Gas and elecericity Infarmation is populated from Automatic Meter Readings (AMR). invoiced data, service charge data and estimates. AMR data has
consumption priority, followed by the supplier or service charge data. If none of this is available, then an estimate will be generated based on all

data for other sites. This is used to calulate an average kWh/m2 for the Mitie estate, and the estimate is this average muttiplied
by the floor area for the site in question, For sites where, in addition ta a direct supply, there is also a service charge for energy
use within the communal areas, the figures are added together.

For sites where invoiced data is only available for a partial period, the data has been apportioned based on the average kWhiday
for each site, based on the billing data that is held. Unless advised otherwise by property, sites are assumed to have all supplies in
place. This information is taken from the Mitie Property Master Site List, which is updated in real time. Data is obtained from the
data collector for HH/AMR data, the SRI80 export fram Optima for invoiced data, and directly from the landlords for service
charge data.

Data is provided by Mitie's fuel card provider, and users then submit their monthly business and personal mileage via our Fleet
Data Platform.

As personal mileage must not be included within the report, we have undertaken a check of the data, compared total business
miles and total personal miles, and agreed that the percentage split is 77% of consumption for business purposes. Within the raw
datasets is the 100% figure, and this spiit is then calculated within the Consumption and Environmental tabs. This ensures that the
raw data within the report matches the files received from the Fleet team. :

Company vehicles

Scope 3

Business cravel

Private vehide data with actual mileage is provided within Mitie from collation of claimed mileage expenses. For other travel
modes expense spend data is obtained, an emission factor is then applied to calculate emissions from miles travelled.
Orher business travel (air, rail and hotel stays) is provided by our Corporate Travel Provider in a report from their dashboard.

Water Utility bills are verified through our internal bureau service. Any billing data is cross-referenced against meter read data where

available. Service charge bills are used for buildings where the landlord recharges utilities.

Fuel and energy
related activities

Scope | and 2 data is used and Defra emissions factors for Scope 3 are then applied.

Upstream Jeased asset  Landlord recharge data is calculated from service charge bills or estimated from an anticipated energy use per square metre.

This is caiculated using actual bifling data received.

Waste Woaste data is collated by our waste management provider.

This data is obtained from a detailed set of scenarios to ensure that we capture not only the material that MWE collects but also
mare detailed information on the landlord sites. The data we have is therefore split into four scenarios —

1. Sites where Mitie Waste provides all the services (general waste, dry mixed recyding, confidential paper, food) ~ so we have a
complete picture of the waste typesivolumes and headoount. This data is used as the basis for the ather scenarios as it shows all
waste streams, and we can then apportion the waste streamn by type, by headcount. This can then be used for the landlord sites.
2. Sites where Mitie Waste provides some of the services and some are provided by the landlord. For example, we provide
confidential paper. but the landlord provides general waste, dry mixed recydling, and food. For these sites we use the actual data
from the services we provide and then we do an apportionment for the services we do not cover based upon the kg/person we
have for the sites in scenario 1.

3. Sites which have all the services provided by the landlord., but we know which waste streams they collect. The data for these
sites is based upon the headcount for those buildings and the data from scenario | so we make an apportionment based upon
this (similar to scenario 2).

4, Sites which have all the services provided by the landlord, but we do not know which waste streams they collect currently.

For this set of sites, we use a general waste figure only and report this as landfill. There has been communication with all for
these new sites (ex Interserve buildings) to ascertain what services are provided and if the waste is landfill or EFW. After this has
been provided, we will then be able to move thase sites into scenario 3.

44 Mitie Group plc
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Absolute emissions

Mitie mainly operates in the UK, with an operation in Spain and from a small number of overseas MOD estates. In FY21 and FY22 we did not collect the
emigsions data from our operations outside of the UK. The carbon impact frem the overseas contracts is limited and we will be adding in the relevant
pracesses to incorporate these specific carbon emissions in FY23.

In FY22, cur building energy usage increased compared to FY21; however, this was due to the previous year's lower figures as a result of buildings being
closed during the COVID-(9 pandemic. Our emissions were lower in FY22 than in FY20 which was the last comparable year prior to COVID.

% change from
UK emissions FY22 FY2l previous year
Total Scope | (¢CO &) 19,414 8719 4%
Emissions froem fuel combustion across our fleet 19,371 18,557 4%
Emissions from gas combustion in our occupied buildings 43 162 73%
Total Scope 2 (tCO,e) 1,182 486 143%
Emiissions from the purchase of electricity across occupied buildings (location based) 307 464 -34%
Emissions from electricity consumption across our EV fleet 875 22 3877%
Total Scope | & 2 (location based) 20,594 19,205 7%
Total Scope | & 2 (market based) 20,289 18,741 8%
Intensity — emissions ratio
tCO,e/fm revenue (Scope 1&2) 528 898 41%

Mitie fallows the reporting approach set out in the UK Government's Environmental Reporting Guidance (2019) to ensure that our reporting standards are robust and transparent.
For most of our major emissions sources, we use primary data from AMR meter readings. wtility bills, service charge data and expensed claims. Mitie Energy collates our emissions data
on i quarterly basis, which is restated at the end of the year to reftect any changes or 10 replace any estimated data with actual data (where available). Emissions figures are verified by
Qurr Sustainability team, which has overall respansibifity for ensuring the catoulations and methodology are correct.

Environmental data

% change from

FY12 FY2l  previous year

Electricicy consumed across occupied buildings (kVvh) 4,502,916 2995119 50%
Gas consumed across occupied buildings (kvvh) 1,554,794 2,704,585 -43%
Fuel used by vehicles for business travel (kWh) 82,848,214 85980058 4%
Electricicy used by EV vehicles for business travel (kWh) 4,122,667 259495 1.489%
Total organisational energy consumption (k¥vh) 93,028,591 91939257 1%
Water consumed across oceupied buildings (m?) 4,39 26,699 -B4%
Total waste generated across occupied buildings (tonnes) 368 32 I5%
Total waste to landfill (tonnes) 19 12 58%
.E-.'-I.SL‘.! from waste 135 85 59%
Total waste recycled (tonnes) 214 224 4%,
Recycling rate S58% 70% -1 2ppt
FY22 Fr23 FY24 FY25

CO, emissions (tonnes) 23,661 20.300 13,340 5220
% of Fleet Zero Carbon 33 45 65 85
Wiste to landfill (tonnes) 19 00 50 0

Priorities for FY23

As we enter FY23 we are focused on genuine progress in sustainability, espedally as our Net Zero science-based target requires action acrass our
supply chain, We will continue to pilot new systems to improve sustainability across our business:

© Improve sustainability awareness and © Our fleet — in-depth analysis to better © Waste - continue to reduce our waste
knowledge to our frortiine colleagues understand our high mileage drivers — how streams and incorporate drcular econormy
and make every job a 'sustainable job’ we can innovate to reduce their mileage thinking into our operations. Emphasis is
@ Supply chain — focus more on greater and thereby reduce the requirement for placed on reducing plastic as we start to
collaboration with customers and supply carbon offsetting review this as a fossil fuel
chain partners to achieve aligned goals © Decarbonisation — continue to decarbonise © Carbon offsetting — what is the future
and develop our understanding of our our buitt estate and remaove fossil fuels from outlook and can we devetop our absolute
Scope 3 emissions our operations zero plan

Mitie Group plc 45
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Qur environment and social value framework

continued

Environment

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

in line with our strategic and operational focus on ESG we have been aligning our processes with the recommendations of the TCFD and will continue to
develop our policies, processes and disdosures in line with the TCFD recommendations. We have considered our ‘comply o explain’ obligations under
the UK's Financial Conduct Authority Listing Rules and have detailed in the table below the Principles with which we fully or partially comply. We are fully
compliant with eight out of the || recommendations for the year ended 3| March 2022.

Governance

Principle I: Describe the 8card's oversight of
dirmate-related risks and opportunities

© The Board has overall responsibility for climate-related risks and opportunities.

© The Board is updated at each Board meeting by Baroness Couttie who chairs the Social Value &
Responsible Business Committee (SVRBC), which met five times in FY22,

© The Board reviews dimate-related risks and opportunities annually; the Audit Committee reviews
these twice a year.

The Company complies with Prindple |. Please refer to the SVRBC report on page 131 for
further information.

Principle 2: Describe management's role in
assessing and managing dimate-related risks
and opportunities

© The Executive Committee is responsible for managing ciimate-related risks and opportunities.
© The SVRBC and management-led Plan Zero Working Group and Plan Zero Steering Group,
ensure that dimate-related risks and opportunities are appropriately assessed and managed.

The Company complies with Principle 2. Please refer to the SVRBC report on page (31 for
further information.

Principle 3: Describe the climate-related
risks and opportunities the organisation
has identified over the short, medium and
long term

© The Board has identified an overarching climate change principal risk as detailed on page &9, which
is underpinned by a series of specific dimate-related threats and opportunities as documented
within the Group's dlimate change risk assessment.

@ Mitie’s risks and opportunities {induding climate-related) are categorised over the following
timescales: short term {within 12 months, to reflect the potential for immediate impact), medium
term (within ten years) and long term {ten years+).

© The Group's strategy outlines the opportunities identified in helping our custorers meet their
Net Zero carbon targets. ’

The Company complies with Principle 3. Please refer to TCFD Risk Management section on
pages 48 to 49. the principal risk on page 69 and the Chief Executive's strategic review on page 1.

Principle 4: Describe the impact of
dimate-related risks and opportunities
on the Company’s businesses, strategy
and financial planning

© Mitie recognises the impact that climate change may have on its strategy. operations and financial
planning and is taking acticn 1o address the implications of dimate-related risks on service delivery,
physical assets, supply chain. corporate reputation and the regulatory environmerit.

‘The Company does nat fully disclose the impact of diimate-related risks and opportunities in the
context of its financial planning and. therefore, does not comply with Frinciple 4.

Principle 5: Describe the resiience of the
Company's strategy, taking imo consideration
different dimate-related scenarios, induding a
2°C or lower scenario

44 Mitie Group ple
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Specific scenarios relating to 2°C or lower will be a focus in FY23 and the results from these
assessments will be reported in next year's Annual Report. As such the Company does not comply
with Principle 5.
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Rislc management

Principle 6: Describe the Company's
processes for identifying and assessing
_ dimate-related risks

© Mitie has an embedded Enterprise Risk Management {ERM) framework. During FY22, Mitie
established and implemented a new automated risk management platform for the capture of all
Group-wide risks, incuding the overarching dimate change prindipal risk and the climate change
risk assessrnent.

© At a business unit, function, project and account level, all teams maintain a risk register.
As risks are captured, an assessment in terms of the impact on Mitie’s ESG strategy is routinely
undertaken, in addition to a 5x5 assessment, which determines the significance of all risks.

© The Group Risk Team has a hofistic view of all dimate-refated risks impacting the Group,
induding those captured via the Climate Change Risk Assessment and operational risk registers.
The Group Risk Team works closely with Jason Roberts, Group Director for Sustainability and
Sodial Value to ensure all processes relating to dimate-related risks are aligned.

@ A series of assurance checks are undertaken as part of second and third lines of defence to
promaote best practice and ensure complianice with policies and regulations in terms of managing
the risks assocdiated with dimate change.

The Company complies with Principle 6. Please refer 1o the principal risks on page 6%.

Principle 7: Describe how processes for
managing climate-related risks, including

how the company makes dedisions to mitigate,
transfer, accept risks etc

© Climate-related risks are identified and added to the appropriate risk register.

@ Once a risk and/or opportunity has been identified. it is rated to ensure that the high risks within
a business unit/function/account/project can be identified and prioritised, escalating upwards, if
necessary. To ensure consistency. the Mitie 5x5 scoring matrix, which covers assessments against
a number of criteria induding the environment, capability and financial profile, is used.

© As a minimum, all dimate-related risks and opportunities must be reviewed on a quarterty basis.
All risks and/or opportunities are assigned an appetite status. Where the risk management
platform identifies a dimate-related risk has exceeded the Group's risk appetite threshold,
reviews and additional management action will be required on a more frequent basis.

The Company complies with Principle 7. Please refer to the principal risks on page 3.

Principle 8: Describe how processes
for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks are imtegrated into
the Company's overall risk management

© The process for managing climate-related risks is fully aligned with the Group's overreaching
approach to managing alf risks. Mitie's risk management platform s used to capture the Group's
risk information and provides a holistic view of Mitie’s risk management profile. The processes
followed for the capture of this information are detailed in Principles 6 and 7.

@ The Risk Tearn are the custodians of the Group risk register, induding the management and
review of all principal risks. The Risk Team akso oversee the associated governance processes,
which seek to ensure all risk reviews, induding those pertaining to dimate-related risks are
undertaken and remain up-to-date.

The Company complies with Principle 8. Please refer to the Principal Risks section on
pages 6810 77.

Metrics and targets

Principle 9: Disdose the metrics used by the
Company to assess dimate-related risks and
opportunities in line with its strategy and risk
management processes

© All metrics are addressed under the KPI section on page 19 and in the ESG Report on page 45.
The Company complies with Principle 9.

Principle 10: Disclose Scope |, Scope 2,
Scope 3, greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions,
and related risks

© The Company reports Scope | and 2 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions for the UK in the
ESG Report on page 45.
The Company does not fully comply with Principle G, as Scope I and Scope 2 emissions are

nat collected outside of the UK at this time and Scope 3 emissions are only partially collected.
These will be fully reported in next year's Annual Report.

Principle 11: Describe the targets used by the
Company to manage climate-related risks and
opportunities and performance against targets

© The targets are all set out on page 45 of the ESG report.
The Company complies with Principle 11.

Mitie Group ple 47
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Our environment and social value framework

continued

Environment

TCFD Risk Management section:
Climate-related risk management

The Group considers climate change and social
impact as a principal risk, as detailed on page 69.
This is underpinned by a series of dimate-
related threats and opportunities which

are monitored via the climate change risk -
assessment. This assessment is used to support
Mitie in eliminating all climate-related risks,
where prssihle The eategarication af
dimate-related risks and opportunities falls into
three categories, namely short term {within

12 months), medium term (up to ten years),

and long term (ten years pius), to ensure
alignment with Mitie's overall approach to risk
management, In addition to the climate change
risk assessment, climate-related risks and
opportunities are also captured at an indrvidual
customer account level and managed in
collaboration with customers via account level
risk registers. L tsing Mitie's autormated risk
management toal, the Group has access to a
hoiistic view of all climate-related risks at the
click of a button.

An overview of the macro level dimate-related
risks as reported via the dimate change risk
assessment are shown below, In FY23, the
Group will be using various scenarios 1o provide
assurance that all dimate change uncertainties
have been accounted for. in order to minimise
disruption to the business moving forward.
Where new risks and opportunities are
identified from these scenarios, these will

be captured and reported on in the next
Annual Report.

Extreme weather events

Impact
impacts felt universally - Mitie, customers and
subcontracting partners affected. Damage to
assets and increased travel risks as 2 minimum.

Risk categorisations {type and duration)
Physical risk ~ Medium term

Controls and mitigation

© Enhanced heaith & safety standards and processes.

@ Operating in accordance with 150 22301

© Pianned preventative maintenance schedules aligned 1o seasonal changes.

© Estates strategy in place and continually reviewed.

@ Insurance coverage.
© Scenario testing taking place in FY23,

Increasing summer temperatures
leading to ill-health

Impact
Hotter summer periods will impact colleagues,
particularly those engaged in froriine
operations. A failure to prepare could lead
to labour shortages, impact morale, hinder
service delivery and impact financial targets.

Risk categorisations (type and duration)
Physical risk - Medium to long term

Controls and mitigation
Q Awareness campaigns with seasonal aferts.
© Embedded occupational heatth strategy.

9 Health surveillance and monitoring framework.

® Planned preventative maintenance schedules aligned 1o seasonal changes.

Investor confidence on climate
change management

Impact

A failure by the Group to perform well in
respect of ESG and assodated dimate-related
regulatory targets will have significant financial
implications and impact Mitie's reputation.

Risk categorisations (type and duration)
Transicional risk - Medium term

Controls and mizigation

@ Governance framework in place including SVRBC agenda, Plan Zero Working Group and

Plan Zero Steering Group.

© Re-negotiation of Mitie’s revolving credit fadility. linked to sustainability.
@ Signed up to COP membership, S&P Global Reporting and third-party carbon verification.

Increases in pricing of greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions

Impace
Considerable costs to operating budget.
The biggest risk refates to the rmanagement
of Mitie's fieet and potential rises in taxation
on fossil fuels (diesel).

Risk categorisations (type and duration)
Transitional risk - Short to Medium term

Contrals and miugation

© Implementation of Plan Zere.

© Ongoing financial review of GHG related costs.

© Phasing out of diesel fleet.
© Ongoing transition to EV fleet.

Changes in customer behaviours
resulting in lost opportunities

Impact
Cost implications if Mitie cannot meet
custorner dernand for evolving service
requirements (i.e. to enable customers
to meet the impact of dirate change
on their businesses).

48 Mitie Group pic
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Risk categerisations (type and duration)
Transitonal cisk — Medium to long term

Controls and mitigation

@ Ongoing review of customer behaviours via sustainability povernance framework.
® Ongoing review and development of customer propositions.
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Unsuccessful investment in
new technologies

Impace

New technologies which are later identitied
as unsuitable or do not deliver against
sustainability objectives could lead ta
finandial and reputational damage.

Ritk categorisations {type and duration)
Transitivial visk - Medivm term

Conurols and mitigaticn
© R&L framework embedded.
© Governance structure in place to review all new tachnologies.
© Escalation and review progess in place.

Changes in awareness negatively
impacting public opinion and
behaviours

Impact

Inabyility 10 perform weli andfor meet
third-party expectations (public, auditors,
media 1<) will result in reputational damage
and impact revenues and profitability.

Risk categorisations (type and duration)
Transitional risk - Medium term

Contrels and mitigation
© Plan Zero initiative.
@ Governance framework embedded.
© Ongoing Inteligence Hub monitoring.
@ Climate change budget in place facilitating access to ‘best in dass’ resources, accreditations etc.

Potential for litigation if Mitie does
not adequately consider ar respond
to the impacts of climate change

impact
Failure to comply with future carbon targets
and legislative requirements will resuit in fines
leading to financial and reputational darmage.

Risk categorisations {type and duration)
Liability risk — Medium to long term

Contrals and mitigation
© Subject matter experts appointed to facilitate Group compliance with requirements,
@ Internal and external auditing.
© Horizen scanning,

The overview of the short to medium term macro level climate-related opportunities as managed via the climate change risk assessment is

shown belgw:

Oppertunicy description

Development of low emission and energy
efficiency strategy for Mitie estate.

Key actions being taken and/or in place
© Carbon Conscious Premises Selection (CCPS) Guide in place detailing minimum standard in
respect of new spaces added to Mitie estate.
© CCPS checkist in development for use by managing agents to screen all new estate acquisitions.
© Ongoing estates review of new climate-related projects.

Minimise rescurce use through a droular
economy embedded into our business supply
chain and gperations.

© Principles of BS800! adopted.
© Partnered with external knowledge share networks and organisations to help develop new
resource solutions.

Use of lower-emission sources of energy and
development/expansion of low emission
£00ds and services.

© Developing plan to decarbonise our estates,
© Ongoing energy consumption reporting,
@ RAD framework in place.

Encouraging agile and flexible working

© Agile working procedures embedded.

through business processes. © Ongoaing stress testing of remote weorking to ensure adequate coverage.
Access 10 new markets. © Networks established within business and technology forums.
® Ongoing review of markets and trends.
Participation in renewable energy © Energy surveying completed on a number of Mitie sites and optimisations to achieve better

programmies and energy efficient measures.

efficiencies made.
© Further surveying planned for FY23 including Mitie sites which have transferred in from
recent acquisitions.

Switching from fossil fuels to low carbon
alternatives for fleet operations.

@ Deployment of EV charging points at Mitie and client sites as well as colleagues’ homes.
© Signed up to Clean Van Commitment.
© Ongoing transition to EV.

Mitie Group plc
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Qur environment and social value framework

continued

Community

Making a positive difference,
wherever we operate

Overview

Mitie has a big part to play in the communities
in which we operate. We work hard to defiver
social value through our Gwn operations and
for our customers. We are continuing to
integrate the Government’s Sacial Value Model
throughout our business. We believe this is key
not only for public sector contracts {for which it
is & requirement), but for all our future business.

Owr ability to deliver social value for customers
is a key differentiator and will deliver positive
business resutts - as well as positive social
change - in the future.

The Mitie Foundation

The Mitie Foundation is an independent
charity. wholly funded by the Mitie Group, that
exists to break down perceived barriers 1o
employment for disadvantaged groups within
the communities in which Mitie operates. Qur
focus is on the long-term unemployed, disabled
people and those with learning difficulties.
veterans, ex-offenders and young people.

In FY22, we delivered four flagship Ready?Work
programmes to our charity partners, induding

a bespoke security programme and an enabled
Ready2Work programme. Nearty 70% of those
that completed the programme have gone on to
gain sustainable employment. Our Ready?Work
programme won two awards; Enei's ‘Driving
Social Inclusion in the workplace' and UK Social
Mobility Awards ‘Recruitment Programme of
the Year',

We have launched a new careers page on our
website, which allows pegple introduced by
Foundation partners to apply for Mitie
vacandes. More than 125 colleagues have joined
Mitie in various roles induding management.
The Foundation also offers advice and guidarnce
on eflective job search, as well as CV and
interview preparation where needed.
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Supporting our cornmunities through
volunteering

Each salaried colleague has an annual
volunteering day we encourage them to use.
In FY22, we committed to delivering 12400
hours of volunteering across communities.
We exceeded this target, with colleagues
delivering more than 14,650 hours to good
causes including the Poppy Appeal, the Career
Ready Plus Programme and more recently, the
Big Mitie Spring Clean.

In FY22. we launched our Giving Back DolT
platform for colleagues to search a larger
number of volunteering opportunities local to
them. The digital platform acts as a one-stop-
shop for ali aspects of Mitie volunteering,
including allowing colleagues to record volunteer
hours quickly and easily. Our people have
continued to show their generosity throughout
the year. In FY22. £236,350 was raised for good
causes, including Macmillan Cancer Support and
refugees from Afghanistan.

Opportunities for
ex-military persannel

Mitie continues to push for employment
opportunities for ex-service men and
women. We set a target for FY22 to employ
a minimum 2.5% of ex-service men and
wormen and over 4.0% of Mitie's workforce
is ex-military today. We continue to offer
our reservist employees paid leave and
support. We supported CTP in both Cardiff
and Telford for ex-military personnel by
participating in their career transition fairs.

£236,550

raised for charity

14,650hrs

volunteered to good causes by our colleagues

70%

of people successiully completing the Mite
Foundation’s Ready2Waork programme have gone
on 1o sustainable employment

Priorities for FY23

We aim to continue to promote the
importance of social value and sustainable
operations, not just internally but also
across all our contracts. In FY23, we aim to:

© Continue to support the Mitie
Foundation to remove barriers to
employment from underrepresented
groups and implement this methodology
into our contract level hiring processes

© Tackle economic inequality by placing
more emphasis on areating local
empioyment opportunities and training
to continue the recovery from the
COVID-19 pandemic

© Further align our volunteering pravision
directly with our customers’ priorities at
the community level

© Support the health and wellbeing of
our frontiine colleagues through our
Employee Assistance Programme

© Improve workplace inequality and strive
to reduce the disability employment gap
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Responsible
supply chain

H We aim to make it easier for

¥ every supplier to work with Mitie,
ﬂ whatever their size

e . ey * ——r—

Overview

In FY22, we have transformed our supply chain
approach to align this function more dosely
with the business through business partnering,
combined with a Centre of Supply Chain
Excellence. anq a dedicated Reporting and
Compliance team,

We have compieted integrating the Interserve
and Mitie supply chain functions, and then
started to upgrade the supply chain across the
business. We have reduced our exposure to
high-risk subcontractors, whether in terms of
financial health, risk or insurance, and now
have 88% (by spend) of subcontractors fully
accredited on the Alcumus Safe Contractor

- scheme. We have also re-incorporated the
Mitie Reet under our procurement function
and rationalised our supplier base to better
manage and reduce risk in our supply chain,
which now stands at around 12,000 suppliers.

Digital procurement strategy

Our digital procurement strategy went live in
Fr22, digitising cur entire end-to-end supplier
journey to make it easier for our suppliers to do
business with Mitie, and this has already led to
significant efficiencies and positive feedback from
our suppliers.

Digital procuremant gives us better visibility

of the payment process and allows us 1o fix
problems faster. That transparency works both
ways as our suppliers can see the progress of
their invoices, supparting their business planning.
We have rolleg out digital purchasing for around
£500m payments in FY'22 — approximately 30%
of our total spend. Currently, over 90% of issued
invoices are already being processed in this way,
and we aim 1o move over the outstanding spend
during FY23.

‘
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Financial statements
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Developing our supplier management
framework

We have continued 1o develop our supplier
management framework (SMF) over FY22,
which manages the performance of our strategic
suppliers. building deeper engagement with
around 200 strategic partner suppliers. Over
the past year, we held more than 300 meetings
covering issues including ESG, innavation, and
health and safety. We achieved a 35% spend
with SMF management in FY22, forecast to
reach 37% in FY23, with expected savings

of £55m.

Engaging with our supply chain

We have reviewed how we engage with
suppliers to ensure more diversely-owned
businesses in the supply chain, and sustainability
in our supply chain remains a priority. We
monitor our spend with diversely-owned
suppliers and actively encourage them to
respond to Rfls and tenders. In FY22, Mitie
joined MSD UK, the UK's leading supplier
diversity organisation and foremost
accreditation body in the UK (and affiliated
globally}, which opens our access 1o a database
of properly accredited diverse suppliers.

We continue to commiunicate with our suppliers
through a variety of channels to develop our
relationships throughout our supply chain and
encourage collaborative working. In February
2022, we launched mitiesuppliers.com,

which includes details such as changes to our
procurement systems. our ESG polides and
expectations, market insight pieces and market
reviews. It also acts as a key channel into Mitie
for alt new suppliers.

MNet Promoter Score —
+14 for suppliers scoring Mitie

12,000

suppliers now work with us

Priorities for F¥Y23

We will continue 10 leverage our scale

in the facilities management market,

and focus on supplier compliance, risk
management, ethical sourcing and carbon
reduction, by:

© Completing the roll-out of our digital
purchaser pay system for all suppliers
across our entire spend

© Leveraging volumes through our
planning and size, hedging where
necessary to try and mitigate shortages
and price inflation

© Contiruing our journey towards full
supplier compliance and accreditation,
rolling out our supplier health and
risk managemert strategy to cover
every supplier and ensure we have a
complete picture of supplier risk and
financial health

© Engaging our suppliers on all ESG-related
topics and improving the environmental
reporting processes 1o measure, report
and influence our Scope 3 emissions

Mitie Group plc
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Operating review
Our divisional performance

Following the Interserve Facilities Management {Interserve) acquisition Mitie now operates under five divisions, with management expertise afigned
along customer and service defivery lines. Interserve was acquired by Mitie on 30 November 2020 and contributed a full twelve months of trading from
I April 2021 to 31 March 2022, but only four manths of trading in the year ended 31 March 2021, The Group disposed of the Document Management
business and the operations in the Nordics and Poland in the year ended 31 March 2022. The results of these operations have been removed from
Business Services and Technical Services respectively and induded within discontinued operations. All financial information reported below is for

‘continuing operations' and is stated before other items.

Business Services

Business Services delivers Cleaning, Security and Office Services. Business Services has also been
responsible for Mitie's rapid-response COVID-related UK Government contracts across testing centres
and quarantine services and, more recently security for hotels accommodating Afghan refugees. On

| Apeil 2021, Business Services integrated several hundred contracts from the former Business & Induswry
division of Interserve, including sizeable contracts with the BBC, B&Q and TfL. The Business Services
healthcare (hospital} contracts were transferred to Communities from | April 2021 to create a focused
Healthcare business unit and are therefore excluded from the Business Services comparative figures.

Performance highlights

Business Services, fm FY22 FY2l Change, %
Revenue 152 1023 49%
Security' 1,127 709 59%
Cleaning 395 314 26%
Operating profit before other items 108 48 125%
Operating profit margin before
other items, % 71% 47%  Ll4ppt
Total order book £1.7bn £1.7bn -
Number of employees 38,092 40782 (D%

| Document Management was sold on 30 September 2021 and s excluded from
‘continuing operations. The retained Office Services operations of Vetting and

Frent of House are reported within Security

Performance highlights

© Revenue growth of 49% to £1.522m (FY2I: £1,023m) including £425m

of rapid-response, flexible COVID-related revenue (FY2): £132m);

. underlying revenue growth of 11%
© Operating profit was 125% ahead of FY2| at £/08m, boosted by
higher margin short-term, flexible COVIDrelated contracts

© Up to £1.3bn TCV of new, renewed, or extended contracts induding
BBC, TFL, JLL. AS Watson, Broadway Bradford and Stansted Alrport

© Acquisition of leading Counter Surveillance Measures specialist,
Esoteric. on 17 Novernber 2021

© Outstanding Security Performance Awards — Outstanding Contract
Security Company {Guarding) {Feb 2022); Fire & Security Matters

— Security Guarding Company of the year (April 2022): Cleaning

Excellence Awards — Sustainable Company of the Year (Nov 2021)

Operational performance

Business Services had a very strong year supporting the UK Governmenit

with rapid response, flexible COVID-related services responding to

increased demand for deep deans from existing customers, and winning

new contracts.

Mitie Group plc
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49%

Revenue growth

125%

Operating profit before other
items growth

£1.3bn

FY22 new contract wins,
renewals and extensions

COVID-related contracts contributed revenue of £429m in the year
(FY2L: £132m). Mitie mobilised almost 300 testing centres and mobile
sites, assisting in the testing of |2 million members of the public, and
erplaying 10,000 people. in addition, Mitie provided security services to
‘Red kst” hotels — securing 70 hotels at the peak. with 1.500 officers, and
conducted 2.5m hame visits for travellers returming from ‘Amber list’
countries, training 4,000 officers. All of these contracts have now ended.

Business Services won £0.50n TCV of new contracts and projects,
including BAE Systems, Hitachi Rail, Westfield shopping centres, WFP
Group and Hyundai, alongside £0.8bn TCV of renewals or extensions,
induding Marks & Spencer, AS Watson and NFU Mutual,

in fine with the Group's strategy to lead in the *Stience of Service, in the
second half of the year, Business Services launched "Mitie Intelligence
Services, which is a risk assurance solution that integrates intefigence.
technology and people. intelligence Services supports custorners to
build risk-based security strategies 10 pratect their businesses. The
Cleaning & Hygiene Centre of Excellence was opened earlier this year,
showscasing demand-led deaning through Merlin sensar technology,
new technologies, robotics and products such as 'Citrox Protect.,

which provides cleaning and hygiene reassurance for our customers.
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Financial statements

Central Government & Defence (CG&D)

The CG&D business provides facilities management services across central government and defence
contracts. FY22 includes a full 12 months of Interserve revenue, whereas FY2| only included the

four-month period from | December 2020 to 31 March 2021,

Performance highlights

CGLD, {m Fr21 FY2l Change. %

Revenue including our share of

joint ventures and associates 669 2126 196%
Central Government 379 127 198%
Defence 290 99 193%

Operating profit before other items 38 10 280%

Qperating profit margin before

other items. % 57% 4.4% 1.3ppt

Total order book £l.6bn  £1.2bn 33%

Number of employees 5578 5302 5%

Performance highlights

© Revenue of £669m benefited from in-year contract wins and good
growth in project work in the fourth quarter; the prior year reflects
the fina! four months of FY21, which is historically the strongest
period for CG&D

© Operating profit of £38m benefited from the increase in higher
margin project works in the year, with margins improving to 5.7%

© New contract wins of up to £0.7bn in the year with renewals or
extensions worth £0.3bn (100% retention rate)

© CG&D won the best low carbon capital project with Landmarc
and Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) at the recent
Government Outsourcing Awards. Landmarc designed and buitt
replacement Net Zero accommaodation units reduding our customer's
energy costs and upgrading ageing assets

@ The division also won the IWFM best Collaboration award with DIO
for its work on the International Defence Estate

Operational performance

CGED employs ¢.5,500 employees across 22 contracts and 30
government departments and agencies, at 3,000 locations across the
UK and overseas. This includes the maintenance of the 1% of the

UK land mass that is reserved for the defence training estate,

When Interserve was acquired, our focus was on irvesting in technalogy
and people to deliver operational excellence to cur customers. Mitie has
introduced Aria, Mozaic and new Azure Secure Cloud infrastructure,
and has been rewarded with 100% renewat rates for contracts across
CG&D.

280%

Operating profit. before other
items. growth

196%

Revenue growth

£1.0bn

FY22 new contract wins,
renewals and extensions

CG&D won the DIQ Future Defence Infrastructure Services (FDIS)
contract across Scotland and Northern Irefand; a seven-year deal
worth up to £646m TCV, providing grounds, reactive and scheduled
maintenance services.

In FY22 Mitie was awarded the Overseas Prime Contract for Gibraltar,
a 7-10 year deal worth up to £155-£200m TCV, providing maintenance
and repair to maritime, accommaodation, fuel storage and logistics assets.
Since the year end Mitie has alse been awarded contract extensions in
the South Atlantic Islands until 23 April 2025 (TCV £117m), and Cyprus
until 2| August 2024 (TCV £140m).

Project work across the Central Government portfolio increased in the
final quarter of the year, including for DWF. where Mitie has continued
to add services for customers looking to manage 'back to work'
initiatives post COVID, and with decarbonisation projects to assist

the Government in achieving their 2050 decarbenisation target.

Our 'Mitie First’ strategy, insourding services formerly provided by third
parties, resuited in £20m of cross-sell revenue synergies.

CGE&D has pre-qualified for the latest {£4bn) framework RM6232 which
offers significant opportunities for growth. A number of new bids are in
train, on which final decisions are awaited.

Mitie Group plc 55
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Operating review — Our divisional performance
continued

Communities

The Communities division comprises the former Interserve Communities division and Mitie’s Healthcare
business, Essex County Council and PFl contracts. Communities focuses on three sectors: Healthcare,
Education and Campus & Critical. A new management team was put in place at the start of the financial
year with a focus on growing the division and turning around underperforming contracts.

Performance highlights

Communities, £m FY221 FY2l  Change %
Revenue 460 265 74%
Healthcare 225 1S 89%
Education 129 100 29%
Campus & Critical 106 46 130%
Operating profit before other tems 20 16 25%
Operating profit margin before
cther items, % 43% 60% {|.7)ppt
Total order book £3.7bn  £4.0bn 8)%
Number of employees 8,513 8,231 3%

Performance highlights

© Revenue of £460m increased 74% (FY2I: £265m) reflecting an
uplift from a full 12 month contribution from Interserve contracts

@ Operating profit increased to £20m (FY2I: £1é6m) following the
inclusion of twelve months of interserve. However, this is at lower
margin which is reflected in the year-on-year margin decline

© New wins and renewals of £0.1bn TCV across Haspitals (John
Raddiffe, Oxford) and Education (Swansea University)}

Operational performance

The Communities division operates over 100 contracts. Within the
former Interserve PFl contracts there are eight underperforming
contracts, which impact the overalt performance of the Communities
division. During FY22, a turnaround plan was implemented, including
new account management to oversee an improvement in undertying
trading performance alongside longer-term structural changes.
Financially these contracts are currently loss-making, and, as highlighted
inthe FY'21 Annual Report and Accounts, provisions have been made
for the forecast net losses over the remaining terms of the contracts,
which totalled £i3m at 31 March 2022 after the utilisation of £5m in
FY22. Whilst Communities made good progress in FY22, thereis
further work to be done to bring the handful of remaining loss-making
contracts up to and beyond the ‘break-even’ point.
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74%

Revenue growth

25%

Operating profit before other
items growth

£0.1bn

FY22 new contract wins,
renewals and extensions

Qperationally, good progress has been made during the year, with the
Communities division focused on implementing standardised Mitie
processes into its contracts. particularly across the former Interserve
portfolio, and improving customer relationships. This investment has led
10 improved operational compliance. with compliance performance now
in line with the rest of the Group while also redudng the maintenance
backlog, predominantly in the former Interserve portfolio, by akmost
80%. This investrment and the ability 1o leverage Mitie's Technical
Services expertise to deliver operational excellence for our customers
was ane of the key opportunities to add value when Interserve

was acquired.

The division has made good technokogical progress in FY22 through the
‘Science of Service' implernenting remate sensor technology (which
provides an [T solution for real time updates on deaning and portering)
across fve hospital contracts, and introducing robotic deaning (Watford
Hospital) and advanced LV cleaning (Hinchingbrocke).

During the year the Communities division invested in a new leadership
team including a focus on business development and sales, with a
particular focus on experience with kxcal authorities where there

are good growth opportunities.
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Technical Services

Financial statements

Technical Services is a leading supplier of technical services and project delivery to a range of
predominantly private sector customers, with an increasing focus on providing customers with solutions
to their Green Energy, Decarbonisation, Connected Workspace and Mobile Telecoms challenges.

From | April 2021, Technical Services incorporated contracts from the former Business & Industry
division of Interserve, and Essex County Council and PFl contracts were transferred to Communities.
The Technical Services comparative figures have been adjusted accordingly.

Performance highlights

Technical Services, fm FY22 FY2l  Change. %
Revenue 973 751 30%
Maintenarce 829 619 34%
Projects 144 132 9%
Operating profit before cther items 30 It 173%
Operating profit margin before
ather items, % 0%  15%  Léppt
Total order book £1.7bn £1.6bn 6%
Number of employees 9029 10073  (10)%

Performance highlights

© Revenue of £973m, up 30% as customers recovered from the impact
of COVID, the full year impact of revenue from former Interserve
Business & Industry contracts, acquisitions and new wins

© Operating profit of £30m almost trebled (FY2I: £11m}) driven by the
increased revenue, cost savings and synergies

© £0.6bn TCV new wins including projects {City of Edinburgh
Council and Legal & General): £0.5bn TCV of retentions (Network
Rail, Eatan) .

© The creation of one of the UK's largest telecoms support service:
tompanies following the successful acquisition of DAEL Ventures UK,
P2ML (April 2022) and 8pointd (May 2022)

© The acquisition of Rock Power Connections, growing our presence in
the provision of electric vehide charging points and establishing a core
competency in the connection of high voltage networks to the grid

Operational performance

Technical Services has been the division most impacted by COVID with
a significant decline in variable and project works as buildings remained
closed or ynderutilised, The Maintenance business is now significantly
ahead of pre-COVID levels, with a steady improvement in work
volurnes during FYY22 as our customers returned 10 their places of work
and transport providers such as airports and rail networks saw a steady
increase in passengers. As highlighted at the hall year, the Frojects
business remained challenging in line with the wider market. As a result,
it made shower progress than expected, as material shortages and high
material prices caused customers to delay projects meaning that the
business iz not yet back to pre-COVID levels of activity.

30%

Revenue growth

173%

Operating profit before other
items growth

£].1bn

FY22 new contract wins,
renewals and extensions

Technical Services continues io be at the ferefront of our "Science of
Service’ ambitions using our leading edge technology to set us apart
from our competitors by optimising employee wellbeing, enhancing
estate intelligence and providing smart decarbonisation and green
energy solutions. Connected Workspace is a eritical component of our
new wins and scope expansion with existing custormers as they adapt to
new, hybrid ways of working. There are now 11,000 desk sensors being
remotely monitored to book desks and 78,000 triggered alarms were
dealt with remotely — saving engineer journeys. Our UV disinfection
system technology has been installed in ten customers ensuring a safe
working environment.

Technical Services won £0.6bn (TCV) of contracts with Costa,
BAE Systemns and Legal & General, enhanced service offerings to
Amazon and Primark and extended terms with Network Rail,
Scottish Government, Sky and Red Bull.

Cur strategic focus of investing in sectors facusing on high growth
businesses such as telecoms services and decarbonisation saw us
complete the acquisition of DAEL Ventures UK and Rock Power
Connections. Following the acquisition of two other telecoms services
companies in early FY23, PZML and 8point8, Mitie is now one of the
largest Telecoms Support Services businesses in the UK, with capability
to support all aspects of cell site acquisition. design. construction, and
ongoing site maintenance,

The growth of cur decarbonisation offering for our customers was
enhanced by the acquisition during the year of Rock Power Connections
- a high voltage connections and electric vehicle charging installation
company. Technical Services has also grown energy-related revenues
through decarbonisation projects for Lioyds Banking Group, Rolls—
Royce, and Royal Mail.
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Operating review — Qur divisional performance
continued

Specialist Services

The Specialist Services division encompasses Care & Custody. Landscapes and Waste, with the addition

of Interserve’s Spanish operations.

Performance highlights

Specialist Services, {m FY22 FY2l  Change. %
Revenue 373 264 4%
Care & Custody 136 105 25%
Landscapes 55 50 10%
Spain 105 31 139%
Waste 7 74 4%
Operating profit before cther items 33 24 37%
Operating profit margin before
otheritems, % 8.8% 9.4% (03)ppt
Totat order book £0.8bn  £0.7bn 14%
Number of employees 10,118 8,892 14%

Performance highlights

© Revenue of £373m was 41% higher than the same period last year
(FY21: £264m) and operating profit of £33m was 37% ahead of the
prior year (FY21: £24m) including a full 12 months of Interserve’s
Spain operations and good growth across each business unit

© Care & Custody revenue increased by 25%, following new
contract wins

© Landscapes won £5tm TCV of new contracts or renewalsfextensions.
This includes £3m of contracts formerly subcontracted by Interserve

© Spain revenue of £105m boosted by full year impact (as prior year
comparator only induded four months of results), but also good
underlying performance due to rapid response COVID-related work
at numerous airports

® Waste showed steady growth driven by contract wins and recovery
in footfalf .

Operational performance

Care & Custody contract wins for Dungavel immigration Remawal
Centre (IRC) {TCV £66m over eight years) and Derwentside IRC (TCV
£im over two years) were both successfully mobised in HI FY22 with
service delivery commencing in H2 FY22. During H2 FY 22, a comtract
extension was also secured for Heathrow IRC unti November 2023.
Within Police Services, in H2 FY22 new contracts were secured with
Derbyshire Police, Lincolnshire Police and South West Police consortium
(service delivery for all to commence in FY23). Contracts with British
Transport Police and Leicestershire Police were successfully renewed in
FY22, while extensions were secured for Greater Manchester Police.
Cheshire Police, South Wales Police and Staffordshire Police.

These contract wins, renewals and extensions are being driven by

our high-quality innovative service offerings which are supported by
technology, information sharing and social value offerings, Care &
Custody continues to work very dosely with the Home Office to ensure
a flexible approacdh to help deal with the challenges in immigration
services, including the ramp up of services to deal with the increasing
volume of small boat arrivals on the South Coast.
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41%

Revenue growth

37%

Operacing profit before other
items growth

£0.3bn

FY22 new contract wins,
renewals and extensions

Care & Custody is well placed to benefit from a buoyant pipeline
including prisons management, a key growth market in the Justice

sector with a total pipeline of £2.5bn. During H2 FY22, Care & Custedy
commenced the submission of prisons management bid proposals on

a targeted basis.

Landscapes reported steady growth in the period, driven by both net
wins and the acquisition in the second half of Biotecture, a specialist in
designing, building and maintaining “iving walls' for interior and exterior
urban landscapes. Landscapes won £33m TCV of new contracts or
projects, with £i8m of renewals or extensions. This included insourcing
£3m of contracts from the former imterserve business, including at
DWP and supparting CG&D on the FDIS contract, allowing expansion
into Scotland and Northern Ireland with a footprint stretching to 11,500
sites. Renewals in the peried induded Amazon, Co-op. West Midlands
Trains and NHS Property Services. Since joining Mitie, Biotecture has
secured £0.3m with Canary Wharf Management associated with the
opening of the Elizabeth line, with further works completed for South
West Trains, enhancing sustainability at a number of stations.

Spain performed well with revenue and margin ahead of last year
benefiting from additional rapid response COVID -related activities,
particularly at airport operator AENA.

Waste revenue was 4% ahead of prior year driven by new contract

wins for Af Blakemore, testing centres and Magnox, the insourding of
services previously sub-contracted by Interserve, mainty Communities
and CG&D such as DEFRA, and additional recovery acress contracts as
foatfall improved. During the year Waste saw a rationalisation of sites
across NHS Trust contracts, however new wins with FOIS, BAE Systems,
Wincariton, NHS Nottingham and Hammerson are all being mobilised in
the first quarter of FY23, supporting future growth.
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Finance review

Afternative Performance Measures

The Group presents its resufts as those of
continuing operations, before other items.
Management believes this is useful for users

of the financial statements, providing both a
balanced view of the finandal staterments, and
relevant information on the Group's financial
performance. Accordingly, the Group separately
reports impairment of goodwill, cost of
restructuring programmes, acquisition and
disposat related costs (induding the impairment
and amortisation of acquisition related intangible
assets), gains or losses on business disposals and
other exceptional iterns as ‘other items.

Financial performance

The reported income statement from
continuing operations is set out below:

Continuing operations, £m unlass Restated
. . otherwise specified Fr22 Fya)'2
Strong underlying trading performance and Revere ncluding share of
. . . joint ventures and associates  3,996.8 25288
higher Interserve contribution, boosted oo vevans 39033 29990
by COVID-related contracts, delivered Operating profit before
. . f f h ﬂ d f h other items 166.9 588
significant free cash flow and further povr— @18 (548)
strengthened our balance sheet. Operating profit 21 40
Siron Kirk . Net finance costs (19.8) (17.70)
imon Kirkpatric
Chief Financial Officer Profit/loss) before tax 523 (37
Tax (21.0) (04)
Profiti(loss) after tax N3 (140)
Basic earnings per share
before other items 9.2p llp

Basic earnings/{loss) per share  2.2p  (1.3)p

I, The Group disposed of the Document Management
business and operations in the Nordics and Poland
in HE FY22. The results of these operations are

re-presented within discontinued aperations (see
Note 5 to the consolidated fimancial statements).

2. The comparatives for FY21 have been restated for a
change in acoourting policy related taupfront configuration

and customisation costs incurred in implementing

Software as a Service (5aa5) arrangernents (see Note |

to the consolidated financial statements),
Revenue

Revenue from continuing operations for FY22
of £3,996.8m, inctuding share of revenue from
joint ventures and associates. has increased

by 58% compared with the prior year. This
significart increase prirarily relates to the
acquisition of the Interserve Facilities
Management {Interserve) business, which
contrituted 12 months of revenue in FY22
(FY2l: 4 months), and increased revenue from
the rapid-response COVID-related contracts.
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Finance review
continued

Exchuding Interserve revenue of £1,358.7m
{FY2k: £4499m) and COVID-related contract
revenue of £448.5m (FY21: £155.3m). revenue
fram continuing operations has grown by
£266.0m (14%) in FY22. This growth has been
driven by wins in Business Services and a
recovery in Technical Services, which was the
division hardest hit by the COVID pandemic

in the prior year, albett it is not yet back to
pre-COVID levels. The rapid-response, flexible
COVID-related contracts were largely complete
by the end of FY22.

Operating profit

Operating profit from continuing operations
before Gther items was £166.9m (FY2I:
£58.8m), an increase of £108.1m (184%) from
FY2l. This increase was primarily a resuft of the
full year effect of the acquisition and integration
of the Interserve business, with the delivery of
£30.2m of associated cost synergies in FY22
(FYZI: £5.0rm), and an increased contribution
from the flexible, rapid-response COVID-
related contracts of £59.6m (FY21: £12.0m).

These improvements have been supplemented
by a growth in profit from net wins in the year,
and have been partly offset by an increase in
share-based payments charges for management
incentives, reflecting the stronger outlook for
the business now that it has emerged from the
COVID pandemic. The operating profit margin
before other items from continuing operations
increased 10 4.2% in the year (FY21: 2.3%).

due to the growth in higher margin, flexible,
rapid-response COVID-related contracts,
inareased delivery of project works in CG&D.
and the ongoing recovery of variable and project
works in Technical Services. Excluding COVID-
related contracts, the operating profit margin
before other items from continuing operations
for FY22 was 3.0%.

After arcounting for £(94.6)m of other
iterns (FY2I: £{54.8)m). operating profit
from continuing operations was £72.1m
{FY2I: €40m).

Corporate overheads

Corporate overheads represent the costs of
running the Group and indude costs for central
functions such as commercial and business
development, finance, marketing, legal and HR.
Corporate overhead costs have increased to
£61.40 in FY22 (FY21: £50.3m). The increase
reflects the absorption of central costs from
Intersecve, higher acoruals for share-based
incentive schemes based on the improved
outiook and temporary pay reductions guring
COMID in the prior period being reinstated,

60 Mitie Group plc
Annval Report and Accounts 2022

Other items

Other items, £m FY22 Fril
Interserve acquisition

related costs (24) (148)
Interserve integration costs (162) (88)
Interserve settlement of

contractual disputes 98 -
interserve completion accounts

adjustment to consideration (45.6) -
Intarserve amortisation

of acquisition related

intangible asscts sy (67
Sub-total - Interserve

ralated other items (73.5) (303)
Workflow optimisation

(Project Forté) (102) (106)
Property transformation 04) (113)
Digital supplier platform {4.4) -
Amortisation of non-

Interserve acquisition related

intangible assets 28 (22)
Other 33 (0%
Sub-total = Non-Interserve

related other items {21.3) (245)
Total other items from

continuing operations

before tax (94.8) {54.8)
Gain on disposal of the

Docurnent Management

busness 160 -
Other ftems related to

discortinued operations 1.0 29
Total other items before tax  (77.8) (51.9)
Tax 20 7

Total other items after tax (79.8) (44.8)

Other items in FY22 resulted from the latter
stages of the Group's transformation programme
(primarily Project Forté and the digital supplier
platform) and acquisitions, which includes costs
assodated with the Interserve acquisition and
integratian, and the gain on disposal of the
Document Management business.

The Interserve related other itemns in FY22
incude an adjustment to consideration of £45.6m
following the conclusion of the completion
accounts process, which is covered further below.
Also included are the costs of resources deployed
to implement the integration, which make up the
majority of the £16.2m of Interserve integration
costs, and the amortisation charge of £19.1m
related to the reduction in the imtangible asset
value of the acquired customer contracts and
relationships. reflecung the passage of time
towards the contracts’ forecast expiry dates.

The acquisition related costs of £2.4mare
one-off professional fees. The £3.8m income

is a resuht of an agreement being reached

on certain contractual disputes related to
pre-acquisition activity.

Non-Interserve related other iterns in FY22
indude the costs of implementing Project Forté
and the digita! supplier platform, both of which
are critical components of the transformation
programme. Project Forté involves the
re-engineering of Technical Services' workfiaw
processes, and is ready for deployment with the
data cut-over currently ongoing. Both projects
will complete in FY23.

Other items from discontinued operations in
FY22 relate to the disposal of the Document
Management business on 30 September 2021,
the disposal of operations in the Nordics and
Polang an { june 2021 and the settfement of
a contractual dispute related to the previous
disposal of the Sodial Housing business. Total
consideration for the Document Management
business (before debt-free/cash-free and
normalised working capital reductions of £3.3m)
was £40.0m, which realised a gain on disposal
of £16.0m.

Net finance costs

Net finance costs from cortinuing operations
increased by 12% to £19.8m in FY22 (FY2I:
€17.7m). The increase was driven by a
combination of the full year effect of the
additional finance costs related to the June
2020 refinancing (which secured a temporary
relaxation of finandal covenants as a result of
COVID) and the accelerated write-off of the
associated arrangement fees when this faclity
was replaced by the new revolving credit facility
(RCF), which was signed in October 2021.
These higher costs were partially offset by the
part-year benefit of the improved terms of the
new RCF.

The new £150m RCF, together with the agreed
refinancing of the US Private Placement (USPF)
notes due to mature in December 2022, are
expected 1o reduce future interest costs by
approximately £3m on an annualised bass from
Decemnber 2022. This will add to the annual
savings of approximately £1m related to the
planned dosure of the Group's customer invoice
discourting facility.

Tax

Profit before tax and other items (from
continuing operations) of £147.1m (FY2L: £41.1m)
resulted in a tax charge of £190m (FY21: £79m),
representing an effective tax rate of 12.9%
(FY20: 192%).

The eflective tax rate for FY22 reflects the
increase in the rate of UK corporation tax from
19% to 25%. with eflect from | April 2023,
which was substantively enacted during FY22.
As a resutt, deferred tax balances (induding
those arising from historical Interserve losses)
have been recalculated using the higher rate
where appropriate, resufting in 2 £9:0m tax
¢redit before other items related to an increase
in net deferred tax assets. i the impact of the
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tax rate change was excluded, the tax charge

on profit before other items from continuing
operations would be £28.0m, representing an
effective tax rate of 19.0% which is broadly in
line with FY2|. The effective tax rate is expected
10 be below the headline corporation tax rate
over the next year, as tax losses are converted
into deferred tax assets.

Including other items, the tax charge from
continuing operations was £21.0m (FY2I:
£0.4m), which equates 10 an effective tax rate
of 40.2% for FY22. The tax charge for other
itemns from continuing operations of £2.0m
comprises a tax credit of £6.1m related to other
items before tax, and a tax charge of £8.Imin
respect of the tax rate change resulting in an
increase in the deferred tax liabilities related to
acquired intangible assets. The tax credit refated
to other tems before tax represents a low
effective tax rate of 6.4%, primarily due to the
non-tax deductible nature of certain other
iterns charges,

Mitie is a significant contributor of reverwes
to the UK Exchequer. paying £864.3m in the
year (FY2l: £640.0m). Of this total, £148.0m
relates to taxes borne by Mitie (principally
UK corporation tax and employer’s National
Insurance contributions) and £716.3m relates
1o taxes collected by Mitie on behalf of the
UK Exchequer {principally VAT, income

tax under PAYE and empioyees” National
Insurance contributions).

The Group paid corporation tax of £16.2m in
the year (FY2I: £1.0m). of which £14.Im was
paid in the UK and £2.1m overseas,

Joint ventures and associates

Operating profit for FY22 indudes Mitie's share
of the results of joint ventures and assodiates
that were acquired as part of the Interserve
transaction, net of tax. £6.6m (FY21: £19m) was
reported within operating profit before other
items, and a charge of £24m (FY2I: £1.2m)

was reported in other items for amortisation

of acquired intangible assets.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share before other items
from continuing operations increased
significantly 10 9.2p (FY24: 3.1p). Thisisas a
result of the higher profit before tax, driven by
the higher operating profit before other items
noted above, combined with the lower effective
tax rate.

Basic earnings per share from continuing
aperations was 2.2p (FY2I: loss per share of
(1.3)p). with the increase reflecting the factors
outlined above. partially offset by the impact of
the higher level of other items in FY22.

Financial statements

Return on invested capital (ROIC)

Continuing operations, £m unless Restated
otherwise specified FY22 FY2)
Operating profit before

other items 166.9 588
Tax? (21.5) (113)
Operating profit before

other items after tax 145.4 475
Invested capital 486.6 5767
ROIC? 299%  82%

| Re-presented for discontinued operations, restated for
Software as a Service (SaaS) accounting and invested
capital for Interserve restaternents.

2 Tax charge has been calouated at the effective tax rate
for the year on pre-tax profits before other items for
continuing uperations of 12.9% (FY21: 19.2%).

3 The ROIC imetric used for the purposes of the Enchanced
Delivery Plan (EDP) requires further adjustments under
the detailed rues agreed with shareholders,

ROIC {before cther items, on continuing

operatians) has increased to 299% in FY22

(FY21: 8.2%), with the increase due to a

combination of the significantly stronger

operating profit before cther items, the lower
eflective tax rate and the lower invested capital,

The lower invested capital primardy refates to

the ongoing impravernents to working capital

made in FY22, and a £45.6rm reduction in the
receivable related 1o the Interserve completion
accounts process (see below).

Balance sheet

Restated'
£m Fri2 FY2l
Goodwill and intangible
assets 560.2 5558
Property, planit and
equipment 1439 1179
Interests in joint ventures and
associates 1.9 1.0
Working capital balances (239.2) (i66.2)
Pravisions (117.0) (123.6)
Net cash/(debt) 267 (887)
Net retirement benefit
tiabilities (122) (425)
Deferved 1ax (N 198
QOther net assets 404 720
Total net assets 4258 3575

1. The comparatives for FY21 have been restated for
measurement period inrespectofthe
Interserve accpisition (see Nates 2 and 30 to the
corsolidated finandal staternents) and a change in
accoumting poficy refated foupfiront configuration and
austomisation oosts incurred in implementing Software
as.2 Service (53a5) arrangernents (see Note | tothe
consobdated finandial statements).

Overall, the Group reported net assets of
€425.8mat 31 March 2022, whichis an inarease
of £68.3m campared with 31 March 2021, driven
mainly by the retained profit for the year from
continuing and discontirued operations of
£50.7m. which resufted in a significantly improved
net cash/{debt) balance, combined with a £30.3m
reduction in net retirement benefit abilities.

Property, plant and equipment has increased by
£260m, prirmarily as a result of ertering leases
for new properties, induding the new Technical
Services Operatians Centre (TSOC) in
Manchester: The majarity of this increase were
not cash costs in FY22, as they relate to future
lease commitments which must be recorded as
lease Fabilties on the balance sheet under IFRS 16,
together with the related assets. The new leases
therefore have no initial impact on net assets.
The reduction in working capital balances and net
retirement benefit liabilities, together with the
changes related to the acquisition of Interserve,
are explained betow,

Acquisition of Interserve

The acquisition of Interserve was completed on

30 November 2020. At 31 March 2021, provisional
values were reported for the acquisition
accourting, induding £3.3m for goodwell, which was
based on £138.7m for the acquired identifiable net
assets and fiabikties on the balance sheet, and total
consideration of £142.0m.

The £1420m comprised £199.6m of consideration
paid to the seller {£105.0m cash paid and £94.6m
shares issued) less an adjustment for management's
best estimate of the amounts due badk to Mitie of
£57.6m (subsequently revised down to £52.7m).
The £576m was the amount daimed by Mitie
under the completion accounts mechanism in the
Share Purchase Agreement (SPA), for which a
correspording receivable was recognised on the
balance sheet at 31 March 2021, Given that the
SPA terms related to the completion accounts
mechanism were complex and would be the
subject of a commercial negotiation and, in the
absence of an agreement, an expert determination
process, the estimated value of the receivable was
inherently uncertain. As previously disclosed, it was
therefore recognised that the final amount agreed
could be materizlly different from the estimate.

Under IFRS, the value of goodwill must be finalised
within a 12-month measurement period from the
date of acquisition (the Measurement Period).
which was 27 November 202| in the case of
Interserve. Adjustments were made during the
Measurement Period reducing the value attributed
to the net assets acquired by £7.7m, from £138.7m
1o £131.0m, This change was predominantly due to
an increase in provisions for certain Pl contracts,
where new information had been received about
facts and drcumstances that existed as at the
acquisition date.
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The provisional value of consideration was also
revised during the Measurement Period. reducing
the £57.6m cormpletion accounts receivable to
£52.7m, with a corresponding adjustmertt of £43m
being made to increase the total consideration
from £1920rm 10 £1469m.

As a result of these two adjustments, 1o reduce the
value of the net assets acquired by £77m. and to
increase the consideration by £4.9m, gocdwill on
the acquisition of Interserve was inareased by
£12.6m 1o £159m.

Subsequent to the end of FY22, the expert
determination relating to the £52.7m completion
accounts daim has conduded. Following the
expert’s determination, for which the expert
sought 2 legal opinion in relation 1o the
interpreétation of the complex SPA requirements,
an agreement was reached for the seller to pay
£7.1mto Mitie, of which £1.1m was settled during
H2 FY22 and £6.0m was settled in May 2022 As
the Measuremenit Period had already ended, the
consequent £45.6m reduction in the recevable
could nat be adjusted against acquisition goodwill,
and 5o has been recognised as a charge inthe
consalidated ncome statement and dassified as
other itéms.

Further details on the acquisition of Interserve
are set ut in Note 30 to the consolidated
finandal staternents.

Change in accounting policy

During FY22. Mitie has changed its accounting
policy such that distinct upfront configuration
and customisation costs incurred in
implementing Software as a Service (5aa$)
arrangements are generally now recognised
as operating expenses when the services

are received, rather than capitalised as
intangible assets.

This change in accounting policy foillows the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (JFRIC) agenda decision clarifying
its interpretation of how current accounting
standards apply to these types of arrangement.

As a result of the change in accounting policy.
the income statement and balance sheet for
prior periods have been restated, resulting in
an increase in operating profit and profit after
tax of £0.5m and £0.4m respectively for FY21,
and a reduction in intangible assets of £5.7m
and £52mat | April 2020 and 31 March 2021
respectively. As a consequence of the accounting
policy change. the restated cash generated
from cperations for FY2! decreased by £09m.
with a ¢corresponding decrease in cash used in
investing activities.
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Provisions

Provisions at 3| March 2022 largely comprise
contract specific costs of £56.3m, the insurance
reserve of £26.0m and pension provisions of
£237m. Provisions have reduced by £6.6m
during the year. largely reflecting the utilisation
of provisions related to contract specific costs.

Retirement benefit schemes

Net retiremnent benefit liabilities have reduced
1o £12.2m at 31 March 2022 (31 March 202I:
£42 5m), principally due to Mitie's contributions,
scherme investment returns and an increase in
the discount rate related to movements in
corporate bond yields.

The net liabilities at 31 March 2022 indude a
net accounting surplus of £1.6m (FY2I: surplus
of £3.0m) for a scheme acquired with the
Interserve business. There is also an accounting
surplus related 1o a pension scheme within a
joint venture acquired with Interserve, Mitie's
£3.8m share of which is reported within
interests in joint ventures and associates on

the balance shest.

The latest funding valuation of the Mitie Group
defined benefit scheme as at 31 March 2020,
indicated an actuarial deficit of £32.Im. The
Group has agreed a deficit recovery plan

with the trustees totalling £92.8m over seven
years, of which £21,5m had been paid to

31 March 2022

An initial funding valuation as at 3| December
2020 for the main scheme acquired with
Interserve was received during the year.
which indicated an actuarial deficit of £1.6m.

Gavernment support

During FY22, the Group participated in the

UK Government’s Coronavirus job Retention
Scheme (CJRS) until the scheme finished on

30 September 2011. However. in FY22 the
Group fully repaid sums received under the
CJRS refating to all furloughed colleagues
employed directly at Mitie's own operations
(£4.)m), which was acorwed i FY21. No further
daims were made in respect of these colieagues

during FY22.

Cash flow and net debt

Restated
m Fr22 Frav
Operating profit before
other items (continuing
operations) 166.9 588
Add back: depreciation,
amortisation & impairment 516 45.1
EBITDA before other items
{continuing operations) 2185 1039
Other movements {induding
other items) {14.6) (28.6)
Working capital movermerits 600 (364)
Cash generated from
operations 2639 389
Capex, capial leases, interest
& other {131.1) (634)
Free cash inflow/(outfiow) 1328  (24.5)
Rights issue - 1904
Acquisitions & disposals 50 (840)
Dividend paid (5.7) -
Lease liabilities & other (187) (15.6)
Dacrease in net debt during
the year 1134 663
Closing net cash/(debt) 267  (867)
Average net (debt) (24 (47.1)
Leverage ratic’ 0.1x 0.5x

1. The Group dispasad of the Document Management
business and operations in the Nerdies and Poland
inHI FY22. The resuits of these operations are
re-presented within discontinued operations.

2. The comparatives for FY21 have been restaied for a
change in acgounting pelicy related to upfront, configuration
and customisation costs inourred inim| ing Software
as.a Service (3325) arrangements (seeNote | o the
torsokdated firandal statements).

3. Leverage ratio is calulated as average daly net debt/
ESTDA befors other items on continuing operations.
Free cash inflow for FY22 was £132.8m, an
increase of £157.3m compared with FY21. This
significant improvement was driven by operating
profit before other items, which increased by
£108.tm due to the factors noted above, and
continued improvements in working capital.
The cash inflow from working capital of £60.0m
in FY22, compares favourably with an outflow of
£36.4m in FY21. This improvement was driven
primarily by a two-day reduction in days sales
outstanding (DSO) in the year (approximately
£29m inflow), following ongoing improvements
to our application bifling and aged debt reporting
processes, an increase of approximately £10m
inthe accrual for incentrves as a resuft of the
strong Group performance, and a small cash
inflow fram working capital as a result of the
overall growth in the business (approximately
£8m impact). The customer invoice discounting
facility gave rise to a net £12.8m cash inflow due
10 the timing of receipts, partially offset by a
reduction in utilisation as part of the wind down
ta dosure of the faality.
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These improvements within cash generated
from operations were partially offset by cash
outfiows from 'Other movements” and 'Capex,
capital leases, interest & other”

Other movements of £i4.6m include a cash
outflow from other items of £26.8m, which
largely relates to incremental roles and
professional fees associated with implementing
the Interserve integration, Project Forté and

the digital supplier platform, and professional
fees related to other acquisitions. This is partialiy
offset by the add back of the non-cash
share-based payments expense.

Capex, capital leases, interest and other resulted
in a cash outflow of £134.1m. Capex of £35.6m
is higher than in the prior year due to Interserve
integration spend and Project Forté capex.
Capital lease repayments have increased by
£5.8m to £€33.9m in the year as a resutt of the
increase in the size of the vehicle fleet post-
acquisition of Interserve, and interest paid of
£17.5m has remained broadly flat year on year.
Tax paid in the year was £16.2m.

Capex, capital leases, interest and other also
includes a £13.8m cash outflow related to the
purchase of 22.9m of Mitie's own shares, for
the employee benefit trust (EBT), related to
the expected future vesting of share-based
payrnent schemes.

The acquisitions and disposals in FY22 resulted
in a net inflow of £5.0m, with the cash

inflow from the disposal of the Document
Management business (gross proceeds of £40m:
before debt-free/cash-free and normalised
working capital reductions of £3.3m) more than
offsetting the cash outflow on the acquisitions of
DAEL Ventures LUK, Rock Power Connections,
Biotecture and Esoteric.

The interim dividend dedared for HI FY22
amounted to £5.7m and was paid in
February 2022.

Lease liabilities and other movemnants of £18.7m
for FY22 largely relate to lease liabilities for
new properties, including the new TSOC

in Manchester. Cther movements in FY2I
primarily comprised lease liabilities of £14.2m
acquired with the Interserve business, such as
the vehidle fleet.

In the first half of FY23, a net cash outflow is
expected as a resutt of unwinding the customer
invoice discounting facility (see below),
accounting for the three new acquisitions,
paying the dividend and commencing the

share buyback programme.

Net debt

Awverage daily net debt of £24.7m for FY22 was
£22.4m lower than in FY21, despite the £9|m
beneftt in FY2 of taxes deferred under HMRC s
Time To Pay' (TTFP} scheme (which were repaid
by the end of FY2}). Exduding the beneft of TTP,
average net debt in FY22 improved by £113m.

This resuited in a leverage ratio (average daily net
debt / EBITDA before cther iterms on continuing
operations) of G.ix for FY22 (FY21: 0.5x).

Average nel debil will increase in FY23 as a resuft
of dosing the customer invoice discourting facility
and implementing the acquisition, dividend and
share buyback plans.

The Group reported dosing net cash of £26.7m
at 31 March 2022 (FY2I: net debt of £86.7m),
refiecting strong cash generation from the
business in the year.

Tota! Financial Obligations (TFO)

im Fr21 Y21
Net (cash)/debt (26.7) 867
Customer invoice

discounting faclity #5517
Net retirement benefit

liabilities 122 425
Total Financial Obligations

(TFO) 300 1809

TFO for FY22 fell significantly, benefiting from
strong cash generation from the enlarged
business, together with a reduction in the net
retirement benefit liabilities.

Since year end, the Group has begun to wind
down its customer invaice discounting facility,

as part of its intention to simplify its financial
arrangerments and ensure its fadlities are used

as efficiently as possible. While TFO will remain
broadly unchanged, this is expected to increase
average net debt by approximately £45m and
reduce finance costs by approximately £lm each
year. In addition, this is expected to increase the
Group's reported DSO by approximately 4 days.

Liquidity and covenants

At 31 March 2022 the Group had £301.5m of
committed funding arrangements. These comprised
a £150.0m RCF, which was signed in October 2021
with a maturity date of 2025, and £151.5m of
USPP notes. In Novernber 2021, a delayed funding
agreement was entered into for the refranding

of the £121.5m USPP notes due to mature in
December 2022, with £1200m of new notes to be
issued on more favourable terms, with 8- 12 year
maturities, commencing in December 2022 The
rermaining £30m of USPP notes are due to mature
in December 2024,

With effect fram 10 June 2021, DBRS Morningstar
assigned Mitie a credit rating of BBB witha

'stable’ outlooic.

Under the terms of Mitie's new and renegctiated
fadilities, Mitie’s two key covenant ratios are now
calaulated on a post-IFRS 16 basis, with appropriate
adjustrnents for leases. The oovenant ratios are
leverage (ratio of consolidated total net borrowings
1o adjusted consolidated EBITDA) and interest cover
{ratio of consolidated EBITDA to consolidated

net finance costs), with a masdrmum of 30x and
minmum of 40x respectively.

Financial statements

At 31 March 2022 the Group was operating well
within these ratios at <0x covenant leverage and
16.2x imterest cover; A reconciiation of the
calasations is set out in the table below:

m Frii FY2l

Operating profic before

other items'

Add: depraciation,
amortisation &
impairment’

Headline EBITDA!

Add: covenanit
adjustments? 19.9
IFRS 16 EBITDA
adjustment? (FY2I only) -
Leases adjustrent?
(FY22 orwards)
Consolidated EBITDA
Full-year effect of
acgursitions & disposals
Adjusted consalidated
EBITDA {b) 2032 1279
Next finance costs' 197 174
Less: covenant
adjustraents
IFRS 16 finance costs
adjustment? (FY21 only) —
Leases adjustment®
{FY22 onwards)

Consglidated net finance

costs (¢ 127 123

Incerest caver {ratio of

(ORI

Net {cash)/debt

Impact of hedge
accounting and
upfront fees i.5 8
IFRS 16 net debt
adjustent® (FY2I only)
Leases adjustment®
(FY22 onwards)
Accounting policy
change for recognition
of BACS -

Consolidated total net

{cash)

Covenant leverage (ratio

of (d) to (b))

1. Continuing and discontinued operations.

2. Covenant adjustments to EBITDA relate to
share-based payments charges, and pansion
adiministration expenses and past service costs,

. IFRS 16 adopted in financial covenants from
FY21 onwards.
4. Leases adpustment for EBITDA. refates to

depreciation charge for (eased assets and interest
charge lor lease liabilities.
5. Leases adjustment for net (inance costs relates
to interest charge for lease liabilities.
6. Leases adjustrnent for net cash relates to
lease Habikties,

1698 634

5.8 469
216 1103

222

(28.0)

@63 -
() 2052 1045

(20 2334

(20 (1.8

33

{4.0) -

8.5
86.7

16.2x
(26.7)

- (106.4)

{122.5) -

(5.6)
(225)

(dy (147.7)

<Ox <0Ox

w
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Leaving a desk job and getring

inte a hands-on preblem-solving
role has been great. and just what

| hoped it would be. The variety

is my favourite part of the job.
along with getting to see what the
customer does on the shop floor as
they make the cars, and ultimately
making the customer happy!

Evie Maloy.
Maintenance and Operaticns Engineering
Technician Appreniice. Mitie
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Effective risk management

Our risk management approach
During FY22, Mitie’s approach ta risk
management has continued to advance.

The recent launch of Mitie's automated risk
management toof has enabled full transparency
of risks across the Group and ensured that

a substantially enhanced approach to risk
management is adopted throughout the
business. More information s available on

page 68,

Mitie’s risk management process is simple and
aligned with the Group's operating model. Each
business area is responsible for the continual
management of existing and emerging risks,

both in the context of threats and opportunities.

The following points are pertinent to the
compilation of the Group's principal risks
ang uncertainties:

© The Board is respensible for clearly defining
the level of risk exposure Mitie is willing to
take, and for ensuring that the activities
undertaken to achieve the Group’s strategic
objectives are commensurate with the risk
appetite. The Board is also responsible for
monitoring the amount of risk being taken,
Al principal risks have 2 level of appetite
set which helps determine the actions and
resources required to mitigate them.

Changes to cur risk prefile

& Mitie’s risk management structure is designed
10 ensure a consistent approach to the
idertification, assessment, monitoring and
effective mitigation of risks across the
business. All nsks are reported against a
set of criteria, which consider the potential
likelihood and consequence should a risk
be realised.

@ Each business unit. function, project and
account maintains a detailed risk register
wia Mitie’s automated risk management toal,
which includes both risk controls and
ritigation measures, and is approved by
respective leadership teams.

@ Mitie has a rigorous risk reatment mechanism
in place to fadilitate the correct management
of risks where a residual risk score is identified
as being over the stipulated threshold in
terms of either tolerance andfor risk appatite.

© Risk registers are automated arx subject to
continual management reviews.

© The Insurance team plays a pivotal rofe in
assessing key exposures and ensuring
appropriate risk transfer is in place for
insurable rigks.

@ Risk management is approached in a proactive
manaer raking full use of Mitie's Intelligence
Hub, which assists by assessing threats and
identifying potential issues.

© Mitie's internal and external environments
are continuously scanned and monitored to
ensure that any new or emerging risks are
identified in a timely manner and responded
1o appropriately.

© Mitie actively encourages and facilitates
a learning cutture in respect of risk
rmanagement 1o ensure that the Group
constantly improves. remains resilient and
adapts to the continually evolving external
ervironment. In FY2Z, Mitie has continued
to take the learnings from the evolving
COVID-19 pandemic.

& The Group operates in accordance with
150 31000 - Risk Management Guidelines -
and will be seeking formal certification
validating this in FY23,

@ Principal risks are subject to a thorough
review biannually (for the half-year and
full-year financial reporting). with quarterty
updates feeding into the Group Risk
Committee for consideration. The Board
and Audit Cornmittee are actively engaged
throughout the process and provide
challenge. All eutputs from this review are
signed off by the Board. The principal risks
are shown on pages 68 to 77,

@ In assessing Mitie's long-term viability,
consideration is given to the emerging and
principal risks facing the Group. The Viability
Staternent is found on page 83.

Throughout FY22, Mitie has operated against
a badkdrop of contirual uncertainty, The
external landscape has changed rapidly due to
the knock-on effects of COVID-19. Brexit. and
the intensifying focus on dimate change, while
more recently this has been compounded by
rmacroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainties.

Principal risk:

Annual wrend as at | Aprit 2022;

The recovery of economic activity post
COVID-19, has significantly increased inflation
levels, increased globat supply chain disruption,
and in sorne ¢ircumstances resutted in
significant legislative changes, all of which have
the potential to impact the Group's operations.
The following changes have been made to
Mitie's principal risk profile owing 10 this
evolving external landscape:

Cyber security and Increased net risk exposure owing to a material increase in cyber-attacks

data management during FY22.

Health, safety and
environment

Increased net nisk exposure owing to increased project/construction,
design and management (CDM) related activities combined with continued

uncertainty relating to COVID-|9.

Employees Increased net risk exposure owing to ongoing labour market pressures
and inflation.

Third-party Increased net risk exposure owing to material price rises, an ingrease in

management the number of suppliers following the integration of Interserve Facilities

Management (Inerserve), cambined with issues from COVID- (9 and Brexit.
which contimse to compound the risk.

Buring FY22, Mitie has retired the principal
risk relating to the Interserve FM integr ation
following the successfid completion of afl
integration activities. In FY22 Q4. the Group
undertook a thorough review of the internal
and external landscape looking at a series of
Fisks and opportunities across 3 number of
scenarios including:
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© New risks that have emerged in the external
environment but are associated with the
Group's existing strategy.

© Existing risks that were already known to
the Graup but have developed or been
triggered by changed circumstances.

© Risks that were not previously faced by the
Group, because the risks are assodated with
changes in the Group's operations.

As a result of this review, two new principal
rigks have been introduced. namely growth
through acquisitions, and political and
economic uncertainties.

Emerging risks

In addition to understanding the risks that Mitie
currently faces, there is a continual review of
emerging risks undertaken to ensure the
Group remains operationally resifient and
future strategic planning is not comnpromised.
This review covers both internal and external
environments.

Currerst emerging risks being monftored

include:

@ The evolving complexity and sophistication
of cyber-related attacks and ransomwire
that could directly impact Mitie, customers
or third parties imvolved in Mitie operations.

@ The potential for an insolvency wave and
the impact this could have on customers and
third parties invalved in Mitie operations.

@ The impact of regulatory changes, such as
the potential for new measures related to
audit, corporate reporting and corporate
governance.
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Financial statements

Our risk management framework

Internal reporting

Group level risks

© Collection of risks which could
affect the performance, future
prospects or reputation of the
Group and are subject to ongoing
reviews

© Complementary framework in
place for the management and
ongoing review of Principal Risks
and Uncertainties as agreed by the
Mitie Board

©Risk appetite and associated
parameters established for all risks
and subject to ongoing review

New and emerging risks

© Ongoing review of internal and MB MGX AC RT KRG
external envirgnment encapsulating
new risks in known context, known
risks in new context and new risks

in new context . . .
—> | Business unix, function
and project risks
AC  RT  RC . . .
© |dentify, evaluate and mitigate risks
B s A AL recorded in risk register .
© Report on current and emerging
risks

BUL BR .PL

Account level risks
© Identify. evaluate and mitigate

operational risks recorded in risk
k___) register

@ Report on current and emerging

risks
AL
Conuibutors key:
HE MGx AC AT RC ™ BuL
Mitie Board Mitie Group  Awdit Risk Team Risk Intelligence Business Unit
Executive Committee Committee Hub Leadership
Team

umop do|

Business
Function
Leadership
Team

External reporting

Principal risks
and uncercainties

©Condensed version of Principal
Risks and Uncertainties, which

MB  MGX AC RT RC

has been reviewed and approved
by the Mitie Board and Audit
Committee

Bottom up

A AL
Project Account
Leadership Leadership
Team Team
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued
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Managing risk: ransforming rislk management through the use of automation

In FY22, the Group embarked on a project to
refine risk management across the business
through the use of automated technology:
The ambition was to create software which
would support all Mitie business areas by
providing a means for colleagues to define,
maintain and manage their respective risks,
removing reliance on locally stored templates
and laborious manual intervention, as well

as provide the much-needed oversight

of Group-wide risks. enabling enhanceq

O Automate review of all hazard/pure risks
30 that the Insurance team can ensure
appropriate coverage.

© Examine all risks in fine with Mitie's risk
appetite framework. Where risks exceed
the threshoids, an automated alert will
mandate the completion of additional risk
mitigation measures.

© Access dimate change risks as well 3s afl
other risks and opportunities which could
impact Mitie's ESG agenda.

© Demonstrate full compliance with legistative
requirements as well as those associated
with 15O 31000:2018 Risk Management.

© Support strategic, tactical and operational
decision-making.

@ Facilitate risk reviews at all levels including
overarching principal risk reviews.

monitoring and facilitation of corperate
governance requirements.

In FY22 Q4, this project conciuded with the
successful launch and roll-out of Mitie's own
automated risk management platform. This
new technology has already resulted ina
number of benefits, which are readily available
at the click of a button. These indude the
ability to:

© Access real time risk profiles across
the Group.

@ Cascade risk information to all Mitie
business areas. Similarty, business areas can
escafate risk information ensuring that the
correct management cantrols are put in
place as soon as reasonably practicable.

o Economic and political uncertainties

An inability to quickly identify and effectively respond to the risks
posed from either geopolitical or macreeconomic matters could
adversely impact Mitie. A sudden change in market conditions such
as an economic slowdown or significanc political uncertainty, either
naticnally or globally, could have a negative impact on the demand
for the Group's services.

Mitie’s performance may be afiected by general economic conditions
and other finandal and political factors outside the Group's control.
An economic slowdown may result in decreased project work and
discretionary spend or descoping of services by customers, which
can lead to an impact on the Group’s financial performance.

Post COVID-19. demand for goods and services and economic growth
has started to recover. However, this recovery has caused prices to
increase due to global supply and demand issues. and such pressures
may continue in the medium term. Recent political conflicts have
compounded the risk further with additional price increases being
experienced, for example in relation to fuel and energy.

Mitie drives most of its revenue from i client base in the UK, with
limited exposure to the wider global econony in respect of demand for
services: however, the costs of delivery are expased to global inflationary
impacts. The Group continues 1o monitor the impact of the current
econormic and political challenges on the cost of delivering its services

to ensure mitigating actions, such as using contractual protections to

pass on such cost increases, minimise the Group's exposure 1o this and
associated risks.
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Change in year:

@ & ©

Impacts on surategic pillars:

® ©

Grow Margin Generate Capabilicy
Mitie enhancement cash enablers

Controls and mitigating actions

© Mix of long-term contract pertfolio in both the public and
private sectors.

© Continual development of new and innovative solutions via
Connected Workspace.

@ Focus on higher margin growth opportunities.

@ Regular reviews of the sales pipefine.

© Increasing spread of client base, reducing reliance on
individual custormers.

© Strategic account management programme.

© Dedicated Finance, Risk and Intelligence Hub specialists
scanning environment.

© Lhilising contract mechanisms to recharge cost increases.

© Digital supplier platform (DSP) providing greater visibility of
and abilty to manage supply chain.

© Leveraging buying power 1o help mitigate the increase in cost
of goods and services.

Future plans

© Continuous horizon scanning including via Inteliigence Hub
which issues regular alerts to teams on patential threats and
significant events.

© Ongoing review of market conditions.
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o Climate change and social impact

An inability to quickly identify and effectively respond to the
challenges posed by climate change could hinder the Group's
transition to a lower-carbon business, result in significant business
interruption and/or compromise new opportwnities for growth.
Furthermaore, a failure to appropriately consider the environmental
and social impact of Mitie's business and its activities may create

a negative perception with employees, customers, investors,
government and the general public. This could lead te failures in
securing and/or retaining contracts and sources of funding, as well
as impacting negatively on Mitie’s reputation.

During FY22, Mitie's commitment to meeting its sustainability pledges
pertaining to fleet, energy use and waste continued, as well as its
commitment to setting a science-based target. The latter defines and
promates best practice in emission reductions and Net Zero targets in
lire with climate science for the Group’s Net Zero scope 3 emissions.
Information on achievements to date is detailed within the ESG section
of this Annual Report.

The Group rermains committed 1o leading the charge on environmental
sustainability and recognises that the scale and pace of adaptation will
continue to accelerate. For FY23, the Group has highlighted three
challenges that will be confronted. Firstly, getting sustainability to the
frontline, embedding it into everything Mitie's 72,000 colleagues do and
changing mindsets so that everyone considers sustainability in everything
they doy; secondly, addressing the looming skills shortage through the
continyed development of a sustainable jobs framework; and thirdly,
focusing on UK carbon nature credits, which will be limited, and tackling
any remaining carbon through the use of more direct action.

Mitie continues ta monitor developments in relation to dimate change
and sustainability, adopting a risk-based approach. The Group has a live
Climate Change risk register in place, which is regularly reviewed and
consulted on as detailed within the TCFD, For more information an
how the Group is responding to this risk please refer to the Social
Value & Responsible Business Committee report and ESG section of
this Annual Report.

Financial statements

Change in year:

)

Unchanged

Impacts on scracegic pillars:

® @

Grow Capabilicy
Mitie enablers

Controls and mitigating actions

© Plan Zero ~ continued implementation of three key pillars {eliminating
carbon emissions from power and transport, eradicating non-
sustainable waste, and enhancing ineffident buildings to meet the
highest envircnmental standards). Mitie has nine buildings that are
decarbonised and has transitioned over 2,200 vehicles to electric
(33% of Mitie’s fleet).

@ Social Value & Responsible Business (SYRB) Committee — five
meetings were held i FY22, chaired by Non-Executive Director
Phillippa Covurttie.

© Ervironmentat Management System 1SO 1400] and Energy
Management System |50 50001,

© Climate change risk assessment maintained and approved by the
SVRB Committee.

@ Key policies and associated operating procedures in place.

© Use of inhouse subject matter experts specialising in an array of
tapics including energy, waste, biodiversity, procurement and fleet.

@ Repular testing of crisis management and business continuity plans,

© Winter and surmmer preparedness planning at account level.

© Ongoing reviews of Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM)
lifecycles.

©® Continuous horizon scanning via the Group's Intelfigence Hub, with
regular alerts to teams on potential threats and significant events.

©® lnsurance cover in place to cover property damage and business
interruption,

O Targets in place for Mitie's social value framewark pillars.

@ Mitie Foundation = launch of Giving Back, Mitie's employee
volunteering programme.

© Active apprenticeship scheme across the Group. training Mitie
colleagues to enhance operational delivery and address skills gaps.

Future plans

© Promote sustainable thinking throughout the Group and increase
awareness of the dimate crisis and social value.

© Continue to decarbonise Mitie operations through the elimination
of fossi fuels.

© Encourage the supply chatn to align themselves to Mitie's carbon
reduction journey.

@ Train Mitie colleagues in all aspects of sustainability and filt the
skills gap.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

o Cyber security and data management

In the normal course of business, Mitie collects, processes and
tetains sensitive and confidential informadon about its customers,
employees and operations. Hacking, phishing ateacks, ransomware,
insider threats, physical breaches or other actions may cause this
confidendial information to be lost or misused. Any data loss could
affect client delivery operations and may result in a major data

" breach leading to fines, remediation costs and reputational damage.

The data held by Mitie continues 10 be one of its most important assets
and includes information concerning its business operations, employeas,
customers, suppliers and others. Mitie needs to maintain adequate
controls to mitigate risks associated with loss or theft of data which
wiould damage its reputation with customers and potentially resutt in
significant fines from regulators.

During FY22. there was a material increase in cybercrime nationally
and internationally as ariminals sought to exploit security weaknessas
exposed by operational disruptions, with an increasing threat to
companies including Mitie. The Group continues to monitor and act on
any suspicious activity, wider trends in technology as well as information
and guidance from the National Cyber Security Centre to ensure

its resilience.

Mitie acknowledges that the risks posed by cybercrime will intensify in
response 1o growing digital dependency. Mitie is continuing to invest in
technology to improve the security of its business. Mitie also continues
to rnairtain formal technical and procedural controls to ensure
confidential and sensitive data is processed. transmitted and stored
securely. These controls are deployed acaross the Group’s IT systems
and are subject to regular review and testing, and help maintain
compliance with the requirements of the General Data Protection
Regulation and the UK Data Protection Act 2018.
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Impaccs on strategic pillars: Change in year:

© & o

Grow Capability Increased
Mitie enablers

Controls and mitigating actions

© Continued alignment with CE+ requirements, and 15O 27001
certified Information Security Management System in place.

© Internal processes and controls for all systems changes to ensure
cyber best practice and compliance with data protection laws
and regulations.

© Raticnalisation and upgrade of ERP systems and infrastructure.

@ Dedicated informatton security team and data privacy officers
in place.

© Outsourcing of routine [T operations to a highly skilled partner
organisation, Wipro, ta improve IT resilience and controls. Includes
2477 service providing Mitie with an enhanced level of information
security monitoring and aterting. The 24/7 Cyber Defence Centre
service provided by Wipro actively monitors all alerts and incidents
raised by the various security tools.

© Adoption of Microsoft and Wipro cyber toolsets and proactive
monitoring and managerent of cyber-threats.

@ Clear strategy to utilise leading edge cloud technology. delivering
disaster recovery and business continuity improvernents.

© Crisis managernent and business continuity testing focused on
cyber-attacks, a series of exercises aimed at ensuring that downtime
is minirmised. and client trust is maintained.

@ Regular communications to employees to highlight IT risks and
expected behaviours,

© Launch of new and enhanced cyber security training.

© Upgrades to legacy systems 10 reduce complexity and improve
management information.

@ Cyber insurance policy.

@ MGX Playbook for the management of a cyber-attack.

© Security assessment by a leading firm of cyber security experts,
to conduct a phased threat assessment and stress test on the
Mitie network.

Fucure plans

© Broaden scope of ISO 27001 certification to provide all new business
areas with a consistent risk and security focus.

© Information Security team 1o conduct penetration testing of
applications during the development phase to improve security and
reduce defects.

© Phishing attack exercises 10 be conducted every three months across
the Group to reinforee training and highlight dangers.

© Conduct quarterly simulated major security incident exercises to
ensure that the incident response process is robust,
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o Health, safety and environment

Failure to maintain appropriately high standards in health, safety and
environmental management may result in catastrophic events, harm
to employees, client staff or members of the public, consequential
fines, prosecution and reputational damage.

At all levels in the organisation, safety is Mitie's number one priority.
Mitie ensures that all risks are properly assessed and managed, its staff
are traired and expectations of how they perform their work are dearty
explained, and adherence 1o health and safety standards is regularly
rnonitored. If these risks are not managed appropriately, they could lead
10 harm to individuals and damage to the erwironment, and consequently
prasecution, fines and significant damage to Mitie's reputation.

During FY22, Mitie's QHSE key performance indicators have been
broadiy positive with performance either stable or improving following
the integration of Interserve. Focus is now on aligning approaches to
project type works to ensure a consistent end to end approach is
adopted, using the Group's new autormated risk management platform
and Profects Community of Practice Group.

Mitie continues to monitor developments in relation to COVID-19 to
ensure business interruptions are kept to a minimum and productivity
in a safe environment is maximised. The Group has a live COVIO-19
risk register in place, which is regularly reviewed and consutted. Foous
remains on ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to safeguard
the physical and mental wellbeing of colleagues, suppliers and others
involved in Mitie operations. The recovery phase of the pandemic has
been wetcomed across the Group with Mitie proactively prioritising
and supporting colleagues, customers and subcontracting partners
with getting Britain back to business, induding the management of
more than 280 COVID-19 testing centres during FY22.

Mitie remnains vigilant should a change in direction be required due to a
COMD variant triggering a new wave or should there be a requirement
far other courses of action relating to the pandemic. Continual horizon
scanning, re\riauing and assessment via the Intelligence Hub continues to
play a pivotal rofe in helping to maintain the Group's resilience.

Financial statements

Change in year:

Increased

impacts on serategic pillars:

@ @

Grow Capabilicy
Mitie enzblers

Controls and mitigating actions

© A comprehensive Quality. Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE)
strategy in place and under continual review for effectiveness.

© Major cuhtural HS&E programme, LiveSafe, continuing, with clear
rules, engagement and training for staff,

© Regular training and communication defivered throughout the
Group, in accordance with the LiveSafe principles. LiveSafe e-learning
training programme sets out H3&E expectations including ‘stop the
job’ supported by key safety message from the Chief Executive,
Phil Bentley.

© M85 management system certified 1o ISC 45001 and environmental
system to 15O 14001

© Fully integrated incident recording, monitoring and reporting system.

© Regular HS&E reviews conducted at Group and Business Unit level.

® Clear and standardised KP1s to monitor progress and improvements.

© Targeted QHSE procedural audit programme.

© Themes and root causes monitored from the resufts of audits to
target specific actions, including training.

® QHSE function 'Plan Zero Champions' as part of the Plan Zero
programme to promote strategy and good practice in environmental
fanagement,

© Health and wellbeing framework integrated into the business.

© COVID-19 Working Group.

© COVID-I9 risk assessment and technical compliance processes in
place and regularly reviewed.

@ UVC disinfection systern and thermat imaging in place to mitigate
against spread of COVID-13.

© Insurance cover in place to cover Employers’ Liability, Public Liability
and Motor fleet insurance.

© Focused zero harm weeks concentrating on pertinent subjects to
further strengthen Mitie's QHSE culture.

© Ongoing review of QHSE team ensuring maintenance of
competencies and correct provision of support and guidance across
the Group.

Future plans

© Ongoing review of COVID-19 landscape.

© Continuation of QHSE engagement tours, meeting and speaking to
frontline teams, gauging an understanding of safety cornpliance and
targeting any required improvements.

@ Evolution of Projects Community of Practice Group.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

e Funding

Inability to maintain access to and renew suitable sources of funding
due to a perceived risk in Mitie’s business andfor the sector as

a whole may impact the Group's ability to maintain proficable
business performance.

In order to be able to meet its financial commitments, the Group needs
access to a number of affordable sources of finance. Mitie's core debt
facilities include a revolving aredit facility and private placement loan
notes, Mitie needs 10 have sufficient liquidity to be able to pay suppliers
and staff, while also investing in the business and ensuring it has enough
resources for profitable growth.

During FY22, the Group has continued to actively manage its cash,
liquidity and debt position and focus on this remains strong. A reduced
revolving credit facility (RCF) of £i50m has been refinanced on a fonger
tenor (4 years + | year), and at an interest rate 125bps lower than the
facility it replaced.

In November, agreement was reached to refinance US private
placement (USPP) notes that mature in December 2022, £120m of
new notes will be issued under a delayed funding arrangement, avoiding
any overlap with the maturing £121.5m of notes and at an improved
average coupon of 2.94%. The new notes will have an average [Q-year
maturity profile.

The Group has a balance sheet which is strong. stable and flexible,
to support future growth opportunities.

e Regulatory

Fallure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may lead to
fines, prosecution and damage to Mitie's reputation.

Mitie is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations, including health
and safety. employment. data protection, anti-bribery and corruption
legislation and statutory wage requirements,

During FY22, there were notable changes to Mitie's external
environment in terms of regulatory updates, and in the main these
continued to be refated to COVID-19 (2. mandatery vaccination
requirements and end of furlough), Brexit (e.g. new immigration laws),
and corporate governance requirements (g.g, mandatory TCFD
reporting). As a consequence, a number of related activities took place
throughout FY22 to ensure the Group remained legally compliant.

In FY23, the Group does not erwvisage the pace of legislative change
altering and will continue to proactively scan the external operating
environment as well as assess the impact of changes, as they arise.
Uncertainty still remains around legislation yet to be passed and the
irmpact of this on Mitie. There are still unknowns associated with both
the knock-on impact of Brexit as welf as COVID-{? from a reguiatory
perspective.

Mitie recognises that a failure to comply with applicable laws and
regulations coukd result in prosecution and/or significant fines.

and, from a reputational perspective. could damage the Group's
relationships with custormers and its success when bidding for work.
As a consequence, Mitie may also face debarment when tendering
for public sector contracts.
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tmpacts on stracegic pillars: Change in year:

o O )

Grow Margin Reduced
Mitie enhancement

Controls and mitigacing actions

@ Maintenance of strong banking, debit and equity relationships.

© Regular forecasting of cash flow and net debt.

© Thorough focus on working capital cycles with a dear set of KPls.

@ Clear palicy on provisions.

© Strong focus on and monitoring of cash collection.

© Regular reviews of payment terms with custamers and supply chain.

® Focus on working capital processes to reduce cycle times and average
net debt.

Furure plans

© Continue to work with a range of financial institutions to ensure that
affordable finance sources can be accessed.

Impacts on stravegic piltars: Change in year:

@ @ O

Grow Capabifity Unchangad
Mitie enablers

Conurols and mitigating actions

© Specialist legal and QHSE expertise aligned to business units.

© Code of Conduct for aft employees.

@ Independent whistleblowing system available 1o all employees to
report any Concerns.

@ Group-wide policies updated for changes to laws and regulations and
maintained in the online Information Management System {IMS).

© Regular and thorough internal and external regulatory audits.

© Training and awareness materials communicated to employees via
Mitie's digital Learning Hub and monitoring of completion performed,
especially for mandatary courses.

© Regular monitoring of legal and regulatory changes by Group
functions induding Compary Secretariat. Legal and QMSE.

@ Financial governance and controls in place.

@ Commercdial governance and controls in place.

© Establishrnent of Internat Control Dedaration framework ongoing to
align with potential UK legisation requirerents.

Future plans

© Ongoing horizon scanning.
© Ongoing review of IMS to update policies and procedures.
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o Competitive advantage

A failure to maintain competidve advantage resulting in a loss in key
customers, an over-reliance on a particular sector or a failure to
produce bids which are financially viable could have a significant
impace on Mitie’s financial health and reputation.

FY22 has witnessed many achievements for the Group, induding but not
fimited to, the successful completion of the Interserve integration, a large
number of high-profile contract wins, the acquisition of new businesses
such as DAEL Ventures, Rock Power Connections and Esoteric, the
introduction of new centres of excellence including Cleaning and Hygiene
and the Technical Services Operations Centre, and the proactive
management to support the COVID-I9 recovery, most notably through
the management of more than 280 COVID-I9 testing centres.

Despite such achievements, the Group recognises the importance of
staying focused and continually reviewing ongoing challenges, such as
threats posed by new entrants, market saturation across the sectors,
growing competition as well as the ongoing effects from COVID-19.
Each of these challenges has the potential to impact profit margins and
disrupt Mitie operations.

In FY23, the Group will continue to monitor the changing external
environment as well as market coverage. Furthermore, Mitie wailt
continue to develop and deliver competitive bids, along with
maintaining obligations towards the defivery of a quality service
for existing customers.

Financial statements

Change in year:

1,

Unchanged

Impacts on scracegic pillars:

®© 0 O

Grow Margin Generale
Mitie enhancement cash

Controls and mitigacing actions

@ Bid Committee approval for complex bids.

© Robust risk assessment of bids - Comimercial, Legal and Operational.

® Detailed contracting guidelines in place.

© Clear delegated authorities register.

© Strategic account management programme.

@ KPIfSLA formal reviews with customers.

® Sales and CRM teams focused on developing pipeline across all
major sectors.

© Improved CRM capabilities with active relationship management.

©® Focus on Custorner Satisfaction (Net Promoter Score and soliciting
feedback).

© Review of any loss-making contracts to ensure learnings are identified
and applied 1o future bids.

© Sales and pipeline management information to track and measure
growth, wins and losses.

© Winfloss debriefing process to take learnings for future bidding
activities.

@ Chief Government & Strategy Officer coordinating all interfaces
with the Cabinet Office. :

© Focus on high-margin opportunities with growth potential, for
example technology-led solutions.

® Development of new and innovative service offerings.

© Sales Academy.

Future plans

© Continue to pursue suitable oppaortunities through the Crown
Commercial Services frameworks.

© Continue to target emerging markets,

© Continue to engage with Gpportunities that have scope for
innavative solutions.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

e Business resilience

An inability to effectively respond to global events, such as a
pandemic or supply chain disruption and/or a catastrophic eventaca
key business lozation could result in significant business interruption.
The effect on employees, custemers and the supply chain could result
in severe consequences for the financial health and reputation of
Mitie's business.

During FY22, Mitie's commitment to ensuring its organisational resilience
and viability has continued, despite uncertainty relating to COVID-19,
post Brexit issues, increasing cyber-threats and more recent geopolitical
events and the assodated implications. During FY22, the Group has
taken additional steps to ensure its ability to respond to disruptive events
i not hindered by a failure to plan. Extra controls have been rolled out
to tackle the Group's response to a sustained period off-line owing to 2
cyber-attack and additicnal measures have been introduced to safeguard
operational practices which could be compromised owing to an issue
with one or more of Mitie's major suppliers andfor service providers.
Mitie has utiised learnings from previous incidents to develop a series of
manual operating procedures to support business activities in the event
of a cyber-attack on its operations.

The Group remains committed to enhancing its planning and response
capability to minirise the impact from any significant business
interruption and improve the speed of recoverability. Mitie recognises
that as the business grows, the risks associated with & sustaired period
of downtime increase. In FY23, Mitie will be launching a series of
targeted training modules to all business area leads with responsibility
for critical and business continuity management. As well as reinforcing
the importance of planning in order to prevent panic, the modules

will alsa focus on the need to plan for disruptive events associated
with sustainability risk management, ensuring that Mitie colleagues are
prepared for all eventualities and are well placed to support customers
and other third parties engaged in Mitie activities, as required.

The Group will continue to work closely with both supply chain and key
service providers to ensure improvements in this area. This indudes
being proactive and vigilant of the changing environment and ensuring
business continuity plans remain fit-for-purpose.
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Impacis on strategic pillars: Change in year.
®@ @ ® O
Grow Margin Generate Capabilicy Unchanged
Mitie enhancement cash enablers

Controls and mirigating actions

©® Key policies and associated operating procedures in place.

© Dedicated specialist teams including Risk, Information Systems,
Finance, Occupationat Heatth, Supply Chain and Intelligence Hub.

© Maintained and updated crisis and business continuity plans for key
activities aaross all Mitie operations, including key service providers.

© Disaster recovery framework embedded and managed.

@ Regular testing of crisis management and business continuity, including
dedicated Executive Management scenaric testing. '

© Stringert governance controls including oversight from Risk
Committee, with regular reporting to the Audit Committee
and Board.

© Close monitering of supply chain to ensure continuity of
critical supplies.

© Internat and external compliance audits.

© Cperating in accordance with IS0 22301-2019 and 31000-2018.

® Continuous horizon scanning via the Inelligence Hub with regular
alerts to teams on potertial threats and significant events.

@ Critical Engineering and Technicat Assurance (CETA) Programme
implemented in Technical Services to help manage high-risk contracts.

© Insurance cover in place to cover business interruption.

© Colleagues can work from home without loss of any business-critical
systemsfapplications.

© Themes and root causes monitored from the results of audits to
target specific actions.

@ Digital supplier platform (DSP) — supports the efficiency of Mitie
supply chain processes {supplier enboarding/supplier health,
Contract Lifecycle Management, Sourcing and Purchase to Pay).

Future plans

© Roll-out of targeted critical and business contirwity management
training madules.
© Review digitalisation of business impact analysis.
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e Employees

Inability to recruit, recain and reward suitably alented employees,
as well as failure to implement appropriate development plans and
simple, consistent processes across the business and cultivate 2

One Mitie culture, could result in employees being disengaged and
negatively impact the Group's operational and financial performance.

FY22 witnessed large-scale impacts to the UK labour market as the
economy began to recover from COVID- 9. This was compounded

by the broader implications of Brexit which had the potential to
compromise the availability of labour and key skills. During FY22, the
Group continued 1o work hard to minimise disruption caused by this
evolving external landseape. In FY22, Mitie took positive action to retain
talent, through the provision of enhanced benefits for all colleagues
including free shares, enhanced maternity pay, the addition of sabbaticals/
career breaks, life assurance, virtual GP, and a salary advance scheme
(the ability to draw down pay earned ahead of payday). Additionally, to
ensure compliance with the EU Settlement Scheme, the Group worked
dosely with impacted colleagues to ensure that they were assisted and
guided through the process effectively.

Mitie made great progress in FY22 on the journey to make the Company
atruly inclusive place to work. through diversity networks and an
award-winning conscious inclusion Jearning prograrmme (Count Me In).
Cther highlights induded the delivery of executive roadshows over a
three-week period in the form of Team Tafk Live and partnering with
external experts to enhance Mitie’s attraction strategy and collateral.

{n FY23, Mitie will continue to proactively manitor developments in
relation to the labour market as well as any further imphications resutting
from COVID-19, such as workforce fatigue. The Group will launch a
Group-wide Ermployee Value Proposition campaign, a Career Band
Framework as well as a cost-of-iving campaign to provide financiat
support and advice. .

Financial statements

Change in year:

Increased

Impaces on serategic pillars:

© @

Grow Capability
Mitie enablers

Conurols and mitigating actions

@ Consistent HR resourcing process and system across the Group.

© Process in place for online training and development. with access to
online tearning for all colleagues.

® Consistent process to manage both temporary and permanent
recruitment.

@ Training and development programmaes for senior leadership.

@ Developed talent identification, management and development
framework.

© Improved performance management framework.

@ HR structure streamlined and working in close partrership with
the business.

@ Induction programme, mangatory for new starters.

© Regutar communications from leadership team - including Executive
Management country-wide roadshows.

@ Specific plans developed to address results of employee survey.

© Competitive remuneration, terms and conditions.

@ Regular employee offers.

© Succession plans in place for critical roles, especially for senior
leadership.

© Attraction strategy developed and deployed.

© Enhanced benefits such as free shares, life assurance, virtual GP,
and a salary advance scheme.

@ New careers site launched in FY22 attracting more than 128,000
new and unique viewers.

Future plans

© A further award of free shares 10 increase employee share
ownership,

® Launch of a Group-wide Employee Value Proposition campaign,
bringing tagether the total employee offer in one place to attract
and retain talent. External and internal communications campaigns
planned.

@ Launch Career Band Framework to provide colleagues with wsibility
of career paths and internal opportunities for career advancement.

@ Open flexible benefits (Choices) to hourly paid colleagues (curreritly
open 1o salaried colleagues oniy).

© Continue 1o improve employee experience through system
enhancements including single sign on for People Hub and Learning
Hub {core HR systems).

© Run a 'cost of living’ campaign to provide financial support and advice
through colleague benefits including discount scheme, Salary Finance
(low-rate loans) and Salary Advance.

© Ongoing review of labour markets.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

@ Third-party management

Failure to successfully manage strategic third-party relationships or a
catastrophic event and/or failure invalving a chird-parcy partner, could
impact Mitie's ability to deliver, resulting In financial losses owing to
fines and in some circumstances significant reputation damage.

In FY22. many sectors have been impacted by shortfalls in key products
and materials. This in turn has led to delayed or reduced deliveries,
mis-picks of products, short notice substitutions and short-term
unavailability of key products and materials. During FY22, the Group
cominued to work dosely with supply chain partners to ensure Mitie
was operating effectively and to reduce the impact from disruption,

At an account level there were ongoing reviews of key products and
materials, and customers were continually kept abreast of developments.

In FY22, the Group launched its new digital supply chain platform (OSP)
te better manage supply chain and associated risks. This has resufted in

a structured review of all suppliers and subcontractors, which has seen
88% of subcontractors (by spend)} fully accredited on a best-in-class
QHSE accraditation platform (Safe Contractor). A further Procurement
and Supply Chain (PSC) Insights initiative was also introduced to keep
both customers and the wider business informed of the changing
environment. During the same period, transitional activities took place
following the integration of Interserve, with two separate supply
frameworks being amalgamated into one.

In FY23, Mitie will continue 1o proactively monitor developments with
both the internal and external landscapes, paying particular attention to
the ongoing issues still being experienced from bath COVID-19 and
Brexit, combined with the impact of inflation, which continues 1o affect
afl businesses. Particular focus will continue to remain on Supplier

Risk Management and Supplier Health facilitated by data delvered via
the OSP. The Group is actively menitoring the entire supplier base

{c- 12000 suppliers) for key risk areas and has a structured programme
to dose gaps and manage risks, particularly around subcontractors’
QHSE accreditation and all suppliers’ insurance coverage.
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Change in year:

Increased

lmpacts on strategic pillars:

@ @ &

Grow Margin Capabilicy
Mitie enhancement enablers

Controls and mitigating actions

© Key policies and associated operating procedures, including Supply
Management Framework.

© Dedicated Procurement and Commercial teams.

Mitie First approach adopted.

© Project Farté driven improvements under Supply Chain Management
workstream, including enhanced supplier audits, improved invoicing
capabilities, master service agreements and job automation,

® Kigorous on-boarding tramework integrated nto business utilising the
digital supplier platform (DSP).

@ Defined service level agreements and key performance indicatars.

© Onigoing spending review.

© Dedicated risk management and assurance procedures {including
targeted QHSE assurance programme and internal audit) to ensure
internal controls are operating effectively.

© Ongeing review of third-party business continuity arrangements
with regular reporting to the Group Risk tearm.

© DSP faciitating supplier health and risk chedks as well as
invoice processing,

© Procurement and Supply Chain (PSC) insights introduced.

Future plans

© Ongoing review focused on post COVID-I9 and Brexit landscapes
and inflation implications.

€@ Continued roll-out and enhancement of processes relating to
the DSP

© Ongoing supplier review focused on QMSE accreditations and
ingurance coverage.
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0 Growth through acquisitions

An imporeant part of Mitie's growth is generaced through
acquisitions. Market conditions might mean the ability to secure
such oppartunities for future growth which are favourable ta
Mitie in respect of price and terms and conditions may nort always
be available,

A component of Mitie’s growth is generated through acquisitions, which
provide an opportunity 1o grow market share and enhance service
offerings. Any future growth through acquisitions will depend on the
continued availability of suitable propositions both in relation to price.
and terms and conditions as well as the Group's ability to fund them.

As well as opportunities, acquisitions encompass a series of risks which

if miscalculated, particulary around the value and integration of the
business being acquired, could have a detrimental impact on the Group.
An inability to effectively manage all associated risks could delay the

. delivery of expected benefits and consequently hinder Mtie’s business
performarce. In order to make sure these risks are managed successfufly.
it is important that Mitie maintains a rigorcus acquisition evaluation
process and due diligence is completed to the highest standard and
appropriate attention is given to the integration of new acquisitions.

Following the acquisitions of DAEL Ventures, Rock Power Connections,
Esoteric and Biotecture in FY22. Mitie intends to continue to identify and
secure opportunities which will enhance the Group's existing offerings.

Financial statements

Change in year:

Impacts on scracegic pillars:

6 @& @

Grow Margin Capability
Mitie enhancement enablers

Controls and mitigating actions

© Specialist legal and financial professionals.

@ Ongoing review of market conditions and value for stakeholders.

© Rigorous due diligence and risk managerment processes.

@ Training and awareness.

© Financial governance and controls.

© Assessment of new acquisitions against Mitie's internal control
framewortc )

Future plans

© Continued focus on growth strategy ensuring healthy balance
between short-term value and long-term return is maintained.

© Ongoing enhancements to acquisition evaluation process.

© Ongoing review of market conditions.

Mitie Group plc 77
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| Non-Financial Information Statement

We continually ook for ways to make Mitie a responsible business and we actively engage with stakeholders to improve the Group's impact.

As detailed further on pages 36 to 51 and 131 1o 132, Mitie has 13 industry-feading social value and responsible business targets as part of its Social
Value Framework. Progress towards these targets is published monthly in Mitie’s Sodal Value & Responsible Business Dashboard which is available at
www.mitie.com/esg, Mitie met or exceeded all 3 of its sociat value targets for FY22.

Mitie's leadership position across ESG has been shown by the improvement in ratings from major ESG rating agencies during FY22. including i

The Sustainable FM Index.

We use a variety of tools to track and measure our performance against strategic objectives. Our business model encompasses the non-finandial value
created for our stakeholders from our resources, human capital, expertise and relationships. Through our business model, we deliver value for our
employees, suppliers, communities, shareholders and customers.

Reporting requirement

Relevance paolicies’

Annuai Repart page reference

Environmental matters

Sustainability policy
Procurement policy

Chief Exeautive’s strategic review pages 6 to 12
Stakeholder engagement pages 30 to 32

Environment pages 41 to 49

Sodal Value & Responsible Business Committee report
pages 131 10 132

Employees

Employee Handbook

People policy

Equality diversity and inclusion policy
Health and safety policy

Ethical business practice policy
Sustainability policy

Quality policy

Chief Executive's strategic review pages 6 to 12
Stakeholder engagement pages 301 32
People pages 3710 40

Social matcers

Sustainability policy

Chief Executive's strategic review pages 6to 12
Stakeholder engagernent pages 30 to 32

Community page 50
Sodal Value & Resporsible Business Committee repart
pages 131 to 132
Human rights Employee Handbook Stakeholder engagement pages 30to 32
Ethical business practice policy
Anti-bribery and and-corruption  Employee Handbook People pages 37 t0 40
Ethical business practice policy Stakeholder engagement pages 3¢ to 32
E-learning module available for employees through Culture at Mitie pages 96 to 99
the process repository (BMS) and Learning Hub
Suppliers Procurement policy Responsible supply chain page 51
Supplier sodal value policy
Business model Chur business model pages 28 10 29

Non-financial KPls

Key performance indicators pages i6to 19

Principal risks

Principal risks and uncertainties pages 86 to 77
Viability statement pages 83 to 84

Audit Committee report pages 107 to 114
Governance pages 86 to 114

|. Policies, staternents and codes are available at wwwmitie.com
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Financial statements

Section |72 statement

We believe that considering our stakeholders in
key business decisions is not ony the right thing
to do but is fundamental to our ability to drive
value creation over the longer term. Now, as
we erter a new financial year in the midst of
recovering from a global pandemic, balancing the
needs and expectations of our stakeholders has
never been a more important or challenging
task. Board Directors are bound by their duties
under the Cormpanies Act 2006 {the “Act™) to
promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of our members as a whole. In doing

50, however, we must have regard for the
imerests of all of our stakeholders, to ensure
the iong-term sustainability of the Company.
The Board is therefore responsible for ensuring

that it fulfils its obligations to those impacted by
our business, in its stakeholder consideration
and engagernent. Stakeholder consideration is
ernbedded throughout the business, with the
Board and senior management actively engaged
in cornmunication and engagement initiatives.
The following pages comprise our Section 172(1)
statement, setting out how the Board has, in
performing its duties over the course of the
year, had regard to the matters set out in
Section 172{1) (@) to (f) of the Act, alongside
examples of how eath of our key stakeholders
have been considered and engaged. Further
information can also be found throughout the
Strategic report and in our exploration of key
strategic dedsions made in the Governance

report Details of Mitie's key stakeholders, how
the Group has engaged with them during FY22
and the cutcomes of that engagement, are set
out on pages 30 to 32. Engagement activities
spedifically carried out by the Board collectively
and individually can be found on pages 93

and 98.

The Board made some crudal decisions during
the year, promoting the Company's purpose,
strategy and long-term sustainability. All Board
decisions are made having considered the
matters set out in Section 172(1) of the
Companies Act 2006, and here we analyse
some of these decisions and considerations

in detail

Key decisions in the year

Acquisition of DAEL Ventures, Rock Power Connections,

P2ML and 8point8

Mitie acquired:

© DAEL Ventures, a leading provider of
acquisition, design and construction services
(ADC) in the UK for mobile telecoms
infrastructure, on 5 August 2021

© Rock Power Connections, an independent
connection provider, spedialising in the
design and installation of new high voltage
electricity supplies. the renewal of electrical
assets up to 132kV and electric vehidle
charge points, on | November 2021

@ P2ML. a specialist telecoms tower design
house, on | April 2022

@ Bpoint8, a leading provider of design
and construction services in the UK,
predominaritly for mobile telecoms
tower infrastructure, on 3 May 2022

When considering the proposals to acquire
these companies during FY22, the Board
considered the strategic benefits to
stakeholders of the transactions.

O,

Employees:

© New calleagues benefit from becoming part
of a larger, more profitable company.

© They also benefit from our established

engagement mechanisms, culture and values,

substaniial learning and development
opportunities, technology and innovation,
benefits and rewards;

© Potential employee synergies on
consolidation;

© Talent flight risk from new colleagues; and

© Capactty and bandwidth of existing Mitie
colleagues involved with the acquisitions.

Customers and suppliers:

@ Opportunities to enhance our portfolio of
services, enabling us to deliver new and
complementary services to existing
custamers as well as new customers;

© Rell-out of our customer-facing technologies
1o the customers of the acquired businesses,
improving customer experience; and

@ Risk of renegotiation or early termination of
customer contracts.’

@

Shareholders:

© Impact on EPS and return on invested
capital, *

© Potential cost synergies, as well as the
passibility of unexpected liabilities and costs
or inaccurate assumptions and estimates
relating to benefits and synergies:

© Expected stronger financial profile
supporting a progressive dividend policy; and

© Possible difficulties integrating the new
businesses.

®

Community and environment:
© Impact on our social value agenda and Ptan
Zero targets and milestones.

Outcome and impace of the decision

After due consideration of the matters set
outin Section |72 of the Act, related risks
and opportunities and the impact on wider
stakehoiders. the Board approved the
acquisition of the companies. The acquisitions,
which were integrated into the Technical
Services division, are performing in line

with expectations.
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Key decisions in the year
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Approval of FY22 interim and final dividends

The Board did not recommend a final dividend
in respect of the year to 31 March 2020, and
no interim or final dividend for the year 1o

31 March 2021, due 1o the uncertain micro-
and macro-environmenits resulting from the
COVID-19 pandemic. When considering the
proposls 10 resure the payment of dividends
for FY22, the Board considered cash
generation, the performance of the underlying
business and the long-term impact of paying
the dividends on the liquidity and solvency
positions. The Board aiso considered the
impact of the dividend decisions on
expectations relating to the dividend policy.

Integration of Interserve

Mitie acquired Interserve Facilities Management
(Interserve) on 30 November 2020, and the
12-month integration programme, delivered
through 16 complex projects, was completed
during FY22 Delivering significant cost
synergies, introducing Interserve customers
to our market-leading technologies, renewing
Interserve contracts, and driving cross-selling
opportunities are core drivers of future
value-creation.

The Board received progress reports on the
implementation of the integration programme
at each Board meeting,

@

Employees:

© Former Interserve colleagues benefited
from the transfer to our HR and payrofi
systems, giving full access to systermns and
available benefits and rewards, learning and
development opportunities;

© Delivery of the expected emplayee
synergies on integration; and

@ Management of talent flight risk from former
Imerserve colleagues.
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Shareholders and lenders:

© Shareholders’ expectations in relation to the
payment of dividends, both from a capital
return perspective and as a signal of future
performance: and

© The impact of paying dividends on whether
the business remained within the financial
covenants agreed with tenders.

Q.
Ao

Employees:

© For colleagues who participate in the
Group's employee share schemes, the
payment of dividends enabled returns for
those colleagues.

Customers and suppliers:

@ Delivery of improved customer experience,
monitored through performance in NPS
survey,

© Roll-out of Mitie’s custormer-facing
technologies to Interserve austomers,
improving customer experience;

© Mitigation of the risk of the fallure to renaw
former Interserve customer contracts or
early termingtion of those contracts;

© Consolidation of suppfier base; and

© Delivery of the new public sector contracts.
resulting from the acquisition.

Shareholders:

© Impact on EPS and return on invested
capital and whether the improvements
to the profit margins and free cash flow
had been delivered;

© Realisation of the cost synergies;

@ Strengthened financial profie offering the
opportunity to resume dividends: and

®

Community and environment:

© The fact that we repaid the monies
received from Gavernment for our
directly employed colleagues, under the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
established 10 support businesses through
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Outcome and impact of the decision
Following due consideration of all the matters
set out in Section 172, and with £86m of free
cash flow reported in the first half of the year.
average daily net debt of £60m. and the
underlying performance of the business back
to pre-COVID levels, the Board determined
that the resumption of dividends through the
declaration of the FY22 interirn dividend was
consistent with the Group's risk appetite having
assessed the likely impact on the business and
its stakehalders (including in the long term),
and that similar considerations applied for the
recommendation of the FY22 final dividend.

@ Mitigation of the patential risk to-the
recovery of sums which might become due
from the vendor (by way of 2 reduction in
the consideration) as a consequence of the
completion accounts process contained in
the sale and purchase agreement, and the
subsequent expert determination process.

@

Community and environment:

© Impact on our overall sodal value agenda
and Plan Zero targets and milestones; and

© Exparsion of the Mitie Foundation agenda
to incdude Interserve geographical areas.

Outcome and impact of che decision

The integration programme completed at

the end of November 2021 as planned,

The 16 projects and the various project teams
defivered on the objectives set back inthe
planning phase, navigating the challenges of
delivering such extensive change in a short
period of time with the added complications
of remate working due to COMID-19.
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Viability statement

The UK Corperate Governance Code requires
the Board to explain how it has assessed the
prospects of the Group and state whether it
has a reasonable expectation that the Group
can continue to operate and meet its liabilities,
taking into aceount its current position and
principal risks.

The Group's principal markets and strategy
are described in detait in the Strategic Report
{pages | 1o B4).

The key factors affecting the Group's

prospects are:

@ Mitie is one of the leading UK's leading
facilities managerment businesses with ¢.5%
of the market;

© The outsourcing market is refatively
insensitive to economic cycles;

© We have a clear vision for our technology-
centric growth strategy,

© We are making good progress in our
transformation programmes; and

® We have a diverse portfolic of blue-chip and
public sector dients, the largest of which
constitutes <5% of reverwe.

The Directors believe that 2 three-year periad
is appropriate for the viability assessment as it
is supported by our strategic, budgeting and
business planning cycles and is relevant to the
duration of the Group's existing contracts with

customers which is typically around three years.

Scenario

It therefore represents a timeframe over which
the Directors believe they can reasonably
forecast the Group’s performance,

In making this statement, the Directors have
carried out a robust assessment of the emerging
and principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency or liquidity. This
includes the availability and eflectiveness of

mitigating actions that could realistically be taken

to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence

of the underlying risks. In considering the likely
effectiveness of such actions, the condusions of
the Board's regular monitoring and review of
risk management and internal control systems,
as described on pages |11 1o 113, are considered.

Base case projections for viability purposes have

been made using prudent assumptions:

© Muodest revenue and margin growth
beyond FY22:

® No major changes in working capital;

© Future dividends in line with current policy:

@ Share buyback programme beginning in FY23;

© Settlement of existing provisions according to
our best estimates together with funding
costs for ongoing transformation activities;
and

@ No changes to Group structure.

The resulting financial model assesses the
ability of the Group to remain within financial
covenants and liquidity headroom of existing
committed facilities.

The Group's core liquidity is provided by a
£130m revolving credit facility and £151.5m of
US Private Placement notes. £(20m of new
US Private Placerment notes will be issued under
a delayed funding arrangement in Clecemmber
2022, avoiding any overlap with the existing
£121.5m of notes that mature inthe same
month (see Going Concern statement on
pages 152 and 153 for further detail}. A further
£30m of notes will mature in December 2024,
which the base case scenario assumes will be
re-financed. In addition, at 31 March 2022 the
Group had utilised £45m of its confidential
invoice discounting facility. This fadlity is being
wound down, which will result in an increase in
Group debst that has been included in the base
¢ase scenario,

A range of scenarios that encompass the
principal risks were applied to the base case and
are set out in the table below. The analysis also
cansidered a reverse stress test scenario to
understand the reduction required to cause a
breach of interest cover covenant, Whilst the
impact on revenue, gross margin. overheads.
and net debt was assessed, revenue was the
focus of the reverse stress test as this is less
within the control of managerent.

Principal risks

i ' Inability to refinance

Assumptions

Debr: £30m of US Private Placement notes repaid in December 2024 and not replaced

5

2 Demandfoperational shock
Assumptions

Revenue: 5% year-on-year revenue reduction across assessment period

234678

Costs: £40m cne-off cost in FY23 (or equivalent amount of savings not being realised)
3 Inflationfemployee/suppty chain disruption '

Assumptions

Margin: 2% gross margin erosion across assessment period

1.9,10

4 Reverse stress test

nfa
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Viability statement
continued

In each of scenarios |-3 the Group was able to
continue operating within debt covenants and
liquidity headroom. The conclusion from the
reverse stress test is that it requires such an
extreme reduction in revenue that it is
considered 1o be a remote likelihood and
therefore does not represent a realistic threat
10 the viability of the Group. In reaching the
conclusion of remate, the Directors considered
the follewing

© Revenue would need to dedine by
approximately 34% (assuming the gross
margin was maintained) in the year ending
31 March 2023 compared to the base case,
which is considered to be very severe given
the high proportion of Mitie's revenue that
is fixed in nature and the fact thatina
COVID-hit year, Mitie's revenue excluding
Interserve dedined by only 1.6%.

@ in the event that results started to trend
significantly below those included in the
Group cash flow model, additional mitigation
actions have been identified that wouid be
implemented, which are not factored into the
scenario analysis or reverse stress test resufts.
These indude the short-term scaling down
of capital expenditure, overhead efficiency/
reduction measures including cancellation
of discretionary bonuses and reduced
discretionary spend, asset disposals and
reductions in cash distriutions and share
buybacks.

Based on this assessment. the Directors have

conciuded that there is a reasonable expectation

that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and mee? fts liabilities as they fall due

over the three-year period to 31 March 2025.

The Strategic Report on pages | to 84 of
Mitie Group plc, company registration
nurmber SC019230. was approved by the
board of Directors and authorised for issue
on 9 June 2022.
Tt was signed on its behalf by

DociSigned by:

. ES4ES.

Chief Executive Officer

DecuSigned by:

(s0c

Stmon Rirbpatrak
Chief Financial Officer
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Chairman’s introduction to governance and the Board

Effective corporate governance

is fundamental to the way Mitie
conducts business. By encouraging
entrepreneurial and responsible
management, it supports the
creation of (ong-term, sustainable
vatue for shareholders and
stakeholders and contributes

o wider society.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

As Chairman, one of my key roles is to ensure
that the Board and Mitie comtinue 10 have high
standards of corporate governance while, at the
same time, establishing and continually developing
the right cantrols to provide the Board with the
appropriate level of oversight and assurance.

By having a sound corporate governance
framework, we can ensure effective and efficient

dedson-making, and the right balance of knowledge,

diversity, skifls, experience and challenge to
manitor and manage the risks we face.

Board’s focus during the year

In what continues 10 be a challenging
macroeconomic environment, the Board had a
busy year. Our focus during the year has been
to accelerate the Company's pursuance of its
strategic priorities, while managing the ongoing
uncertainties associated with COVID-19, labour
cost inflation and other inflationary pressures.

meetngs. iduding a site visit to Mandhester Technical
Services Operating Centre, received updates on
finandal and operational performance, as wel as
strategic 'deep dives’ on each business unit and:
© Balanced business performance and
shareholder interests
© Approved the operating plan for the
financial year

B6 Mitie Graup ple
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© Manitored the progress of the 12-month
prograrame to integrate 20,000 employees,
400 customers and 3,600 suppliers who
joined Mitie through the acquisition of
Interserve Facilities Management (Interserve)

© Considered and approved the resurnption of
the payment of dividends to shareholders and
approved the refinancing of debt securities

© Considered updates on workforce approach
and policies from Jennifer Duvalier, our
Remuneration Committee Chair, following
the varioue listening cections the hald
with colleagues

© Oversaw performance against the change
programmes underway within Mitie

© Considered and approved several important
strategic acquisitions and disposals, in Ene with
Mitie's M&A strategy

Board composition

The Nomination Committee continues to lead the
process for Board appointments and ensures that
plans are in place for erderly Board and senior
mamagement succession. On the recammendation
of the Comrittee, Chet Patel and Salma Shah
were appointed to the Board as Non-Executive
Directors on | April 2022, following the
departure of Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat.
With a backgraund in business-tc-business
service environments and promating sales and
growth strategies along with his expertise in
business technology and cyber security, Chet will
further strengthen the commercial expertise on
the Mitie Board. With.a background in public
policy and public affairs, Salma will bring additional
public sector expertise reflecting Mitie's increased
public sector focus. The Company Secretary and
| ensured that a tailored induction programme
was put together for Chet and Salma.

The Board considered whether the balance in its
members’ skills and experience is appropriate
both from an overall Board composition
perspective and based on individual contribution.
The biographies of the current members of the
Board and the Chief of Staff, General Counsel

& Company Secretary are set out on pages 87

to 89,

Board evaluation

Following the external evaluation of the Board in
FY1l, the Board agreed areas of focus for FY22.
FY22, the second year of our cyde, involved the
Board performing an internal evaluation of
progress against the FY22 areas of focus and the
resulting actions. as weil as agreeing new areas of
focus for FY23. Further information on this year's
evaluation can be found on pages 10210 103,

Stakeholder engagement

Effective engagement enabies the Board lo ensure
that stakeholder interests are considered when
making strategic decisions. The Board spent time
in FY22 discussing key stakeholders, engagement
medhanisms and the issues that matter to those

stakeholders. The Board's stakeholder map has
been reviewed and updated to include specific
actions taken in response to feedback received.

The stakeholder map has supported the

Board's indusion of the required Section 172(1}
statement within this Annual Report. This year's
statement focuses on key decisions made by the
Board during FY22 and the Board's consideration
of their impact on key stakeholders. The Section
172(}) staternent can be found on pages 81 to 82.

fennifer Duvalier continues to act asthe Company's
designated Non-Executive Director responsible
for oversight of the Board's engagement with
the workforce. jennifer has participated in
employee listening sessions during FY22, thereby
maintaining communication channels with the
workforce, and ensuring that the views of those
on the frontline are heard and understood.
Jennifer provides the Board with an update at
each Board meeting so that these views are
regularly voiced at Board level and can be
incorporated into the Board's dedision-rmaking
process. Between meetings, notes from jennifer’s
communications are made availzble to the Board
via zn electronic Board portal. Further detail on
lennifer's role and activities is included on pages
9B to 99. In FY23, the other Non-Executive
Directors and | will join Jennifer and attend and
participate in the employee listening sessions.

Hybrid AGM

We know our AGMs provide investors with a
valuable opportunity to communicate with us.

In recognition of this, and building on the success
of last year's meeting, we will be conducting

this year's AGM electronically once again. The
meeting will be held as a combined physicat and
electronic meeting {a hybrid meeting). In addition
1o being able to vote and submit questions
electronically in advance, all shareholders will be
able to join the meeting online to hear from Phil
and |, ask questions and vote on our resolutions.

UK Corporate Governance Code
and statement of compliance

Mitie applied all the princples and complied
with all the relevant prowisions of the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code (Code) during
FY22, with the exception of provision 38
{alignment of executive director pension
cantribution rates with those available to the
workforce). Sitnon Kirkpatrick was appointed in
April 2021 with a pension benefit which was
aligned to the workforce. Phil Bentley's pension
benefit will be fully aligned with the wider
workforce from | January 2023, in line with the
Rernuneration Policy approved by sharehalders
n 2021. Details on how we have applied the
princples set out in the Code and how
governance operates at Mitie have been
summarised throughout the Directors’ Report.

Derek Mapp Doculigned by:
Chairman Junt Magy
CH6F2058CBFCARD. .



Board of Directors

Derek Mapp

Non-Executive Chairman

Date of appointment to the Board
9 May 2017

Ocher current appointmencs
Derek is an independent non-
executive director and chair-
designate of the Board of Eurocell plc
{Eurocell) and 3 member of Eurocell’s
Nomination and Remuneration
Committees. Derek will assurme

the role of chair of the board of
Eurocell and chair of the Nomination
Commiitee of Eurocell effective

I July 2022. Derek is also a director
of Woodall Group Limited, a private
company and has several other
private business interests.

Past roles

Derek was Chair of Informa pk from
March 2008 until his retirement on
3 june 2021, He was also Chair of
Hurtsworth plec from December
2014 to March 2019. Previously he
was Chief Executive Officer of Tom
Cobleigh pk and Executive Chair of
Leapfrog Day Nurseries Limited.
Historically he was Chair of East
Midlands Development Agency,
Sport England and British Amateur
Boxing Assodation Limited. He
continues to have business interests
in hospitality in Cornwall and
Derbyshire.

Skills and experience

© Experienced chairman and
entrepreneur with exceptional
leadership skills

© Extensive career in ownership,
marnagerial, operational and
commerdal roles in service
industries

© Wealth of commerdial experience
and excepticnal governance
experience within various sectors

© Promotes robust debate and an
open and engaged culture

-
I

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive

Date of appointment to the Board
| November 2016

Orher current appointments
None

Past roles

Phil was Group Chief Executive
Officer of Cable & Wireless
Communications pic from January
2014 urtil its sale to Liberty Globat
plein May 2016. Prior tothis, he was
amember of the board of Centrica
ple from 2000 to 2013 while also
Maraging Director of British Gas
from 2007 to 2013, Managing
Director, Europe from 2004 to
2007 and Group Finance Director
from 2000 to 2004. His prior
non-executive directorships include
IMI ple from 2012 to 2014 and
Kingfisher plc from 2002 to 2010.
His earlier career was in international
roles with BP and Diageo.

Skills and experience

© Executive and non-gxecutive
experience with FTSE 100
companies for over 20 years

© Significant strategic and
commercial experience at both
national and global levels

© Exceptional executive and
leadership experience from across
industry

@ Extensive financial and investment
community experience

© Accountant by profession, with a
master's degree from Oxford
University and an MBA from
INSEAD, Fontainebleau

DocuSign Envelope [D: 7CE5319A-0C81-4123-96D7-4B6B04283488 . Financial statements

Simon Kirkpatrick
Chief Finandial Officer

Date of appointment to the Board
| April 2021

Other current appointrents
None

Past roles

Simon joined Mitie in july 2019 from
Balfour Beatty PLC where he held
anumber of senior finance roles,
including Finance Director for Major
Projects and Group Head of Finangial
Planning & Analysis. He began his
professional career with Emst &
Young where he was a director in
the Energy practice.

Skills and experience

O Significart UK and international plc
experience

@ Proven track record in
transforming complex contracting
businesses

© Exceptional finandal experience
and extensive strategic and
commierdal experience across
a number of sectors

© Qualified as a chartered
accountant with a law degree
from Exeter University

Continued overleaf

Audit Commitice

AC Member

Nomination

MC Committee Mcmber

Remuneration
Committee Member

R4 Sociat Value & Responsible
e Butiness Committee Member

.ComnitmeGuir
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Board of Directors
continued

Baroness Couttie

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Date of appointment to the Board
15 Novemnber 2017

Other current appointments
Philippa is a member of the House
of Lords and a member of the
European Affairs Select Committee,
She is also Deputy Chair of the
Guernsey Financial Services
Commissian and a member of

its tnvestment Committee and
Audit Committee.

Past roles
Philippa led Westminster City
Council from 2012 to 2017. She was
elected to the Coundil in 2006 and
subsequently served as Cabinet
Member for Fnance, Cabinet
Member for Housing and Deputy
Cabinet Member for Children's
Services. She was 2lso a member of
the Polling and Digital Media Select
Committee from 2017 to 2018, and
a member of the Greater London

ity Crime Reduction Board
from 2012 to 2014.
Prior to progressing her career in
pubfic service, Philippa was 2 director
at Citigroup after she left Schroders,
where she headed up its prindpal
finance business. She was also
previously Chief Executive of
Cornerstone Communications and
then PR Consuhtants.

Philippa has served 25 a non-

executive director on several

beards since 2006, including Rayat

Parks and the London Local

Ertterprise Partnership,

Skills and experience

© Extensive experience of the
finandial sector, developing
corporate strategy and executing
change management

© Exceptional experience in both
pubkic and private sectors at the
most senior level

© Ennobled and joined the House of
Lords in 2016

© An honours degree in Psychology
from the University of St Andrews

88 Micie Group pic

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 7CE5318A-0C814123-96D7-4B6B04283488

~

)
Jennifer Duvalier

Independent Non-Executive
Cirector

Date of appointment to the Board
26 Juty 2017

Other current appointments
Jennifer is Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee of Guardian Media
Group pie. Chair of the
Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination and
Cyber Security Committees of NCC
Group plc and Senior Independent
Director and a member of the
Audit and Risk, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees of
Trainline pic. She is also DireClor of
The Cranemere Group Limited
where she is also Chair of the
Sustainability, People & Diversity
Committee, and a member of the
Coundil of the Royal College of Art
where she is also Chair of the
Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Jennifer was Executive Vice

President, People for ARM Holdings

plc, a global technology business,

fram September 2013 1o March

2017 and was also an executive

committee member with

responsibility for people and

internal communications activity.

Skills and experience

®© Leadership development, talent
acquisition and managerment and
succession planning

© Mentoring and coaching

© People strategy, organisation
development and change
management

© Employee engagement and
internal communications

@ Corporate social responsibility

© Exeartive remuneration and
performance management
experience

© Executive tearmn and Board
effectiveness

© MA {Hons) in English and French
from the University of Oxford

Annual Repart and Accounts 2022
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Chet Patel

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Date of appointment to the Board
| April 2022

Orther current appaintments
With over 15 years' commerdial
experience at BT Group, Chet is
currently Chief Commerdial Officer
& Managing Director, Americas,

BT Global.

Chet is als0 a non-executive advisor
for a tech start-up and a law firm.

Past roles

Chet was non-executive director
at London First between 2013 and
2017 He was also a non-executive
member of the London Enterprise
Panel between 2013 and 2016.

Prior to joining the BT Group in
2006, Chet worked for Charles
Schwab. '

$kills and experience

© Commercial expertise in the B28
service environment, promating
growth and sales strategies

© Expertise in business technology.
cyber security, business
transformation, commerdal
and marketing

© An MBA from Henley
Management College

@ An honours degree in Economics
& Politics from University of Leeds

Mary Reilly

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Date of appointment to the Board
| September 2047

Other cyrrent appointments
Mary is Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Audit Committee
of Essentra plc, an intermational
supplier of specialist plastic, fibre,
foam and packaging products. She is
also Independent Non-Executive
Director of Gemfiekds Group
Limited and an the board of

Mar Holdco S.ar!, a privately held
Luxembourg company. Her current
trusteeships include the Invictus
Games Foundation, PDSA and
Crown Agents International
Development.

Past roles
Mary was Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Audit Committee
of Travelzoo from 2013 to 2022 and
Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Audit Committee of Ferrexpo
pic. an iron ore mining compary.
fror 2015 to 2019. She was also
Non-Executive Director and Chair
of the Audit & Risk Committee of
the UK Depariment for Transport
and of Crown Agents Limited, an
imernationat development company,
from 2013 to 2017. Prior to this, she
was Non-Executive Director of
Cape pic, a global industrial services
company, from 2016 1o 2017, She has
served as a non-executive director
on several ather boards since 2000,
She was a partner in Deloitte LLP
(and predecessor firms) for over
25 years. She was an audit partner in
the UK spedalising in manufacturing,
lxury retail and business services.
She also headed 2 unit offering
outsourdng capability,
Skills and experience
@ Exceptional audit, risk
management and assurance
experience
@ Accourting, finance and
international experience
© Chartered accountant, with a
degree in History fram University
College London



Salma Shah

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Date of appointment to the Board
t April 2022

Qtcher current appointments
Salma is a Partner at Portland
Communications, advising cients
on public policy and public affairs
tommunications.

Past roles

Saima held Spedal Advisor roles in
several Government departments
between 2014 and 2019 Prior to
this, she worked as a News &
Political Programmes Producer
for BBC News,

Skills and experience

© Public sector expertise

9 Extensive experience in public
policy, public affairs and
communications

© An honours degree in Journalism
& Politics from University of
Salford

L/

Roger Yates
Senior Independent Director

Date of appointment to the Board
| March 2018

Other current appointments
Roger is Non-Executive Director
of Bigtech Growth Trust Ple.

He is Senior Independent Director
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee of Jupiter Fund
Management plc. He is also Senior
Independent Director and Chair
of the Remuneration Committee
of St James’s Place plc.

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset
management at GT Management in
1981 and held positions of increasing
seniority at Morgan Grenfell, LGT
and Invesco. He served as Chief
Executive of Henderson Group plc
from 1999 to 2008 and as Chiefl
Executive of Unicredit’s asset
managememnt arm, Pioneer
Irvestments, from 2010 to 2012 and
as Chairman from 2012 ta 2017.

Roger's non-executive roles have
included F&C Investments, IG Group
plc, Electra Private Equity plc and
JPMargan Elect ptc.
Skills and experience
© Substantial board experience
© Strong business track record
© Exceptional knowdedge of the
finance and investment community
@ MAin Modern History from
Worcester College, University
of Oxford
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Peter Dickinson

Chief of Staff, General Counse!
& Company Secretary

Date of appeintment
& March 2017

Other current apptintments
None

Past roles

Peter was a partner at the global law
firm Mayer Brown International LLP
(and its predecessor firm}) between
1995 and 2017 and played a leading
role in developing the firm’s
Technology. Media and Telecoms
{TMT) practice.

From 2015 unt! March 2017, Peter
co-headed Mayer Brown's global
Technology Transactions practice.
Between 2005 and 2015, he was the
head of Mayer Brown's Corporate
practice in London and, in addition,
between 2008 and 2015, he was the
co-head of Mayer Brown's global
Corporate practice.

Skills and experience

© Substantial experience of
previding legal, regulatory and
commenrdal advice at board level

@ Significant experience advising on
corporate merger and acquisition
transactions, joint ventures and
other significant commerdial
transactions, including large-scale
multiHurisdictional cutsourcing
projects

Q Qualified solidtor with a degree in
law from Sauthampton University

AC

NPel MNorination
Committee Member

[9ell Remuneration
Committee Member

[l Soxial Value & Responsible
% Business Committec Member

. Commitice Chair
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Board leadership and Company purpose

Governance framework

The Company’s formal governance framewark
underpins the Compary's operations. In addition
10 the three main Board Committees, the
Company has a Social Value & Responsible
Business Committee, Disclosure Committee
and an informal Bid Committee.

The Sodial Value & Responsible Business
Committee is chaired by Baroness Couttie,

an Independent Non-Executive Director.

tts members indude a second independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chief of Staff,
General Counsel & Company Searetary, Chief
Government & Strategy Officer, Group HR
Director, Head of Media Relations. Managing
Director of Business Services and Managing
Director of Care & Custody. The Social Vaiue &
Responsible Business Committee met five times
during FY22. s purpose is to drive the Group's
sodial value and responsible business agenda
and ensure the Group conducts its business in

a commerdally responsible way. Further detail
on the activities of the Committee during the
year can be found on pages 131 to 132

The Disclosure Committee is chaired by the
Chief Executive. lts members include the
Chairman, Chief Financiat Officer, Chief of Staff.
Generat Counsel & Compary Secretary and
the Deputy General Counsel. The Disclosure
Committee met three times during FY22,

lts purpose is to assist and inform dedisions

of the Board concerning the identification of
inside information and make recommendations
about how and when the Company should
disclose that information in accordance with
the Company's disdosure policy.

The Bid Committee is chaired by the Chief
Exeautive. its members include the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief of Staff, General Counsel
& Compary Secretary, Chief Government &
Strategy Officer and members of the sales team.
The Bid Committee met weekly during FY22
Its purpose is to consider material bid
submissions and to determine whether such
bids meet the Group's financial, commercial

and legal objeciives.

Terms of Reference for the Company's formal

Committees are available at www.mitie.com/
investors/corporate-governance.,

Company purpase

As detailed on page 2 of the Strategic report.
the Compary's purpose is that: our expertise,
care, technology and insight create amazing
work ervironmerits, helping our customers
be exceptional. every day.

Purpose of the Board

The purpose of the Board is to provide
leadership and direction to the Group’s
management within a framework of controls

90 Mitie Group pic
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Purpose: to evaluate and Purpose: to monitor the Purpose: to determine and
make recommendations integrity of the Group’s review the Compary's
regarding the composition, financial reporting, review the  remuneration policy and
diversity. experience, effectiveness of the Group's monitor its implementation.
knowledge, skills and internal controls and evaluate  Read more on pages |15
independence of the Board the performance of the to 130.

and its Committees. Read
more on pages 104 1o 106,

internal audit function and
external auditor, Read more

on pages |07 to |14.

Mitie Group Execuuve {(MGX)

Members of the executive team, who include senior members of management from each
business unit and central Group functions, meet weekly to discuss and implement the Group's
strategic objectives. The Board is updated on matters discussed at MGX meetings at Board
meetings as part of the Chief Executive’s regular update paper. and on an ad hoc basis

as required,

Busincss divisions

Business Services, Central Government & Defence, Communities, Technical Services and

Specialist Services.

which enable risk to be adequately assessed

and managed. The Board is responsible and
accountable to shareholders for the sustainable
long-term success of the Compary. Subject to
UK company {aw and the Articles of Assodation,
the Directors may exerdse al the powers of
the Company, may delegate autharityto
Committees and may delegate day-to-day
management and decision-making to individual
Executive Directors. The purpose of each Board
Committee is summarised above and set out in
more detail in the Committee report.

Matters reserved for the Board

A schedule of key matters and responsibilities

that are to be dealt with exdusively by the

Board is maintained and regularty reviewed.

The schedule was last reviewed by the Board

in January 2022

The key responsibilities of the Board indude:

© Approve the Group's long-term cbjectives
and commercial strategy

© Establish the Group's purpose and values and
satisfy itself that these, its strategy and cuhture
are aligned

Review performance in light of the Group's
strategy. ohijectives, business plans and
budgets

@ Approve the half-yearly financal report and
Annual Report

© Approve the annua! budget, treasury policies
and dividend policy

© Review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control processes

© Approve all material acquisitions, material
disposals, and material contractual and other
operational matters

© Ensure adequate succession planning for the
Board and senior management

© Undertake a formal and rigorous review
annually of its own performance and that of
its Committees and individual Directors

© Make arrangements for dialogue with
sharehoiders, canvassing shareholder opinion
and engagement with shareholders in relation
1o any sharehotder resolution which is
opposed by more than 20% of the votes cast

Board meeting process

The Chairman is responsible for setting the
Board meeting agenda and for ensuring that

the style and tone of Boardroom discussions
promote effective dedsion-making and
constructive debate.

Each Board meeting agenda is produced in
congultation with the Chairman using items from
a yearly meeting planner, actions arising from
prioe meetings, project progress updates and
any relevant governance and regulatory matters.
lterns may also be added to the agenda at the
request of a Board member or i response to
emerging issues,
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Board composition dashboard

Gender diversity as at 31 March 2022

Director age range as at 31 March 2022

@ female @ 41-50 |
@ Male 4 @® 51-60 2
® s1-70 3
@ 71-80 [

Director independence as at 3| March 2022 Director tenure as at 3| March 2022
@ Chairman 1 @ Less than 4 years I
@ Executive 2 @ 4-5years 5
@ Independent 4 @ 5-6years I

Director attendance at meetings of the Board and its Committees

Nomination Audic Remuneration
_P;lil_tion Mame Board C i C itcee Committee
Chairrnan Derek Mapp 6/6 112 - -
Executive Directors _ Phil Bentley 616 - - -
Simon Kirkpatrick 6/6 - - -
Independent Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* . 5/5 0/l n -
Mon-Executive Baroness Couttie®* 416 0 618 -
Directors - - ‘
Jennifer Duvalier 6/6 12 - 5/5
Mary Railly (1] i 8/8 SI5
Roger Yates 6/6 M 8/8 515

* Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat resigned from the Board on 17 Febeuyary 2022,
** Baroness Couttie was unable to attend some meetings due to ill-health.

Attentjon is given to timings for each agenda
rtern to ensure that adequate time is allocated
for effective discussion and debate.

To allow sufficient time for the Directors to
review Board meeting materiaks and seek ary
darification needed ahead of the meeting,
Board meeting materials are distributed 1o the
Directors not less than five dear calendar days
prior to the meeting via 4 secure electronic
Board portal.

To ensure that Board meeting materials are
of a cansistent high standard, Board paper
guidelines and templates are issued to authors
of those materials.

An important element of Mitie's cutture is

that the Group operates as ‘One Mitie’ and
collaborates effectively across business areas.
Mitie's culture faciltates greater consistency in
processes and information control which in turn

facilitates the preparation of consistent,
high-quality and relevant Board meeting
materials. Authors of Board meeting materials
seek to appropriately consider the impact, views
and needs of key stakeholder groups, as well as
the likely consequences of decisions in the long
term, helping to aid Board discussions and
decision-making.

The Chairman ensures that all Directors feel
they can voice their opinion, be listened to and
contribute to the decision-making process.

Function heads and members of management
are invited 1o attend Board meetings to present
their items 10 the Board and answer questions.

Advice of the Company Secretary
All Directors have access to the advice of the
Company Secretary through various channels,
including the Chief of Staff. General Counsel &

Company Secretary’s Board report, which is
preserited at every Board meeting, and a secure
electronic Board portal which is kept up to date
with the latest governance-related information,
and guidance. The Chief of Staff, General
Counsel & Company Secretary and Company
Secretaniat team are also available to the
Directors on an ad hoc basis as required. The
Chief of Staff, General Counsel & Company
Secretary helps the Board ensure it has the
appropriate policies, processes, information,
time and rescurces it needs in order to function
effectively and efficiently.

The Board is responsible for the appointment
and, where applicable, removal of the
Cornpany Secretary.

Mitie Group plc 9]
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Stakeholder engagement

Stakeholder engagement
mechanisms and Section 172(1)
statement

The Board acknowledges the importance of
forming and retaining sound relationships with
alf stakeholder groups. Accordingly. the Board
reviewed and discussed the Group's key
stakeholders along with the engagement
mechanisms in place to ensure that they support
effective, two-way communication. These are
kept under periodic review to ensure ongoing
effectiveness. The Board maintains a stakeholder
map which is used to support the Board’s
reporting requirements under Section 172(1) of
the Companies Act 2006. More details on the
Group's stakeholder engagement mechanisms
can be found on pages 30 to 32. Details of
stakeholder activities undertaken by the Board
<an be found on page 93. Detaits of activities
undertaken by Jennifer Duvalier in her role as
designated Non-Executive Director responsible
for oversight of the Board's engagement with
the workforce can be found on pages 98 to 99.

Mitie's Section 17X{1) statement detailing how
the Board has engaged with the Group's
stakeholders and approached decisions made
during the year can be found in the Strategic
report on pages 81 to 82,

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board is committed to ongoing and
proactive dialogue with shareholders. A full
programme of formal and informal events,
institutional irvestar meetings and presentations
is held throughout the year. This programme of
shareholder engagement aims to ensure that
the performance, strategies and objectives of
the Group are dearly communicated to the
investment community and provides a forum for
institutional shareholders to address any issues.
Mitie engages proactively with the investment
community and sell-side and buy-side analysts
and accommodates requests for meetings and
calfs with senior management from existing and
potential institutional investors. The programme
is led by the Executive Directors with support
from the Investor Relations team.

The Board is regularty kept informed of investor
feedback, stockbroker updates and detailed
analyst reports. A Board report is prepared by
the Group IR Director for every Board meeting
as set out under Boardroom discussions on
page 95. The Chairman is responsible for
ensuring that the Board is made aware of any
issues or concerns of major shareholders. and
the Chairman and Senior Independent Director
are available to meet with shareholders upon
request. Committee chairs seek engagement
with shareholders on significant matters related
1o their area of responsibility.
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2022 Annual General Meeting

Mitie's Annual General Meeting (AGM] will be
held on 26 July 2022 at [1.30am at Level {2,
The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London
SEI 95G and on an electronic platform.

The Board recognises that the AGM isan
imnportant event in the Company's corporate
calendar, providing an opportunity to engage
with shareholders. Therefore, to maximise
engagement, the Companty will hold the AGM
as a2 combined physicaf and electronic meeting
(a hybrid meeting). This will enable shareholders
to attend the AGM remotely and to vote and
ask questions in real time. Shareholders will
be able 1o attend and vote at the AGM using
electronic fadilities and ask questions using
either the telephone or electronic facilities —
instructions on how to do this are set outin
the Natice of AGM.

The Board also encourages shareholders 1o
appoint the chairman of the AGM as their proxy
and provide vating instructions in advance of the
meeting in accordance with the instructions set
out in the Notice of AGM.

Resources for shareholders and

other stakeholders

Mitie has a specific area dedicated to investor

relations on its website {www.mitie.com/

investors) where the information detailed

below can be found:

© Latest results including half-year and full-year
results presentations

© Financial reports and calendar

©® Shareholder information

© Share price tools

© Corporate governance information

© Reguiatory announcements
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Dizlogue with shareholders

N

A 4

2021 Board activiues: stakehelder engagement
The Chairman, Apr —Jul
accompanied by an Engagement meetings Apr
Independent Non- were held with a significant
Cxewulive Director. met proportion of major
alltop 10 shareholders shareholders on
as part of an annual remuneraton policy
roadshow. matiers.
Following publication Following publication of Meeting was held with Jun —Jul
of the FY2( resuhts, Jun  theFY2l results, aVirtual  banks and noteholdersta  Team Talk Live 2021 ook
one-to-one meetings Town Hall event was held,  present FY2) results. place, with all colleagues
were held with with all colleagues invited imvited to join. Further
institutional investors. 1o join. : _detail can be found on
: page 38.
The 202} Annual General Meeting was held in London as a Jul - Aug :
combined physical and electronic meeting (@ hybrid meeting). — Jyr Meetings were held with
At the meeting, all resolutions passed. with more than 70% banks to discuss revolving
of the votes cast in favour: The resolutions which received credit faciity refinancing
a vate of more than 20% against {as a percentage of the
riurnber of votes cast) were in respect of the remuneration
report, remuneration policy, authority to disapply
pre-emption rights for the purposes of acquisitions and - .
capital investments and the Enhanced Delivery Plan (EDP). Aug :a:‘it;:gnd%nxﬁr;:;
The Campany undertook extensive consultation with major 10 present management
shareholders pricr to the AGM regarding remuneration information pack.
matters and some changes were made to the final EDP
1o reflect shareholder feedback. The Board has a dear
understanding of the reasons why a minarity of shareholders
were not supportive of the EDP, One major shareholder "
voted against the resolution related to the authority to Visit to Manchester
disapply pre-emnption rights for the purposes of acquisitions Sept Ta&n:@! Services
and capital investments and the Board has a clear Operating Centre (T5OC).
understanding of their rationale for not supporting this .
resolution. The Board apprediated the level of engagement
with many shareholders,
Cabinet Office Strategic Meeting was held with
Oct Supplier Annual Review. noteholders to discuss
US Private Placement
refinancing.
Following publication Following publication Hosted a ‘Decarbonising
of the HY22 results, Nov  of the HY22 results, a the Public Built Estate’
meetings were held with Virtual Town Hall event event with politidans,
a significant proportion was held, with all senior civil servants,
of major shareholders. colleagues invited to join.  experts and inckestry
leaders to discuss the
2022 drive towards Net Zero.
Ad hae meetings were Town Hall event for
held with institutional and feb  Colleaguesin Bristol with
retail investors throughout Executive Directors and
the year, including other MGX members
attendance at investment in attendance.
conferences.
Town Hall event for
Mar  colleagues at Manchester
TSOC, with all Board
members in attendance.
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Strategy and the

Setting strategy

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for

the Group on an annual basis and reviews

aspects of strategy at Board meetings during

the year. The Board considers a wide range of

matters when setting Group strategy. induding,

but not limited to:

© Market overview

© Customer trends

© Competitor environmeri

® Investor sentiment and shareholder returns

© Divisional business strategies

© Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
and sustainability

© Finance

@ Pegple and talent

Strategic pillar: grow Mitie

Disposal of
Dacument
Management

DocuSign Envelope ID: TCES319A-0C81-4123-9607-4B6B04263488

Boardroom

A strategy day was held in September 202! and
was attended by Board members. On the day,
the Board debated intervention and investment
plans for achieving Mities strategic imperatives
of growth, enhanced margin, cash generation
and accelerated enablers.

How governance contributes to
the delivery of strategy

Details of how opportunities and risks to the
future success of the business have been
considered and addressed can be found in the
Strategic report on pages 2210 25, 46 10 49
and 66 to 77. Detalls of the sustainability of
the Company's business model can be found
in the Strategic report on pages 28 to 29,
Mtie’s governance framework underpins the
delivery of strategy and can be found on

page 90. An overview of Mitie's strategy can be
fourd in the Strategic report on pages 6to 12,

businesses to allow reinvestment in higher growth opportunities.

Boardroom discussions

The Board held six formal scheduled meetings
during FY22. Individual Director attendance
at each meeting and a timeline setting out
stakeholder related events attended by
mermbers of the Board can be found on

pages 91 and 93 respectively.

In undertaking their duties. the Directors act in
a way they consider. in good faith, will be most
likely to promote the success of the Compary
for fts shareholders as a whole, having regard
also to other stakeholders.

Further detail on Boardroomn discussions relating
to certain key Board decisions can be found in
the Section 172(1) statement on pages 81 to B2.

The Board debated and approved the disposal of Mitie's Dacurnent Managernent business to Swiss Past Solutions which
cempleted on 30 September 2021.
The sale of Mitie's Document Management business aligned with the Group's strategy of realising value from non-core

Acquisidon of DAEL  The Board debated and approved the acquisition of DAEL Ventures which completed in August 2021, P2ML which completed

Ventures, P2ML and
8point8

in April 2022 and BPoint8 which completed in May 2022.
The acquisition of DAEL Vertures, PZML and 8Point8 broadened Mitie's scale and expertise in the fast-growing telecoms

sector and aligned with the Group’s growth and margin enhancement strategies.

Strategic pillar: margin enhancement

Integration synergies Regular updates on integration activities were delivered 1o the Board and discussed at meetings. These induded updates in
relation to finance, people. property and technology integration initiatives.

Project Forcé

infrastructure for Engineering Services.

The Board was regularly updated on Project Forté, the digital transformation and modernisation of the technology

Procurement savings The Board was regularly updated on key improvement projects aimed at standardising and improving Mitie's procurement
policy and processes as part of the integration of Interserve,

Annual operating
plan

Strategic pillar: generate cash

Revalving credit

The Board reviewed and approved the Group's annual operating plan for FY23 in March 2022,

The Board approved a new £150m revolving credit facility for a period of four years from October 2021, with the option to

facilicy extend for a further year. The new revolving aredit facility replaced a £250m facility which was amended and extended in the
early days of the COVID- IS pandemic in june 2020 and is on significantly mare favourable terms.

US Private The Board debated and approved the issuance of €i20m of US Private Placement nates. The new notes wiil be formally issued

Placement under a delayed funding arrangement in Decerber 2022 avoiding overlap with the existing £121.5m of notes that mature in
Decernber 2022, The new notes are spiit equally between 8, [0 and 12 year maturities and will be issued at an average coupon
of 294%, significantly below the current coupon.

Dividend The Board reviewed and approved the reintroduction of an interim dividend paymentt. In doing so, the Board considered the

Group's cash generation and performance of the underlying business, which had returned to pre-COVID levels, and noted
that furtough support received for colleagues at Mrtie's own operations had been repaid.

o4 Mitie Group plc
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Capability enablers: ‘Greart place to work' %

Employee
engagement

The Board received and discussed the results of the spring 2021 employee engagement survey, Upload, and identified areas
for improvement action to be taken in FY22. Further information can be found on page 97.

The Board was updated on Mitie's virtual engagement festival, Team Talk Live 2021, including employee feedback on the event
and engagement data.

Diversity and
inctusion

The Board was regularly updated on Mitie's bespoke conscious inclusion programme, Count Me In, and activities undertalcen
throughout FY22 by Mitie's diversity networks.

Employee voice in
the Boardroom

Jennifer Duvatier is Mitie's designated Non-Executive Director responsible for oversight of the Board's engagement with

the workforce.

She vaiced what she heard and learnt from frontline employees at employee listening sessions and discussed key themes with
the Board. After each cmployee event, Jennifer also shared 2 summary of speafic tems of feedback with the Board.

Further information on Jennifer’s activities in this role can be found on pages 98 1o 99.

People Moves The Board was updated on the People Moves project which involved the transition of all legacy Interserve colleagues
project onto Mitie HR systemns. Transferred colleagues have access to Mitie’s HR systems and access to benefits available 1o all
Mitie employees.
Capability enablers: Science of Service (Technology) qﬁa

SAP implementacion  The Board was regularly updated on the project to move Technical Services off the Gracle finance platform and interserve

off the AX12 finance platform onto SAP. Moving towards one finance platform across Mitie brings better control as it
allows greater automation and control of transaction processes.

Client technology
Journey

The Board was updated on the rofi-out of Mitie's award-winning, cutting-edge Connected Workspace technalogy on legacy
Interserve contracts.

Capability enablers: decarbonisation

!

Acquisition of Rock
Power Connections
(Rock)

The Board debated and approved the acquisition of Rodk whith completed on 3 October 2021.

The acquisition of Rock enhances Mitie's ability to offer a truly end-to-end sofution to meet customers’ Net Zero goals, and to
capture a greater share of the fast-growing high voltage electric vehidle charging market.

The atquisition of Rock was in line with Mitie’s strategy of investing in high growth, high return businesses within the energy space.

Net Zero estate

The Board was updated on progress towards achieving Mitie’s commitment to a Net Zero estate by 2025. This induded
achievementt of Mitie’s target of four Net Zero properties by the end of FY22.

Standing agenda items:
Commictee updates At every Board meeting a verbal update was provided by the chair of each Board Committee. Updates included an overview

of any Committee meetings and any recommendations from the Carmmittee requiring approval by the Board.

Chief Executive's
update

At gvery Board meeting the Chief Executive presented a paper on topics such as:

© Business highlights

© Sales and marketing

@ Information systems and technology

@ Key project and divisional updates

The Chief Executive's update paper incorporates matters refating to strategy and matters discussed at MGX meetings and
8id Committee meetings.

Chief Financial
Officer’s update

At every Board meeting the Chief Financial Officer presented on topics such as:

© Finandal performance of the Group

© Interserve finance integration

© Refinancng

Further detail about the refinancing can be found under ‘Revelving credit fadility’ and ‘US Private Placement’ abave,

Chief of Scaff,
General Counsel &
Company Secretary’s
update

At every Board meeting the Chief of Staff, General Counsel & Company Secretary presented a paper on topics such as:
© QHSE performance and statistics

© Fleet road safety and electric vehicle numbers

© HR and colleague-related matters

© Diversity and inclusion network activities

@ Internal and external communications

@ Whistleblowing

© Governance and regulstory matters

investor relations

An investor relations repart was presented at every Board meeting on topics such as:
© Share price performance

© Investar engagement and feedback

© ESG ratings

© Analyst research and consensus

© Share register analysis

© Sector news

Mitie Group plc a5
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Culture at Mitie
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Culture at Mitie is underpinned by its purpose: Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create amazing work environments, helping our

customers be exceptionzl, every day.

Mitie is 2 people business, offering facifities
management services that are driven by Mitie
colleagues, Mitie’s vision is to be the destination
emplayer in the facilities management industry,
creating a ‘Great place to work’, and a truly
inclusive culture where our people are supported
1o achieve their potential. Further detail can be
found in the People section on pages 37 to 40.

All Directors lead by example and proamote the
desired cufture,

Alignment of remuneration
and culture

Successful pecple and organisations are dear
about what they want to achieve, how they are
going 1o get there and their progress along the
way. The annual empioyee appraisaf (MiReview)
process allows Mitie to set SMART objectives in
areas that realfy ada value to the business, build
development plans that help colleagues achieve
their objectives and personal developmentt goals,
and ensure pay reviews are carried outina
transparent way, related directly 1o indvidual
performance.

Details on Mitie’s approach to investing in and
rewarding its workforce are set out on pages 37
1o 40 and Mitie's Real Living Wage commitment
on page 37.

Ethics

Mitie is committed to pramoting diversity

and equality. efiminating discrimination and
encouraging inclushvity among colleagues.

All colleagues are required to adhere to Mitie’s
key ethics and compliance polices, which include
the Employee Handboolk, Ethical Business
Practice Policy. People Policy and Inclusion Policy.
Colleagues are encouraged 10 report any
behaviours that they believe do not comply with
the policies or do not meet the standards of
conduct expectad at Mitie. Channels for raising
any such concerns indude Mitie's independent
whistleblowing service, line managers, Peaple
Support or directly with the Chief Executive via
ermafl to Grill Phil. Mitie’s award-winining conscious
inclusion development campaign, Count Me In,
is available to all colleagues and continued
throughout FY22. During the year, a new
module ‘Indusive Leader’ was incorporated into
Mitie's Licence to Lead programme. The new
madule explores what indusivity is, and why it i
important in leadership and identifies practical
steps leaders can take to create an indusive
cutture. Further details on Mitie's Count Mg in
programme can be found on page 39.

CMA Investigation

As announced on 4 March 2022 the
Competition and Markets Authority (CMA)
launched an investigation into the participation
by Mitie, Mitie Care and Custody Limited and
PAE incorporated in the ongoing procurement
processes run by the UK Governmentt (Home

g6 Micie Group plc
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Office) for the contracts to supply certain
services at Heathrow and Derwentside
mmigration Removal Centres (IRC) in'the UK.
Mitie withdrew from the Derwentside IRC
tender process, without submitting a bid, due
to the Horne Office’s lotting” conditions, which
would have prevented a single bidder from
winning both contracts. Mitie confirmsg that

it remains engaged in the Heathrow IRC
tender process, through Mitie Care and
Custody Limited.

Mitie strongly condermns anti-competitive
practices and is co-operating fully with the CMA
and the investigation. Mitie is confident that it has
o case to answer and will be fully exonerated.

How the Board assesses and
monitors culture

Mitie’s care values help define the behaviours

of its people and underpin its vision of The
Exceptional, Every Day An important element of
Mitie's culture is establishing a ‘'One Mitie" way of
operating across the business. The ‘One Mitie'
way leads 10 consistent, high-quality and relevant
information flows across the business.

These information flows, together with direct
engagement from each business, are key to the
Board's oversight of cultural matters. Mitie akso
measures severat non-financial KPls such as staff
tumnover, employee engagement, Net Promoter
Score and lost time injury frequency rate, which
allow trends and changes to be identified and
monitored.

In March 2022. all Board members attended

an in-person Town Hall event to speak to
employees face to face. Jennifer Duvalier, Mitie's
designated Non-Executive Director responsible
for workforce engagement, also undertook a full
programme of in-person and virtual employee
listening sessions throughout the year. Further
details of jennifer’s role and activities can be
found on pages 98 10 99.

Several all-empicyee virtual events were also
hosted throughout the year by the Executive
Directors and members of the MGX, some of
which were also attended by Non-Executive
Directors. Virtual events held induded the ability
for employees 1o ask questions of management
viz a chat bax (znonyrmously if preferred). Details
of Team Talk Live 2021, Mitie's virtual employee
engagement festival of events, can be found on
page 38.

Set out below are further examples of how the
Board monitors cutture:

Whistleblowing

Mitie has an independent whistleblowing service,
‘Speak Up', to enable empicyees, customers,
suppliers and third parties to report any concerns
or wrongdoing anonymously without any fear of
retaliation, During FY21, the Group moved to
awhistieblowing service platform, EthicsPoint

which is managed by an independent third-party
service provider, Navex Global. The service can
be accessed via a freephane hotline number and
a web portal, details of which are made available
1o employees in muliple languages via workplace
posters, our Employee Handbook, Intranet

and MitiePeople com. The service ¢an also be
accessed by customer and supplier personnel as
well as members of the public with details being
provided via www.rritie.com.

The whistleblowing service and related internal
procedures are structured to ensure that

ali reports are reviewed and investigated
independentfy from the area of the business to
which they refate, thereby minimising the risk
of conflicts arising. All reports are copiedto
and reviewed by 2 central Whistleblowing
Investigation Group which indudes Deputy
General Counsel and senior mermbers of the
Group's internal Audit function. This helps to
ensure transparency and enables any trends to
be identified and addressed.

An update on whistleblowing activity s provided
to the Board at every Board meeting and to the
MGX as appropriate. The update to the Board
indudes details of incident reports received in
the period between meetings as well as details
of ongoing investigations. The introduction of
EthicsPaint has provided improved reporting
capabifities, including the ability to report by
business division and by investigation status/
outcomne. This improved functionality enhances
the Board's ability to eflectively track the
progress of investigations and to monitor and
address trends across individual business units
and the Group as a whole.

QHSE/LiveSafe

The health and safety of its people is the highest
priority for Mitie as a business. Mitie is constartly
striving to develop a zere-harm workplace.
Coordinated by Mitie's QHSE team, the LiveSafe
programme was launched in Decernber 2018,
This highlights the importance of workplace
safety and was developed out of the nead to
constartly improve QIHSE performance across
the business.

During £Y22. the Board was updated on Mitie’s
first ‘LiveSafe Zero Harm Week' which involved
QHSE leaders from acrass the business taking to
the virtual stage to highlight QHSE focus areas.
including mental health, weilbeing. environmenta!
compliance and fleet safety. Mitie colleagues
were inwited to get involved by joining events
and sharing safety stories.

Colleagues’ perception of workplace safety

at Mitie i high, with four in five colleagues

wha responded to Mitie's annual employee
engagement survey agreeing that it is importam
at Mitie.

A non-finandal QHSE KP! is included in the
Group's reporting. the lost time injury frequency
rate (read more on page |8).
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2021 Ugload survey

Mitie's annual employee engagement survey, Upload, provides feedback that can be acted upon by management to improve the experience of working
at Mitie. The results of the survey provide the Board with 2 Group-wide snapshot of how emplovees rate Mitie's culture and employee engagement.
A timeline with detafls of how this information reaches and 15 considered by the Board can be found below.

Dace Action

April - May 2021

The 2021 Upload engagement survey was launched. The survey was open to all emplayees, was translated into various

different languages and could be completed through several different mediums to enable maximum participation.

June 2021

Survey results were presented to the Board at its June 2021 meeting and focus areas for improvement were identified.

Further detail on focus areas can be found in the table befow.
As Mitie's designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement, Jennifer Duvalier worked closely with
management to analyse the results of the survey. Further detail on Jennifer’s activities in this role can be found on

pages 9810 99.

July 2021 — February 2022

Next steps and plans to address the matters raised from the 2021 Upload survey were established.

Initiatives taken in response to the survey, details of which can be found in the table below, were communicated to
colleagues throughout the year.

Early March 2022

The "You Said, We Did’ campaign was launched to highlight steps undertaken by management during the year in

addressing the areas identified. The campaign was communicated to colleagues through several different mediums.
Colleagues were actively encouraged to respond with further feedback on how the intiatives were progressing and
their thoughts on the impact that the initiatives were having, both positive and negative. This additional feedback
allowed management to review, consider and shape the initiatives to ensure that they continued to effectively address
the matters raised in the Upload survey.

Upload survey insights and actions taken

Upload survey insights (You Said)

Action taken (We Did)

Reward 2nd recognition

© Determine the right benefits for frontline
colleagues

@ Improve instant recognition offering

© Awarded free shares to all Mitie colleagues in May 202

© Relaunched Mitie's all-employee Share incentive Pian in October 2021, increasing the
matching share ratic 1o give colleagues one matching share for every two partnership
shares acquired

© Launched enhanced maternity and adoption pay in November 2021

© Introduced a new sabbaticals procedure in November 202

© Launched a benefits advent calendar in December 2021 with over 100 prizes won

by colleagues

A ‘Great place to work'

© Deliver and promote Mitie's ESG commitrments

© Continue to improve learning and development
offering

© Target set for Mitie to have a3 Net Zero estate by 2025

© ESG-related content featured in weekly Recap email newsletters sent to colleagues
throughout the year

© Created a catalogue of e-learning courses to help colleagues navigate Mitie's digital offering

© Learning Hub licences provided to all Mitie colleagues (former Interserve frontline
colleagues hadn't had these previousiy)

Empowerment and autonomy
© Listen to colleagues and continue 1o give them
a voice

© Fuli programme of activities, including listening sessions, undertaken by Jennifer Duvalier in
her role as designated Non-Exeautive Director for workforce engagement
© You Said, We Did campaign following Upload survey

Systems, processes and technology

© Improve self-serve support and laptop monitoring

@ Integrate people systems to speed up data
processes

© Redesigned Mitie’s T support hemepage, highlighting FAQS with the use of self-help videos
© Rolled out over 3,000 laptops, delivering improvernents in memory and performance
© Migrated over 11,000 colleagues onto WorkPlace+

Senior leadership ceam
© Ensure senior teadership is visible and accessible

© Al colleagues were invited to join Tear Talk Live 2021, Mitie’s virtual employee
engagement festival of events, which was held across June and july 2021, As part of Team
Talk Live 2021, colleagues had the opportunity to join members of the MGX and Mitie
Leadership Team over breakfast or lunch to get to know them better and ask questions.
Three live 'Grill Phil' events were also held. with the Chief Executive available to answer
questions from colleagues

© Mitie’s Big Equality Summit #3 was also held as part of Team Talk Live 2021, At the summit
MGX members shared feedback they had received from cther colleagues as part of the
Count on Us 'truth teller’ exercise

O Rofled out monthiy managers' cafls across more business divisions

© Held Town Hall event with Executive Directors and other MGX members in Bristal in
February 2022

© Held Town Hall event with the Board in Manchester in March 2022
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Culture at Mitie
continued

Designated NED for workforce
engagernent

Jlennifer Duvatier is Mitie’s designated Non-
Executive Oirector responsible for oversight of
the Board's engagement with the workforce.
Jennifer participates directly in employee
engagement initiatives and carried out a fuli
prograrmme of activities during FY22. Jennifer
encourages colleagues to share their views and
champions their voice in Board discussions.

Why Jennifer?

Pricr to joining the Board in 2017, Jennifer had
a long career in HR working in several farge,
pecple-driven corpanies going through real
transformation. Jennifer brings this weahth of
experience 1o Mitie and therefore the Board
considered jennifer to be the Board member
most suited to becoming Mitie's designated
Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement.

Jennifer's thoughts

“I have always come away from my visits. in
person and virtual, with a very strong and
positive impression of how dedicated our
frontiine colleagues are o supporting our
customers, in very challenging circumstances,
and ) emphasise this to my Board colleagues
in my reports back to them.

Given that Mitie is the sum total of our people,
this commitmertt is such a source of strength,
and is to be valued as highly as our other assets.”

Board expectations

The Board is at the forefront of the icurney to
make Mitie 2 ‘Great place to work’ and is keen
o understand the views of afl employees and
the impact fis decisions have on them.

Jennifer engages with the workforce on behalf
of the Board and provides a channel for
cofleagues in the Boardroom. Jennifer regularly
shares what she has heard and learnt with the
Board at Board meetings. using her insights to
add an important perspective to discussions
and decisions. This ensures employee voices
are heard and considered as the Board makes
decisions that influence the fture of Mitie.

A summary of Jenaifer’s discussions is also
shared with the Board ahead of meetings and,
where there are specific matters raised, with
raembers of senior management to ensure
thosc matters are considered and appropriately
addressed.

98 Mitie Group plc
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Jennifer’s site visits

fennifer's role as designated Non-Executive
Director for workforce engagement is
supported by members of Mitie's HR team.
The team approaches account directors and
managers from across the Mitie business to ask
if they would like to host Jennifer at their site.

Details of actions taken in response 1o feedback
received by Jennifer are shared across Mitie's
internal communication channels, including
MiNet and Recap newsletter. In these
communications, colleagues are alsc encouraged
to get in touch if they woulkd like to arrange a
visit with Jennifer for their site.

While each event varies i structure, generally
tennifer has a tour or receives an overview

of the site and a one-to-one meeting with
managers followed by an informal session with
the site teams without managers present. No
specific topics for discussion are provided in
advance, though site teams are advised that
Jennifer would like to hear from them about
their experience of working at Mitie, whether
they have any chailenges, concerns or ideas for
improvement, and the things that they consider
Mitie does well

Jennifer's activities

The Board considers it important that employee
views are heard through several mediums,
induding feadback from managers, surveys,
internal communications and digital channels
(such as Yammer), to develop a positive culture
across the business.

Therefore, as well as the site visits and virtual
listening sessions nated opposite, Jennifer is fully
imvolved in a range of other activitigs, induding
analysing the feedback from Mutie's Upload
surveys and Pukse surveys, championing
employee voice events for the Board and senior
managermnent, spending time with HR teams,
attending listening and virtual Q&A events,

and inviting employees 10 contact her directly
via her Mitie ernail address.

During the COVID-9 pandemic, Jennifer
continued her work by hosting numerous
virtual meetings with employees.

Why the role adds value {over and above
other employee engagement mechanisms)

In carrying out her role, Jennifer meets people
across the business and listens to their views and
experiences to understand first-hand what they
value ahout Mitie and what they would ke to be
different. Being a member of the Board, Jennifer
is also able to instil confidence that employees’
views are being heard at the highest fevel of the
organisation. In analysing the feedback received
from jennifer; the Board can quickly identify any
recurting concerns across the business and
provide assurance that these will be managed
effectively and efficiently.

Jennifer’s fearnings and how the Board has

responded

Themes identified from jJennifer’s listening
sessions include:

© Benefits and recognition

© Technology and access to systems
© Training and tareer progression
© Communications

The wider Board will join Jennifer Duvalier in
running listening sessions during FY23.

Jennifer Duvalier’s activities

2021

Apr

Jun

Sept

2022

Virtual fistening session with
Network Rail colleagues

Virtual listening session with
Falkland lslands colleagues

Virtual listening session with
Thates colleagues

Visit. to Manchester TSOC ang
dinner with Technical Services
leadership team

Virtual iistening session with GSK
(Ware and Barnard Castle)
colleagues

Virtual listening session with
Lioyds Banking Group (Edinburgh)
colieagues

Jan

Feb

Virtual listening session with
University College London
Hospital (UCLH) colleagues

Listening session with frontline
colleagues on reward and
executive remuneration

International Women's Day
‘Exceptional Women in Business’
event at Manchester TSOC



Details of actions taken in response to feedback received are set out below.

Benefits and recognition
Positive feedback

Improvement areas
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Actions taken

New benefits, specifically life assurance, free
shares and the Virtual GP service, were well
received.

Colleagues felt supported thraugh COVID-19.
There was positive acknowledgement of the
support and encouragement for frontline
colleagues to be vaccinated, including
confirmation that hourly paid workers would
be paid for time taken to get vaccinated during
ashif .

Technology and access to systems

Colleagues like the Mitie Stars recognition
schermne, but some feft that the scheme could
be enhanced to act as more of an incentive,
with more generous awards.

Visibility of available benefits was dted as an
issue for some.

Free shares not being available to overseas
colleagues was raised as demctivating in the
Falkland Islands session.

Conducted a reward survey in September 2021.
The 4,000 responses received helped to reshape
Mitie's Stars and long service programmes which
are due to be relaunched in FY23,

Benefits were regularly promoted through
Group communication channels, induding Mitie's
weekly all-colleague email newsletter (Recap).
monthly ine-manager cascade communications
(Download) and Mitie's intranet site (Minet).
Explored options for awarding free shares to
overseas colleagues and made arrangements

for an alternative solution 1o align with the UK
colleague benefit.

New laptops and mobile phones well received
by colleagues who transferred from Interserve,

Training and career progression
Several colleagues applauded the access to
training and development opportunities at
Mitie, Apprenticeships were described as
“more accessible than in the past” with positive
acknowledgement of the encouragement and
support for these from managers.

Communications

Sometimes a delayed response for T support,
and access not always available.

Set up self-service automations to reduce the
need to contact the [T service desk.

Ticketing system wasn't felt to work as efficiently Redesigned Mitie’s IT suppert homepage, as

as it could all of the time.

Poor internet connectivity, hindering ability
10 access corporate information, training and
cther services.

Sorne colleagues raised a lack of darity on
what training is available to themn and how to
access this.

There was a request for the Mitie mentoring
programme to be reinvigorated, as it was
difficult to source mentors from beyond the
account team.

Colleagues would like to have access to tablets
so that those who don't have easy access 1o
technology and/or who lack confidence online
can identify and enrol for training. This was
highlighted in relation to cleaning and catering
colleagues working in frontline roles.

detailed on page 97, in response to Mitie's Upload
2021 survey.
Improved Wi-Fi networks at muftiple sites.

Launched a Learning & Developrment SharePoint
site to help colleagues access Mitie's full Learning &
Development offering. The site was promoted to
colleagues throughaut People Celebration Month,
held in January 2022, o raise awareness.

Plans put in place to launch a Mentoring Hub.
UCLH contract management team purchased six
tablets and docking stations to enable colleagues
1o access the Learning Hub more easily.

Corporate and local communication throughout - Although communication is good, there is 3

the COVID-19 pandemic was felt to have been
very good, with both the level and frequency
of information appropriate, including to those
on furlough.

need to ensure that the communication cascade

process indudes all colleagues, induding those
who don't have access 101T.

Desire for more personalised communication.
Some colleagues felt overwhelmed by

communications and needed more signposting

to what is most relevant for them.

Pians put in place to audit Mitie's internal
communication channels to improve efficacy
and reach.

Launched Pecple Celebration Marth across
Mitie and externally on social media to amplify the
diversity of roles, skills and career opportunities.
This included a week-long focus on frontiine
colleagues.

GSK contract management tearn has introduced
noticaboards with ‘what's going on' to improve
communication on site.
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Division of responsibilities

Board composition

Chairman
Derek Mapp
Executive Directors

Phil Bentley
Siman Kirkpatrick

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director

Roger Yates

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Nivedita Krishnarnurthy Bhagat®
Baroness Couttie

Jennifer Duvalier

Chet Patef**

Mary Reilly

Salma Shah**

* Nivedita Xri Bhagat resigned from the
Board on |7 February 2022 .

&= Chet Patel and Salna Shah were appainted to the
Baoard on | April 2022,

Biographies of the current Directors can be
found on pages 87 to 89.

Mitie Group plc
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All Non-Executive Directors are considered
independent when assessed against the
circumstances set out in Provision [Q of

the Code. The Chairman was considered
independent against these crcumstances

on appointment.

The Board continues to support separation of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive and
considers itself to have an appropriate balance
of Executive Directors and independent
Non-Executive Directors, No one individual
or small group of individuals dominates Board
decision-making.

There is a dear division of respansibilities
between leadership of the Board and executive
management leadership of the Compary's
business. Key responsibilities of the Board, its
Committees and its members are agreed by

the Board and documented in writing.

These responsibilities are summarised below.
Further detail is publicly available at www.mitie.
com/investors/corporate-governance where the
following documents are published:

© Matters reserved for the Board

© Terms of Reference for each Committee of
the Board

© Division of Responsibilities between the
Chairrman and Chief Executive

Chairman

In his role as Chairman, Derek Mapp's

respansibitities include:

© Lead and chair the Board, Nomination
Committee and shareholder general meetings

@ Ensure overall effectiveness of the Board in alt
aspects of its role

© Ensure regularity and frequency of Board
meetings

© Set Board agendas, taking into account the
issues and concerns of all Board members

© Ensure appropriate delegation of authority
from the Board to executive management

© Demonstrate abjective judgement

@ Promote a culture of openness and debate

@ Ensure that Directors receive accurate, timely
and dlear information

© Manage the Board to ensure sufficient time is
allocated to promote healthy discussion and
open debate, supported by the right level and
quality of inforration to assist the Board in
reaching its decisions

© Facilitate the effective contribution of
Non-Executive Directors and encourage
active engagement by all members of
the Board

@ Ensure constructive refations between the
Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors

© Hold meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors without the Executive Directors
present ’

@ Ensure that new Directors participate in a full
formal and tailored induction programme

© Ensure that the performance of the Board,
its Committees and individual Directors is
evaluated at least once a year and act onthe
resutts of such evaluation

@ Maintain sufficient contact with major
shareholders to understand their issues
and concerns

© Ensure that the views of shareholders are
communicated to the Board
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Senior Independent Director

In his role as Senior Independent Directar,
Roger Yates' responsibilities indude:

© Act as a sounding board for the Chairman

© Serve as an intermediary for other Directors
when necessary

© Conduct the Chairman's annual performanze
evaluation (without the Chairman present)

© Lead the appointment process for any new
Chairman

© Act as chairman of the Board in the absence
of the Chairman

© Be available as an atternative point of contact
for shareholders if they have concerns which
have not been resolved through the normal
channels, or for which such contact is
inappropriate in the circumstances

Non-Executive Directors

The responsibilities of the Board’s Noan-
Executive Directors include:

© Hold a prime role in appointing and removing
Executive Directors when necessary

© Scrutinise and hold to account the
performance of management and individual
Executive Directors against agreed
performance abjectives

© Exercise independent skill and judgement

© Constructively challenge proposals based on
relevant individual experience, knowledge
and skills

© Contribute to the formulation and
development of strategy

© Monitor corporate reporting to ensure
integrity of financial information

© Oversee the Group's principal risks and
assurance in place relating to those risks,
including internal audit programmes

© Play a key role in determining the
remuneration policy for the Chairman,
Executive Directors, Chief of Staff, General
Coursel & Company Secretary and the senior
executive team

© Hold a primary role in Board succession
planning

Chief Executive

In his role as Chief Executive, Phil Bentiey's
respansibilities include:

© All aspects of the operation and management
of the Group within the autharities delegated
by the Board

© Develop Group obijectives and strategy,
having regard to the Group's responsibilities
to its shareholders, customers, employees
and other stakehclders

© Successful achievement of objectives and
execution of strategy following presentation
to, and approwval by, the Board

© Recommend to the Board an annual budget
and long-term business plan and ensure their
achievement following Board approval

@ Optimise the use and adequacy of the
Group's resources .

© Manage the Group' risk profile, incduding the
heatth and safety performance of the business

© Make recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee on remuneration policy.
executive remuneration and terms of
employment of the senior executive team

Chief Financial Officer

In his role as Chief Financial Officer, Simon

Kirkpatrick's responsibilities include:

© Lead, direct and oversee all aspects of the
finance and accounting functions of the Group

© Evaluate, approve and advise on the finandal
and commercial impact of material contracts
and transactions {including mergers and
acquisitions), technology investments,
long-range planning assumptions, imvestrment
return metrics, risks and opportunities and
the impact of changes in accounting standards

© Manage relationships with the external
auditor and key financial institutions
and advisars

@ Ensure effective internal controls are in place
and compliance with appropriate accounting
regulations for financial, regulatory and
tax reporting

© Lead, direct and oversee the Group's Finance,
Treasury. Tax and Internal Audit functions

Chief of Staff, General Counsel
& Company Secretary

In his role as Chief of Staff. General Counsel &
Company Secretary, Peter Didkinson's
responsibilities inciude:

© Advise the Board on governance matters
and the Directors on their duties, including
on all aspects of the Group's governance
framework and the application of its
delegated authorities

© Ensure compliance with corparate legislation
and the Company’s Articles of Association

© Support the Baard in ensuring it has the
policies, processes, information, time and
resources needed to function effectivaty
and efficiently

© Lead, direct and oversee the Group's Legal,
Company Secretarial, HR, Pensions, Property.
Procurement, Insurance, Health & Safety, Risk
& Compliance and Sustainability functions

© Identify and recommend to the Board
acquisitions and disposals

© Drive projects relating to mergers and
acquisitions within the Group in line with
authorities delegated by the Board

© Lead, direct and oversee the integration
of Interserve.

Mitie Group plc
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Board effectiveness and evaluation

Board effectiveness

The performance of the Board is an essential Incernal Board evatuation process

companent of the Company's success. The F F ion:
Board undertakes a formal and rigarous Process followed for internal FY22 evatuation:
evaluation of its own performance and that of

the Board Committees, Chairman and individual

) - . Jan Feb Mar
Directors annually. The evaluation considers
composition, diversity and how effectivel X -
members work toge{her to achieve obj eZtives‘ Engagement. scope and The Chairman conducted Findings were collated
The evaluation provides an oppartunity for the focus of review agreed evaluation meetings with and evahfated )
Board to enhance its effectiveness and identify Evaluation meeting slots Board members and The Chairman and Senior
any areas for improvement. All Directors fully diarised senior management Independent Director
engage in the evaluation process and take The Senior Independent provided a report to the
appropriate action if development needs are Director conducted an Board and Committees
identified, The evaluation is externally led every evaluation meeting with Outcomes of the internal
three years and internally led in other years. the Chairman Board evaluation were
in years in which the evaluation is led internally, established, and actions agreed
the Chairman leads this far the Independent by the Board and Cormmittces

Non-Executive Directors and Executive
Directers. and the Senior Independent Director
facilitates the evaluation of the Chairman.

Qureomes from the internal FY22 evaluation

Qutcomes/suggestions Actions undertaken or planned
The Board concluded that it and its Committees had continued to A full induction has been arrangad for Chet Patel and Salma Shah.
operate effectively during FY22. The selection of new Non-Executive Committee membership has been reviewed and refreshed, in light of

Directors was critical to addressing any gaps in experience of the Board  their appointment.

and ensuring chemistry and collegiate working is maintained.

lennifer Duvalier would continue to act as the Company's designated A calendar of events has been agreed for FY23 which will be attended by
Non-Executive Director responsible for aversight of the Board's both Jennifer and other Non-Executive Directors.

engagement with the workforce. However, the Chair and other

Nan-Executive Directors would additionaliy attend and participate

in employee listening sessions.
To continue 1o progress a number of ambitious programmes of The Board and Sodial Value & Responsible Business Committee, through
ESG-centred activities.. - its oversight and governance of all Mitie's social value and responsible

business initiatives, will continue to evaluate hiaw ESG issues affect key
aspects of the business, what Mitie's ambitions and goals should be as 2
fong-term sustainable business, and opportunities to better report on
these activities.

{02  Muiie Group plc
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Progress made on actions identified in prior year
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The Board engaged an independent consultant, Belinda Hudson, to conduct the FY20 Board evaluation. Belinda does not have any known connection
with the Company or any individual Directors. The external Board evaluation was delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic and took place during FY21.
Outcomes frarm the evaluation conducted for FY20 were reviewed at the March 2021 Board and Nomination Committee meetings. Progress made
during FY22 on actions identified as part of the FY20 evaluation are set out below.

Quicomesisuggestions

Actions previously undertaken or plannad

Progress made on actions during FY22

Ta review any gaps in experience of the Board

The Nomination Committee reviewed and
discussed the Board skills matrix at its March
2021 meeting

The Board further reviewed the experience of
its members as a whole, taking into account the
resignation of Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat.
The Board skills matrix was discussed by the
Board/MNomination Committee at its March 2022
mieeting. It was recognised by the Board that

the selection of new Non-Executive Directors
would be key

To ensure the Chairman shares his thinking
and insights to a greater extent and to hold
Non-Executive Director only sessions

Two MNon-Executive Director only sessions
have been diarised for FY22

Recognised as important by the Chairman
who provided regular updates during FY22.
Non-Executive Director only sessions were
held in September 2021 and March 2022

To encourage the Non-Executive Directors
to provide a better balance of constructive
challenge, support and recognition

Non-Executive Directors have been
encouraged to undertake without
compromising depth of questioning

Considerad to be at the right level

To undertake a regular review of the Chief
Executive and other MGX members both in
performance and behaviour

To be undertaken at the two Non-Executive
Director only sessions. Chief Executive to be
invited to attend in part

Perfarmance of Chief Executive and MGX
memmbers discussed at the Non-Executive
Director only sessions

To encourage the Chief Executive to have
regular sessions with each individual Non-
Executive Director

Non-Executive Director/Chief Executive
meetings to be diarised

Meetings took place during FY22 and were
recognised as mutually beneficial

To encourage the Board to plan longer-term
strategic options

To be undertaken at annual strategy day
in September 2021 and updated at each
Board meeting

Undertaken at the Board strategy day held in
September 2021. Strategy-related updates were
also incorporated into the Chief Executive's
standing agenda item at all Board meetings.
Further detail on strategy can be found on
pages 6t |2

The Board to regularly review the cutture
within the Beard, MGX and across the Group
for consistency with the Purpose, Vakies

and Strategy

Already assessed via several mechanisms such
as the designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement, Net Promoter Score
survey and Upload survey. Will be enharced
by the whole Board through site visits when
COMID-19 permit

All Board members attended a Town Hall ]
event held at Manchester TSOC in March 2022,
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer
additionally undertook numerous site visits during
the year '
Further detail on how the Board monitors
culture can be found on pages 96 to 99 and-

on Jennifer Duvalier's activities in her role as
designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement on pages 98 to 99

To include broader management team members
at Board dinners

To be planned when appropriate, subject to
COVID-19 restrictions

When apprapriate, other mermbers of the MGX
attended Board meetings and a Board dinner
held during FY22

Micie Group plc
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Nomination Committee report

The Committee's activities had
particular focus on aligning our
Board and leadership teams’ skills
with the Mitie strategy.

Derek Mapp
Chair of the Nomination Committee

104  Mitie Group plc
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As Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
}am very pleased to report on the work done
by the Committee during the year.

A key responsibility of the Cornmittee s to
mairtain plans for orderly Board succession, and
the Committee regularly receives and reviews
updates on the structure, size and composition
of the Board and its Committees, to ensure
critical skills and experience are appropriately
refreshed. On the recommendation of the
Committee, Chet Patel and Salma Shah were
appointed to the Board as Mon Excoutive
Directors with effect from | April 2022,
foilowing the departure of Nivedita
Krishnamurthy Bhagat. With a background in
business-to-business service environments,
promoting sales and growth strategies along
with his expertise in business technalogy and
cyber security, Chet wili further strengthen the
commergial expertise on the Board. Witha
background in public policy and public affairs,
Salma will bring additicnal public sector
expertise reflecting Mitie's increased public
sector focus. The Committee has also reviewed
the executive talent pipeline and mairtained its
senior management succession plans, reflecting
the Board's responsibility to ensure appropriate
plans are in place.

Diversity and inclusion are essential to Mitie's
purpose, and the Board received and discussed a
detailed update from our Group HR Director,
Jasmine Hudson, in March 2022,

Follawing the external evaksation of the Board in
FY2L, the Board agreed areas of focus for FY22,
This year, the second year of our cydle, involved
the Board performing an internal evaluation of
progress against the FY22 areas of focus and

the resuiting actions, as well as agreeing new
areas of focus for the coming year. Further
information on this year's evaluation can be
found on pages 102 to 103.

The Committee ako considered the proposed
electicn/re-election of directors at the AGM
and reviewed the number of external
directorships held by each Non-Executive
Director.

Derek Mapp
Chair of the Nomination Committee

DocuSigned by:

Dunk Magp

-C96F 1958EBFC4EH...

Key purpose of the Nomination
Committee

The Nomination Committee evaluates the skills
and characteristics required by the Board and its
Committees. In doing so. the Committee
considers the challenges and opportunities facing
the Group and the expertise and diversity
required for the future. This ensures
membership of the Board and its Committees
continues to remain appropriate.

Key responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee

The key responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

© Regularly reviewing the structure, size and
composition (induding the skills, experience
and knowdedge required) of the Board and
make recommendations ta the Beard about
any changes

© Ensuring plans are in place for an orderty
succession to Board and senior management
positions and oversee the development of a
diverse pipeline for succession

@ Considering the length of service of the
Board as a whole so that membership of the
Board is regularty refreshed

© Identifying and nominating, for approval by
the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies
as and when they arise

© Keeping under review the number of external
directorships held by each Non-Executive
Director

© Reviewing the results of the Board
performance evaluation process that relate
to the composition of the Board

© Keeping the Board Incusion Policy under
review to ensure its effectiveness and
alignment with best practice

The Namination Committee’s Terms of

Reference are available at www:mitie corm/

investors/corporate-governance.

Nomination Committee

members

At the date of this report and throughout FY22,

the Nomination Committee comprised:

Chairman®; Derek Mapp

Committee members

Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

{until 17 February 2022)

Baroness Couttie

Jennifer Duvalier

Mary Reilty

Roger Yates

* The Senior Independent Director chairs the
Committes in circumstances where ¢ would be

inappropriate for the Chairman of the Board to
chair the Committee.
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All members of the Nomination Committee
are considered independent in accordance with
the Code.

Nomination Committee
meetings
The Nomination Commitiee met twice during

FY22. The attendance of individual Committee
members can be found on page 91.

Key activities during the year
Composidon

As it does annually, the Nornination Committes
reviewed the composition and leadership of the
Board and each of its Committees during FY22.
The Nomination Committee is satisfied that
the Board's composition and diversity has been
appropriate throughout the year. having regard

in particular to the integrity, skills, knowledge
and experience of its Directors and the size
and nature of the business. A skills matrix can
be found below.

Succession planning

The Board recognises the importance of
succession planning and Board refreshment
and maintains succession plans for the Board
and senior management.

During FY22, the Nomination Committee
discussed succession planning at both its
meatings.

The Board considered both the Board skills
matrix and the Board Inclusion Policy in the
context of succession planning as tools to help
identify potential composition needs for the
future, and to ensure that plans are proactive
and not just reactive in nature.

The tenure of members of the Board is
relatively short, with the Chairman having
been appointed in May 2017 and all the
Non-Executive Directors having served for
less than five years. The Committee considers
tenure when determining 2 Non-Executive
Director's independence.

All appointments to the Board are subjecttoa
formal, rigorous and transparent appointrment
pracess, and are made based on merit and
objective ariteria. The Committee engaged

Sarn Allen Associates as the search firm
involved with the recruitment of Chet Patel

and Sakma Shah, our most recently appointed
Neon-Executive Directors. The process followed
for their appointment is detailed below.

Director succession process

| Candidate requirements

A detailed cardlidate profile setting out required capabilities ard experience was agreed, Sam Allen
Associates was appointed to facilitate the process.*

2 Search Samn Allen Associates prepared an initial longlist of candidates and conducted the first round of
interviews to assess the candidates’ fit with the role and key competencies.

3 interviews The Committee then considered a shortlist of candidates and held interviews. Subsequent interviews
were held with the Chief Executive.

4 Board approval and announcement  The Committee made a recommendation to the Board for its consideration. Following Board approval,

the appointments were announced in ine with the requirements of the FCA's Listing Rules.

* Sam Allen Associates had no other connection with the Company or individual Directors.

Individual Director contribution

The individual skills and experience of each Directar contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board in promoting the long-term sustainable success of
the Company, The table below sets out how each Directar’s individual skills and experience contribute to the balance required by the Board to defiver the

Group's strategy and manage risk.

Further details of each Director's skills and experience are set out in their biographies on pages 87 to 89.

Board skills matrix

Siman Baroness Jennifer

Skiflslexperignce area Derek Mapp  Phil Bentley  Kirkparrick Couctie Duvafier Chet Patel ~ Mary Reilly  SalmaShah  Roger Yates
Leadership and

business operations Exceptional Exceptional v v v v v v
Strategy development v Exceptional v v v v v v
Corporate governance  Exceptional v v v v v v v v
Audit/risk management

and assurance v Exceptional v v Exceptional v
Remuneration/HR Exceptional v
Commerciat v Exceptionat v v v Exceptional v v
Technology/digical v v v

finance Exceptional Exceptional v v v v
Investment community Exceptional v v Exceptional
Government/public

$ector experience Exceptional v Exceptional

The collective skills and experience of individual Directors support the work of the Board and there is clear alignment between their respective
competencies and the Group's strategy. Board discussions further benefit from the diversity of approach taken by each Director due to their individual

background, career development and training,

Micie Group plc
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Nomination Committee report
continued

Director external appointments
and time cornmitments

Directors are permitted to accept additional
external appointments but must seek appraval
from the Board in advance. if a Director held
significant additiona! external appointments.
the reasons for permitting such appointments
would be explained in the Annual Report.

When considering the appaintment of a new
Director, the Board reviews ather demands

on the candidate’s time. Prior to appointment,
the candidate must disciose any significant
commitments and provide an indication of the
tirne involved. The Nomination Committee fully
considered the tirne commitments of Chet Patel
and Salma Shah prior to their appointment as
Non-Exeautive Birectors and no concerns
were raised.

The Momination Committee reviewed the time
commitments of Non-Executive Directors to
ensure that there were no concerns regarding
overcommitment, This review considered the
number of appointments, their xope and the
size and type of company in which the roleis
held. the views of major shareholders and the
latest published guidelines 2nd
recommendations,

The Board remains confident that afl Board
membaers continue to have sufficient time to
dedicate to their duties.

Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Code and the Company's
Artides of Assoclation, all Directors are subject
10 election or re-election by shareholders.

At the 2021 AGM, each Director in post at the
time stood for election or re-election and was
appointed or re-appointed by shareholders.

At the 2022 AGM, all Directors will stand for
election or re-election.

The rules governing the appointment and
replacement of Directors are set out in the
Company's Artides of Association, the Code,
. the Companies Act 2006 and other related
legislation.

The terms of appointment for Non-Executive
Directors and service contracts for Executive
Directors are available for inspection at the
Cornpany’s registered office and head office
and will be available at the 2022 AGM.

Conflicts of interest

The Board has a policy on the declaration and
management of Directors conflicts of interests.
Any potential situation or transactional conflict
must be reported as soon as possible to the
Chairman, Chief Exeautive and Chief of Staff,
General Counsel & Company Secretary.
Where a patential conflict is authorised under
statutory powers and powers granted under
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the Company's Artides of Association, such
conflict is kept under ongoing review. Executive
Directors are permitted to accept external
appointments. provided these do not interfere
with the Director's ability 1o discharge hisfher
duties effectively and permission is sought from
the Board.

Executive Directors are entitled to retain fees
earned from any external appaintrments.
Neither Phit Bentley nor Siman Kirkpatrick
held any external positions during F122.

External positions held by the Chairman and
current Non-Executive Directors are detailed
in their biographies on pages 87 to 89.

Induction and training

On joining the Board, all Directors receive a
personally tailored induction which indudes:

© Meetings with Executive Directors, the
Chief of Staff, Genera Counsel & Company
Secretary and cther members of senior
management

© An overview of the Group's gavernance
policies, corporate structure and business
functions

© Details of risks and operating issues facng
the Group

@ Visits (in person and/or virtually) to
divisional offices

© A briefing on key comtracts

A similar induction has been arranged for
Chet Patel and Salma Shah, to take place in
May/june 2022.

All Directors have access to Mitie's Board

Handbook on an electronic Board portal

which indudes:

© Schedule of matters reserved for the Board

© Committee terms of reference

© Artictes of Association

© Guidance on Directors’ statutory duties

© An averview of the Group's Directors’ and
officers' liability insurance arrangements

© Delegated authorities register

@ Share dealing procedures

© Corporate governance and regulatory
guidelines

© Key corporate documents and policies

The Board Handbook is subject to regular
review and was last updated in earty 2022

Briefing notes on changes in the regulatory and
governance environment are circulated to
Directors on an ad hoc basis. Online training on
regulatory and governance changes is aiso made
available to the Directors. Visits (in person
and/or virtually) to different business sites and
offices are arranged for Directors to fadiitate

a deeper understanding of the business.

Diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Board Indusion Policy which
recognises the importance of the Board's
membership reflecting diversity in its
broadest sense.

The policy also sets diversity objectives.
including to:

© Ensure the Board's membership reflects
a combination of demographics, skills,
experierce, race, age, gender, educational and
professional backgrounds which provides a
range of perspectives, insights and challenges
needed 10 support good decision-making
and reflects the diverse workforce at Mitie

© Maintain a balance so that a minimum of
40% of the Directors are women, provided
this remains consistent with the skills and
diversity requirements when seeking a new
appointment to the Board

© Ensure at least one of the Chair, Chief
Executive, Chief Financial Officer or Senior
Independent Director is a woman, provided
this remains consistent with the skills and
diversity requirements when seeking a new
appaintment to the Board

© Ensure there is at least one Director from
a minority ethnic background, provided
this remains consistent with the skills and
diversity requiremerts when seeking 2 new
appointment to the Board

© Support and monitor activities to increase
the percentage of senior management roles
hetd by warnen and other underrepresented
groups across Mitie

The policy recognises that there may be periods
of time when the balance falls below this

during the search and recruitment process.

The Committee is pleased to report that at the
date of this report, 44% of the Directors are
women and there are two Directors from a
minority ethnic background. Neither the Chair,
Chief Executive, Chief Finandial Officer nor
Senior Independent Director is a2 woman; as
vacandies arise, we will seek to address any
diversity gaps in our Board while ensuring we
recruit talented Board members wha have the
appropriate mix of skifls, capabilities and market
knowledge to ensure the Board is efective.

A breakdown of the gender balance of those

in senior maragernent and their direct reports
can be found on page 39.

Mitie's Board Inclusion Policy is available at
www.mitie com/finvestorsicorporate-governance.
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Audit Committee report

Good progress has been
made by the Group to
standardise processes and
controls across the enlarged
business, manage the
associated risks and ensure
rigour around the related
financial reporting.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee members

Mary Reilly was appointed as Chair of the Audit
Committee on 31 July 2018, having beena
member of the Committee since | September
2017 Mary has a weatth of experience as a
Non-Executive Director and chairing audit and
risk committees. She has extensive relevant and
recent accounting, finance and managerment
experience. Mary's full biography can be found
on page 86.

At the date of this report, and throughout FY232,
the Audit Committee comprised independent
Non-Exectrtive Directars who are all considered
appropriztely experienced to fulfil their duties,
having held senior finance roles across a number
of sectors. Their full biographies can be found
on pages 87 to 8%,

Chair: Mary Reilly

Commitcee members:
Baroness Couttie

Roger Yates

Chet Patel (appointed | April 2022)

Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
(resigned |7 February 2022)

Frequency of Audit Committee
meetings

The Audit Committee met eight times during
FY22. For the Directors’ attendance, see table
on page 91. Invitations to attend meetings are
normally extended to the Group's external
auditor, the Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer. the Chief Finandal Officer, other
members of the Board, the Chief of Stafl
General Counsel & Company Secretary, the
Director of Group Finance, the Group Finandial
Controller and the Head of Internat Audit.

The Audit Committee also meets with the
external auditor and the Head of Internal Audit
without the Executive Directors present.

Report from the Audit
Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present
the Audit Committee report for the financial
year ended 31 March 2022, During the year,
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat resigned, and
Chet Pate} has been appointed to the Audit
Committee in April 2022. | would like to thank
Nivedita for her valuable contributions during
her time on the Committee and extend a warm
welcome to Chet.

This report provides insight into key areas
considered by the Audit Committee during

the year to discharge its responsibilities in
relation to finandial reporting, risk management.
internal control, the internal audit function,

and interaction with BDO LLP (the Group's
external auditor).

Following the Interserve Facilities Management
(Interserve) acquisition, the Group is now a
farger and more complex business. The
integration of the Interserve business has
proceeded as planned, resulting in the
establishment of two new divisions,
Communities and Central Government &
Defence. The integration has akso delivered the
successful migration of the Interserve campanies
onto the Group's Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) system, which was a complex project. In
addition, the Group has acquired a nurmber of
smaller, but strategically important, businesses
during the year, where integration activities have
ensured robust controls and pracesses while
seeking to preserve the entrepreneurial cultures
that have made them successful.

The business also continues to focus on

the implementation of its transformation
programme, which was reflected in the
nature of some of the matters presented

for consideration at the Audit Committee.
This transfarmation programme is scheduled
to be completed in FY23.

Given the evolving environment, | have
continued to make a conscious effort to meet
senior finance staff throughout the year, which
gave me an gpportunity 1o gauge the extent
of any significant issues that emerged and
monitor progress.
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Audit Committee report
continued

Good progress has been made by the Group to
standardise processes and controls across the
enlarged business. manage the associated risks
and ensure rigour around the related financial
reporting, including:

© The review of balance sheets for the acquired
businesses, accounting policies, processes and
controls as part of the acquisition accounting
and integration processes;

© Finance teams have been strengthened to
manage effectively the inareased complexity
of the enlarged Group:

© Training has continued to be provided
to finance teams of the newly acquired
businesses to ensure consistent application
of the Group's actounting policies;

© As revenue recognition continues to be a
critical area of judgement for the Group,

. periodic reviews are conducted by Group
Finance to assess compliance with the
Group's accounting policy. One of these
reviews was presented to, and discussed at,
an Audit Committee meeting this year, with
a particular focus on the new divisions; and

@ The identification and documentation of
key internal controls across the Group.
strengthening these where required and
ensuring controls function effectively. The
main focus has been on internal controls
aver financial reporting in anticipation of

‘impending UK legislation in this area.

in addition to fulfilling its normal programme
of activities this year, the areas of focus for

- the Audit Committee in retation to the FY22
financial statements have been:

© Assessing judgements made by management
inrespect of the acquisition of Interserve,
induding adjustments to the fair values of
assets and liabilities on the opening balance
sheet, valuation of the consideration paid,
and recoverability of the amaounts receivable
in respect of the cutcome of the completion
accounts process and the related expert
determination;

© Evaluating jJudgernents made by management
on the adequacy of provisions required on
foss making contracts and the appropriateness
of the related disclosures:

© Assessing judgements made by management
in respect of other acquisitions completed
inthe year. In particular. focus was placed
on fair value adjustments to recognise
acquired intangible assets on the acquisition
of DAEL Ventures UK (DAEL) and Rock
Power Connections Linited (Rock) and
the accounting treatment for deferred
consideration;

Mitie Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2022

108

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 7CES319A-0CE1-4123-9607-4B6B04283488

© Evaluating the impact and disclosure of the
accounting policy change in relation to
previously capitalised configuration and
customisation costs in respect of Software
as a Service (Saa$) platforms;

© Bvaluating dlassification of disposed businesses
inthe year as discontinued operations and
the judgements assodiated with prior year
disposals, such as the retained liabilities related
o the Scdial Housing business:

© Challenging management’s judgements in
relation to impairment assessrments for the
carrying value of goodwill, the adequacy of
provisions for the recoverability of supplier
rebates and the recoverabifity of deferred
tax assets in reiation to losses;

© Considering the classification of certain costs
within Qther lems and the associated
disclosure, by reviewing the framework of
controls operated by management around
this area, and challenging the nature of the
charges and credits classified as Other lems
1o ensure the result is that a reader of the
Annual Repart and Accounts is provided
with an improved understanding of the
underlying results of the business:

@ Challenging the approach taken by
management to support the gaing concern
and viability statemnents set out on pages 152
and |53 and 83 and 84 respectively, in the
context of the recovery of the business
from the COVID-19 pandemic; and

© Assessing the appropriateness of dimate-
related disclosures and evaluating if the
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disdasures (FCFD) recormmendations have
been embedded appropriately.

Further detail regarding the Audit Committee
and its work can be found on-pages 1091tc 114.

In conclusion, the Audit Committee can provide
pasitive assurance to the Board that the Annual
Report and Accounts 2022, when taken asa
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable,
and provide shareholders with sufficient and
appropriate information to enable shareholders
to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy. As Chair of the
Audit Committee, | will be available at the 2022
AGM 1o answer any questions about the work
of the Audit Committee.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

Emsmm by
E30ABS1CCIBAAL. .
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Key purpose of the
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides effective
governance of the appropriateness of the
Group's finandial reporting and the performance
of both the Internal Audit function and the
external auditor. The Audit Committee also
supports the Board in meeting its responsibilities
in respect of overseeing the Group's internal
control systems, business risk management and
related compliance activities.

The Audit Committee's Terms of Reference are
available at www.mitie comfinvestors/corporate-
governance,

Key responsibilities of the Audit
Committee in relation

to financial reporting

The primaty role of the Audit Committee in
relation to finandal reporting is to review, with
both management and the external auditor,
the appropriateness of the half-yearly financial
report and the Annual Repart and Accounts,
concentrating on, amongst other matters:

© The consistency of, and any changes 1o,
significart accounting poticies and practices
both on a year-on-year basis and across
the Group;

© The darity and completeness of disdosures
and the context in which statements are
made:

© The methods used to account for significant
or unusual transactions where different
approaches are possible; and

© Whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as 3 whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee
considers reports from the Chief Financial
Officer on judgemental areas, and also reports
from the external auditor on the outcomes of
the half-year review and year-end audit.

Significant issues considered by
the Audit Committee during
the year

The Audit Committee gives attention to matters
it considers to be important by virtue of their
size, complexity, level of judgement required, or
potential impact on the financial statements and
wider business model, and matters pertaining to
governarce. [dentification of the issues deemed
to be significant takes place following open,

frank and challenging discussion between the
Audit Committee members, with input from

the Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor,
the Head of Internal Audit, the Director of
Group Finance, the Group Finandial Controiler
and other relevant Mitie employees.

The Audit Committee considered the
significant matters set out below, and in all cases
considered to what extent these judgements
could be impacted by the increased complexity
of the enlarged Group as a result of the
integration of the acquired Interserve business.
Papers were presented to the Audit Committee
by managemenit, setting out the relevant

facts, material accounting estimates, and the
judgements associated with each item. The
external auditor provided papers setting out

its views on each area of judgement.

The Audit Committee discussed the papers
with management, challenged the underlying
assumptions and sought the views of the
external auditor on each matter. for each area
of judgement, the Audit Committee concurred
with the treatment adopted by management
and the related disclosure presented in the
Annual Report and Accounts.

Interserye acquisition

Matters presented to the Audit Committee
related to the acquisition of interserve were
complex and judgemental. This included the
appropriateness of adjustments to the opening
balance sheet at the end of the 12-month
measurement period, which ended on

29 Navemnber 202l and management’s best
estimate of fair value of consideration paid.

Recognising that the completion accounts
mechanism contained in the sale and purchase
agreemenit (SPA) pursuant to which Mitie
acquired the interserve entities from How
Group Limited was complex and would be the
subject of a commercal negatiation and, in the
absence of agreement, an expert determination
process, the estimated value of the receivable
was inherently uncertain. The judgements
underpinning management’s best estimate of the
completion accounts receivable were therefore
discussed extensively at Audit Commitiee
meetings during the year. taking into account any
new information arising. The Audit Committee
also discussed with management the appropriate
level of disclosure, to highlight that, given the
inherent uncertainty, the final amount agreed

or determined could be materiafly different
from management's best estimate.

Following the conclusion of the expert’s
determination in April 2022, for which the
expert sought a legal opinion in relation to

the interpretation of the accounting hierarchy
which formed part of the completion accounts
rechanism included within the 5PA, an
agreement was reached for the seller to pay
£7.1m 1o Mitie (of which £1.1m was settled

during H2 FY22 and £6.0rm was settled in May

2022)This resulted in a £€45.6m reduction inthe
completion accounts receivable, comparcd with
management's best estimate of the amount due.

Contract specific provisions

During the year, management has performed
reviews of contracts to assess whether any
contracts may be onerous over the remaining
term of the contract, and, where this is the
case, the extent to which a provision should
be made for future forecast losses.
Management also conducted an assessment
of the adequacy of provisions related to
material cortractual disputes.

Onercus ¢ontract provisions totalling £13.2m
have been recognised at 31 March 2022 (2021
restated: £17.6m). These primarily relateto a
number of loss-making cordracts that were
acquired with the Interserve business, the
Communities division, Management's
assessments were made in the context of the
plans that have been developed and are being
implemented by divisional management 1o
improve the profitability of these contracts.

Other cortract specific provisions, totalling
£43.1m, have been recognised at 3| March
2022 (202irestated: £42.9m}. which primarily
ralate to remedial and rectification costs
reguired to meet customers contract terms.
Management's assessment included external
expert opinions obtained. where necessary, 10
assess the adequacy of provisions recognised.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
assessments presented by managernent, and
also invited the Managing Director of the
Communities division to attend an Audit
Committee meeting as part of the discussions
related 1o the adequacy of the onerous contract
provisions in place. The Audit Committee also
took into account the views expressed by the
external auditor, based on their independent
reviews of these contracts and related forecasts.

Cyber incident

The Audit Cormnmittee specifically challenged
management's assessment of the requirement
for the recognition of a liability, or disclosure of a
contingent liability, for the potential Information
Commissioner’s Office (ICC) fine related to the
cyber incident.

Accounting pelicy change for

Saa$ arrangements

During the year. the Group revised its
accounting policy in relation to upfront
configuration and customisation costs incurred
in implementing Software as a Service (53aS)
arrangements in response to the International
financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) agenda decision clarifying its
interpretation of how current accounting
standards apply to these types of arrangernent.

Mitie Group plc
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Audit Committee report
continued

The Audit Committee challenged management
on its approach to ensuring completeness of the
adjustment and also the methodology applied to
quartify the prior year impact of the accounting
policy change.

Revenue recognition

Due to the complexity and scale of many of

the Group's contracts, revenue recognition
continues to be an area of focus for the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has received
updates from managerment throughout the year
and has also reviewed and discussed papers by
management on specific areas of revenue
recognition where judgement is required.

In particular, management presented a paper to
the Audit Committee summarising the outcome
of a periodic review conducted by Group
Finance which assessed revenue recognition
practices applied across the divisions, inthe
context of the Group accounting policy. This
review achieved approximately 30% coverage
of Group revenue. The outcomes of this paper
were assessed by the Audit Camrinittee, with

a particular focus on the new divisions to
ensure that the Group accounting policies and
procedures had been appropriately embedded,
and their application was consistent with the
other divisions in the Group,

Valyation of goadwill

The Group carries goodwill as an intangible
asset on its balance sheet in respect of
businesses it has acguired (see Note |2

to the consolidated financial staterments).

The Group considers the carrying value of all
goadwill on at least am annual basis, or when

an indicator of impairment has occurred. The
valuation and impairment review of goodwill is
assessed for each individual cash-generating unit
{CGLY) and considers the balance sheet value of
the goodwill compared to the net present value
of the post-tax cash flows that are expected

to be generated by that CGU. The approach
ivolves an estimation of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from each CGU and the
selection of appropriate discount rates, which
are then applied to the cash flows to calculate

a net present value.

The cash flow forecasts used in the review were
derived from the most recent strategic forecast.

Management concluded that there was no
impairment using either the latest forecast or as
a resutt of applying reasonable sensitivities to key
variables. The Audit Committee has considered
papers prepared by managernent and has
challenged the assumptions and methodology
applied to assess the carrying value of goodwill.
The basis of reallocation of goodwill 28 a result
of the new divisional structure for the business
was alsa assessed and challenged.

10
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Cther material accaunting judgements
Management has continued to operate the
structured process for the identification of
material accounting judgements made, which
are assessed at both a dvisional and Group level,
inarriving at the resutts, The judgements with

a significant actual or potential impact on the
Group's results are presented 1o the Audit
Committee for consideration.

1n addition to the matters outlined above, the
Audit Committee has also considered papers
prepared by managerment in respect of the
following matters:

@ Provisioning for, and disclosure of, contingent
liabilities related to the Group's participation
in multi-employer pension schemes;

© Provisioning for certain commercial
settlements, disputes and other
contractual liabifities;

© The recoverability of rebates receivable
from suppliers;

@ The recoverability of deferred tax assets:

© Accounting for acquisitions, induding DAEL
and Rock; and

© Assumptions used for pensions actuarial
valuation.

Use of Alternative Performance Measures
(APMs)

The Group's performance measures continue to
indude some measures which are not defined
or specified under IFRS. The Audit Committee
has considered presentation of these additionat
measures inthe context of the guidance issued
by the European Securities and Markets
Autharity (ESMA) and the Financial Reporting
Coundil {FRC) in relation 1o the use of APMs,
chaflenge fram the external auditor; and the
requirement that such measures provide
meaningful insight for shareholders inta the
resuhts and finandal position of the Group.

In particular, the Ayudit Committee challenged
the dassification of certain costs and income
within Other items, ensuring that thereisa
robust framework of controls around the
assessment, and that the dassification and
disclosure is appropriate, with the aim of
providing a reader of the Annual Report and
Accounts with an improved understanding of
the underlying results of the business. This was
achieved through the review by the Audit
Committee of detailed papers prepared by
management throughout the year. setting out
each category of Other ems, analysing the
charges and aredits reported within each
category and documenting the rationale as

to why these charges and aredits were both
incremental to business as usual and directly
related to the category.

The Audit Committee challenged as to whether
any charges or credits had been rejected from
the Other tems category, based on the
framework of controls operated by Group
Finance around the reporting of Other fterns,
Management confirmed that the divisions
continued to engage proactively with Group
Finance to discuss whether potential charges

or credits would qualify as Other 'terns,

The Audit Committee concurred with the
judgements made by management in respect
of the presentation of the APMs, and noted

in particular that significant credits have been
reported within Cther ftems, in addition to
charges, which reflected a balanced assessment.
Furthermore, the Audit Committee conduded
that clear and meaningful descriptions have
been provided for the APMs used, that the
relationship between these measures and the
equivalent IFRS measures is clearly explained,
that the IFRS measures are afforded equal
prominence to the APMs, and that the

APMs support understanding of the

financial statements.

A reconciliation of the APMs to the equivalent
IFRS measures is provided in the Appendix —
Alternative Perfarmance Measures on

pages 220 to 223.

Review of the Group's going concern and
viability statements

The Audit Commitiee has reviewed the Group's
assessment of going concern. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the Group's viability
assessment over a period of three years to

31 March 2025, which considered a range of
scenarios that were based on the potential
financial impact of the Group's principal risks
and uncertainties as set out on pages 66to 77.

After due consideration, the Committee
concluded that the assumptions used in both
thesa assessments were appropriate, and
reflected the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties. The Committee has also reviewed
the Group’s reverse stress test and challenged
management as to the likelihood of any such
scenario oecurring, 10 assess whether it was
reasonable to assume that the likefihood of
any such scenario was remote. Factors that
were considered indude the aurrent trading
perfarmance compared with the base case
and further mitigation actions available

to managernent.

Based on the Group's forecasts for the going
concern assessment period. the Board is
satisfied that the Group will be able to operate
within the level of its facilities for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, the Board considers

it appropriate for the Group to adopt the

going concern basis in preparing its financial
statements. Further details of the going

concern assessment are set out in Note | to

the finangal statemertts on pages |52 and 153.
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In accordance with the Code, the Directors
have assessed the viability of the Group over the
three-year period to 31 March 2025. Based on
thes assessrnent the Directors have condluded
that there is a reaschable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in operation

and meet its Rabilities as they fail due over the
three-year period 1o 31 March 2025. The more
detailed assessment of the Group's long-term
viability is set out in the Viability Statement on
pages 83 and 84.

Climate reporting

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
climate- related disclosures across governance,
strategy, risk management and metrics and
targets, and concurred with management that
the requirements of eight of the Il TCFD
disdosure recommendations have been
complied with. Management has explained the
reasons for not being able to comply with the
remaining three TCFD recommendations at this
stage, which is consistent with the FRC's ‘comply
or explain’ requirement in respect of TCFD.

The Audit Committes challenged management
on the impact of dimate risks on financial results,
in particular relating to asset impairments and
the estimation of prowisions for onerous
contracts. Following this review, the Audit
Committee concurred with management that
there were no material financial statement
impacts for FY22 in respect of these matters.

Risk management and
“internal controls

The Board is responsible for mairtaining and
monitoring sound risk management and internat
control systems. The Audit Committee supports
the Board in this respect by monitoring the
effectiveness of the overall risk managemernt
process and the system of internal controls.

The Audit Committee considers emerging
risks with management as part of the risk
management update it receives and reviews
the risk management frarmework and
outcomes to support the Going Concern
and the Viability Statement.

The Audit Committee also keeps under
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls and
internal control and risk management systems
established 1o identify, assess, manage and
monitor financial risks. The Audit Committee
also advises the Board on such risks and

how these are tracked, managed, mitigated
and reported.

Risk management approach

The approach 1o risk management is regularly
reviewed by the Audit Committes, the Board
and the Mitie Group Executive {(MGX) team
and continues to evolve in fine with the
business structure and risk profile. The Board
understands that effective risk management and
a sound systern of internal control are essential
1o the achievement of the Group's strategy
and supporting objectives. The Group Risk
Committee focuses on the risk management
framework to increase understanding of the
nature of the risks faced by the Group and the
actions and contrals in place to mitigate them.

Mitie continues to review and improve its
approach to governance, risk management
and internal control, and during FY22, the risk
management framework has been developed
further to make sure it is aligned to the
organisational processes and strategy as well
as helping to support corporate governance
requirements. A new database for capturing,
monitoring and reporting risks at all levels within
the Group has been deployed during the year
and is now the primary 1ool for assessing how
well risks are being managed. The Group Risk
Committee has met regularly throughout the
year, and helps cocordinate the risk processes
across the Group. This allows better
coordination of reporting of risks to the
senior leadership team (the MGX), the Audit
Compmittee and the Board. The continuing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, Brexit, the
Russian invasion of Ukraine and integration of
interserve have helped ensure focus to improve
the consistency of risk processes and effective
management of risks.

The Board considers the nature and extent of
significant risks in setting the Group's strategy.
The Group's Delegated Authority Register
(DAR}), which sets out the accountabilities and
authority to take decisions on specific matters
within defined financial limits and authority limits
are aligned at divisional level. This approach
helps to clearly disseminate the appetite of the
Board to key risks. This structure ensures

a consistent approach to acceptance and
management of risk across the business and
provides the Board with greater visibility of
how effectively risks are being managed.

Operational and financial systems improvement
projects have been delivered in the Technicat
Services division and farmer Interserve divisions,
which moves the business onto consistent
platforms. The review and documentation of
key internal controls in the internal control
framework has also continued to progress
during the year. These programmes will help
ensure further the reliability and accuracy of
management information as well as providing

greater visibility of the effectiveness of internal
controls. The work of the Internal Audit
function targets areas of the business where risk
management and internal controls are suspected
of requiring improvement, which has helped

1o improve the risk management and internal
control frameworks. The Group has an
externally hosted whistleblowing line, and all
reports are reviewed, investigated and actions
taken as appropriate.

Risk culture

It is recognised that the risk management cufture
within the business is equally as important as

an effective risk management framework. In
support of this, the ‘One Mitie' Vision and Values
have an important role to play. As well as helping
1o achieve common ways of working and clarity
of approach for customers and employees, they
also help set out, together with the Employee
Handbook and ethical business conduct policies,
the framewark upon which Mitie’s risk cuiture

is built. Emphasis is placed on the importance

of embedding risk management into all key
dedisions, such that opportunities to grow the
Group are effectively balanced with effective
risk management dedision-making. This means
that opportunities may continue to be exploited.
provided risks have been properly identified
and the appropriate controls and mitigation
plans established. or, in some cases, potential
opportunities are declined if they sit outside

the Group's risk appetite.

The Employee Handbock sets aut the expected
behaviours for all employees and supply chain
partners and establishes zero tolerance in
spedific areas as part of an established ethical
business framework. The Group continues to
review and reaffirm its ethical busiress practice
policies with employees and supply chain
partners to ensure awareness of the vision,
values and expected behaviours is maintained.

{n addition, in the past year the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic and external geopolitical
issues have served to provide valuable learning
points to enhance the risk management and
continuity processes.

Risk management process

The Audit Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the overall risk management
process. The Group's risk management
framework provides a flexible and adaptable
approach to the identification of risk across all
areas of the business, to meet the demands of
the dynamic and fast evolving envirenment in
which the Group continues to operate. Uttimate
responsibility for risk management lies with the
Board, delegated to the Chief Executive Officer,
who further delegates it 1o the MGX, with
accountability and responsibility assigned to
spedific risk owners.
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Audit Committee report
continued

The Group risk profile is reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief of Staff, General Counsel & Company
Secretary in advance of formal review and
approval by the Board. This information is
captured in risk registers at business unit and
functional level, as well as for large contracts,
which are subsequently consolidated into
strategic, operational. financial and regulatory
risk categories and detaled together with any
emerging or disruptive risks within the overall
Group risk register.

Risk identification and assessment

The Board carries out robust assessments

of the Company's principal risks, induding
ermerging risks. In doing 5o, the Board takes
both internal and external perspectives into
accaunt to ensure the risk identification process
is thorough. The internal perspective takes

into account factors such as the changing

and developing business profile, operational
processes, technology and people, while the
external perspective includes the econamic
environment, political factors and sector and
geographical risks. During FYZ2, the Group Risk
Cornmittee has regularly reviewed the impact
on the business of the risks assodated with the
pandemic and the integration of the Interserve
business units, as well as changes in the external
emvironment through horizon scanning. The
changes to the risk profile are then reported

to the Audit Committee, the MGX and the
Board for their consideration. A top-dawn and
bottom-up approach ensures the systematic
identification of significant rigks to the business.
Once identfied, risks are assessed using
standard impact and likelhood ratings to
quantify the risk to the achievement of
business objectives.

Risk assessments are based ona 'S x 5' scale
ranging from minimal to catastrophic, with

any rigks falling into the Group's upper limits
having mandatory mitigation plans with the
expectation that these risks are managed
down 1o acceprable levels.

Risk mitigation

Each identtified risk has a defined control
owner wha is responsible for developing and
implementing a risk mitigation plan. As part of
the risk review process, each action and control
is required to be reviewed and formally assessed
for its effectiveness in mitigating risk. The Group
Risk Committee provides oversight of the risk
processes and monitors risk mitigation actions,

2
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In addition, audit and risk governance meetings
oceur at a business unit level, the terms of
reference for which are aligned with the
objectives of the Group Risk Committee and
the Audit Committee. The agenda requires
business units to review their top-level risks
and the progress of associated mitigation plans,
as well as assess any changes to the external
environment and their consequent impact on
business units’ risk profile. in addftion, reports
from the Internal Audit function and cther
internal or external assurance providers are
discussed, with the objectives 1o share best
practice and identify common or emerging
risk themes,

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control
environment is undertaken at both business
and Group level, led by the Head of Internal
Audit. The Audit Committee farmally reviews
performance throughout the year and advises
on the effectiveness of the risk management
system in place.

Risk monitering and review

Risk registers are reviewed regularly throughout
the year. Principal risks to the business and
associated mitigation plans are reviewed by the
Group Risk Committee and then presented to
the Board and are monitored on an ongoing
asis, In doing 5o, the Board considers the level
of exposure for each risk against an agreed
appetite 1o the level of risk.

The risk management framework is designed
16 manage, rather than eliminate. the risk of

- failing 1o achieve the objectives and strategy

of the Group and can therefore only provide
reasonable, and not absolute. assurance against
material risk and loss, Details of the principal
risks of the Group are set cut on pages 66to 77,
1t should be noted that other risks are identified
25 part of the risk management progess, but
these are not considered to have a material
impact on the Group’s overall ability to achieve
its business objectives.

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk
rmanagement process has been in place
throughout £ Y22 and remains in place up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report.

The process is continuing 1o evolve and will

be subject to review and improvement.

Internal centrols

The Board is responsible for maintaining an
effective system of imternal control. Mitie's
system of internal control consists of financial,
operational and compliance controls.

The systermn cavers both monitoring and
oversight cantrols at divisional level, comprising
business leadership review and direction, and
detailed process controks and controk activities,
which are embedded in business processes.

A more formal and comprehensive internal
control framework is being implemented which
is hefping to improve internai controls across the
Group and to raise awareness at all levels within
the organisation of the importance of effective
controls. The framework will also help to ensure
compliance with impending UK legistation on
torporate governance, spacifically the: likely
internal control reporting requinements.

Mitie's policies and procedures are documented
in the Integrated Management System (IM5)

and are available to management and employees
through an intranet portal. Divisional and
functional leadership teams ensure that

controls are operating within the processes

and procedures, and that risks are being
appropriatefy managed. The harmonisation of
policies and procedures across the Group was &
key focus during the integration of Interserve.

The Audit Committee conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the systems of risk managemert
and internal contro annually. This review is
supported by a report from the Head of
Imernal Audit and includes a control assessment
exercise undertaken by the Internal Audit
function in conjunction with the business
leadership teams. The review focuses on the
key internal controks which manage the risks
faced by the business. The Audit Committee
also considers the results of the work completed
by the Internal Audit team, which are reported
10 it in regular updates. The internal audit work
plan is targeted at areas known, or suspected

to have, weak or ineffective internal controls.
Remedial action plans developed by
management to address any control weaknesses
found zre manitared by the Audit Committee
1o ensure timely closure of the actions.

Assurance

In accerdance with the FRC's Guidance on
Risk Management, Internal Control and
Related Finandal and Business Reporting and
the Code, the Board performs a formal annwual
assessment of the operation and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controf framework,
covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compfiance cortrols, and
updates this assessment prior to the signing

of the Annual Report and Accounts.
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These activities are monitored at executive and
divisional leadership level to ensure that control
improvements are implemented appropriately
and that they are effective. The Head of Internal
Audit assesses the application of control
environment improvements and attends Audit
Committee meetings 1o provide regular updates
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control framework and the results of the
internal audit work undertaken.

Features of the internal control and risk
management frameworks that ensure accuracy
and reliability of financial reporting include:

© A culture of good governance, integrity,
competence, faimess angd responsibility

© Group policies and procedures to support
and ensure consistency throughout the
business

© Clearly defined responsibilities, delegated in
accordance with the Group's delegated
authority register

© A defined and agreed approach and appetite
to managing risks facing the business

© The identification of key internal controls
and clearly defined responsibility for their
effective functioning

Accountabifity for internal control and risk
management systems is devolved into each
division and any contral weaknesses within
divisions are investigated and resolved.
Management and the Audit Committee seek

to ensure that their cause is understood, and
mitigating actions are taken tg limit the potential
for recurrence. In view of the work of the
Internal Audit function, management and the
external auditor, it is considered unlikely that a
weakness within a particular division would have
amaterial impact on the Group.

Senior Accounting Officer updace

The Chief Financial Officer presented a paper
to the Audit Committee detailing the processes
in place to ensure that the relevant controls

had operated effectively during FY22, thereby
supporting signature of the Senior Accourting
Officer certificate. The Audit Committes
considered this paper and was satisfied with
the approach taken by management.

Internal Audit

The Imternat Audit function’s authority and
responsibilities are defined in its charter, which
is reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit function operates
independently and reports directly to the

Audit Committee (administrativaly to the Chief
Financial Officer). This reporting line offers
independence from audited activities and allows
the Internal Audit function to achieve objectivity.

The work of the Internal Audit function helps to
provide assurance over the effectiveness of the
Group's governance, and risk management and
internal control framewarks. The Chair of the
Audit Committee oversees the appointment
and removal of the Head of Intermal Audit

and assesses the Internal Audit function's
performance against imernal audit objectives.
The annual internal audit plan is approved by
the Audit Committee. All amendments to

the approved annual internal audit plan are
communicated to the Audit Committee through
periodic update reparts. The results of each
internal audit, and any remedial action plans
developed by management in response. are
docurnented in an audit report.

The Chair of the Audit Commitiee and the
Company’s external auditor, BDO LLP, have
access to all internal audit reports isswed during
the year. The Audit Committee also receives a
quarterly report on internal audits completed
in the period, and reports from BDO LLP
arising from its audit work. These provide an
independent perspective on the Group's
internal financial control systems.

The impact on the risk profile of the business
of the integration of the Interserve business
units and the recovery from the COVID-19
pandemic, formed key etements of the Internal
Audit plan for FY22The Audit plan was
presented to and approved by the Audit
Committee in March 2021, but kept under
continual review throughout the year.

Any changes to the plan were discussed

with the Chair of the Audit Committee

and approved by the Audit Committee.

The audit plan was predaminantly focused on
the effectiveness of internal processas and
controls Group-wide, major contracts, individual
divisional risks and strategic initiatives. As noted
previously, a significant element of the plan
covered process and contract risks in former
Interserve business units, as well as activities
associated with the integration, including

IT systems implemertations.

Some key areas of focus in the FY22 audit plan
have included:

© A review of the risk and control activities
in the bid management processes across
the Group;

© An audit of the implementation of a new
ERP system in a division;

© A number audits of contract management
processes for customer accaunts in former
Interserve business units focusing on controls,
governance, and ongoing contract
management processes; and

© An audit of governance processes within
Mitie Ireland.

Regular updates were provided to the Audit
Committee throughout FY22 by the Head of
Internal Audit. These covered the results of ihe
audit work undertaken and developments in the
internal control enviroriment, highlighting areas
where improvements in risk, governance and
control processes were required. In addition,
progress on the review, improvement and
documentation of the key internal controls
across the business, mainly focused in internal
controls over finandial reporting, was presented
to the Audit Committee regularty. As described
previously, this will help ensure compliance with
impending legislation on reporting of internal
controls and helps raise awareness of the
importance of internal controls in the business.

Through the updates from the Head of Intemnal
Audit, the Audit Committee also monitored the
progress by management in completing actions
to address the findings from Internal Audit
reports. The vast majarity of actions continue
10 be dosed by the agreed completion date,
due to sharp focus from senior management.
This remains an importartt area for the Audit
Committee, and management is required to
provide an explanation if planned closure dates
are missed.

Review of whisteblowing processes

Part of the Audit Committee’s role is to ensure
that appropriate procedures are in place in
relation to whistleblowing. Mitie has continued
to operate its independert whistleblowing
service via an independent third-party provider:
Curing the year, this service was migrated

to a new service. EthicsPoint, which was
accompanied with a campaign across the Group
10 ensure all employees are aware of the service.
An update an whistleblowing activity is provided
10 the Board at every Board meeting.

Allegadions of fraud

In instances where allegations of fraud have
been reported, these are investigated as a
matter of priority by the Internal Audit

function and reported to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit reports summarising the
issues, condusions and recommendations,

were reviewed and discussed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee then
monitars the implementation of any required
actions, aimed at preventing future occurrence
of similar issues and enhanding internal processes
and controls.

Mitie Group ple
Annual Report and Accounss 2022

13



Audit Committee report
continued

External audit

The Audit Committee is committed 1o ensuring
the independence, effectiveness and objectivity
of the external auditor. and reviews the
perfarmance of the external auditor in respect
of audit related services and non-audit services
every year.

Appointment and re-appointmenc of the
external auditor

The Group undertook a competitive external
audit tendering process in 2017 and BDO LLP
{BDQO) was selectad as the Company’s externaf
auditor with effect from 19 September 2017.

For FY22, BDO continued to provide external
audit services to the Group. Scott McNaughton
was the lead partner for BDO on the audit of
Milie for the year ended 31 March 2022 and was
the lead partner for the previous four years. In
accordance with rotation requirements for audit
partners on listed entity audits, the FY22 audit
will be Scott’s final year on the Group's audit,

In readiness for this change. the audit team has
been strengthened by a new supporting partner
in the FY22 audit who will work alongside Scott
to ensure senior level continuity on the audit
going forward. A new lead partner, previously
unconnected with BDO's audit of the Group,
has been introduced to take on this role.

The partners invalved with divisional audits

are not required to rotate at this time.

The Audit Committee considers annually the
need to tender the audit for audit quality or
independence reasons. There are no contractuat
obligations in place that restrict the Group's
cheice of statutory auditor.

The Audit Committee confirms that the
Group is i compliance with the Statutory
Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Imvestigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Progesses and Audit Committee
Responsibifities) Order 2014,

External auditor effectiveness

The Audit Committee monitored the conduct
and effectiveness of the exqternal auditor
through its assessment of:

@ The experience, expertise and perceptiveness
of the auditor;

© The planning and execution of the agreed
audit plan and quality of reports from the
auditer; and

© The conduct of the auditor, including the
Audit Committee's experience of interaction
with the audftor.

114  Mitie Group ple

Annual Report and Accounts 2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7CE5319A-0CB1-4123-96D7-4B6R042834388

In addition to receiving written reports from
the external auditor and from management,
the Audit Commitiee also conducted private
meetings with the external auditor and
separately with management. These meetings
provided the opportunity for open discussion
and feedback on the audit process, the
responsiveness of management, and the
effectiveness of bath the internal ang external
audit teams.

In addition, the BDO partners leading the audits
for four large divisions presented a summary of
their audit approaches to the Audit Commitiee
prior to the FY22 year end audit. Meetings with
the external auditor induded challenge from the
Audit Committee around audit process and
apportunities to place more reliance on controls
as part of the audit approach.

Non-audit services provided by the

external audicor

The Group has a non-audit services policy,
approved by the Audit Committee, that ensures
the external auditor remains independent

and objective throughout the provision of

its independent audit services and when
formulating its audit opinion. This non-audit
services policy is underpinned by principles that
ensure that the external auditor does not:

Q Audit its own work;
© Make management decisions for the Group:
© Create a conflict of interest; or
® Find itself in the role of advocate for
the Group,

The Group non-audit services policy reflects
the requirements of the FRC's Revised Ethical
Standard 2019, which became effective from

15 March 2020 and limits the types of non-audit
services that external auditors can provide.
tnder the requirements, permitlad services
are largely those required by law or reguiation,
loan covenant reporting, other assurance
services closely related to the audit or annual
report, and reporting accountant services,

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group
non-audit services policy is consistent with the
FRC's Revised Ethical Standard 2019,

Under this policy. prior to the appointment of
the external auditor to provide any permitted
non-audit services, approval must be obtained
from the Chair of the Audit Committee.

A report of all non-audit services performed by
the external auditor during FYZZ irrespective of
value, was submitted to the Audit Committee.

A summary of the fees paid to the external
auditor for FY22 is set out in Note 6 to the
financial statements. Fees for other audit-related
services of £175000 primarily related to the
review of the half-yearly financial report and
fees for other non-audit services of £9,000.

The Audit Committee considered reports from
both managernent and the external auditor,
which incluged monitoring of fees for permitted
non-audit services corpared with the FRC

fee cap, none of which raised concerns about
external auditor independence.

It was identified by management and BDO thata
non-permitted VAT service had been provided
by BDO Belgium to an entity acquired as part of
the acquisition of Interserve for a fee of £250.
The non-permitted services were ¢eased
immediately upon identification, and the
amounts concerned were considered to be too
trivial to raise any concern about external
auditor independence. Subsequently, guidance
across the Mitie Group and the BOO member
firms was reinforced by management and

BOO respectively.

Fair, balanced and understandable

In accordance with Provision 27 of the Code.
the Directors confirm that they consider the
Annwal Repart and Accounts, taken as a whole,
10 be fair. balanced and understandable and
that it provides the information necessary for
shareholders 1o assess the Group's position,
performance, business model and strategy.
When arriving at this position the Board

was assisted by various processes including

the following

© The Annual Report and Accounts was
drafted by senior managerment with averall
coordination by Group Finance to ensure
consistency across the relevant sections;

© A review was undertaken to assess the
consistency of the Annual Report and
Accounts with internally reported information
and investor communications, and to assess
the balance between reported measures and
alternative performance measures;

© Reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and
Accounts were undertaken by the Executive
Directors, Chief of Stafl, General Counsel &
Company Secretary, other senior
management and external advisors; and

© The final draft is reviewead by the Audit
Cornmittee prior to consideration by
the Board.

Details of the basis on which the Company
generates and preserves value over the longer
term and the strategy for delivering the
Company’s objectives are set out in the Strategic
report. An explanation by the Directors of their
responsibility for preparing the Annual Report
and Accounts can be found on page 136.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7CE5319A-0C81-4123-96D7-4B6B04283458 . Financial statements

Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the
Remuneration Committee Chair

We are committed o
providing remuneration that
is both fair and reflective of
Company performance,

Jennifer Duvalier
Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

O behalfl of the Board, | am pleased to present.
the Directors’ remuneration report for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The report is split into two main parts:

© Executive remuneration at a glance.
This sets out a summary of our policy,
remuneration outcomes for this year and
how we intend ta operate our policy for
next year

© The Annual Report on Remuneration,
This provides more detail on the above,
as well as setting out other remuneration-
related disclosures

The Remuneration Committee has addressed
a number of issues during the year. | have
described below the approach the Committee
has taken, together with the context in which
key decisions were made.

Business performance and
context

In FY22. Mitie has delivered a record £4bn of
revenue {inchuding share of joint ventures and
assodiates), £167m of operating profit before
other items and £133m of free cash flow.
These strong results were boosted by
rapid-response COVID-related contracts and
the acquisition of the Interserve Facilities
Management (Interserve) business. Our
underlying business (excluding Interserve and
the short-term COVID-related contracts) grew
revenue by 14% in FY22, and is in good shape
as it bounces back from COVID. The new
strategy to accelerate growth, enhance margins
and improve cash generation is creating a
strong platform to further improve earnings.

Remuneration review and policy

The Rermuneration Committee undertook a
detailed review of remuneration arrangements
as part of the renewal of the remuneration
policy at the 2021 AGM. As part of cur review,
we consulted with major shareholders and took
their feedback into account when finalising the
new policy. Further detail on the implementation
of the palicy in the year is provided in the
Executive remuneration at a glance section
following this statement. The new policy is

set out in full in our Annual Report and
Accounts 2021.

Remuneration decisions and
outcomes in respect of FY22
Salary and fees

The CEQ's salary of £500,000 has been
unchanged since his appointment in 2016. As in
previous years, the Committee decided to not
irnplemenit ary salary increase for Phil Bentley.

Siman Kirkpatrick was appointed as CFO with
effect from | April 2021, As highlighted in last
year's report, his salary was set at £350,000
which was at the lower end of the market

and significantly lower than the salary of the
previous CFO to serve on a non-interim basis
(Paul Woolf at £430,000). it was noted that,
over the years, as Simon develops in the

role and subject to his performance and
development, the Committee expects to
increase his salary to be in line with the market.
The Committee was and is aware that proxy
advisory bodies may highlight these increases as
a repeated annual area of concern. However,
the Committee considers this to have been and
still be the most appropriate approach for the
individual, the Company and its shareholders.

In line with this approach, the Committee
determined that it was appropriate to inarease
the CFO's salary from £350,000 to £378,000
(+8%) from | April 2022. This remains below
typical FTSE 250 salary levels for a CFC and is
12% below the previous non-interim incumbent.

FY22 bonus

The annual bonus for FY22 was based on profit.
revenue and strategic/individual performance.
At the end of the year. the Committee assessed
performance against the targets and was
mindfil of the latest shareholder guidance and
market sentiment. As such, the Commitiee
gave careful consideration to the year's context
taking into account the experience of colleagues,
stakeholders and shareholders.

FY22 was an outstanding year of record levels
of revenue, profit and cash, This resutted in
fhaximum vesting under the financial targets.
Assessment of strategic and individual
performance was such that 95% of the overall
bonus maximum was awarded to the CEO and
CFO, half of which is deferred into shares for
two years. Performance against financial and
non-financial targets is described in more detait
in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

2019 LTP

The Committee assessed the outcome of the
June 2019 LTIP awards granted under the plan
against two performance measures: Earnings
Per Share (EPS) growth and cash cornwversion.
Following a review of performance against
targets. the Committee determined that 100%
of the award would vest in August/October
2022. This is descaribed in more detail in the
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Micie Group pic 115
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Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chair

continued

Incentive outcomes

The Committee challenged itself to ensure that
bonus and LTIP outcornes were appropriate in
the round. The Committee was comfortable
that the incentive outcomes summarised above
were appropriately commensurate with both
organisational and individual performance.
Furthermore, it considered that they were
appropriate in the context of the shareholder,
employee and customer experience in FY2Z.
As such, the Committee did not apply any
discretion to the formuiaic outturns and
considers that the policy operated as intended.

Incentives approach for FY23

For FY23, the Committee is intending to
operate the annual banws and LTIP using the
same broad framework that was used for
FY22. Phil Bentley's maximurm bonus and
LTIP opportunity will be unchanged at 160%
and 200% of base salary respectively. Simon
Kirkpatrick's maximum bonus and LTIP
opportunity will be unchanged at 130% and
150% of base salary respectively. The annual
bonus will be based on finandial and strategic
targets with the mix of measures as follows:
revenue {35%); profit (35%); free cash flow
(10%): individua! objectives (10%); and othar
strategic targets (10%),

Following a review of the performance
measures used under the LTIP the Committee
is intending to replace cash conversion with
return on invested capital (ROIC) for 2022 LTIP
awards, for which FY25 will be the final year
of the performance period. The introduction
of this meastre recognises the strategic
importance of ROIC to the business and more
dlosely aligns new LTIP awards with Mitie's
overal] business strategy. it also complements
the use of ROIC under the Enhanced Delivery
Plan by it continuing to be a long-term focus
beyond the end of FY24. The performance
measures for the 2022 LTIP awards will
therefore be based on: adjusted EPS {50%),
return on invested capital (35%) and ESG
targets (15%). in this way, ESG measures are
appropriately present in both our bonus
(through the strategic element) and LTIP.

|6  Mite Group plc
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Wider workforce considerations
and engagement

The Company operates SAYE share option and
Share Incentive Plan arrangements, induding
Mitie Free Shares, allowing employees to
participate in share ownership and tc share in
corporate success over the medium term. In
2021, the SIP scherne was enhanced to provide
employees with a greater incentive to invest

in Mitie shares, and free shares were awarded
to all eligible UK-based employees. In 2022,

the Company intends to make another award
of frae shares to UK-based employees and
offer a free shares equivalent ta international
colleagues,

The average base pay for the wider workforce
has increased by 4% from FY2I to FY22,

The Mitie Board values the views of our
employees and has muftiple engagement
routes. In addition ta my role as the Chair of
the Remuneration Committee, tact asthe
Company's designated Non-Exequtive Director
responsible for oversight of the Board's
engagernent with the workforce. In this role,

1 regularly engage with the workforce ona
broad range of topics, including reward and
benefits. In addition, we undertake an annual
engagement survey in order to better
understand the views of a wider range of
employees. The engagement survey incudes a
range of spedfic questions on the Company's
pay practices and presents an opportunity for
the workforce 10 ask its own questions about
employee or executive reward,

Through the feedback from the engagement
survey, supplemented with miy findings from
regular direct engagement with the workforce,
the voice of Mitie employees is heard at
Remuneration Committee meetings. This
enables the Remuneration Committee to take
into account the views of employees when
considering executive remuneration and the
pay and employment conditions throughout
the wider workforce.

| attended a istening session earfier this year
with frontiine colleagues specifically facused on
reward and executive remuneration, it was a
useful session; colleagues were reassured to
hear about the Board's rigour around fairness
for the consideration of reward for the
Executive Directors in line with that of the
wider workforce.

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee
are afl Non-Executive Directors and are shown
on pages 88 and B9. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the Committee met 5 times.

For the Directors' attendance, see the table

on page 91.

The Committee has responsibility for
determining the remuneration of Mitie’s
Exequtive Directors and the Chairman, taking
into aceount the need to ensure Executive
Directors are properly incentivised to perform
in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Committee is alsa responsible
for setting the remuneration for other senior
executives, including the Mitie Group Executive.

The Commyittee’s Terms of Reference are
available at www mitie.comfinvestors/
Corporate-governance.

The Committee regularly consults with the
CEO and key HR executives on various matters
relating to the appropriateness of rewards far
the Executive Directors. However, the CEO
and other Executive Directors are not present
when matters relating directly to their own
remuneration are determined. This is also the
case for other executives attending Committee
meetings. The Compary Secretary attended the
meetings as Secretary to the Committee. The
CEQ and HR executives attended the meetings
by invitation only.

Conclusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’
remuneration report (advisory vote) at the 2022
AGM. 1 welcome your views and feedback on
the report.

Jennifer Duvatier
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

jennifer.duvalier@mide.com
DocuSigned by:
Suufer Dusalive

CFSEBB4AIZEDADO...
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Executive remuneration at a glance

How we intend to operate our policy for FY23

The following table provides an overview of our remuneration policy and summarises the approach for remuneration arrangements for Executive
Directors for FY2I alongside how the Committee intends to apply the policy in FY23. The full Policy approved at the 2021 AGM s available on our website
{www.mitie com/investorsicorporate-governance) and in the Annual Report and Accounts 2021.

Aca glance Overview of policy Fr22 Fri3
Base salary Sataries are generally reviewed annually, CEO: £500,000 CEO: £900,000 (no increase)
effective from | April The review may be CFO: £350,000 CFO: £378.000 (+8%)
influenced by: As discussed in the Chair's Statement
@ The individual's role. experience and to shareholders, the CFO's salary was
performance set low relative to market and the
@ Business performance and the wider market previous incumbent, with the intention
and economic corditions to incrementally increase over the
© The range of increases across the Group years, depending on performance and
© An external comparator group comprising development. The new level remains
sector comparators and size adjusted below typical FTSE 250 CFO satary
comparator organisations levels and c.12% below the previous
non-interim incumbent {(£430,000).
Benefits The Group provides a range of benefits which  Benefits for FY22 indude private No changes to benefits are planned
may indude a company car/car allowance, medical cover, car allowance/car, for FY23.
private fuel, private health insurance, life and financial/tax planning advice.
assurance and annual leave.
Benefits are reviewed periodically against
market and new benefits may be added and/or
amended as required to support the attraction
and retention of key talert.
Pension Executive Directors are eligible to participate CEO: 20% of base salary CEQ: 20% of base salary and

in the defined contribution pension scheme
or 1o receive a cash allowance in lieu of a
pension contribution.

CFO: 3% of base salary
{in line with the workforce)

reducing to the workforce rate
from | January 2023

CFO: 3% of base salary

(in line with the workforce)

Maximum bonus
-opportunity

Maximum bonus opportunity is 160% of base
salary for the Chief Executive Officer and

up to 135% of base salary for any other
Executive Director.

CEO: 160% of base salary
CFO: 130% of base salary

CEQ: 160% of base salary
CFQ: 130% of base salary

Bonus deferral

50% of the bonus is normally deferred into
shares which vest after a minimum of two years
{subject to continued employment).

50% of bonus deferred into shares
which vest after at least two years

50% of bonus deferred into shares
which vest after at least two years

Bonus
performance
measuras — mix

Measures and targets are set annually and
pay-out levels are determined by the
Committee after the year-end based on
performance against those targets.

70% financial, 30% strategic

70% financial, 30% strategic

Bonus Bonuses are based on stretching financial and © Revenue (35%) © Revenue (35%)
performance strategic obiectives assessed by the Committee  © Profit (35%) © Profit (35%)

at the end of the year, with the undertying aim © Strategic targets (30%) © Strategic targets (30%)
measures — ) h :

R of encouraging and rewarding the generation

metrics of sustainable returns to shareholders.
Maximum LTIP Awards may be made up to a maximum level CEO: 200% of base salary CEQ: 200% of base salary
opportunicy of 200% of base salary. CFO: 150% base of salary CFO: 150% base of salary

LTI? performance
measures

Performance over at least three financial years
is measured against stretching objectives which
have the underlying aim of encouraging and
rewarding the generation of sustainable returns
1o shareholders,

© Adjusted EPS (50%)
© Cash conversion (35%}
© ESG measures (15%)

© Adjusted EPS (50%)
© Return on invested capital (35%)
© £5G measures (15%)

Mitie Group plc
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Directors’ remuneration report

Executive remuneration at a glance

continued
Atz glance Owerview of policy FY22 FY1]
LTIP holding period Awards will normally be subject to an additional  Shares released after at least five Shares released after at least frve
of ewo years holding period of at least twa years. years (vesting after three years years (vesting after three years
after vest plus two-year holding period) plus two-year holding period)
Enhanced Delivery aximum award of up to 640% of base salary  CEC: core award of 160% of afa
Plan apportunicy for the Chief Executive Officer and up to 260%  base salary
of base satary for the Chief Financial Officer CFC: core award of 65% of
{this was a one-off award made in FY232), base salary
Awards are subject to a multiplier
of up to 4x based on stretching
performance measures
Enhanced Delivery Awards will vest based on performance © Return on invested capital (75%)} nfa
Plan performance measured over three years, © Synergies (25%)
measures Vesting is also subject to both an
abrsolute share price underpin
and a net debt underpin
Enhanced Delivery Awards will be subject to an additional holding ~ Shares released after at least five nfa
Plan holding period period of two years. years (vesting after three years
of twa years plus two-year holding period)
after vest

Share ownership
requirements

Executive Directors are required, over time, to build and maintain a minimum sharehclding in the Company worth 200% of

base salary.

Executive Directors will be expected to maintain their shareholding at 100% of their ownership requirement for one year
post departure. reducing to 30% for the second year post departure, or in gither case the actua! sharehoiding on departure

if lower.

Malus and clawback
provisions

Recovery provisions (malus and clawback) have applied to incentives for a number of years. Further details on the recovery
provisions, including the Graumstances and timeframe for which they can be applied, are set out in the remuneration policy.

Single figure for FY22

The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the finandial year ended 31 March 2022 and their
comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Phil Bentley

Simon Kirkpatrick?

2002
® Sty £900,000
@ Benefits £22.706
@ Pensions £180.000
@ Borus £1,368.000
@ e £1,398,770

Total £3,869.476

2022
@ Saary £350.000
@ Benefits £6942
@ Pensions £10,500
@ Borus £432.250
@ Lme £89478

Totat £889,170

202)

@ Satary £787500"
@ Benefis £20,625
@ Pensions £180.000
@ Bonus £1.131,186
@ TP £722312
Taral £2,891,623

1. Phil Bentley's heackne sakiry remained at £900.000 theougnaut FY21. However, this figure reflects the salary paid as he, along with other executives, took 3 voluntary pay
reduction during FY21 in light of the pandemic
2. Simon Kirkpatrick was not an Executive Director for FY2I

Further information on the above is provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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Summary of remuneration policy

Exchding the one-off awards made under the Enhanced Delivery Plan for FY23, the standard remuneration approach far the Executive Directors
comprises the following elements:

Fixed Vanable

Annual
Base salar Benefit =
N bons o

Executive incentives and link to strategy
The foltowing table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY23 support the Group's strategy and KPIs:

Sustained and renswed Strong cash-generative
profit growth Quality cliant base business Strategic targets
Annual bonus v 35% profit v 35% revenue v 10% free cash flow v 20% strategic objectives
(inc. ESG)
Lme + 50% adjusted EPS v 35% ROIC W 15% ESG measures
EDP (2021 award) v 25% synergies v 75% ROIC

Note: details of the FY23 annual bonus targets will be disdosed in the FY23 remuneration report.

UK Corporate Governance Code: Provision 40
The following table sets out how the revised Remuneration Policy addresses the factors set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code:

Claricy The Committee considers that Mitie’s remuneration structures are transparent and welcomes open and frequent
dialogue with sharehelders on its approach to remuneration. Major shareholders were consulted on the Commitiae’s
approach to remuneration, including the changes to the Remuneration Policy and introduction of the Enhanced
Delivery Plan, which were approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

Simplicity The overal remuneration policy is designed to be comprehensive without becoming overcomplicated and to encourage

: Executive Directors to concentrate on the profitable growth of the business. When developing the remuneration
arrangemenrts, the Committee was conscious of ensuring the overarching structure remajned simple and easy to
understand for both shareholders and participartts.

Risk The Committee considers that the structures of the incentive arrangements do not encourage inappropriate
risk-taking. The following best-practice measures are in place to minimise risks:
© Deferral under the Annual Bonus, the LTIP holding period, the EDP holding period and the shareholding
requirement, induding post-cessation. provide a dear link to the ongoing performance of Mitie's business and the
experience of shareholders
© The Cammittee has discretion te adjust the formulaic outcomes if it considers that they are not reflective of the
underlying performance of Mitie or the individual
® Malus and dawback provisions apply to the Annual Bonus, LTIP and EDP
Predictability One of the Committee's principles is that the majority of reward opportunity for Executive Directors should be
provided through performance-related incentives linked to the Group's strategic goals and taking accourt of the
Group's attitude to risk: reward under these incentives is linked to both individual and Group performance. Page 118 of
the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts sets out four illustrations of the application of the remuneration policy, including
the potential opportunity levels resulting from threshold, target and maximum performance under the Annual Bonus,
LTIP and EDP.
Proportionality Performance measures and target ranges under the Annual Bonus, LTIP and EDP are designed to be sufficiently
stretching in order to ensure out-turns are fully aligned with Mitie's performance.
As above, the Committee has discretion to override formulaic outcomes in order to ensure performance is reflective
of Mitie’s underlying performance.
Alignment, to culture The Committee believes in an approach to executive pay which is cornmensurate with value creation for shareholders.
The remuneration policy and the Company's incentive schemes have been designed to drive appropriate behaviours
consistertt with Mitie's purpose, values and strategy.
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Directors’ remuneration report

Annual report on remuneration

Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for FY22 and their comparative figures for FY21.

Anrual Total
Year Salary Benefits? Pension’  Total fixed pay borns* LTIF*  variable pay Total
Phil Bentley 2022 £900,000 £22,706 £180,000 £1,102,706 £1,368,000 £1,398,770 £1,766,770 £3,869,476
2021 £787,500 £20,625 £180,000 £988.125 £1,131.188 £772312  £1503.498 £2891623
Simon Kirkpatrick' 1022 £350,000 £6,942 £10,500 £367,442 £432,250 £89,478 £521,728  £889,170 ‘
2021 - - - - - - - -

Nates:

Simon Kirkpatrick was appainted to the Board as Chief Financial Officer on 1 April 2021 and the information in the table sets out his earnings as an Executive Dicector from that date,

. Benefits are calculated in terms of UK Laxable values and relite to the cost of private medical cover, car allowance and financialitax planning advice. Sinon Kirkpatnick has received the

use of an electric car for 3 period of six months during FY2I, which attracts 1% benefit i kind tax. Phi Beritiey's inchudes the matching shares elernenit from his SIP purchases for

January - March 2022 based on the share price upon purchase.

The pension benefit disclosed above comprisas cash allowances in liey of pension contributions for Phil Bentley and Simon Kirkpatrick of 20% and 3% of base talary respectively.

Annual bonus payable in respect of the financial year includes any deferred eiement at face value at the date of award. Further information about how the level of the award for FY22

was determined is provided on pages 121 and 122, '

5. The LIt figure disclosed for FYZZ 15 in nespect of the 2019 LTIP and has been valued, in Ene with the regulations, using the average share price of the last three months of FY22 (59p)
and inciudes dividend equivalents accrued over this period. This share price is below the share price at the grant date (a5 adjusted for the bonus element of the 2020 Rights Issue) and
therefore none of the amaunt in the table above is attsibutable to share price appreciation. Further information about how the level of vesting was determined is provided on page
125. The LTIP figure disclosed for Phil Bentiey for FY2I is in respect of the 2018 LTIP and has been adjusted from the figure inchuded in the FY2I remuneration table to reflect the
actval valuation based on the closing share price on the first date of vesting of the awards, being 1 August 2021 (64.9p) and inchudes dividend equivalents accrued untit the first
vesting date,

b=

s

Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The fees for the Non-Executive Directars for FY22 and their comparative figures for FY2) are set out below:

1022 021

£'000 £000
Derek Mapp 225 197
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat? 46 46
Baroness Couttie 60 52
Jennifer Duvalier &0 52
Mary Reilly 60 52
Roger Yates ) ’ 59 52
Former Director - 10
Tozal 510 461

Notes:
1. Al amounts were paid in cash and no ather UK taxable benefits were received in either year.
1. Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat stepped down from the Board on 17 February 2022

Base salary and benefits

The CEO's salary of £900.000 has been unchanged since his appointment in 2016. As in previous years, the Commitiee decided to not implernent any
salary increase for Phil Bentley.

Simon Kirkpatrick was appointed as CFO with effect from | April 2021. As highlighted in last year's report, his salary was set at £350.000 which was at the
lower end of the market and significantly lower than the salary of the previous CFO to serve on a non-interim basis (Paul Wooll at £430.000). it was noted
that, over the years, as Simon develops in the role and subject to his performance and development, the Committee expects to icrease his salary to be
inline with the market. The Committee was and is aware that proxy advisory bodies may highlight these increases as a repeated anmual area of concern.
However, the Committee considers this 1o have been and still be the most appropriate approach for the individual, the Cormpany and its shareholders,

In line with this approach, the Committee determined that it was appropriate to increase the CFO's salary from £350,000 to £378.000 (+8%) from
| April 2022. This remains below typical FTSE 250 salary levels for a CFO and is 12% below the previous non-interim incumbent. Benefits are as described
in the notes to the Executive Director remuneration table on page 20, No changes in benefits are planned for FY23.
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Non-Executive Director fees

Fees are reviewed on a periodic basis and at least every three years. Fees for the Chairman have not been inareased since his appointment in 2017, Fees
for the Non-Executive Directors have not increased since 2016. Following a market review of fees during 2022, it was determined that from | April 2022
fees for the Chairman remain at the same level of £225.000; basic fees for the Non-Executive Directors remain at the same level of £52.000; additional
fees for Senior Independent Director status and for chairing 2 Committee are each increased by £2,000: and an additional fee of £3.000 per annum is
introduced for the designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement. These changes are summarised in the 1able below.

From 1 April 2022' From 1 Apeil 2021

£'000 £000
Chairman fees 225 225
Non-Executive Director core fees® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior Independent Director 9 7
Chair of a Compmittee 10 8
Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement 5 i
Notes:

|. The core fees of £52.000 per annum paid to each Non-Exacutive Director {including the Chairman) would ordinarity total £364.000 for FY23, Total fees including additional duties
would ordinarily amount to £581,000 for FY23 {£510.150 actual for FY22).

2. The Chairman’s fee it inclusive of the Non-Executive Director core fee and no additional fees are paid to the Chairman where he is chairman or a member of other Committees,

3. For Non-Executive Directors, individual fees comprise the core fee and additional supplemental fees for the Senior Independent Director; for chairing Committees and for the
designated Non-Executive Director for workfarce engagement to reflect the greater responsibility and time commitment required.

Annual Bonus Plan (ABP) FY22

Awards in respect of FY22 were considered under the ABP. Phil Bentley was eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 160% of base salary. Simon
Kirkpatrick was efigible for a maximum bonus opportunity of {30% of base salary.

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets (the remaining
30%). At the threshoid level of performance for finandial targets, 25% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, with 50% of the maximur bonus
opportunity due at the target level and 100% at the maximurn level Between these points. the out-turn is determined on a linear siiding scale basis.

FY22 was an outstanding year of record levels of revenue, profit and cash. This resutted in maximum vesting under all the financial targets; 35% operating
profit; 35% revenue: and 10% free cash flow which formed part of the strategic targets. The remaining elements were other strategic targets (10%) and
individual objactives {|0%). The Remuneration Committee determined that performance under these last two elements warranted 7.5% each for both
CEO and CFO. which is discussed in further detail later in this section. This resulted in bonuses for the CEO and CFO representing 95% of the maxirmum
opportunity. : :

The Rermuneration Committee gave careful consideration to this FY22 annual bonus out-turn and took into account the experience of Mitie shareholders,
colleagues and other stakeholders. It was felt that the overall outcome was appropriate in this context, and reflected what has been an exceptional year of
management performance and therefore ne discretion was applied.

The following tables set out performance against the financial, strategic and individual measures and targets.

Performance measure Weighting Performance range Performance Qut-trn (% of bonus opportunity)
Operating profit 35% of the award £98.7m threshold £166.9m; above maximum 35%
£109.7m target
£120.6m maximum
Revenue? 35% of the award £3,216m threshold £3.997m; above maximum  35%
£3385m target
£3.554m maximum
Free cash flow 10% of the award £25m threshold £133m; above maximum  10%
£45mtarget
£65m maximum
Other strategic targets — CEQ and  10% of the award The Committee considered performance against the 7.5%
CFrO strategic objectives set out below and determined
that the out-turn was 75% of the maximum for the
CEQ and CFQ

individual objectives — CEQ and CFO 10% of the award The Committee considered performance against the 7.5%
. indivdual objectives set out below and determined
that the out-turn was 75% of the maximum for the
CEO and CFO

Total 95%

Notes;
I. Operating profit before other items from continuing operations.

1. Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates from continuing operations,
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Directors’ remuneration report

Annual report on remuneration
continued

Performance against the strategic targets and individual objectives set for Phil Bentley and Simen Kirkpatrick were as follows:

i Phil Bentley (CEQ)
Strategic targets
Strategy © Industry leader throughout COVID and recognised as 'go to’ provider for short-term Government
‘surge’ requirements
© Became UK No.| in Cleaning by sales and opened Hygiene and Cleaning Centre of Excellence
© Continued focus on core activities with the acquisition of DAEL, Rock and Bictecture and disposal

of Document Management
: © Achieved investment Grade credit rating (BBB stable) and refinanced RCF and USPP at significantly
i reduced costs
% Individual objectives
f Accelerate integration synergies © FY22 Interserve cost synergies of £30m, with run rate of c£40m p.a. at year end
© Cross-selling revenue of £42m
Customers © Interserve NPS improved from -18 to +13

© Mitie Strategic Accourts NPS improved from +55 to +60
© Cabinet Office Annual Review recognised strong progress made through proactive Corporate
Aflairs Strategy
© New wins included DHSC,, FDIS, FMSP, BAE Systems and Costa
Colleagues © SLT diversity increased from 25.2% to 31.7%
© Teamn Talk Live accessed by over 25.000 cofleagues
© Successiul Team facilitation for MGX, with several members having bespoke ¢oaching
ESG © MSCI AA rating COP A-; Sustainalytics 85% (Platinum low risk)
© ESG targets now embedded in both long term incentives and annual bonus

Simon Kirkpatrick (CFQ)

Strategic targets

Strategy © Achieved Investment Grade credit rating (BBB stable)
© Refinanced Revolving Credit Facifity and US Private Placement notes at significantly reduced costs
(>£3m)
© New Group reporting structure in place in HI FY22
© Interserve cost synergies of £30m delivered in FY22
© 2 day reduction in Days Sales Outstanding through process improvements, contributing to a £60m
working capital improvement

Individuatl objectives

. Finance function € Interserve successfully folded into Mitie process and control ervironment
' ) © Complex, automated intercompany billing solution delivered, generating £1im working capital
’ improvement and £1.9m profit through process improvements
© Detailed operating model for finance developed, which should deliver significant savings and
improved service for the Group
© Smooth year end reporting and audit process

Colleagues and stakeholders © Over 10 moves and promotions made at senior levels of the finance team
© Succession planning and talent reviews held for the first time
© Good relationships established with many external stakeholders ({USPP holders, banks, brokers,

analysts, investors)
: The bonus outcome is therefore as follows:
3 Total bonus payable
Total bonws Cash  Deferred shares
% of salary £000 {'000 £'000
Phil Bentley ) 152% of salary 1,368 684 684
Simon Kirkpatrick 123.5% of salary 432 216 216
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Annual Bonus Plan FY23

The ABF will be aperated on similar terms for FY23. The maximum bonus opportunity for FY23 for Phil Bentley and Simon Kirkpatrick will be 160% and
130% of base salary respectively. Their awards will be payable by reference to performance against a blend of finandal (70% of the bonus epportunity)
and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However. if none of the financial targets have been achieved, no banus will be payabie by reference only to the
strategic targets. 50% of any bonus entitlement will be deferred.

Details of the targets will be disdosed in the FY23 remuneration report.

LTIP awards granted in 2021 (subject to audit)
On 24 September 202, the following conditional LTIP awards were granted to the Exeautive Directors:

MNumber of % of base Performance Performance % westingat
Award Type shares' Face value salary conditions period threshold
Phil Bendey Performance LTIP Nil-cost 2,975,206 £1,800,000 200% Performance Three financial 5%
Sep 21 options conditions are set years ending
out in the table 31 March 2024
below
Simon Kirkpatrick Performance LTIP Nil-cost 867,768  £525000 150% Performance Three financial 25%
Sep 21 options conditions are set years ending
out in the table 31 March 2024
below

Note:
1. Number of shires was caloutated based on the average closing middle market price of 60.5p for the last five trading days prior 10 the start of the flinancial year on 1 April 2021,

LTIP awards granted in 2021 are subject to three performance measures, adjusted EPS, cash corversion and ESG targets. These awards will vest in 2024
conditional on performance against the following measures:

Performance measure Weighting Performance range Vesting of portion of the award (performance period chree years ending 3) March 2023)

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 50% of the award 69p-78p Zero vesting if EPS, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate, is less
than 6.9p. If EPS is equal to 6.9p, 25% of the award will vest. Il EPS of 74pis
achieved, 70% of the award will vest. Full vesting for this portion will occur if
EPS of 78p or more is achieved. Between &£.9p and 74p and 74p and 7.8p the
proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Cash conversion 35% of the award BO% — 90% pa Zero vesting # cash conversion is less than 80% pa. At 80% pa cash
. conwersion, 25% of the award will vest. At 85% pa cash conversion, 70% of
the award will vest Full vesting for this portion will ocour if 0% pa cash
conversion is achieved. Between BO% and 85% and 85% and 90%, the
proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

ESG targets 15% of the award © Greenhouse gas emission reduction: 60% reduction in Scope | and 2 net emissions versus the

FY20 baseline

© Fleet zero carbon: £5% of Mitie’s total fleet is zero tailpipe emissions

© Employee engagement. improve employee engagement by 6ppt

© Custorner engagement: imprave net promoter score (NPS) by 6

© Gender diversity: increase percentage of women holding senior leadership roles to 30%

© Ethnic diversity: increase percentage of raciafly diverse colleagues holding senior leadership roles
to 10%

The Committee has the discretion to determine the performance measures and how the performance ranges applicable to the award are applied,
induding discretion to adjust them in the event of changes in IFRS accounting standards, while ensuring that they are not materialty easier or harder to
satisfy than the original performance measures and ranges.
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EDP awards granted in FY22 (subject to audit)
On 27 July 2021, the following conditional EDP awards were granted to the Executive Directors:

Nomber % of base Performarxe Performance % vesting at
Award Type of shares'  Facevalue salary conditions period threshold
Phil Bendey EDP juty 21 Nilcost 9,520,661 £5.760000 £40% Performance Three financial 25%
options conditions are set years ending
aut in the table 31 March 2024
below
Simon Kirkpatrick EDP July 2{ Nil-cost 1,504,132 £310.000 260% Performance Three financial 25%
options conditions are set years ending
out in the tabie 31 March 2024
below

Note:
i. Number of shares was calcufated based on the average closing middle market price of 60.5p for the last frve tading days priar to the start of the inancial year on | April 2021,

© The awards will vest in 2024 conditional on performance against the following measures:

Performance measure Weighting Threshold {Ix multiplier) Maximum (4x multiplier}
Return on invested 75% of the award 20.5% 24.5%
capital (ROIC) This is 1,140 bps above Mitie's WACC at This is 400 bps above the threshold level
31 Mareh 202) of 99%.
Synergies split as 25% of the award Cost-saving synergies of £35m, in line with the Cost-saving synergies of £56m, representing
cost-saving synergies enhanced synergies set out in the November aver-performance of 60% against the £35m
(85%) and cross-selling 2020 acquisition announcenment. threshold (Interserve total overheads are c.£80m).
revenues (15%) Cross-selling revenues into the fnterserve Cross-sefiing revenues into the Interserve customer

customer base of £50m {measured as revenue  base of £100m,

from services not currertly provided by

Intersarve to its customers).

For performance between threshold and maximum, the proportion of awards vesting will be
determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

LTIP 2022
Phil Bentley and Sifmon Kirkpatrick will be granted LTIP awards of 200% and 150% of base salary respectively in respect of FY23.

The awards will vest in 2025 conditional on performance against the following measures:

Pecformance measure Waighting Perforrnance range Vastng of portion of the award {performance period three pears ending 31 March 2025)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 50% of the award 7lp threshold 25%
79p target Tk
8.7p maximum 100%
Returs on invested 35% of the award 199% threshold 25%
capital 220% target 70%
24.3% maxirnum 100%
ESG targets 5% of the award ® Greenhouse gas emission reduction: (a) revenue intensity of Scope | and 2 emissions reduced to

4.5%: and (b) 5% pa reduction in Scope 3 emissions

© Fleet zero carbon: 85% of Mitie’s total fleet is zero taifpipe emissions

© Employee engagement: improve employee engagement by 4ppt

© Customer engagement improve net prormoter score (INPS) by 4

© Gender diversity: increase percentage of women holding senior leadership roles to 35%

© Ethnic diversity: increase percentage of racially diverse colleagues holding senior leadership roles
to 10%

Note that the EPS figures above of ZIp. 73p and 8.7p at threshold, target and maximurm levels of performance effectively represent EPS growth of 64%.
10.2% and 13 8% per annum respectively from a notional base year FY22 EPS figure of 59p, which represents FY22 EPS exduding the non-repeatable
COVID earnings.

“The Committee has full discretion to ensure that the level of ary vesting outcome is appropriate based on the overall performance of the Group and the
shareholder experience and employee experience. Awards are also subject to an additional post-vesting holding period of at least two years.
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Details of June 2019 LTIP award vesting in FY23

The Committee assessed the outcome of the [une 2019 LTIP awards (based on FY22 results) granted under the plan against two performance measures:

Ferformance Performance Vesting of porton of the award (performance period three years ending Micie Vesting
measure Weighting range 31 March 2022) performance (% of max)
Earnings Per  50% of the 5% - 10%pa  Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as 26% pa 50%
Share (EPS) award appropriate, i less than 5% pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa,

growth : 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS growth of 7.5% pa,

70% of the award wilt vest. If EPS growth of 10% pa or more is
achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 7.5% and 7.5%
and (0%, the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on

a finear sliding scale basis.
Cash 50% of the 80% -90% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than B0% pa. At B0% pa cash 116% pa 50%
conversion award conversion, 25% of the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if

Mitie achieves 85% pa cash conversion. Full vesting for this portion
will occur if 909% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between 80% and
85% and 85% and 90%, the propaortion of awards vesting will be
determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

This results in 100% vesting of the 2019 LTIP award on a formulaic basis. As part of their assessment. the Committee took into account the wider
‘performance of the Greup and the context of both the shareholder and employee experience. In doing so, it determined that the outcome was
appropriate and no discretion was applied. 2019 LTIP awards will vest later in 2022 and Phil Bentley's award is subject to a two-year post-vesting holding
period. Simon Kirkpatrick's 2019 LTIP award was granted when he was not an Executive Diirector and was not subject to a two-year post-vesting holding
pericd. All LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors are subject 1o a two-year post-vesting holding period.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)
There have been no loss of office payments to past Directors during FY22.

Payments to past Directors (subject to audit)

Andrew Peeler's bonus payment for FY2| was disclosed as £200000 in error in last year's remuneration report and should have been £250.000. As he
was not a Director during FY22, his remuneration is not required to be disclosed in the single figure table for FY22, where this would have been corrected
and explained in the priar year comparatives. For completeness, it should be noted that £175,000 was paid to him in January 2021 and £75,000 was paid
to him at the end of his assignment with Mitie in June 202!, For darity, there have been no cther payments to Andrew since his departure. Therefore this
represents a correction rather than an additional payment to a past. Director. For completeness, there have been no other payments to past Directors .
during FY22 that relate 1o their period as a Director. .

Mitie Group ple 125
Annual Report and Accounts 2022



DocuSign Envelope (0: TCES319A-0C81-4123-96D7-486804283488

Directors’ remuneration report

Annual report on remuneration
cornitinued

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Directors who served on the Board and Mitie's UK emplayees, which is considered the most
appropriate group for comparison purposes.

FY20/FY21' FY2IFY22

Salary? Benefits Bonus Salary? Benefits’ Bonus
Average pay based on Mitie's UK employees 25% (208)% (239)% 4.1% 5.7% 99.4%
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley {125)% (25.0)% NZAY 14.3% 10.1% 20.9%
Simon Kirkpatrick® N/A NIA N/A NIA N/a NIA
Non-Executive Directors :
Derek Mapp (12.5)% - - 14.3% - -
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat (t25)% - - 1.4% - -
Baroness Couttie (105)% - - 14.3% - -
Jennifer Duvalier (12.5)% - - 14.3% - ~
Mary Reilly (12.5)% - - 14.3% - ~
Roger Yates {12.5)% - - 14.3% - -
Notas:

1. The average UK employee figures reflect the changes in average annual pay for UK emplayees employed throughout FYZU and FY22 for FY21/22 and throughout FY20 and FY2I
for FY20721. Employess who have baen on furlough during FY2I ar FY22 have been excluded for the purposes of this anatysis.

2. The increases in salary for Directors for FY22 compared with FY21 following the reductions in salary for FY2( ¢compared with FY20 arose from the Non-Executive Directors and
Phil Bentley volunteering 30% reductions in their fees/salaries respeciively for five months froen § April 2020 as part of Miie's actions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19.

3. Includes taxable benefits uch as carfear allawande, private medical benefit and private Reel The introduction of the 1% benelit in kind tax on electric vehicles has impacted the
benefits in FY22. Also includes Phil Bentley's matching shares element from his SIP purchases for fanuary - March 2012 based on the share price upon purchase.

4. Phil Bentley's FY20 bonus was £nil as he waived it.

5. Simon Kirkpatrick was appointed to the Board an | April 2021 and therefore there are no appropriate prior year comparatives in terms of Director remuneration. He will be induded
in next year's report when it wifl be possible 1o show a FY21FY23 change in remuneration.

CEO pay ratio

The 1able below sets out the CEO pay ratic in respect of FY22. CEO pay ratio data for previous financial years is provided for reference.

Year Method 25¢h percentile pay racio Median pay racio 75ch percendle pay ratio
FY22 Option B 189:1 ) To6ld 141:1
Fy2u Option B 151:1 129:1 11é:1
FY20 Cption B 1541 139:) 108:}

| The FY2I single figure has been updated as a result of reflecting the actual valuation on the closing share price on the first date of vesting of the LTIP award,

The pay ratios set out abave were calculated using the Group's FY22 gender pay data hased on employees as at 5 April 2021 under method B.
Method B was selected because it made use of robust, readily available data and did not require additional analysis into the more than 70,000 UK
employees employed by the Group. Total pay was calculated for a sample of employees at each quartile in order to ensure that the three identified
employees wers suitably representative of their quartile. A full-time equivalent total pay figure was calculated for each identified employee using the
single figure methodology.

The CEO pay ratio figures for FY22 have increased this year due to an increase in the CEQ's single figure, primarily as a resuft of the vesting of the 2019
LTIP and an increased annual banus payment in respect of FY22 from FY21. As a Real Living Wage service provider. Mitie continues to increase pay levels
among its various contracts and invest in competitive pay for all employees. Given that Mitie’s workforce profile is made up of predominantly frontline
customer-facing roles, the employees at each quartile used to compare Mitie's CEQ's remuneration all operate within a frontline role. The Committee

is comfortable that the pay ratios are consistent with the pay, reward and progression poficies at Mitie.

The foliowing table sets out the base salary and total pay figures for the employees identified at each quartile.

Year . Elemenc of pay  15th percentile employee Median employee  75th percentile emplayee
FY22 Base salary (FTE) £19,76¢ £22,724 £26,660
Total pay (FTE) £20,433 £23,988 £17,519
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Refative spend on pay

-The table below shaws the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with dividends distributed.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£m fm Change
Aggregate employee remuneration 2,132 1,473 447%
Equity dividends 6 - NIA

Assessing pay and performance

The table below pravides a summiary of the Chief Executive Officer’s single figure remuneration over the past 10 years, as well as the pay-out and vesting
levels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical TSR performance over the same period, with
Mitie's TSR restated for the bonus element of the 2020 rights issue. Three indices (FTSE 250. FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350) have been chosen

as they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of these indices during the period:
TSR (Rebased to {00)

300

/

250

)

" —_ “’W

150 e

——y

100 \

50 v
March |2 March I3 March 14 March 15 March 16 March 17 March 18 March 19 March 20 March 21 March 22
e Mitie  mwe—— FTSE 250 == FTSE 350 Support Services e FTSE 350
Fri7
Ruby Y
McGregor- i
. Y3 FYl4 FYI3 FYl6 Smith' Bentley' FY18 FYI9 FY20 Frai friz
Single figure
rermuneration €2105,131 £1.447.266 £1525824 2448161  £530628 £479.073 £1102549 £2248948 £2.029.856 £2.891,623%£3,869.47¢
Annual bonus element -
(actual as a % of max) 85% 0% 50% 73% 0% waived waived 79% waived 78.6% 5%
LTIP element (actual
vesting as a % of max) 57.2% 0% 5% 695% 0% na " nfa na 79.7%? 50% 100%
MNaotes:

1. Ruby MeGregor-Smith stepped dawn as Chisl Executive Officer on 12 December 2016. Phil Bentley joined the Board on | November 2016 and assumed the position of Chief

Executive Officer on (2 Decernber 2016. The figures above indude Phil Bentley's remuneration from | November 2016,

1. This figure ncludes two LTIP awards that vested based on parfonmance to 31 March 2020 which vestad at 100% and 53% respectively.
3. The single remuneration figure for FY2) has been adjusted from the figure published in the FY2) remuneration table to reflect the actual valuation of Phil Bentiey's 2018 LTIF award

based on the cosing thare price on the first date of vesting of the award, being 2 August 202! (64.9p).

Mirie Group ple
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Annual report on remuneration
continued

Share ownership (subject to audit)

Number of shares Percentage of salary Percentage of target Compliance with
awned as & Value of Target held as at achieved as at share i
31 March 2022 target holding shareholding 3) March 2022 31 Mareh 2022 guidalines
Phil Bentley! 10,754,889 £1,800,000 2,975,207 713% 361% Achieved
Mot achieved but
Simon Kirkpatrick 6,332 £700,000 1,157,025 1% 1% compliant®

Notes:

1. Includes shares owned by connected persons.

1 Vahue of target halding is 200% of base salary for Phil Benviey. Historically the target sharchokiing was calculated by reference to the share price on Phi's appointment as CEQ. In order
to align with typical market practice and the approach that applies to other membery of the MGX, the target shareholding will now be caleylated using the average share price for the
fove business days priar to the end of FY21 (60.5p). .

3. Simon Kirkpatrick was appointed to the Board on | Aprd 2021,

Directors’ outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
The following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ interests granted under the share schemes

Options Cptions
Sutstanding outstanding

as a1 31 March a5 at 3| March Eariest normal

Year of grant 2001®  Grantedinyear Lapsed in year  Excercised in year 202" Exerose price exercise date
Phil Bentley Nov 2016 LTIP 425,004 ~ - (425,094) - Nil-cost May 2020°
july 2017 LTIP? 343,117 ~ - (171.558) 171,559 Nil-cost Juty 20208
Aug 2018 LTIP? 2283069 - {1.141,534) - 1,141,535 MNi-cost Aug 2021¢
June 2019 LTIP 2.275.608 ~ - - 2,275,608 Nil-cost June 2022¢
Aug 2020 LTIPS 5278.592 - - - 5,278,592 Nil-cost Aug 2023°
Sep 2021 LTIP® - 2975206 - - 2,975,206 Nil-cost Sep 20240
july 2021 EDP? - 9.520.661 - - 9,520,651 Nil-cost Sep 2024°

June 2019 DBP 722847 - - {722,847) - Nil-cost June 2021

June 2021 DBP'2 - 769514 - - 769,514 Nil-cost June 2023

Nov 3021 SAYE = 35714 - - 35,714 50.40p Feb 2025

Sirmon Oct 2019 LTIP* 148913, - - - 148,913 Nii-cost Oct 2022

Kirkpatrick Aug 2020 LTIES 322580 - - - 322,580 Nil<ost Aug 2023
Sep 2021 LTIP¢ - 867,768 ~ - 867,768 Nil-cost Sep 2024°
July 2021 EDF? - 1.504,132 ~ - 1,504,132 MNil-cost Sep 2024°

Dec 2020 CSP? 577427 - - - 577,427 Nil-cost Deac 2022

Sep 2020 SAYE 46,187 - - - 46,187 27.28p Dec 2023

Naotes:

1. The performance criteria applicablé 1o the Navember 2016 LTIP award were disdosed on pages 154 and 155 of the FY20 remuneration report.

2. The performance criteria applicable to the 2017 LTIP awards were disclosed on pages 155 and 156 of the FY20 remuneration report.

‘The performance criteria applicable to the 2018 LTIP awards were disclosed on page 110 of the Y21 remuneration report

The performance criteria applicable to the 2019 LTIP awards are disclased on page 125 of this FY22 remuneration repart.

The performance criteria applicable to the 2020 LTIP awards were disdosad on pages 108 and 109 of the FY2I remuneration report.

The performance criteria applicable to the 2021 LTIP awards are disclosed on page 123 of this FY22 remuneration report.

The performance criteria applicable 1o the 2021 EDP awards are disclosed on page 124 of this FY22 remuneration repart.

Awards are subject to an additionai two-year holding period.

The 2020 Conditiona! Share Plan (CSP) awards are subject lo a personal performance rating.

10. For all awards prior to August 2020, the number of eptions has been adjusted for the bonus element of the Rights 1ssue (x1 93426815).

11 The dosing market price of the Comparny's shares a3 at 3| March 2027 was 62.9p. The highest and lowest dosing market prices during FY22 were 77.3p and 46.45p respectively.

12, The Deferred Banus Plan award an 17 fune 2021 represents the deferval of 50% of the bonus awarded for Y21 with the aumber of shares based on the dosing middle market price
of 73.5p for the day before the date of grant.

RN LR
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Number of Number of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares
beneficially beneficially
owned as ac owned as at
31 March 2022 31 March 202t
(or date of for date of
cessation cessation
if earfier)' if earlier)
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 10,754,889 9.154 496
Simon Kirkpatrick? 6,332 NFA
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp 553,812 494,806
Nivedita Krishnarnurthy Bhagat B5,649 75108
Baroness Couttie 88,311 70,582
Jennifer Duvalier 78,243 67,581
Mary Reilly 92,663 79,698
Roger Yates 160,000 160,000
MNotes:

b The aumber af shares beneficially owned since 3t March 2022 has changed due to & planned purchase that tock place on | April 2022 for Non-Executive Directors. The revised
figures are as folliws: Derek Mapp - 571,198 shares, Baroness Couttie - 90,833 shares, jJennifer Duvalier - 81 416 shares, and Mary Reilly ~ 96,521 shares. In addition, Phil Bentley
made twe SIP transactions, one on 13 Apri 2022 where an additional 441 shares were acquied and one on 13 May 2022 where 416 shares were acquired.

2. Simon Kirkpatrick was appointed to the Board on | Aprit 2021.

There have been no changes, other than those in note | above, between | April 2022 and 7 June 2022, the last practicable date prior to the date of

this report. :

Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee schemes and 5% in
respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines, the Company allocates available headroom on a 10-year flat-line bass,
making adjustments for prajected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

TP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group ple Employee Benefit Trust. The potential
dilution of the Company's issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last 10 years under the Company's equity-based
incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotment of new shares or treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2022 Dilution
All share plans (maximum 10%) 7.8%
2.9%

Discretionary share plans (maximum 5%)

Mitie Group plc 129
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Annual report on remuneration
continued

Shareholder voting

Mitie remains committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there are substantial votes against
resolutions in relation to Directors' remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for any such vote, and will detail here any actions in
response o it,

At the Company's 2021 AGM. a resolution was passed to approve the 2021 Directors' remuneration report and a separate resolution was passed io
approve the 2021 Directors' remuneration policy. The results of the vates on these resolutions were as follows:

Number of votes Vates in favour Votes against Withheld’
202\ Directors' remuneration policy - 2021 AGM 435.7m 3569m 1. 4m
70.1% 299% -
2021 Directars’ remuneration report - 2021 AGM 950.9m 242m 1.2m
79.7% 20.3% -
Note:

|. Votes withheld are not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes for or against a resokdion.

The Board notes that. atthough the resclutions to approve the Directors' remuneration report and the Directors’ remuneration policy were passed

by a majority of shareholders, a significart minority of shareholders voted against the resolutions. The Cornpany undertook extensive consuttation with
major shareholders prior to the AGM regarding remuneration matters and some changes were made to the final EDP 10 reflect shareholder feedback.
The Board has a clear understanding of the reasons why a minority of shareholders were not supportive of the EDP. One major shareholder voted
against the resolution related to the authority to disapply pre-empticn rights for the purposes of acquisitions and capital investments and the Board
has a clear understanding of their rationale for not supporting this resslution. The Board appredated the level of engagemert with many shareholders.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors
The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

Deloitte LLP have acted as independent remunération advisors to Mitie since Septernber 2017, The advisors attended Committee meetings and provided
advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Company (save in reiation to services
connected to executive remuneration and share plans) and also comply with the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consuhtants. The advisors' total
cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £28,500 (such fees being charged in accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received from them was objective
and independent, given that they provided no other services 1o the Company.
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Social Value & Responsible
Business Committee report

We've made great strides at
ermbedding sustainability and

social value across Mitie, and

are dedicated to driving this

further. Our award winning Plan
Zero initiative and Ready2Work
Programmes are a testament to the
value we are adding to communities
in protecting our environment and
creating employment opportunities
for underrepresented groups.

Baroness Couttie
Chair of the Social Value &
Responsible Business Committee

Social Value & Responsible
Business Committee members

At the date of this report and throughout FY22,
the Sodial Value & Responsible Business
Committee comprised:

Chair: Baroness Couttie

Committee members:
Salma Shah (from | April 2022)

Peter Dickinson, Chief of Staff, General Counsel
& Company Secretary

Kath Fontana, Managing Director of Projects
(until 31 March 2022)

Jasmine Hudson, Group HR Director

Simon King, Director of Sustainability &
Sacial Value (until 25 February 2022)

Claire Lovegrove, Head of Media Relations

Danny Spencer, Managing Director of Care &
Custody (from 22 September 202()

|ason Towse, Managing Director of
Business Services

Simon Venn, Chief Government &
Strategy Officer

Social Value & Responsible
Business Committee meetings

The Social Value & Responsible Business
Committee met five times during FY22.

Key purpose of the Social

Value & Responsible Business
Committee

The purpose of the Social Value & Responsible
Business Committee is to provide oversight and
governance for all of Mitie's social value and
responsible business initiatives, ensuring they are
aligned to Mitie's Purpose, Promises and Values.

Key responsibilities of the
Socia! Value & Responsible
Business Committee

The key responsibilities of the Social Value &
Responsible Business Committee include:

© Driving the social value and responsible
business agenda on behalf of the Group

© Ensuring that the Group conducts its business
in a commerciafly responsible way to achieve
maximum positive impact on the
communities, people and the environment in
which it works

© Benefiting Mitie’s customers, colleagues and
shareholders

The Social Value & Responsible Business
Committee Terms of Reference are
available at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

Board oversight of climate-related risks

and opportunicles

Both the Board and the Sodial Value &
Responsible Business Committee have oversight
of climate-related risks and opportunities.

At each Board meeting, the Chair of the
Committee provides an update which includes
an overview of any Committee meeting and
any recommendations from the Committee
requiring approval by the Board.

Derek Mapp. Chair of the Board. joined
two Committee meetings during FY22 and
with effect from | April 2022, Salma Shah,
Independent Non-Executive Director, was
appoirted as an additional member of

the Committee.

All mernbers of the Board have access to Soaal
Value & Responsible Business Committee
fmeeting papers via an electronic Board portal.

Management’s role in assessing and managing
climate-related risks and opportunities

Due to the action-oriented nature of the
Committee, a significant propartion of its
membership comprises members of the MGX
and senior management. As at 3| March 2022,
four Committee members were members of
the MGX.

As illustrated on the following page, a
governance framework comprising the Plan
Zero Working Group. Plan Zero Steering
Group, the Committee and the Board, ensures
that dimate-related risks and opportunities are
appropriately assessed and managed at Mitie.

Mitie's Clirnate Change risk assessment
document (TCFD risks and opportunities) is
maintained by Jason Roberts, Group Director
for Sustainability & Social Value, who is aregular
attendee of the Committee and Chair of the
Plan Zero Steering Group. Senior mermbers of
the Finance team distribute the document to all
business areas for them to review business and
operation-specific risks and opportunities.

Mitie Group plc 13
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Social Value & Responsible Business Committee report

continued

Board

Social Value & Responsibte Business
Committee

Flan Zero Stecring Group

Plan Zero Working Group

Governance framework

Board

The Board has overall responsibility for
sustainability, environmental and climate-related
matters, including TCFD risks and opportunities.

The Board reviews climate-related risks and
opportunities as part of its principal risks and
business strategy considerations.

Social Value & Responsible Business
Committee

The Commitiee has oversight for sustanability,
environmental and dimate-related matters,
induding TCFD risks and opportunities.

The Commyttee reviews and appraves Mitie's

Climate Change Risk Assessment document

(TCFD risks and opportunities) following its

approval by the Plan Zero Steering Group.

The Committee receives regular updates

on outputs from Plan Zero Steering

Group meetings.

Plan Zero Steering Group

The Plan Zero Steering Group meets quarterly

and reports to the Committee. fts members

include Managing Directors of Mitie’s business

divisions and senior members of the Finance

team, s key responsibilities indude to:

© Qversee and direct the Plan Zero Working
Group

© Deliver Plan Zero solutions and opportunities
1o Mitie's customers

© Review and mitigate idertified dimate-related
risks

@ Realise dlimate-related opportunities

© Review and approve Mitie’s Climate Change
Risk Assessment document (TCFD risks and
opportunities)

132
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Plan Zero Working Group

The Plan Zero Working Group meets monthly
and reports to the Flan Zero Steering Group.
tts members include ESG tearm members and
operational managers from across the Group.
lts key responsibilities indude to:

© Identify and deliver actions to achieve Plan
Zero objectives

© Develop, review and update Mitie's Climate
Change Risk Assessment document (TCFD
risks and opportunities)

Key activities during the year

Developed Environmencal, Social and
Gavernance (ESG) performance

During FY22. the Cormmittee discussed
initiatives aimed at improving Mitie's £5G scores
with ESG rating agencies. As a result of these
initiatives, Mitie received the highest ranking
Platinum Award in The Sustainable £ Index's
{S5FMI) December 2021 report, an improvement
on Mitie's Gold Award in 2020.

Progress on Plan Zero

During FY22, Mitie made significant progress on
transitioning its fleet to electric vehides (EV).
With over 2,200 EVs deployed, Mitie has one
of the largest pure electric fleets in the UK.

Following the completion of site audits in FY21
across Mitie's estate, ab identified optimisation
measures have been implemented. During FY22,
Mitie's Property Team commenced the process
of removing gas fired boilers from the estate,
and as at 3{ March 2022 Mitie had nine buildings
that were fully decarbonised and operating oh
100% renewabie enargy. A further seven
buiidings have been identified for transition

to low carbon heat pumps in FY23.

Mitie Waste made significam progress in diverting
waste from landfd, Over 10,000 bags of old
Interserve uniforms were collected from coleagues
over a four-month period through Mitie’s recyding
services, Eighty tonnes of texties were diverted
from landfil which saved 1.787 tornes of carbon.

Mitie supported public and private sector
organisations with their own decarbonisation
agendas. During FY22. Mitie provided Plan Zero
pathways for 14 customers at nearty 800 sites
and executed decarbonisation capital projects
across its customer base, implemmenting
spedialist technologies induding EV charging
infrastructure, solar PV and heat pumps.

Mitie akso supported its public sector dients
to successfully apply for £73m from the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme.

Mitie's leadership position has been recognised
by winning various awards including The WFM
Impact Award for Positive Climate Action
2021 GREENFLEET Award for Qutstanding
Achievernent, Fleet News Fleet of the Year
Award and edie Fleet Management Initiative
of the Year award.

In February 2024, Mitie made a public
commitment to a science-based target to
address all of its Scope 3 emissions with a Net
Zero target by 2035, incorporating its supply
chain. Mitie expects to submit its plans to the
Sdence-Based Target Initiative for verification
during HY23.

Surong progress on social value targets
Progress against Mitie's social value targets
continues to improve. Mitie achieved ali of
its 13 social value targets for FY22.

Highhights for FY22 include:

© Completed 14,630 volunteering hours
{target was 12,000 hours)

© Promated Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise spend in our procurement to the
value of £1.Im (target was spend of £750k)

© Saved an additional |,56% tonnes of carbon
(target was 1o reduce carbon o a maximum
of 25,230 tonnes and Mitie achieved a
reduction to 23,661 tonnes)

© Increased racial giversity of the Mitie
Leadership Team to 8% (target was 3%)

Progress against Mitie's social value targets i
published monthly on www.mitie.com/esg
providing public transparency on performance.

The Mitie Foundation

The Foundation continues 1o support individuals
with perceived barriers to employment, such

as the long-term unemployed, those with
disabilities or kearning difficulties, veterans

and people with convictions. During FY22,

the Foundation delivered four Ready2Work
programmes across the country. supporting

50 individuals with perceived barriers to
employment to gain hands-on work experience
within Mitie's service lines. Nearly 70% of those
who completed the programme went on to gain
sustainable employment. Mitie's ReadyZWork
prograrmume also won two awards, enie’s Driving
Social Inclusion in the Workplace and UK Social
Mobility Award's Recruitment Programme of
the Year.

During FY22, the Foundation also launched a
career page, to support applications for Mitie
vacandes from individuals introduced by
Foundation partners. The Foundation offers
advice and guidance on effective job searches,
as well as CV and interview preparation where
needed. Foundation candidates wha apply for
a job with Mitie are guaranteed an interview
provided they meet the job role's minimurn
entry requirements. Since the implementation
of this process, over 136 colleagues have
joined the Mitie business in various roles
including managernent.

Baroness Couttie

Chair of the Social Value & Responsibie
Business Committee
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report, together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group, for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Directors' report required under the Companies Act 2006 comprises the carporate governarce
statement on pages 85 to 106. The corporate governance statement on pages 85 to 106 fulfils the
requirement under Disdosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Finandial Conduct Authority

(DTR) 72.1.

For the purposes of DTR 4.1.8R, the management report for the year ended 3! March 2022
comprises the Strategic report and this Directors’ report.

Cross-references

Employee engagement

Details of how Mitie encourages employee invoivement can be found in

the Strategic report on pages 37 to 40.

Equality, diversicy and
inclusion (including
employment of disabled
persons)

Details of Mitie's commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion,
including in relation to the employment of disabled persons, can be
found on pages 37 to 40.

Business relationships

Details of how the Directors have had regard to the need to foster

Mitie's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others, and
the effect of this on the principal dedisions taken by the Company
during the year, can be found in the Strategic report an pages 81 to 82.

Greenhouse gas emissions,
energy consumption and
efficiency

Details of greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and efficiency
can be found in the Strategic report on page 45.

Environmental data

Environmental data can be found in the Strategic report on page 45.

The information required to be disclosed by Listing Rute 9.8.4 can be found in the foflowing locations:

Details of ary lang-term incentive schemes

Directors' remuneration report on pages 115 to
130 and Note 31 1o the consolidated
finangial staterments

Details of any arrangements under which a
Director has waived or agreed to waive any
ermoluments or future emoluments

Directors' remuneration report on page 127

Shareholder waiver of dividends and
future dividends

Directors’ report on page 133

No shareholder is considered a controlling sharehalder as defined in the Finandial Conduct Authority

Handbook.

The remaining disclosures required by LR 984 are not applicable to the Company.

Principal Group activities

The Cornpany is the holding company of the
Group and its principal activity is to provide
management services to the Group. The
Group's activities are focused on the provision
of strategic cutsourcing services, further details
of which can be found on pages 2 to 3 of the
Strategic report.

The Company does not have any branches
registered overseas, but certain subsidiaries

of the Company have registrations/branches
across the United Kingdom, Republic of frefand,
Guernsey, |ersey, lsle of Man, Ascension island,
Austria, Belgium, Cyprus, Czech Republic,
Denmark, Falkland Islands, Finland, France,
Germany, Ghana, Gibraftar, Hungary, Kerya,
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Nigeria, Oman,
Poland, Saudi Arabia, Slovakia, Spain, Switzerland
and the United Arab Emirates. Details of the
Company's subsidiaries are set out in Nate 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Given the nature of its activities. no material
research and development work is carried out
by the Group.

The Board's view on the fikely future
development of the Group is set out in the
Strategic report on pages é1o 12.

Financial results

A detailed commentary on the operational and
financial resutts of the Group for the year is
contained within the Strategic report, including
the Finarice review on pages 59 to 63.

The Group's prefit before tax from continuing
operations for the year ended 31 March 2022
was £52.3m (2021: restated £13.7m loss).

Dividends

An imterim dividend of 0.4p per Ordinary Share
{2021: nily with a total value of £5.7m was paid te
shareholders on 2 February 2022.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of
14p per Ordinary Share (2021: nil) with a total
value of £19.5m (2021 nil) based upon the
number of shares in issue as at 7 June 2022,
Subject to approval at the 2022 AGM, the final
dividend will be paid on 5 August 2022 to
shareholders on the register as at close of
business on 24 June 2022,

Total dividends per Ordinary Share for the year
ended 3| March 2022 will be {.8p (202(: nil).

As at 31 March 2022, the Company had
distributable reserves of £54.6m (2021; £89.6m).

Mitie operates a Dividend Re-Investment Plan
(DRIF) which allows shareholders to use their
cash dividend to purchase additional Ordinary
Shares. Further details on the operation of the
DRIP and how to apply are available from Mitie's
Registrar, Link Group.

The trustees of the Company’s Employee
Benefit Trust agreed to waive dividends payable
on Ordinary Shares held by the trust in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2022,

In accordance with Section 726 of the
Companies Act 2006, no dividends are paid
on Ordinary Shares held in treasury.

Directors

The names of all persans who served as
Directors of the Company at any time during
FY22 are set out on page 100, Full biographical
details of the current Directors, induding
Committee membership and external
appointrnents, are set out on pages 87 to 89.

Director independence

The Board considered the independence of
all Non-Executive Directars during FY22
and determined that, as at 3| March 2022,

all Non-Executive Directors continued to

be independent in mind and judgement, and
free from any material relationship that could
interfere with their ability to discharge their
duties effectively.

Indemnification of Directors and
insurance
The Directors and the Company Secretary

benefit from an indermnity provision under
the Articles.

Additionally. all Directors and the Chief of Stafi,
General Counsel & Company Secretary have
been granted a qualifying third-party indermnity
provision (as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006) which has been in force
throughout FY22 and remains in force as at the
date of this report.
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Directors’ report
continued

Certain subsidiary directors have also been
granted a qualifying third-party indemnity
provision which has been in force throughout
FY22 and remains in force as at the date of
this report

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’
liability insurance which provides appropriate
cover for any legal action brought against the
Growp's Directors and/for officers.

The Group also maintains Pension Trustees
Liability insurance which provides cover in
respect of legal action brought against the
trustees of Mitie's pension schemes.

Share capital

The Group is financed through equity share
capital and debt instruments. Details of the
Cornpany's share capitai are given in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the Group's debt instruments are
set out in Note 24 to the consatidated financial
staternents. Throughout FY22, the Company's
issued share capital was publicly listed on the
London Stock Exchange and it remains so as at
the date of this report.

Financia! instruments

The Group’s financial instruments include bank
borrowing facilities, lease liabilities, overdrafts,
US private placement loan notes and derivatives
which are used to manage interest. currency and
other risks when necessary or material.

DocuSign Envelope ID; TCES319A-0C81-4123-9607-4B5B0428348B

The principal objective of these instrurments is
1o raise funds for general corporate purposes
and to manage financial risk. Further details of
these instruments are given in Note 25 tothe
consoiidated finandiaf statements,

The Company has a single class of shares divided
irto ordinary shares of 2.5 pence each (Ordinary
Shares). The Ordinary Shares are entitled to

one vote each per share at general meetings

and have no right to any fixed incorme.

In accordance with the Company's Artides of
Assodiation, helders of Ordinary Shares are
entitled to participate in any dividends pro rata
to their holding. The Board may propose and
pay interim dividends and recommend a final
dividend to shareholders for approval atan
AGM. A final dividend may be declared by the
shareholders at an AGM by ordinary resolution,
but such dividend cannot exceed the amount
recommended by the Board.

Restrictions on the transfer
of shares

Ordinary Shares hekd by Project County SPV I
Designated Activity Company were subject to
the terms of the Share Box Agreement (as
further described in the circular issued to
shareholders on 4 November 2020 in
connection with the acquisition of Interserve
Facilities Management (interserve) by the
Company). pursuant to which the voting rights

‘Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2022. insofar as it is known to the Company by virtue of notifications made pursuant to tha Companies Act 2006 and/or Chapter 5 of
the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules or otherwise, the following persons were, directly or indiractly. interested (within the meaning of the
Companies Act 2006) in 3% or more of the Company's issued share capital (being the threshald for notification that applies to shareholders pursuant to
Chapter 5 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules):

attaching to the Crdinary Shares held by Project
County $PV 1 Designated Activity Company
were ta be exercised by How Group Limited
ard How Group Limited was able to extract
armounts in respect of dividends attaching to
such Ordinary Shares (subject to certain
restrictions under the Share Box Agreemerit}
for such time as the Ordinary Shares were
held by Project County SPv | Designated
Activity Company. How Group Limited sold
its remaining holding in the Company’s issued
share capital during FY22 was announced on
17 June 2021

The Company is not aware of any other
agreements between holders of its securities
which may result in restrictions on the transfer
of securities or voting rights. No person has any
special rights of control over the Compary's
share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of
any shareholding or on the transfer of shares,
which are both governed by the grovisions of
the Articles.

Under Mitie’s Rules on Share Dealing, persons
with access to certain confidential Compary
information or inside information are required
to follow a dearance to deal procedure and may
be restricted from dealing in the Company's
thares. Persons subject to these requirements
are notified individually and appropriately
informed of the rules.

Number of

Ordinary Shares % of voting rights
Silchester International investors LLP 200588,146 14.02%
FiL Limited 140742713 9.83%
Brandes Investment Partners 1P 91,892,126 6.42%
Heronbridge Ivestment Management 83,460,781 5.83%
Schroder plc 77614308 547%
Alcherny Special Opportunities Fund 1V 71,023,280 496%
BlackRodk Inc 69,974,258 4.89%
Vanguard Group 60,078,240 420%
FMR LLC 59.374.800 4.15%
Qasis \rvestments || Master Fund 56201527 393%
Lombard Odier lnvestment Managers 43.978.187 307%

No changes have been notified to the Company pursuant to Chapter § of the Disdosure Guidance and Transparency Rules between the end of the period
under review and 7 June 2022, the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report.

Directors’ interests in the Company’s share capital are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page {29,
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Powers of the Company to issue
or buy back its own shares

During FY22, the Company allotted 5,283,107
new Ordinary Shares as detailed below:

© 234193 new Ordinary Shares were
subscribed for by the Company's Employee
Benefit Trust at nominal value on 2 August
2021 following a block listing

© 2941176 new Ordinary Shares were
subscribed for by the Company’s Employee
Benefit Trust at nominal value on 6 January
2022 following a block listing

The Compary did not undertake any market
purchases of its own shares during FY22. The
Employee Benefit Trust purchased 22.9m shares
during FY22. 6,155 800 shares were distributed
from treasury to the Company's Share Incentive
Plan trust during FY22, 297,567 shares were
distributed from treasury in connection with the
exercise of awards under the Mitie Group plc
2011 SAYE scheme during FY22. Exercisable
awards under the Mitie Group plc 2001 and
2011 Exeautive Share Option schemes were
underwater during FY22 and no awards

were exercised.

The tatal number of Ordinary Shares held by
the Company in treasury as at 31 March 2022
was ,250992. representing 0.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (2021: 7,744,359,
representing 0.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company).

At the AGM held on 27 july 2021, the
Company's shareholders authorised:

© The Directors to allot Ordinary Shares
up 1o 2n aggregate nominal amount of
£3.563.906.40, equating to 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company (excluding
treasury shares) as at |1 June 2021

© The disapplication of pre-emption rights over
allotted shares up to an aggregate nominal
value of £1.781,953.20, equating to 5% of
the issued share capital {excluding treasury
shares) and 4.99% of the issued share capital
(including treasury shares) of the Company,
each as at 1l June 202!

© The disapplication of pre-emption rights over
aftotted shares up to an aggregate nominai
value of £1,781953.20, equating to 5% of
the issued share capital {exchuding treasury
shares) and 4.99% of the issued share capital
{including treasury shares) of the Company,
each as at |11 June 2021, in connection with
the financing (r refinancing, if the authority
is 10 be used within six months after the
original transaction) of an acquisttion or
specified capital investment which is
anncunced contemporaneously with the
allotment or which has taken place in the
preceding six-month period and is disclosed
in the announcement of the allotment

© The Company to make market purchases of
its own shares up to a total of 142,556,256
Ordinary Shares, equating to 10% of the
wsued share capital (excluding treasury
shares) of the Company as at {1 June 202)

These authorities will expire on the earlier of
30 September 2022 and the condusion of the
2022 AGM. A renewal of these authorities will
be put to sharehoiders at the 2022 AGM.
Further details are induded in the notes to the
relevant meeting notice, which can be found on
Mitie's website.

Articles of Association

At the AGM held on 27 July 202, shareholders
approved the adoption of new Artides of
Association of the Company (the "Articles”).
Amendments to the Articles must be approved
try at least 75% of those voting in person or by
proxy at a general meeting of the Company.
The Articles are available at www.mitie.com/
investorsfcorporate-governance.

Significant agreements —
change of control

There are a number of agreements with
provisions that take eflect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company
{including following a takeover bid), such as
bank facility agreements and other financial
arrangemenits and employee share scheme
rules. None of these are considered to be
significant in terms of their likely impact on the
normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any agreements
between the Company and its Directors or
employees that provide for compensation for
loss of office or employment that occurs solely
because of a change of control.

Disclosure of information to
the auditor

Each Director in office as at the date of this
Directors’ report confirms that:

@ So far as hefshe is aware, there s no relevam
audit inforrnation of which the Company's
auditor is unaware

© He/fshe has taken all the steps that helshe
ought 1o have taken as a Director to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is aware of
that information

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with Section 418
of the Companies Act 2006,

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet everts can
be found in Note 36 to the consolidated
finanoal statements.
8y order of the Board
CocuSkgned by:
Rk, Jrision

SR
Chief of Staff, General Counsel &
Company Secretary

9 June 2022
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

in respect of the Annual Report, Remuneration report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and finandial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law, the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Campanies Act 2006 and with Ui
adopted international accounting standards and
have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accaunting Standards) and applicable
law including Financiat Reporting Standards 101
Reduced Disclosure Frameworik

Under company law, the Directors must nat
approve the financial statererits unless they are
satisfied that these give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company
ang of their profit or loss for the period.

In preparing these finangial statements, the
Directors are required to:

© Select suitable accounting policies and apply
them consisteritly

© Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable, relevant. refiable
and prudent

© For the Group finandial statermnents, state
whether they have been prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

© For the Compary finandial statemeants,
state whether applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclased
and explained in the finandal statements

© Prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presurmne that the Group or Company will
continue in business

© Prepare a Directors report, Strategi¢ report
and Directors' remuneration repart which
comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficiem
to show and explain the Company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the finandat position of the Compary
and enable them 1o ensure that its financial
statemenits comply with the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation.
They are also responsible for safeguarding

the assets of the Company and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulartties.

134§  Mitie Group ple
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The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a
whole, is fair; balanced and understandable

and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position

and performance, business model and strategy.

Directors’ responsibilities
pursuant to DTR4.1.12

The Directors confirm that to the best of
their knowledge:

© The Group financial statements, prepared
in accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give 2 true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings induded in the consalidation
taken as a whole :

@ The maragerment report inchides 3 fair
review of the development and perforrmance
of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken 3s a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

Website publication

The Directors are respongible for ensuring that
the Annual Repart and the finandal statements
are made available on a website. Financial
staternents are published on the Company’s
waebsite in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and .
dissermination of finandal staternents, which

may vary from legisiation in other jurisdictions.
The maintenarce and integrity of the Company's
website is the responsibility of the Directors.
The Directors’ responsibifity also extends to

the ongoing integrity of the financial statements
contained therein.

By arder of the Board
DocuJigned by:
PRGRESES.-.
Chief Executive

9 june 2022
Docusigned by:

S

R
Chief Financial Officer

9 june 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Mitie Group plc

Opinion on the financial
statements
In our opinion:

© the financial statements give a true ang fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2022
and of the Group's profit for the year then
ended;

© the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK
adopted international accounting standards;

@ the Parent Company financial statements
have been properfy prepared in accordance
with FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework’ {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice); and

© the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

‘We have audited the financial statements of
Mitie Group ple (the 'Parent Company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended

31 March 2022 which comprise Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consclidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity. the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, and notes to the cansolidated
financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied
intheir preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards.

The Parent Company financial statements
comprise the Company Balance Sheet, the
Company Statement of Changes in Equity and
notes to the company financial statements,
induding a surnmary of significart accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework
apptied is applicable law and FRS 10} ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework' (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
{LUX)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described
inthe Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial staternents section of aur report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
& bass for cur opinion. Our audit opinion is
consistert with the additional report to the
Audit Committee.

Mitie Group plc
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Independence

Following the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, we were appointed by the Board
of Directors on |9 Septernber 2017 10 audit
the financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2018 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement
including reappointments is five years,

covering the years ended 31 March 2018to

3t March 2022

We remain independent of the Group and the
Parent Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the finandial statements in the UK., inchuding

the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical respensibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

Following the acquisition of interserve Facilities
Management on 30 November 2020, we
identified that certain services were provided

by overseas member firms of the BOG network
0 entities within the Interserve subsidiaries
acquired, which were prohibited under the
FRC's Ethical Standard. These services were
therefore terminated at the earfiest opportunity
and in accordance with the Standard,

However, we identified that a further
engagement for VAT services between BDO
Denmark and a former Interserve subsidiary,
which was previously understood to have
ceased prior to 31 March 202! year end but had
cortinued to be previded to Mitie FM Limited
{formerty Interserve (Facifities Management)
Ltd). We have obtained confirmation that the
services are now terminated and a new VAT
provider has been appointed. The fees charged
for the VAT services were £250.

We have assessed the threats to independence
as a result of the provision of this service

and, in our opinion, we do not consider that
our independence has been compromised

by the inadvertent breach of the FRC

Ethical Standard.

Conclusions relating to

going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have
conduded that the Directory’ use of the going
concem bGasis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements & appropriate.

QOur evaluation of the Directors’ assessment
of the Group and the Parert Company's ability
1o continue to adopt the going concem basis
of accounting included:

© We cansidered the risks and uncertainties
identified by the Directors that are asscdated
with the Group's customers, suppliers and
workforce. We assessed this against our
own views on the risks based an our
understanding of the business, current
Government guidance, and the business’
performance in the 2022 financial year:

© We obtained the Directors’ cash flow
forecasts covering a period of 12 months
from the date of approvat of the financial
statements, and challenged the key
assumptions in respect of revenue growth,
gross profit margins, cash generation and
the potential impact of key provisions and
contingent liabilities with reference to our
knowledge of the business, its historical
performance and results, We evaluated
whether the Oirectors had considered
appropriate nisks and uncertainties in the
preparation of the cash flow forecasts based
on our assessment of the risks and issues
refating to the business;

© We tested the integrity of the forecast
model and assessed its consistency with
2pproved budgets;

© We obtained and critically reviewed the
Directors reverse stress test analysis,
performed to determine the point at which:
- adownturn in revenues; or
— a deterioration of gross margin; or
~ anincrease in costs: ar
- adownturn in cash generation

would result in a covenant breach or liquidity
shortfall and without further mitigation

would potentially impact the going concern aof
the business. Our consideration induded an
assessment of whether the reverse stress test
analysis appropriately related to the key risks
and issues to which the models were sensitive,
and we challenged the nature and feasbility of
the mitigating actions available to the business
identified by the Directors;

@ We challenged the Directors condusion that
the downside sensitivities required for either
a covenant breach or liquidity shortfall was
rernote by reference to our knowledge of the
business, and the wider environment in which
it operates. This induded an assessment of
reverse stress test sensitivities and current
trading performance;

© We obitained the new financing agreements
entered into by the Group during the year
and confirmed that the revolving credit facility
was extended to October 2025:
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© We considered Management’s assessment of
the Group meeting pre-drawdown conditions
of the new US Private Placement Note
agreement which is due to be utilised in
December 2022;

© We assessed covenants during the year
and at year end, 1o check that the Group
were compliant under the terms of the
finandng agreements;

© We evaluated forecast covenant compliance
and headroom calculations with reference to
the covenants stated in the relevant finanding
agreements; and

Overview

© We reviewed the adequacy of disclosures
in the financial staternenits in respect of
going concern.
Based on the work we have performed, we
have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group and the Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve moriths from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Financial statements

In relation to the Parent Company's reporting
on how ft has appiied the UK Corporate
Governance Code, we have nothizg raterial
to add or draw attention 10 in relation to the
Directors’ staternent in the financial statemerts
about whether the Directors considered it
apprapriate to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting,

QOur responsibilities and the responsibilities of
the Directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Coverage'

97% (2021: 100%) of Group revenue

91% (2021: 99%) of Group total assets

Key Audic Matrers (“KAMs”™)

1} Reverwe recognition and cut-off of accrued income - consistent with prior year

2) Accounting for the acquisition of the Interserve component — consistent with prior year

3) Onerous contract and daims provisions {within the acquired Interserve subsidiaries) - consistent with
prior year

The prior year KAMs also induded Presentation of Other Items. Whilst the Group continues to recognise

Other ltems in its Consolidated income Staternent, this is not considered a KAM in the current year due 10

the decreased level of judgement involved in the classification of Other kems.

Marerialicy

Group financial staterments as a whole

£6.4m (2021: £3.8m) based on 5% of continuing profit before tax and non-recurring other items (2021: 5% of
3-year normalised average continuing profit before tax and Other hems)

| These are areas which have been subject to a full scope audit or specific audit procedures.

An overview of the scope of
our audit

Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining
an understanding of the Group and its
emvironment, including the Group’s system
of internal cantrol, and assessing the risks

of material misstaternent in the financial
statements. We also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls,
including assessing whether there was evidence
of bias by the Directors that may have
represented a risk of material misstatement.

The Group operates through a number

of legal entities, which form reporting
components, cansistent with the segmental
analysis as disclosed in Note 3 to the financiat
statements. Technical Services, Business
Services, Central Government & Defence.
Communities, and Corporate Centre were
considered to be significant components
subject to full scape audits.

Specialist Services {incorporating Landscapes,
Woaste, Care & Custody and Spanish entities)
was considered to be a non-significant
component, where we perfarmed specific audit
procedures on discrete financial statement areas
that we considered presented risks of material
misstaternent to the Group financial statements.
The remaining areas were subject to desktop
review procedures.

BDO LLP, through either the Group audit team
or component audit teams completed all audits
and desktop review procedures.

Qur involvement with component auditors
For the work performed by component
auditors, the Group audit team determined the
level of involvement needed in order 10 be able
to condude whether suffident appropniate audit
evidence has been obtained as a basis for our
opinion on the Group financial statements as
awhole.

Qur involvement with component auditors
inchuded the following:

© lssue of detailed Group reporting
instructions, which included the significant
areas to be covered by their audit (including
applicable key audit matters as detailed
below), materiality levels, and matters relating
to irregularities and fraud. The instructions
also set out the information required to be
reported to the Group audit team;

© Regular communication with the component
auditors throughout the planning, execution
and completion phases of the audit;

© Members of the Group audit team attended
the key meetings and had detailed discussions
with the component auditors and component
management throughout the audit process in
respect of significant risk areas; and

© Review of their working papers with
additional challenge and specific work
requests to ensure alignment with
conclusions drawn.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc

continued

Key audit macters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgement. were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
pericd and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, including those which had
ihe greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy. the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement tearn. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statemerts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, znd we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audic matter

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition in respect of  The accounting for new and
new and modified contracts and madified contracts under IFRS 15

cut-off of accrued income Revenue from Controcts with

The accounting policies and critical  Customers can be complex and may

judgements applied are disclosed in pe incorrectly applied, resufting in

Notes | and 2. inappropriate recognition or
measurement of revenue.

The Group has material levels of
accrued income, there is a risk that
cut-off has not been correctly
applied and that revenue has not
been appropriately recognised in
respect of accrued income.

Due to the above we considered
revenue recognition to be a key

We completed the following audit procedures:

© Tested a sample of new and modified contracts in the year by evaluating
Management’s IFRS 15 Revenue frorm Contracts with Customers contract
assessments, testing details to contracts and invoices, and assessing that
the related revenue recognition was in accordance with the requirements
of applicable accounting standards.

© Tested a sample of accrued incorme balances at the year end 1o supporting
documenitation to confirm whether the revenue has been recognised in
the appropriate period, with procedures induding: verifying contractual
terms, agreeing to proof and timing of service delivery. canfirming
eustormer accaptance and subsequent imvoicing, reviewing relevant
customer correspondence regarding the specific acorued income balances.

Key observations:

We found that new and maodified contracts were being accounted for in

accordance with the requirements of the applicable accounting standards

audit matter. and that the recognition and measurement of revenue in the year
was appropriate.
We are satsfied that revenue was recognised in the appropriate period in
respect of acarued income.
Accounting for the acquisition of  The Group completed the We completed the following audit procedures:

the Interserve subsidiaries
The accounting policies and critical

acquisition of the former Interserve
subsidiaries on 30 Novernber 2020,

judgements applied are disclosed for which the IFRS 3 Business
in Notes | and 2, Combinations 365-day measurement
The acquisition balances are period ended on 29 November

202). The accountirg for
measuremen period adjustments

disclosed in Note 30. The
compietion accounts adjustment

following the Expert Determination i respect of provisions and
decision is disdosed in Note 4. purchase consideration involved
significant judgement.

The consideration paid was subject
to potential adjustments under

the terms of the Share Purchase
Agreement (“SPA™). Management
and the Seller, were unable to agree
the amount of the adjustmerit

and accordingly an amount of
£5(.8m was referred to an Expert
Determination process. Together
with other amounts due from

the Seller, an amount of €52.7m
was held as a receivable on

29 November 2021, At the
conclusion of this process in

April 2022 and after subsequent
commercial negotiations with

the Seller, the Group reached

a settlement of £7.4m.

Given the outcome of the Expert
Determination process, our key
audit matter related to whether
Management’s original assessment
of the amount due was reasonable.

© Obtained an understanding of the measurement period adjustments
recorded on the acquisition balance sheet and agreed the significant
adjustments to supporting documentation, including consideration of
whether these would be permissible adjustments under the SPA.

© Challenged Management with regards to the completeness of the
measurement period adjustments recorded based on our knowledge
and understanding of the acquired business, and of information arising
in the measurement period,

® Reviewed the Expert Determination report and evaluated the Expert's
reasoning for their decision on each disputed item in light of the terms of
the SPA.

© Reviewed Management's assessment of the Expert Determination and
evaluated their rationale in light of the conclusions reached by the Expert.

© Engaged with our internal Dispute Resolution spedialists in assessing the
reasonableness of Mitie's submission to the Expert Determination process.

© Vouched the final settlement with the Seller 1o a formal agreement and
verified the cost recorded in the Income Staternent.

Key observations:

‘We found Management’s original assessmen of consideration at the dlose of

the IFRS 3 Business Combinations measurement period to be supportable and

in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
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Financial statements

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit maccer

Onerous contract and claims
provisions (within the acquired
Interserva subsidiaries)

The accounting policies and critical
judgaments applied are disclused in
Notes [ and 2.

Provisions are disclosed in Note 21.

Material onerous contract
provisions are recognised within the
Communities cormponent (acquired
as part of the Interserve acquisition).
The Conthr als di e in SOmMe cases

for durations of up to 20 years and
significant judgement is required

on fidure operational costs and
efficiencies to determine the level
of provision required.

Material daims provisions are also
recognised within the Communities
component. Significant estimation

is involved in determining the costs
likely to be incurred to resolve these
daims and judgement is required

to determine the extent of the
Group's liability.

In respect of both of these matters,
the disdosure provided and the
estimated range of possible
outcomes given, are key areas of
Management judgement.

We completed the following audit procedures in relation to onerous

contract provisions:

© Assessed the completeness of onereus contract provisions through review
of a sample of contracts to assess contract performance and identify any
loss-making or potertially koss-making contracts for which a provision had
not been considered. )

© Chaflenged Management on the appropriateness of the initiatives within
the onerowus contract provision assessments which otherwise reduce
the provision.

© Obtained an understanding of, and ¢hallenged, Management's assumptions
used within the calculations. This indluded considering whether initiatives
were within the Group's contractual ability to implement, the ability to
reasonably assess their financial impact, and the rationale on forecast
tirming of implementation.

© For the poputation of onerous contracts, we reviewed actual results for
each contract for the period against forecast for the same period.

© Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by Management and performed
our own sensitivity calculations to assess the appropriateness of the
provisions recorded.

© Reviewed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect of this area
and its compliance with the requirements of the accounting standards.

We completed the following audit procedures in relation to the potential

claims provisions:

© Obtained an understanding of each matter through discussion with senior
management and the Group’s internal legal counsel.

© Reviewed relevant communications with third parties where available.

© In respect of potertial claims, reviewed reports issued by experts engaged
by Management and challenged assumptions used within them.

© Considered the competence and independence of the experts engaged
by Management, and developed independent ranges for each provision
to consider the individual and aggregate differences between those and
Management's pesitions. .

© Reviewed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect of this area
and its compliance with the requirements of the accounting standards.

Key observations:

We found that the judgements made by Management in assessing the

onerous contracts and claims provisions are zppropriate and the amounts

recorded by Managernent are within a reasonable range.

Furthermore, we consider the disclosures around these matters to

be appropriate.

Mitie Group ple
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc
continued

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider materiality to be
the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissiens. could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the
finandial statements,

In order to reduce to an appropriately kow level the probability that any misstaternents exceed materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance
materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as
we alsa take account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the
finandial statements as a whole.

Based on our professionat judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole and performance materiality as foflows:

Group financial statements Parent company
T 1m: 202 2023 2021
£m £m £€m £m
Materiality 4.4 38 4.4 27
Basis for determining 5% of continuing profit 5% of continuing 3-year 70% of group materiality
materiality before tax and non- normalised average profit
recurring Other ltems before tax and Other Rems
Radonale for the We consider this to be the  We consider the use of The Parent Company does not trade and materiality was
benchmark applied most appropriate threshold  a 3-year average to be set at a percentage of Group materiality.
since this removes the the most appropriate
wnpact of certain one-off  benchmark given the impact
or exceptional items on of COVID-19 on profits
the underlying profit of and also the impact of the
the Group and is 2lso a key Interserve acquistion.
measure for stakeholders  Using profit before other
based on market practice  items and tax removes the
and investor expectations.  impact of certain one-off
or exceptional items and
is also a key measure for
stakeholders based on
market practice and
investor expectations.
Performance materiality 4.4 25 24 .2
Basis for determining 70% of Materality

performance materiality

Rationale for
benchmark applied
misstaterments,

The level of performance materiality was set after considering a number of factors including significant transactions
in the year, the expected value of known and likely misstaternents, and management's attitude towards proposed

Component materialicy

We set materiality for each component of the
Group based on the size and our assessmert
of the risk of material misstaternent of that
component. Component materiality ranged
from £1.25m to £54m (2021 £1m to £2.5m).
In the audit of each componerit, we further
applied performance materiality levels of
65%-70% (2021: £5%) of the component
materiality 10 our testing to ensure that the
risk of errors exceeding component materiality
was appropriately mitigated.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that

we would report to them all individual audnt
differences in excess of £224k (2021: £133k).
We also agreed 1o report differences below this
threshoid that, in our view, warrarted reporting
on qualitative grounds.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises
the infermation induded in the annual report
and accounts other than the financial staternents
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financal statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent
otherwise expiicitly siated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance condusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is 10 read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the ather information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstaterments, we are required 1o
determine whether this gives rise 10 a material
misstatement in the financial statements
themsetves. If, based on the work we have
performed. we condude that there is a materia!
misstaternent of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors' staterment in relation to going concern, longer-term wiability and that part of the Corporate
Governance Statementt relating to the parent comparty’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.
Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement is
materially consistent with the financial statements or our kncwiedge obtained during the audit.

© The Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of

Going concern and longer-term

viability accounting and any material uncertainties iderttified set out on page 136: and
© The Directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment
covers and why the period is appropriate set out on page 83,
Other Code provisions © Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 114;

© Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out
on page 66;

© The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems set out on page 66: and

© The section describing the work of the audit commitiee set out on page 109.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are required by the Companies Act 2006 and
1545 (UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as described below,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaker in the course of the audit:

© the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financia! year for which the
financiaf staternertts are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

© the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment

obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report

or the Directors’ report.

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: ’

© adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company. or returns adequate for qur audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us: or

© the Parent Company finandial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report 1o be audited

Strategic report and
Directors’ report

Directors' remuneration

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
© certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made: or
© we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the statement of
Directors’ responsibilities within the Directors’
report set out on page 136, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give
atrue ang fair view, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of finandal statements
that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the finandial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to bquidate
the Group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financia! statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statesnents as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK)
will ahways detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasanably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Micie Group plc
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc

continued

Extent to which the audit was capable of
detecting irregularides, including fraud
irregularities, induding fraud, are instances of
nan-compliance with laws and regulations.

We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misstatements in respect of
rregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, inchuding fraud is detalled below:

@ We gained an understanding of the legal

- and regulatory framework applicable 1o the
Group and the industry in which it operates,
through discussion with management and the
Audit Committee and our knowledge of the
industry. We focussed on significant laws and
regulations that could give Hse to a material
misstatement in the finandial statements,
including, but not limited to, the Companies
Act 2006, the UK Listing Rutes, UK-adopted
International Accounting Standards. Health
and Safety. the Bribery Act 2010 and
tax legislations.

© We considered compliance with these laws
and regulations through discussions with
Managemert, in-house legal counsel, external
legal counsel, the company secretary, and
the Audit Committee. Our procedures alse
included reviewing minutes from Board and
Audit Committee meetings, and reviewing
internal audit reports to identify any instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

O We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's
financial staternents to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur: In addressing
the risk of fraud inchuding management
override of controls and improper revenue
recognition, we tested the appropriateness
of journal entries made throughout the year
by applying specific criteria.

© We performed a detailed review of the
Group’s year end adjusting entries and
journals throughout the year, investigated
any that appeared unusual as to nature or
amount; assessed whether the judgements
made in accounting estimates were
indicative of a potential bias and tested the
application of cut-off and revenue recognition
(refer to Appropriateness of revenue
recognition KAM).

© We identified areas at risk of management
bias and reviewed key estimates and
judgements applied by Management in
the finangial statements to assess their
appropriateness (refer to Accounting for
the acquisition of the Interserve subsidiaries
and Onerous cantracts and daims
provisions KAMs);
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© We also communicated relevant identified
laws and regulations and petential fraud
risks to all engagement team members and
component auditors. and remained alert to
any indications of fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations throughout
the audit

© We performed additiona! specific procedures
in respect of frauds reported in the period
and in respect of issues that may have an
adverse bearing on the internaf controf
environment around fraud.

Our audit procedures were designed 10
respond to risks of material misstaterment in the
financial staternents, recognising that the risk of
nat detecting a material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resutting from error, as fraug may involve
deliberate concealment by. for example.
forgery, misrepresentations or through
collusion. There are inherent imitations in the
audit procedures performed and the further
remaved non.compliance with laws and
regulations is frormn the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities
is available on the Financial Reporting
Councit's website at: wwwi.frcorguk/
auditorsrespansibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solély to the Paremt
Cormpany's members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members thase matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for

no ather purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted bry law, we de not accept or assume
responsibility to aryone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company's members
as a bady, for our audit work. for this report.
aor for the opinions we have formed.

— DocuSignad by:

Scott McNavglion
SAEMERYSSHon

(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Londen, UK
9 June 2022

BDIO LLP is a limited liability partnership
registered in England and Wales (with
registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Restated"!
2022 2021
Before Other Before Other
other items items! Total other itemns items’ Total
Notes £m m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue induding share of joint ventures and associates 3,996.8 - 39968 25288 - 25288
Less: share of revenue of joint vertures and associates 15 (91.5) - (93.5) (29.8) - (29.8)
Group revenue 3 39013 - 39033 24990 - 2499.0
Cost of sales (3,451.5) - (3,451.5) (22227) - (22217
Gross profit 451.8 - 451.8 2763 - 2763
Administrative expenses (291.5) (102.2) (393.7) (2194) (53.6} (2730)
COther income - 9.8 9.8 - - -
Share of profit/{loss) of joint ventures and associates 15 6.6 (2.4) 4.2 19 {1.2) 07
Operating profic/(loss)® 36 166.9 {94.8) 72.) 588 (54.8) 40
Finance income 0.2 - 0.2 05 - 05
Finance costs 8 {20.0) - {20.0) {18.2) - {182)
Net finance costs {19.8) - {19.8) (17.7) - (2.0
Profic/(loss) before tax 147.1 {94.8) 523 410 (54.8) (137
Tax 9 {19.0) (2.0) (21.0) (7.9) 7.5 {04)
Profit/{loss) from continuing operadons after tax 128.1 (96.8) 313 33.2 (473) (14.1)
Discontinued operations
" Prafit from discontinued operations before tax 5 3.0 17.0 20.0 5.4 29 B3
Tax 9 (0.6) - {0.6) (07 04) (L
Profit from discontinued operations after tax 5 14 17.0 19.4 47 5 7.2
Profic/{loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent 130.5 (79.8) 50.7 379 {44.8) (65)
Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) attributable to owners of
the parent
From continuing operations:
Basic it 2.2p 2.2p 3.ip (.3p
Diluted 1L 8.3p 2.0p 3lp (1.3)p
Total Group:
Basic | 9.4p 3.6p 3.5p (08)p
Dilted 1 8.5p 3.3p 3.5p {0.&)p
Notes:

1. The Group disposed the Document Management business and operations in the Nordics and Poland during the year ended 31 March 2022. The results of these operations for the
year ended 31 March 2021 have been re-presented within discontinued operations, Refer to Mote 5.

2. The comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2021 hive been restated for the change in accounting policy for Software as a Service (5235) arrangements as a result of the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiittee (IFRIC) agenda decision. Refer to Note 1.

3. Other items are as described in Mote 4.

4. Inchuding net impairment losses on trade receivables and accrued income of £0.8m (2025 £6.2m).
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Restated"
021 21021
Notes m £m
Profit/(loss) for the year 50.7 (69)
Items thac will not be reclassified to profit or foss in subsequent years
Remeasurement of net defined benefit pension liabilities 32 2.1 (54)
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures 15 0.7 0.4
Tax (charge)/credit relating to items that will not be redassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 9 (3.8) 10
19.0 (4.0)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 6.1 {09)
Net losses on cash flow hedges taken to equity? (0.5) .0
Tax credit relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 9 0.1 04
03) (1)
Other comprehensive incomel{expense) for the year 18.7 {5.9)
Total comprehensive incomef(expense) for the year attributable to owners of the parent 9.4 (12.8)
Notes
1 Lr;e t;:t:lm)::nexa-ziti\.'es for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been restated lor the change in accounting policy for 5235 arrangements as a result of the IFRIC agenda decision, Refer to

2 MNetlosses on cash flow hedges taken to equity indude Rair value gains of £5.1m (3021: £13.7m losses) on derivative financial instruments used for hedging private placement notes
{see Nate 25). These gains are netted against redassifications related to foreign exchange losses on private plicement notes of £5.6m (2021: £12.6m gains).
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 3| March 2022

Restated' Rastated
2022 202 2020
MNotes £m m &n
Non-current assets
Goodwill 12 3013 2948 2789
Other intangible assets 13 258.9 2610 449
Property, plant and equipment 14 143.9 1179 110.8
Irterests in joint ventures and associates i5 1.9 1o -
Derivative financial instruments 25 - 146 280
Other receivables 16 7.8 83 33
Contract assets 17 1.6 24 32
Retirernent benefit assets 32 1.6 30 -
Deferred tax assets 2 1.1 223 326
Total non-current assets 738.1 7353 501.7
Current assets
Inventories 18 1.9 12.7 4.8
Trade and other receivables 16 704.0 6788 41456
Contract assets 17 1.6 15 t.6
Derivative financial instruments 25 19.6 - 02
Current tax receivable 1.0 44 21
Cash and cash equivalents 23 345.2 1962 1395
Total current assets 1,083.3 8936 5628
Tocal assets 1,821.4 1,6289 1,064.5
Current liabilicies
Trade and other payables 19 (841.2) (7018) (513.4)
Deferred income 20 (83.5) (84.8) {359)
Current tax payable 4.1 {3.8) -
Financing fiabilities 24 {171.1) {28.7) {243)
Provisions 2] (54.7) (55.5) (41.4)
Total current liabilities (1,154.6) (874.6) {615.0)
Net currenc (liabilities)/assets (71.3) 19.0 {52.2)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables : 19 (2.8) (0.5) {0.3)
Deferred income 0 (32.8) (0.1) (15.6)
Financing liabilities 24 (129.5) (250.1) (296.4)
Provisiong 21 (62.3) (68.1) (11.8)
Retirement benefit liabilities 32 (13.8) (45.5) (46.7)
Deferred tax labilities 22 - (2.5) (2.9)
Total non-current liabilities (241.0) {396.8) (373.7)
Tocal liabilities (1,395.6) (12704 (988.7)
Net assets 425.8 3575 758
Note:

|. The comparatives a5 at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 have been restated for the change in accounting policy For 52a5 arrangements as a result of the IFRIC agenda decision
{refer 6 Note 1) and the comparatives as at 21 March 2021 have ako been restated for measurement period adjustrments in respect of the Interserve acquisition {refer to Note 2,

Note 12 and Note 30).
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 March 2022

Restated' Restated
01 2021 2020
Notes im £m im
Equity
Share capital : 28 35.7 156 93
Share premium 28 1306 1306 130.6
Merger reserve 29 158.6 3586 99.9
Own shares reserve 2 (36.9) (28.8) (342)
Cther reserves’ » 28.4 145 95
Hedging and transiation reserve 29 (2.6) {23) (23}
Retained losses ' (82.0) (1507) (1389)
Equity atcributable to owners of the parent 425.8 357.5 758
Notes:
R & e:ct:ron'e:;‘a:\l«es asat 3| March 2021 and 31 March 2020 have been restatad for the change in accounting policy for S2a5 arrangements as a resut of the IFRIC agenda decision.

2. Other reserves indude the thare-based payments reserve and the capital redemption reserve. Refer to Note 29.

The consolidated finandial statements of Mitie Group ple. company registration number SCO19230, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on 9 June 2022. They were signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
BB BESES... TG R U IRk
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
AY
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Hedging and
Share Share Merger Ownishares Other  translation Retained Restated?
capital premium resceve o reseeve - reserves rescrve lagses?  Toral equity
m &m £m £m £m £ im £m

AL | April 2020° _ 93 1306 999 (G42) 95 ©4)  (1389) 75.8
Loss for the year? - - - - - (69} (6.9)
Other comprehensive expense - - - - - (1.9) (4.0} 5.9
Total comprehensive expense’ - - - - - (1.9) (109} {12.8)
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares? 26.3 - 261.7 - - - - 288.0
Rights issue expenses® ] - - (30) - - - - (3.0
Share-based payments - - - 54 50 - (09) 9.5
Total transactions with owners 263 - 2587 5.4 50 - {09 294.5
At 31 March 2022 356 1306 35846 (28.8) 145 (2.3) {150.7) 357.5
AL April 20217 356 1306 35856 (288) 145 23)  (1507) 357§
Profit for the year - - - - - - 507 50.7
Other comprehensive income - - - - - (0.3) 190 18.7
Total comprehensive income - - - - - {0.3) 697 69.4
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid - - - - - - G7) ¢.7
Issue of shares o1 - -~ ©.N - - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - {13.8) - - - {13.8)
Share-based payments - - - 58 139 - (0 18.6
Tax on share-based payments - - Z - - - ©2) 0.2)
Total transactions with owners cl - - (8.1) 139 - 70) .n
At 31 March 2022 357 1306 35856 69 284 (26  (880) 425.8
Notes:

I. Other resarves include the share-based payments reserve and the capital redemption reserve. Refer to Note 29

2. The comparatives for the year ended 3| March 2021 and as at | April 2020 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for %235 arrangements as a resuft of the IFRIC
agenda decision. Refer to Note |

3. As part of the consideration for Interserve acquisition, 248.4 million shares were istued during the year ended 31 March 202 with a premium of £88.4m arising (see Mote 30).
I addition, 805.1 million shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2021 with a premium of £1733m arking in connection with the rights issue which utilised a cash box
structure (see Note 33). These share issues qualified for merger relief under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006. so that the total premium arising of £261,7m was not required
10 be credited 10 share pramium.

4. Under the cash box structure. the Group received £193.4m from the rights issue. after deduction of issue costs of £7.9m. The remaining £3.0m of rights ssue expenses were paid
by the Group (see Note 33). .
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Restated’
2022 N

Notes £m im
Continuing aperations - operating profit before other items? 3 166.9 58.8
Conrtinuing operations — other items? : 4 (94.8) (54.8)
Discontinued operations - operating profit after other ftems? 5 19.9 80
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense 3 18.6 9.5
Defined benefit pension costs 2 44 20
Defined benefit persion contributions 2 {14.2) (12.2)
DOepreciation of property. plant and equipment i4, 26 41.6 344
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 27.2 161
Amortisation of customer contracts and relationships for joint ventures arising on business combinations 13 2.4 1.2
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodates 15 (6.6} .9
Amortisation of contract assets 17 1.7 17
Impairment of non-current assets 13, 14,26 37 137
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.5 -
Gain on disposal of businesses 5 (13.0) (1.2)
interserve completion accounts adjustment 30 45.6 -
Operating ¢ash flows before movements in working capital 203.9 753
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 0.9 (1.9
Increase in receivables (66.0) (4.3)
Increase in contract assets {1.0) (0.8}
(Decrease)fincrease in deferred income (2.6) 67
Increase/(decrease) in payables 135.9 (349)
Decrease in provisions (7.2} (.9
Cash generated from operations , 263.% 389
Income taxes paid (16.2) (10)
Interest paid {17.5) {15.9)
Net cash generated from operadng activities 230.2 220
Investing activities
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired® 30 (24.9) (64.6)
Dispesal of businesses, net of cash disposed 5 299 -
Interest received 0.3 08
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, 14 (15.4) (7.6}
Dividends received from joint vertures and assodates 15 4.0 a8
Purchase of other intangible assets 13 {20.2) (14.1)
Disposal of property, plarnt and equipment 0.4 10
Net cash used in investing activities {25.9) (83.7)
Notes:
1 ;he!eelc’c::pzN:;n;es for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for Saa arrangements as a result of the IFRIC agenda decision.

1. ‘The Group disposed the Document Management business and operations in the Nordics and Poland during the year ended 31 March 2022 The results of these operations are
re-presented within discontinued operations. Operating profit after Qther itams from discontinued operations comprises profit before net finance income and tax of £69m
(2021 restated: £6.8m) and gain on disposal before tax of £13.0m {2021 £).2m). Refer 10 Note §.

. Acquisilion of businesses is net of cash acquired of £4.8m (2011; £40.4m). Refer to Note 30.

w
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

022 2021
Notes Im &m
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 33 - 1934
Purchase of own shares 29 (13.8) -
Rights issue expenses paid ' 33 - (3.0
Capital element of lease rentals 26 (33.9) (28.1)
Repayment of bank loans - (40.5)
Paymertt of arrangement fees (7 (2.8)
Equity dividends paid 10 (5.7) -
Net cash (used inj/generated from financing activities (55.1} 119.0
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 149.2 573
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 196.2 1395
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes {0.2) (0.6)
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 23 345.2 196.2

The above statement of consolidated cash flows includes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Further details of the cash flows
relating to discontinued operations are shown in Note 5.

022 02
Reconciliation of net cash flaw to movements in nex debt Naites Em m
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 149.2 573
Increase in restricted cash and cash held on trust! {18.8) (18.7)
Net increase in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 130.4 386
Cash drivers
Repayment of bank loans - 40.5
Paymenit of arrangement fees L7 28
Capital element of lease rentals 3139 8.1
Non-¢ash drivers
Non-cash movement in bank loans : - (2.0) (1:1)
Non-cash movement in private placement notes and associated hedges ©.n (.0
Nen-cash mavement in lease habilities? (49.6) (41.1)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes {0.3) (0.4)
Decrease in net debt during the year 113.4 66.3
Opening net debt (86.7) (1530)
Closing net cash/{debt) 7 26.7 (86.7)
Notes:

I. Asat 3| March 2022, £20.0m cash (202 ): £ril) was held across the Group's bank acoounts in respect of the CIC facility, where cash collected from the Group's customers was held
on tryst Jor the CID fadifity pravider. This cash was subsequently remitted to the CID (aciity provider by 5 April 2022

2. Included within the non-cash movement in lease liabilities is £0.7m (2021: £14.2m) of lease Rabilities arfsing on doquisition of businesses and £1.5m (202§: £nil) of leass Kabiities on
business disposals. See Nates 26 and 30.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

|, Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

Mitie Group plc (the Company) is a company incorparated in the United Kingdom and registered in Scatfand. It was incorporated on 16 July 1936 under
the Campanies Act 1929, The Company's registered office is at 35 Duchess Road, Rutherglen, Glasgow, G73 1AU. The Group comprises the Company and
ali its subsidiaries. The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentational
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds, unless otherwise indicated.”

The Group's principal activities are focused on the provision of strategic outsourding, incdluding the management and provision of business support services
and ancillary activities.

The Group's consolidated financial statemerts for the year ended 3! March 2022 have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards.

On 31 December 2020, IFRS as adopted by the European Union at that date was brought inta UK law and became UK-adopted International Accounting
Standards. with future changes being subject to endorsement by the UK Endorserent Board. The Group transitioned to UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, This change constituted a change in accounting framework.
However, there was no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period reported as a result of the change in framework.

The Group's financial statementts have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are required to be
measured at fair value,

Going concern

The finandial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared on a going concern basis. In adopting the gaing concern basis, the
Directors have cansidered the Group's business activities as set out on pages 4 to 65 of the 2022 Annual Report and Accounts, the principal risks and
uncertainties as set out on pages 66 to 77 and the viability statement on pages 83 to 84 of the same.

The Directors have carried out an assessment of the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements (the Going Concern Assessment Period). This assessment was based on the latest medium-term cash
forecasts fram the Group's cash flow model (the Base Case Forecasts), which is based on the Board approved budget. These Base Case Forecasts indicate
that the debt faciiities currently in piace are adequate 1o support the Group and the Company over the Going Concern Assessment Period,

The Group's principal debt financing arrangements as at 31 March 2022 were a £150m revolving credit facility. of which £141.5m was undrawn as at

31 March 2022, and £151.5m of US private placement (USPP) notes (being the repayment amount after taking accountt of the ¢ross-currency swaps
hedging the principal amount). of which £121.5m are due to mature in December 2022, The revolving credit facility was put in place in October 202},
maturing in October 2025 {with an option to extend for a further year, subject ta lenders’ approval). on significantly more favourable terms than the
previous fadlity. These financing arcangaments are subject to certain finandal covenants which are tested every six months on a rofling |12-month basis,
as set out in the Finance review on pages 59 to 63.

The issue of £120.0m of new USPP notes has also been agreed, under a delayed funding arrangernent in December 2022, avoiding arvy overlap with the
existing £12).5m of notes that mature in the same month. The new notes are spiit equally between 8, 10 and 12 year maturities, and will be issued with an
average coupon that is significantly below the current coupon. The remaining £30m of USPP notes are due to mature in Decernber 2024, which is outside
of the Going Cancern Assessment Period.

Mitie currently operates within the terms of its agreements with its lendars, with consolidated net cash {je. net cash adjusted for covenanit purposes, with
appropriate adjustments for leases) of £4477m at 31 March 2022, The Base Case Forecasts indicate that the Group will continue 10 operate within these
terms and that the headroom provided by the Group's strong cash pasition and the debt faclities currently in place is adequate to suppart the Group over
the Going Concern Assessment Period.

The Directors have also completed a reverse stress test using the Group cash flow model to assess the point at which the covenants, or facility headroom,
would be breached. The sensitivities considered have been chosen after considering the Group's principal risks and uncertainties,

The primary financial risks related to adverse changes in the economic environment and/or a deterioration in commercial or operational conditions are

listed betow. These risks have been considered in the context of any potential further impact of CGVID-19, as well as the potential impact of the Russian

invasion of Ukraine:

© A downturn in revenues: this reflects the risks of not being able to deliver services to existing customers, or contracts being terminated or not renewed;

@ A deterioration of gross margin: this reflects the risks of contracts being renegotiated at lower margins. or plarnned cost savings nat being delivered;

© An increase in costs: this reflects the risks of a shortfall in planned overhead cost savings, including the margin enhancernent inftiatives not being
delivered, or other cost increases such as sustained higher cost inflation; and

© A downturn in cash generation: this reflects the risks of customers delaying payments due to liquidity constraints. the removal of ancllary debt facilities
or any substantia) one-off settlements related to commercial issues.
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l. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

As a result of completing this assessment, the Directors concluded that the likelihood of the reverse stress scenarios arising was remote. In reaching the
conclusion of remote, the Directors considered the following:

© All stress test scenarios would require a very severe deterioration campared to the Base Case Forecasts. Revenue is considered to be the key risk, as
this is less within the control of management. Revenue would need to dedline by approximately 349% in the year ending 31 March 2023, compared to
the Base Case Forecasts, that are based on mid-single digit underlying revenue growth (which excludes COVIOD reiated revenues). A 34% dedine in
revenue is considered to be very severe given the high proportion of Mitie's revenue that is fixed in nature and the fact that even in a COVID-hit year.
Mitie’s revenue excuding Interserve dedined by only 1.6%.

© In the event that results started 16 trend significantly below those included in the Base Case Forecasts, additional mitigation actions have been identified
that would be implernented, which are not factored into the reverse stress test scenarios. These include the short-term scaling down of capital
expenditure, overhead efficiency/reduction measures induding cancellation of discretionary bonuses and reduced discretionary spend, asset disposals
and reductions in cash distributions and share buybacks.

Based on these assessmenrtts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for a period of no less than 12 months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Directors have conduded that the likelihood of the reverse stress scenarios arising is remote and therefore no material uncertainty exists.

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year
The following amendments became effective during the year ended 3| March 2022:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (IBOR) omendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Phase 2 amendments to IFRS 9. IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS (6 were issued by the {ASB in August 2020 ta provide practical expedients and reliefs
in relation to modifications of financial instruments and leases that arise from the transition from IBOR to an alternative benchmark rate. Phase 2 also
provides further reliefs to hedge accounting requirements. These amendments were effective for the Group from 1 April 2021.

The impact of IBOR reform on the Group is not material.

IFRS t6 COVID-I9 Related Rent Concessions
On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions amendments to IFRS 16 Leases. The amendments provide relief to lessees from
applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arking as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group has not received COVID.- 19 refated rent concessions during the year and therefore these amendments do not impact the Group.

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group

On 14 May 2020, the tASB published amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets regarding costs a company should indude
as the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous. The changes specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the
‘tosts that relate directly to the contract’ The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 and will be effective for
the Group for the year ending 31 March 2023. The Group is currently in the process of assessing the impact of this amendment.

{b) Accounting policy change

During the year, the Group revised its accoursting policy in relation to upfront configuration and custorisation costs incurred in implemertting Software
as a Service (5aaS) arrangements in response to the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) agenda decision clarifying its
interpretation of how current accounting standards apply to these types of arrangements. The new accounting policy is presented belaw.

Saa$ arrangements are service contracts providing the Group with the right to access the provider's cloud-based application software over the contract
period. Previously, Mitie’s accounting policy was to capitalise the upfront configuration and customisation costs in implementing Saa$ arrangements and to
subsequently amortise them over their useful economic life.

In response to the clarification provided by the IFRIC agenda decision, Mitie has changed its accounting policy such that distinct upfront configuration and
customisation costs incurred in implernenting Saa$ arrangements are recognised as operating expenses when the services are received. Some of these
costs incurred are for the developrment of software code that enhances or modifies, or creates additional capability to, existing on-prernise systems and
meets the definition of and recognition criteria for an intangible asset. These costs are recognised as intangible software assets and amortised over the
useful life of the software on a straight-line basis.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively and, accordingly, the comparative information for 31 March 2021 and | Aprit 2020
have been restated as summarised below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2022

|. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Impact or consolidated income t and sta t of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Impact of Discontinyed
changes in operations
Asreported  actounting policy restatement’ As restated
im £m £m £m
Group revenue from continuing operations 5595 - (605) 2,499.0
Cost of sales (22749) - 522 {2,222.7)
Gross profit from continuing operations 846 - (83) 276.3
Administrative expenses 2770} a5 35 (273.0)
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodiates o7 - - 0.7
Toral operating profit from continuing operadions 8.3 0.5 (4.8) 4.0
Net finance costs (174) - ©.3) (17.7)
Loss from continuing operations before tax (9.1) 05 (5.1) (13.7)
Tax (10) 0.1) Q7 (0.4)
Loss from continuing operations after tax (10.1) 04 (4.4) (i4.0)
Profic from discontinued operations after tax 28 - 44 7.2
Loss for the year actributable to owners of the parent (7.3) 0.4 - {6.9)
Total comprehensive expense for the year atwibutable to owners of the parent (13.2) 04 - (12.8)

Note:

I. The Group disposed the Docurnent Managerment business and operations in the iNordics and Potand during the year ended 31 March 2022. The resuits of these aperations are

re-presented within discontinued operations. Refer to Note 5.
Impact on earnings per share

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Impact of Discortirwied

changes in SPLratons
Pence per share Asreported  accounting policy restaternent’ As restated
From continuing operations
Basic loss per share (0.5)p (0] (04)p {1.3)p
Diluted loss per share {09)p O0p Q4)p {t.3p
Total Group
Basic loss per share (06)p O0)p 0)p (0.6)p
Diluted loss per share {0.6)p 00)p (C0)p {0.8)p

Note:

re-presented within discontinued operations, Refer to Note 5.
Impact on the consolidated balance sheet

I. The Group disposed the Document Management business and operations in the Nordics and Poland during the year ended 31 March 2012, The resuis of these operations are

31 March 202! ) April 2020

tpact of Impact of

changesin charges i
Asreported  accounting policy As restated Asreported  accounting policy As restated
ém m £m €m £m £m
Other intangible assets 266.2 (52 261.0 506 (5.7 44.9
Current tax receivable i 35 [e¥] 4.4 1.1 10 i1
Net assets 3618 {4.3) 3575 805 “n 158

Retained losses (1464) (4.3) (150.7) (134.) @7 (138.9)

Equity ateributable to owners of the parent 3618 (4.3) 1578 805 (4.7) 75.8
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. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Impact on consolidated statement of cash flaws
For the year ended 3| March 2021

Impact of
changes in
Asreported  accounting palicy As restated
fm £m Im
QOperating prafit . 1.5 05 12.0
Amortisation of intangible assets 17.5 {14} 16.1
Operating cash flows before mavements in working capital 762 (09} 753
Cash generated from operations 398 (0.9} 389
Net cash generated from operating activities 219 (0.%) 220
Purchase of other intangible assets (15.0) 09 (14.1)
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (84.6) 09 (83.7)
Cash and cash equivalents 196.2 - 196.2

(c) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's IFRS finandial information are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Mitie Group plc and all its subsidiaries. The Company's separate
financial statements are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Cornpany meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 issued
by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC). Accordingly, for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company reported under FRS 101 as issued by the FRC.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard.

In preparing these Group consolidated financial statements, the Group's accounting pelicies and methods of computation were, with the exception of
the change in the accounting policy referred to above, the same as those that applied in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 3! March 202!, which were prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international Accourting Standards in conformity with the
requiremenits of the Companies Act 2006.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consclidated from the date on which control is
transferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
Where necessary. adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring the accounting policies used into
ling with those used by the Group.

Allinter-company balances and transactions, induding unrealised profits arising from hte.r-group transactions, have been eliminated in full

Interests of non-controliing interest shareholders are measured &t the non-controlling interest's proportion of the net fair value of the assets and liabilities
recognised. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not resuft in a loss of control are accounted for within shareholders' equity.
No gain or loss is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not remeasured. Any difference between the change in the non-controlling interest

and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parent.

Joint ventures and associates
Joint venitures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the entity, rather than
rights to its individual assets and obligations for its individual habilities.

Associates are those entities over whose financial and operating palicies the Group has significant influence, but not controt or joint control.

The results, assets and liabilities of joint vertures and associates are incorporated in the Group's financial statements using the equity method of accounting
except when dassified as held for sale.

Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture or associate is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture or associate. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition aver the Group's share of net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabiities of the joint venture or associate at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Where the Group entity transacts with a joint venture or associate. profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the joint venture or assodiate.

Joint operations

A joint operation is a jaint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have the right to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities. relating 1o
the arrangement or other facts and circumstances indicate that is the case. The Group's share of the results, assets and liabilities of contracts carried out in
joint operations with another party are induded under each relevant heading in the consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial statements contain all the information and disclosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory obligations that apply to
the Group.

In the financial statementts, the Group has elected ta provide some further disclosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before other tems,
in order to present its financial results in a way that dernonstrates the performance of continuing operations.

Other items are items of finandial performance which management befieves should be separately identified on the face of the income staterment o assist
in understanding the underlying finandial performance achieved by the Group. The Group separately reports impairment of goodwill, impairment and
amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, gain or loss on business disposals, cost of restructuring programmes
and other exceptional items and their related tax effect as Other items. Should these iterns be reversed, disclosure of this would also be as Other items.

Separate presentation of these items is intended to enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group in the year and the extent to which
results are influenced by material unusual andior non-recurring items. Further detail of Other tems is st out in Note 4.

tn addition, following the guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) issued by the Furopean Securities and Markets Authotity (ESMA),
the Group has included an APM appendix to the financial statements on pages 22010 123.

Revenue recognition poficy

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its service fines, 50 a range of methods is used for the recognition of revenue
based on the principles set out in IFRS 15. Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the year based on the delivery of
performance abligations and an assessment of when control is transferred to the customer.

IFRS |5 provides a single, principle-based five-step model to be applied to all sales contracts as outiined below. W is based on the transfer of control of
goods and services to customers and replaces the separate madels for goods, services and construction contracts.

Step [ — Identify the contract(s) with o austomer

For all cortracts with customers, the Group determines if the arrangement creates enforceable rights and obligations. This assessment resuits in certain
Framework arrangements or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of contracts under IFRS (5 unless they specify the minimum
guantities to be ordered. Usually the work order and any change orders together with the Framework or MSA will congtitute the IFRS 15 contract.

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic annual renewals,
and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the duration of the contract. judgement is applied to assess the impact that such
clauses have in determining the relevant contract term. The term of the contract affects the period over which amertisation of contract assets and
revenue from performance obligations is recognised. In forming this judgement, management considers certain influencing factors, including the amount of
discount provided, the presence of significant termination penatties in the contract, and the relationship, experience and performance of contract delivery
with the customer andfor the wider industry, in understanding the likelihood of extension or termination of the contract,

Contract modifications

Where the Group’s contracts are amended for changes to customer requirements, such as change orders and variations, a contract modification takes
place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and cbligations or changes the existing price or scope (or both) of the contract, and the
maodification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral agreement, or implied by customary business practices.

If the parties to the contract have not appraved a contract modification, revenue is recognised in accordance with the existing contractual terms. |f a
change in scope has been approved but the corresponding change in price is still being negotiated, change to the total transaction price is estimated.

Contract modifications, induding contract renewals. are accounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct
goods or services and the change in contract price reflects the stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or services. If the price of additional distinct
goods or services is nat commensurate with the stand-alone selling prices for those goods or services, then this i considered a termination of the ariginal
contract and the creation of a new contract which is accounted for prospectively fram the date of modification. Where new goods or services are not
distinct from those in the original contract, then these are considered to form part of the original contract with any update to pridng recognised as &
cumutative catch up to revenue. The facts and circumstances of any modification are considered in isolation as these are spedific to each contract and
may result in different accounting outcomes. : .

Step 2 - identify the performance obligations in the contract

Perforrmance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services 1o a customer. For arrangernents with multiple
components to ba delivered 1o customers such as in the Group's integrated facilities management contracts, judgement is applied to consider whether
those promised goods or services are:

i. distinct and accounted for as separate perfarmance obligations;
ii. combined with other promised goods o services until a bundle is identified that is distinct. or

iii. part of a series of distinct goods or services that are substantialfy the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time, ie. where the customer i
deemed to have simultaneously received and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the life of the cantract, the Group treats the series
as a single performance obligation,
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. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Step 3 — Determine the transoction prrice

At cantract inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which management expects the Group to be entitled and has

rights under the contract. This includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration, up or down, resuking from
e.g. discounts, rebates or service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the expected value method and is only recognised to the
extent it s tighly probable that a subsequent change in its estimate would not result in a significant revenue reversal.

Step 4 - Allocate the tronsaction firice to the performance obiigations in the contract

The Group allccates the total transaction price to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. This is
predominantly based on an observable price or a cost plus margin arrangement. It is necessary to estimate the stand-alone selling price when the Group
does nat sell equivalent goods or services in similar circumstances on a stand-alone basis. When estimating the stand-alone selling price. the Group
maximises the use of external inputs by observing the stand-alone selling prices for similar goods and services using an industry recognised price list or
cost indices in applying a cost-plus reasonable margin approach.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity sotisfies its performance ebligations

For each performance obligation, management determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point in time. Where revenue is recognised
over time, the Group applies the relevant output or input revenue recognition method for measuring progress that depicts the Group’s performance in
transferring control of the goods or services 1o the customer.

Certain long-term cortracts use output methods based upon surveys of performance completed, appraisals of results achieved, or milestones reached
which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services under the contract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion to costs incurred where the transfer of control is most
closely afigned to the Group's efforts in delivering the service.

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within IFRS 15, allowing revenue to be recognised at the amount which the
Group has the right to invoice, where that amount corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group's performance obligations completed
1o date,

If performance obligations do not meet the criteria to recognise revenue over time, revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
or services passes to the customer. This may be at the point of physical defivery of goods and acceptance by a customer or when the customer obtains
control of an asset or service in a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
control has passed to the customer.

Long-term complex contracts .

The Group has 2 number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly integrated facilities management arrangements. Typically. these
contracts invalve the provision of multiple service iines, with a single management team providing an integrated service. Such contracts tend to be
transformational in nature where the business works with the customer to identify and implement cost saving initiatives across the iife of the contract.

Management considers the majority of services provided within integrated facilities management contracts meet the definition of 2 series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes services provided in distinct time
increments (e.g. monthly or quarterly) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

The Group also delivers major project-based services under long-term complex contracts that indude performance obligations under which revenue
is recognisad over time as value from the service is transferred to the customer. This may be where the Group has a legally enforceable right to
remuneration for the work completed to date, and therefore revenue will be recognised in line with the associated transfer of control.

The Group has a number of long-term PFI lifecycle contracts to maintain properties aver periods of up to 30 years. A fund is established at the start of
the contract and amounts are drawn down by the Group as maintenance work is performed. For certain contracts, the Group is also entitled to share in
any surplus left in the fund. Revenue is recognised over time to reflect the rendering of the service, induding an assessment of the appropriate proportion
of the likely surplus in the fund, subject to being highly probable not to reverse. The amount of surplus available is dependent on the rate of wear and

tear of the assets, which is substantially outside the control of the entity and the customer: As such, the Group does not deem there to be a significant
financing component.

Repeat service-based contrects (single ond bundled contracts)

The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements where repeat services meet the definition of a series of distinct services that are
substantially the same (e.g. the provision of deaning, security, catering, waste and landscaping services). They have the same pattern of transfer of value to
the customer as the series constitutes core services provided in distinct time increments {e.g monthly or quarteriy). The Group therefore treats the series
of such services as one performance chligation.

Short-term service-based arrangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service-based performance obfigations and professional services wark across certain reporting segments
for which revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the customer. This may be at the paint when the
customer obtains control of the service in a contract with customer-spedfied acceptance ¢riteria, e.g. the delivery of a strategic operating model or report.
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all conditions attaching to the grant will

be complied with. Government grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in the cansolidated income staternent as a
deduction against the redated expense for which the grant is intended 1o compensate, over the periods necessary to match the grant with the related
costs. Any repayrment of grants is charged to the consolidated income statement to reverse the deduction against the related expense. at the point when
management has taken the decision to repay the amount to the Government and the intention to repay has been communicated to the Government.

Other revenue
Interest income is acarued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Controct costs -

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (2.g. legal costs) when it is expected to enter into 4 new contract. The incremental costs to obtain a contract with
a customer are recognised within contract assets if i is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a contract that would have been
incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the year.

Contract fulfiiment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropriate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures, and mechanisms in place
1o enable the delivery of full services under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract fuffilment costs. Only costs which meet all three
of the criteria below are included within contract assets on the consolidated balance sheet:

i. the costs directly refate to the contract (e.g. direct labour. materials, subcontractors).
ii. the Group is buikding an asset that will subsequently be used to defiver contract outcomes; and
iii. the costs are expected to be recoverable, i.e. the contract is expected to be profitable after amortising the capitalised costs.

Contract fulfiment costs covered within the scope of another accounting standard, such as inventories, intangible assets, or property. plant and equipment
are not capitafised as contract fulfilment assets but are treated in accordance with the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets
The Group amortises contract assets (pra-contract costs and contract fulfilment costs) on a systematic basis that is consistent with the entity's transfer of
the related goods or services to the customer. The expense is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the year.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fulfilment cost is derecognised efther when it is disposed of or when no further economic benefits are
expected 1o flow from its use.

Management is required to determine the recoverability of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exists if the carrying amount
of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods and services, less the
remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant contract. In determining the estimated amount of
consideration. management uses the same principles as it does to determine the contract transaction price. An impairment is recognised immediately
where such tosses are forecast.

Accrued income aend deferred income

The Group's customer contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term contracts under which
it receives payrnents throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at 2 point in time may be at the delivery date,
i arrears or part payment in advance. )

Where revenue recognisad at the year end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group recognises accrued income for the difference. Where revenue
recognised at the year end date is less than amounts inveiced, the Group recognises deferred income for the difference.

Where price step-downs are required in 2 contract and output is not decreasing. revenue is deferred from initial periods to subsequent periods in order
for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for a customer to obtain extension periods or other services at a significant discount may lead to a separate performance obligation
where a material right exists. Where this is the case, the Group aliocates part of the transaction price from the anginal cantract to deferred income which
is then amortised over the discounted extension period or recognised immediately when the extension right expires.

Foreign currency

The financial statements of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business. Transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retrangation of monetary items, are included in the consolidated income statement for the year.
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|. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued
MNon-monetary items are reasured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency and are not retranslated.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on their acquisition,
are translated into pounds sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated inta pounds sterling at
average exchange r ates [ur (he period. Exchange differences arising are recognised directly in equity in the Group's hedging and translation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which they are incurred, with the finance charges relating to the direct cost of debt issue spread over the
period to redemption using the eflective interest method. The Group has elected to dassify cash flows from interest paid as operating activities and
interest received as investing activities. Interest paid indudes the interest portion of the lease liabilities.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based an taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from accounting profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balarce
sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary difierences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extert that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initiat recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based upon tax rates
and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated income
staternent, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity. in which case the deferred tax is also deaft with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets aganst current tax liabilities; or when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settie its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Dedision Maker (CODM).
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board
of Directors.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cast of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The identifiable assets, fabilities and contingent fiabilities of the acquiree that meet the conditions for recognition
are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in
aceordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sole and discontinued operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities ang contingent liabilities recognised. Negative goodwill representing a gain frar
2 bargain purchase is recognised directly in the consolidated income staternent.

Where applicable, the corsideration for an acquisition includes any assets or liabilities resulting fram a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
at fair value at the acquisitin date. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they result from additionaf
information, abtained within one year frorn the acquisition date, about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date, All other subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassified as an asset or liability are recognised in the consolidated income statement. in accordance
with IFRS 9. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassified as equity are not recognised.

Any business combinations prior to | April 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which
differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition farmed part of the acquisition costs: contingent consideration was
recognised if, and only if. the Group had a present abiigation, the economic outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable;
and subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's imterests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued
Wwhen the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or [oss and is calculated as the difference between: (i) the aggregate

of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest: and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in refation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or fiabilities of the subsidiary, i.e. redassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when appficable, of an investment in
an assodiate or a joint venture.

The Group measures the lease liability for acquired leases at the present vaiue of the remaining lease payments discounted using an appropriate discount
rate. As required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations, the Group treats acquired teases as new leases, thereby recording the right-of-use asset as equal to

the lease fiability.

Acquisition related liabilities or performance-based employment-linked earnouts are the estimated amounts payable 1o previous owners, The estimated
furture payments that are acaued over the period the sellers are required to remain with the business are accounted for as remuneration for pest-acquisition
services and recognised within the consolidated income statemert and classified as Other iterns. The amournts not finked to employment are considered to
be deferred consideration and estimated and recognised at acquisition at their discourtted fair value, with the urwind of the discount recorded as part of
finance costs.

Goodwil]
Goodwill arising on consalidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets.
fiabilities and contingert liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairmentt lossés. It is reviewed for impairment at
least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the consclidated income statemert for the year and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated 1o each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairmert annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit. the impairment foss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 1o the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

When a business reorganisation results in changes to the composition of CGUs, goodwill is reallocated to updated CGUs. The goodwill allocated to a prior
CGU is wholly reallocated to an updated CGU, where the goodwili wholly arose on the acquisition of businesses comprised within the updated CGU.
Where this is not possible, a relative vatue approach is taken to allocate goodwill to updated CGUs.

Other intangible gssets
Crher intangible assets identified in a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Customer contracts and relationships are amortised over their useful ves based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate
benefits, Other acquisition related intangibles include acquired software and tedhnology which are amortised over their useful lives.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset if the asset created can be identified, if it is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits and if the develaopment cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Software and development expenditure includes
internally generated intangible assets and is amortised over its useful life once it has been brought into use.

Upfront configuration and customisation costs incurred in implementing Saa$ arrangements are recognised as operating expenses when the services are
received. Some of these costs incurred are for the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or creates additional capability to, existing
on-premise systems and meets the definition of and recognition ariteria for an intangible asset. These costs are recognised as intangible software assets
and amortised over the useful life of the software on a straight-line basis.

Following initial recognition, the carrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that they may be impaired. Amortisation expense is
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over its useful life as follows:

Custormer cortracts and relationships 5-15 years
Software and developrment expenditure 3-10 years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated zt cost less accumulated deprediation and any impairment in value. Deprediation is charged 5o as to write off the
cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives and is calculated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years or lease term if shorter

Plant and vehicles 3-10 years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
toss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, management estimates the recaverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.
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|. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGL) is estimated ta be less than its carrying armount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estirnate of its recoverable
amount. but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the iower of cost and net realisable value and are mainly consumables in nature.

Costs represent materials, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventaries to their present condition and location,

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred 1o completion and estimated selling costs. Provision is
made for obsolete, slow muving or defective iterms where appropriate.

Financial instruments — dassification and meesurement
Financial assets and finandial fiabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Group derecognises finandial assets and liabilities only when the comtractual rights and obfigations are transferred, discharged or expire.

Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables from customers, derivative finandial instruments and contingent
consideration receivable. The dassification of financial assets is generally based on the business modet in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash where access is constrained is dassified as restricted cash. All of the Group's
cash flows from customers are solely payments of principal and interest. and do not cormtain a significant financing component. Finandial assets generated
from ail of the Group's revenue streams are therefore initially measured at their transaction price and are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost.

Financial liabflities comprise trade and other payables. financing liabilities and contingent consideration payable. These are measured at initial recognition at
fair value and subsequently at amortised cost with the exception of contingent consideration payable which is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financing liabilities are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of transaction costs. Finarice charges, induding prermiums payable on
settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the consolidated income statement.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

invoice discounting

The Group uses a non-recourse customer invoice discounting facility (CID facility) under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Group's
relationship banks. The arrangement with the banks is such that the customers remit cash directly to the Group and the Group transfers the collected
amounts to the banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance is derecognised from the
Group's balance sheet at the point of sale to the bank.

Financial instruments — impairment of finandial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on all receivable batances from customers measured at amortised cost, using
the simplified approach. Under this approach, the Group recognises a loss aliowance based on lifetime ECL s at each reporting date. ECLs are calculated
on the basis of historical and forward-looking data on defaut risk which is appfied to customers with common risk characteristics such as sector type
{e.g government or non-government).

Derivative finandal instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, induding cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, to manage the
Group's exposure to finantial risks assodated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value, determined by referance to market rates, at each
balance sheet date and included as financial assets or liabilities as appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consclidated income statement
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the consolidated
income statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Group presents derivative finangial instruments as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more
than 12 months and it is N0t expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Derivatives, which are set to mature or are expected to be realised or
settied within 12 months, are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Tha Group may designate certain hedging instruments including derivatives as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accourtted for as cash flow hedges. On adoption of IFRS 9, the Group
elected to continue 10 apply the hedge accounting guidance in IAS 3% ‘Financial Instruments: recognition and measurement’,

Al the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
managernent objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions, Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged rtem.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

|. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are dlassified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to 2 particular risk associated with
either a recognised asset or liability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity within the Group’s translation and hedging reserve. The gain
or loss relating o any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in ather comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the consolidated income staternent in the
periods when the hedged item is recognised in the consolidated income statement, in the same fine as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged resutts in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in
equity are transferred from equity and induded in the initiat measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial fiability. Hedge accounting
is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no fenger qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or 1oss recognised in other comprehensive income at that time is accurmulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated incame staterment. When a forecast fransaction is ne longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges are dassified as net investrment hedges when they hadge the foreign currency exposure 1o changes in the Group’s share in the net assets of 2
foreign operation. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument refating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and agcumuiated in the Group's transiation and
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement. Gains or losses on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity are redassified to the consolidated income statement in the same
way as exchange differences relating to the foreign operation.

Ledses

The Group has varicus lease arrangements for properties (e.g. office buildings and storage facilities), vehicles and other equipment including T equipment
and machinery. At inception of a lease contract, the Group assesses whether the contract conveys the right 1o contrel the use of an identified asset for a
certain period of time and whether it obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset. in exchange for consideration. The Group
recognises a lease liability and a corresponding right-of-use asset with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except low-value leases

and short-term leases of 12 months or less. costs for which are recognised as an operating expense within the consolidated income staternent as they
are incureed.

A right-of-use asset is capitalised on the consolidated balance sheet at cost which comprises the present value of future lease payments determined at the
inception of the lease adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred in addition t an
estimate of costs to remave or restare the underlying asset. Where a lease incentive is receivable, the amount is offset against the right-of-use asset at
inception. Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term and are
reviewed for impairment 1o account for any loss when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying vaiue may not be fully recoverable.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method to caltulate the present value of future lease payments and
is subsequently increased by the assodated interest cost and decreased by lease payments made. The effective interest rate is based on the rate implicit in
the lease or, where not available, the incremertal borrowing rate. Lease payments made are apportioned between a capital repayment amount and an
interest charge which are disdosed within the financing and operating activities sections of the consolidated statement of cash flows respectively. Lease
payments comprise fixed lease rental payments only, with the exception of property leases far which the associated fixed service charge is also induded.
Lease liabilities are classified between current and non-current an the conselidated balance sheet.

The lease term comprises the non-cancellable period in addition to the determination of the enforceable period which is covered by an option to extend
the lease, where it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised, and the period covered by the option to terminate the lease to a point in time
where ne more than an ‘insignificant penalty’ is incurred. The Group assesses an insignificant penafty with reference 1o the wider economics of the lease
including any investmertt in non-transferable leasehald improvements which may result in an impairment charge should the lease be terminated.

A modification to a lease which changes the lease payment amount (2g. due 0 a renegotiation or market rent review) or amends the term of the tease
results in a reassessment of the lease Bability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Provisions and contingent liabifities
Provisions have been made for contract specific costs, onerous contracts, insurance exposures, legal clairms, other property related commitments including
ditapidations and pension related provisions which primarily relate to Section 75 employer debt liabilities.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past evertt and it is probable that an outflow

of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where management expects same or all of a provision ta be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract. the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expensa relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated income
statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of money and, where appraopriate, the risks spedific to the fiability.
Where discourting is used. the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as 2 finance cost.
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. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Contract specific cost provisions are made when the Group expects to incur future remedial and rectification costs required to meet customers’
contractual terms. Costs are estimated using either the work of external consultants or internal experts. The amount recognised as a provision represents
management’s best estimate and is inherently uncertain and could change materially over time. The provision is reviewed at least on a bi-annual basis

for changes in cost estimate. Any change in cost estimate is recognised as a charge or a refease 10 the provision when it occurs,

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration expected to be
received. Unavoidabile costs include total contract costs together with a rational allecation of shared costs that can be directly linked to fulfiling contraciual
cbligations which have been systematically alocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers, except where this is impracticable and contract revenue is
used as a proxy for activity. The provision is calculated as the lower of the termination costs payable for an early exit and the expected net cost to fulfil
the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where a customer has an option 1o extend a contract and it is fikely that such an extension will be made.
the expected net cost arising during the extension period is included within the calculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably expected in the
extension period, no credit is taken on the basis that such profits are uncertain given the potential for the customer to either not extend or offer an
extension under lower pricing terms.

The insurance reserve relates to employers’ and motor and fleet fiabilities retained in the Group's self-insurance arrangement. The insurance reserve
includes the full estimated value of the liability gross of amounts expected to be recovered from the Group’s insurer. Any refated insurance reimbursement
asset that is virtwally certain to be received is separately presented gross within trade and other receivables on the consolidated balance sheet.

No provisions are recognised and only a disclosure in the financial staterents is made for contingent liabilities, Contingent liabilities are possible obligations
dependent on whether some uncertain future event occurs, or where a present abligation exists but payment is not probable, or the amount of payrment
cannot be measureq refiably.

Contingent assets

No assets are recognised and only a disclosure in the financial statements is made for contingant assets where an inflow of economic benefits is probable
but not virtually certain. Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fuiure events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of executive and employee share option schemes, Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at

the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes the eflect of non-market based vesting conditions. For grants of share
options and awards, the fair value as at the date of grant is caleutated using the Black-Scholes model or the share price at grant date, and the corresponding
expense is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting periad based on management's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the aumber of equity instrurments expected to vest as a resutt of the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions. Save As You Earn (SAYE) options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute o the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of
the remainder of the related expense.

The own shares reserve in equity includes the shares owned by the Employee Benefit Trust and Treasury shares. When shares are transferred to
employees upon exercise of options and awards, the own shares reserve is reduced by the relevant cost or value.

Costs incurred on issue of equity
The Group incurred costs in the prior period in relation to the 2020 rights issue. The transaction costs of such an equity transaction are recorded as a
deduction from equity to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided,

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirernent benefit schemes for alt qualifying employees, Payments to the defined contribution and
stakeholder pension schemes are charged as an expense as the related service is provided.

In addition, the Group operates and participates in a number of defined benefit schemes. In respect of the schemes in which the Group makes
contributions under Admitted Body status to dients' defined benefit schemes in respact of certain employees who transferred to the Group under TUPE,
the Group accounts for #ts legal and constructive obligations over the periad of its participation which is for a fixed period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuanial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date by qualified actuaries. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations, the return on scheme assets {excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if applicable. exdluding imerest) are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur:

Defined benefit pension costs (induding curtailments) are recognised in the cansolidated income statement, in administrative expenses, whitst the net
interest cost s recopnised in finance costs.

The Group's net liability in respect of defined benefit schemes is calculated separately for each scherme by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have eammed in the current and prior periods. discounting that amount using the market yield on a high-quality corporate bond and deducting
the fair value of any scheme assets. When the caloulation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the scheme, where the Group has the unconditional right to the surplus, or reductions
in future contributians to the scheme, Assets recognised are adjusted for tax, where relevant.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

The Group participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes. For three of these schemes, the Group’s share of the assets and liabilities
is minimal, The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme), a funded mutti-employer
defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4000 employers, The Plumbing Scheme trustee has issued
Section 75 erployer debt notices in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co Limited and Mitie FM Limited in the Plumbing Scheme {(refer to
Notes 21 and 32). Anather Group company, Mitie Property Services (UK} Limited, continues to participate in the Plumbing Scheme and the Group
accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme, For schemes where sufficient information is not available to use
defined benefit accounting, no liability is recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, however, the obligations are disclosed as contingent liabilities in
Note 34.

Dividends
interim dividends are recognised when they are paid and finaf dividends are recognised as a flabiity when autharised in a general meeting by shareholders.
Dividend income, including from joint ventures and associates, is recognised on receipt.

2, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The following are the ¢ritical judgements, made by management in the process of applying the Group's accounting poficies, that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Group's finangial statements.

Revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies, which are set out under Revenue recognition in Note 1, are central to how the Group measures the work it has
performed in each financial year.

Due 10 the size and complexity of the Group's contracts. management is required to form a number of key judgements in the determination of the
amount of revenue and profits to record, and related balance sheet items such as contract assets, accrued income and deferred income to recognise.

This inchudes an assessment of the costs the Group incurs to deliver the contractuat commitments and whether such costs should be expensed as incurred
or capitalised. These judgements are inherently subjective and may caver future events such as the achiavement of contractual performance targets and
planned cost savings or discounts.

For certain contracts, key judgements were made concerning contract renewals and amendments which, for example, directly impact the timing of
revanue recognition in addition to the phasing of upfront payments to, or from customers which are deferred to the balance sheet and unwound over the
expected contract term. Management considers this to be an area of judgement due to the determination of whether a modification represents a separate
cantract based on its assessment of the stand-alone selling price, rather than a termination of the existing contract and establishment of a new contract for
which the revised contract price would be recognised fram the date of modification.

Some of the Group's contracts include variable consideration where management assesses the extent to which revenue is recognised. For certain
contracts, key judgemants were made on whether it is considered highty probable that a significant reversal of revenue will nat occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resalved.

Profit before other items

Other items are items of financial performance which management believes shauld be separately iderttified on the face of the income staternent to assist in
understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item should be classified within Other items requires
judgement as to whether an item is or is not part of the ynderlying performance of the Group. Refer to Note | which details the Group's policy for Other
ems.

Other iterns after tax of £79.8m were charged (2021: £44.9m) to the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2022, Induded within
the net charge were material one-off charges in respect of the implementation of the digital supplier platform of £4.4m which, in management’s udgement,
is 2 material one-off programme delivering a step change in the Group's supplier chain managerment capabilities and therefore meets the Group's definition
1o be categorised as Other ftems. Alsc induded within cther exceptional items is income of £9.8m. arising as a result of commerdal negotiations with a
certain customer leading to de-recognition of pre-acqguisition labilities with respect to Interserve, which in management’s judgement is a material one-off
income and meets the Group's policy for being categorised as Other items. A comnplete analysis of the amounts induded in Orther items is detailed in

Note 4.

Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income

The Group has material amounts of billed and unbilled work outstanding at 31 March 2022, Receivables are recognised initially at cost (being the same as
fair value) and subsequently at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment, to ensure that amounts recognised represent the recoverable amount.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected aredit losses (ECLs) on all receivable balances from customers using a lifetime credit loss approach and
includes specific allowance for impairment where there is evidence that the Group will not be able to collect amounts due from customers, subsequent to
initial recognition. Maragement applies judgement on specific allowances for impairment based on the information available at each reporting date which
includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of the future economic condition of customers.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

IFRS |16 — Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any pericds cavered by an option to extend the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any period covered by an aption to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. Management applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain whether or not to exerdise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all refevant factors that create an econamic incentive for
the Group to exercise either the renewal or termination option, After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exerdse the option to renew or to terminate the lease.

Business combination — purchase price allocation
When the Group completes a business combination, the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are recognised through a purchase price
allocation process, the determination of which requires managemnent judgement.

Interserve acquisition

The Group completed the acquisition of Interservefm (Holdings) Limited (Interserve) on 30 November 2020. Under IFRS 3 Business Combinations. the fair
value of assets and liabilities must be finalised within a 12-month measurement period following the date of acquisition (the Measurement Period), which
ended on 29 November 2021 in the case of Interserve. During the Measurement Periad, the Group performed further analysis of balances acquired as part
of the Interserve transaction and decreased the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired as reported at 31 March 2021 by £7.7m to £131.0rn. This was
predominantly due 1o inareases in provisions for certain PF contracts where new information had been received about facts and circumstances that existed as
at the acquisition date, which in management’s judgement, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognised at the acquisition date.

During the Measurement Period, the fair value of the consideration for the Group's acquisition of Interserve, was increased by £4.9m to £1469m.

This was due to a reduction in management's best estimate of the amount expected to be received through the completion accounts process and other
mechanisms aflowed by the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA), from £57.6m 10 £52.7m, primarily reflecting the removal of certain liabilities on the
acquisition balance sheet and adjustments arising from the completion accounts process. This estimate was based on the facts and circumstances that were
present and known guring the Measurement Period, although the outcome of the completion accounts process remained inherently uncertain at the end
of the Measurement Period, given that the SPA terms related to the completion accounts mechanism were complex, and the completion accounts would
be the subject of commercial negotiation and, in the absence of agreement, an expert determination process. As previously disclosed, it was therefore
recognised that the final amount agreed could be materially difierent from the estimate. The completion accounts process {and expert determination) has
since been conduded. Fallowing the expert’s determination, for which the expert scught a legal opinion in relation to the interpretation of the complex
SPA requirements, an agreement was reached for the seller to pay £7.Im to the Group, of which £1.im was settled during the second half of the year
ended 31 March 2022 and £6.0m was settled in May 2022. The resulting £45.6m reduction in the related receivable has been recognised as an adjusting
post balance sheet event in the consolidated income statement and classified as Other iterns, given that the Measurement Period had ended.

The changes made t5 the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and the consideration during the Measurement Period resulted in an increase in
the goodwill balance of £12.6mto £159m which has been retrospectively adjusted (see Note 30).

The impact of the retrospective adjustment on the consolidated balance sheet at 31 March 2021 is shown below,

31 March 2021
Interserve
measurement impact of
period changein

As reported adjustments  accounting policy’ As restated

€m m £m £m

Goodwill 282.2 t2.6 - 294.8

Other intangible assets 266.2 - (5.2) 261.0

Deferred tax assets 320 (9.7} - 22.3

Total non-current assets 7376 29 {5.2) 735.3

Current trade and other receivables 683.6 (4.8) - 678.8

Current tax receivable 35 - 09 4.4

Toral currenc assecy 897.5 {4.8) 039 893.6

Total assets 1,635.1 {1.9) {(4.3) 1,628.9
Current trade and other payables (701.5) ©3) - (701.8)
Current deferred ingome {(84.5) 0.3 - (84.8)
Current provisions {48.3) 7.2 - {55.5)
Total current liabilities {866.8) 7.8) - (874.6)

Net current assets 307 (12.6) 09 19.0
Deferred tax habilities (122) 9.7 - (2.5)
Total non-current liabilities ‘ (406.5) 9.7 - (396.8)
Total liabilities ' {1,273.3) 1.9 - (1,271.4)

MNet assets 361.8 - {4.3) 3575

Naote:
I. The cornparatives as at 3| March 202 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for $2a$ arrangements as a result of the IFRIC agenda decision. Refer ta Nate 1.
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Notes to the consoflidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

DAEL and Rock acquisitions

©n'S August 2021 the Group completed the acquisition of DAEL Ventures Limited (DAEL) and on | Novernber 2021 the Group completed the
acquisition of Rock Power Connections Limited (Rock). The most significant fair value adjustments arising on the acquisitions of DAEL and Rock related
to attributing value to the acquired intangible assets recognised in the farm of customer contracts and relaticnships.

In determining the fair value of customer contracts and relationships, the Group used forecast customer cash flows from the contracts and expected
renewal rates and applied an appropriate discount rate specific to the asset. In determining the cash flows. management used judgement to estimate
revenue growth, profit margins, contract renewal probability and the average contract duration remaining as well as the discount rate. This analysis
indicated provisional fair values for customer contracts and refationships of £5.0m for DAEL and £2.5m for Rock with corresponding provisional deferred
tax liabilities in relation to those intangible assets of £1.2m and £0.6m respectively.

Classification of disposed businesses as discontinued operations

On | June 2021, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Norge AS, Mitie Sverige AB and Mitie Polska Sp 0.0 (together, the Nordics and Poland
operations). On 30 September 2021, the Group alse completed the sale of Mitie Business Services Limited and Mitie Business Services UK Limited
(together. the Document Management business).

The results of the Nordics and Poland operations have been classified as discontinued operations as the disposal related to specific geographical areas of
operations and was part of a single co-ordinated plan. The results of the Document Management Business have been classified as discontinued operations
as the disposed business represented a separate major line of business and the disposal was part of 2 single co-ordinated plan. Comparative information
has been re-presented to show the results of the Nordics and Poland operations and the Docaument Management business as discontinued operations.

Allocation of goodwill

The Group adopted a relative value approach based on operating profit before depreciation, amortisation, impairmerit and Other items to aflocate
goodwill to the disposed businesses and to reallocate goodwill related to the reorganisation of the divisional structure. As a resuft, goodwill of £14.4m
aliocated to the Document Management business and £1.4m aliocated to the Nordics and Poland operations have been disposed. These amounts have
been exdudad from the carrying value of goodwill within the Business Services and Technical Services CGUs, respectively. These amounts are included
in the net assets for the disposed businesses used in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal. Further details are included in Notes 5 and |2,

Sirnilarty, as a result of Mitie's reorganisation of its divisional structure, goodwill has been reallocated between CGUs based on a relative value approach.
Consequently, goodwill of £609m has been reallocated from the Technical Services CGU 1o the Communities CGU and £8.9m has been reaflocated from
the Business Services CGU to the Communities CGU.

Landmare join¢ venture

The Group holds 51% of the equity shares in Landmarc Support Services Limited {Landmarc), a jointly-controlled entity, through its shareholding in
Interserve. The remaining 49% of the equity shares in Landmarc are held by a single third party. Management considers Landmarc to be a joint venture
despite the Group having majority voting rights. This is because. under the terms of the shareholder agreement. joint agreement is required with the
Gther party to pass resolutions for all significant activities. Accordingly, the Group does not exert control on Landmare to recognise it as a subsidiary.

The Group accounts for its investment in Landmare using the equity method. See Note 15.

Key sources of estimacion uncertaincy
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty. that have the most significant effect on the carrying value of
asseis and liabilities as at 31 March 2022, are discussed below:

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and dairms that are in the ordinary course of business.
Judgements are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and daims are probable, and the liability can be reasonably estimated, resulting
in a provision or, alternatively, whether the items meet the definition of contingent liabilities.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in making a reliable estimate of the quanturn and timing of liabilities, judgement is
applied and re-evaluated at each reporting date. The Group recognised provisions at 31 March 2022 of £117.0m (202 restated: £123.6m). Further details
are induded in Note 21.

Cn 13 May 2020, Interserve Group Limited (IGL) announced that it was subject to 2 cyber-attack, which affected elements of the interserve Group’s
IT systems (inciuding enterprise resource planning and human resource systems). including elements related 1o the Interserve erities acquired by Mitie
{the Cyber Incident),

The Cyber Incident was reported to the Information Commissianer's Office {ICO) on 5 May 2020. The ICO subsequently advised IGL that it considered
it fikely that (GL had breached certain articles of the GDPR. it was therefore possible that iGL or members of the Interserve Group could be subject to
any regulatory action in respect of the Cyber Incident which, if they were found in breach of their obligations under the GDPR. could result in a remedial
order or fine.

On 27 April 2022, the ICO subsequently issued a Notice of lntent {NOI) to IGL. advising that it is minded to issue [GL with a2 penatty notice under section

155 of the UK's Data Protection Act 2018. The NOI contains a confirmation that the ICO is satisfied that IGL is the controller with primary responsibility
for the matters which gave rise to the breach of certain artides of the GOPR.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement dated 25 June 2020 (SPA), pursuant to which Mitie acquired the Interserve entities from How Group
Limited (HGL), HGL agreed to indemnify Mitie against any penalty that the ICO might impose on the Interserve entities acquired by Mitie in refation to the
Cyber Incident (the Cyber indemnity). The Cyber Indemnity was, alongside other indemnities given by HGL. secured by escrow arrangements, pursuant to
which £40.0m was held in an escrow account for a period of two years (until 30 November 2022).

Management reasonably believe that, having regard to the NOI (indluding the confirmation that IGL is the relevant controller for the purposes of the ICO's
investigation), the former Interserve entities, acquired on 30 November 2020, will not be subject to any regulatory action in respect of the Cyber Incident
which could result in a remedial order or fine. Further details are induded in Note 34,

Onerous contract provisions
Onerous contract provisions totalling £13.2m have been recognised at 3| March 2022 (202! restated: £17.6m). These primarily arose on the acquisition of
Interserve and include 2 measurement pericd adjustment of £6.4m (see Note 30).

Oneraus contract assessments are performed by the Group at an individual contract level at each reporting date. Determining the carrying value of
onerous contract provisions requires assurnptions and complex judgements to be made about the future performance of the Group's contracts. The level
of uncertainty in the estimates made, either in determining whether a prowision is required, or in the measurement of a provision booked, is linked to the
compiexity of the underlying contract.

The major sources of judgement when measuring the leve! of provision to book are:

© the level of accuracy in forecasting future variable reverue and costs 1o complete the contract:

© the ability of the Group to maintain or improve operational performance to ensure cost assumptions are in line with expected levels, including contract
specific key performance indicators (KP1s);

© identifying cost saving initiatives that are considered to be probable in terms of timing and scale; and

© expectations around the resolution of contract specific disputes and the likelihood of incurring fisture costs assodated with remediation or reactive work.

The range of possible future outcomes in respect of judgements and assumptions made to determine the carrying value of the Group's onerous contract
provisions could result in a material increase or decrease in the value of the provisions, and hence on the Group's profitability in the next financial year.

To mitigate this, management regularty compares actual contract performance against previous forecasts used to measure the onerous contract provisions
and considers if revised judgernents are required.

The Directors have assessed the range of possible outcomes on contracts requiring an onercus contract provision, based on facts and circumstances that
were present and known at the balance sheet date. To the extent that sensitivities around the major sources of estimation identified above in measuring
the provision, in aggregate, the assessed range of possible future outcomes on these contracts in the next financial year could potentially lead to a
reduction in the provision of up to £10m or a further increase of up to £19m being recognised.

An onerous contract provision has not been recognised on a certain contract which made a loss of £8.7m in the year ended 3| March 2022 (2021: £3.9m)
and has 18 years remaining on the contract. This contract was acguired as part of the acquisition of interserve, and a detailed turnaround plan is in the
process of being implemented. Based on the plan, management expects that the contract will return to profitability and will record a cumulative profit for
the remaining term of the contract.

Other contract specific provisions
In addition to the onerous contract provisions, the Group has recognised £43.Im of contract spexific provisions at 31 March 2022 (202! restated: £42.9m).
These have been recognised primarily to cover costs required to meet specific contractuat obligations.

Within this total, £14.7m relates 10 a certain contract where a significant liability has been estimated in relation to a commercial dispute. Management
sought external assistance to value the potential risk exposure to the Group. The actual exposure to the Group may differ from the amount provided at
31 March 2022 due 1o the compounding effect of muhtiple variables assodated with the particular issues involved i